BASE PROSPECTUS

INTESA (| SNNPAOLO

(incorporated as a societa per azioni in the Republic of Italy)

WARRANTS AND CERTIFICATES PROGRAMME
IMI CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANKING

Under the terms of its Warrants and Certificates Programme IMI Corporate & Investment Banking (the
"Programme"), Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. ("Intesa Sanpaolo” or the "Issuer™ or the "Bank™ or the "Parent Company")
may from time to time issue warrants or covered warrants (respectively, "Warrants" and "Covered Warrants", and
together, save as otherwise specified in this Programme, "Warrants") or certificates ("Certificates" and, together
with the Warrants, "Securities"). Depending on the type of financial asset used as Underlying(s), the Securities may
be Index Securities, Share Securities, Exchange Rate Securities, Futures Contract Securities, Fund Securities, Govies
Securities, Interest Rate Securities, Commodity Securities or Combined Securities (each as defined below). If so
specified in the relevant Final Terms, the Issuer may issue Certificates under the Programme described as "green”
("Green Certificates"), "climate” ("Climate Certificates"), "social" ("Social Certificates™), "sustainability"
("Sustainability Certificates").

Each issue of Securities will be made on the terms set out herein which are relevant to such Securities under "Terms
and Conditions of the Securities" (the "Conditions") and in the form of the relevant final terms document (the "Final
Terms"). Securities may be issued in bearer form ("Bearer Securities") or registered form ("Registered Securities").
Securities may also be issued in bearer, uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Italian law, regulations and operating procedures applicable to and/or issued by the
relevant Italian central securities depository ("Italian Dematerialised Securities™).

Application has been made to the Central Bank of Ireland (the "Central Bank of Ireland"™) in its capacity as
competent authority under the Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June
2017, as amended (the "Prospectus Regulation™) to approve this document as a base prospectus.

This Base Prospectus has been approved by the Central Bank of Ireland, as competent authority under the Prospectus
Regulation. The Central Bank of Ireland only approves this Base Prospectus as meeting the standards of completeness,
comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be considered as
an endorsement of the Issuer or the quality of the securities that are the subject of this Base Prospectus; investors
should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Securities. The Central Bank of Ireland gives
no undertaking as to the economic and financial soundness of the transaction or the quality or solvency of the Issuer.

Application has also been made to Euronext Dublin for Securities issued under the Programme to be (i) listed on the
official list of Euronext Dublin (the "Official List of Euronext Dublin™) and (ii) admitted to trading on the Euronext
Dublin's regulated market (the "Euronext Dublin Regulated Market") and the multilateral trading facilities Global
Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin (the "GEM"). The Euronext Dublin Regulated Market is a regulated market for
the purposes of the Directive 2014/65/EU, as amended (the "MIFID 11"). The GEM is not a regulated market for the
purposes of MiFID II.

Where Securities are to be listed on the Official List of Euronext Dublin and admitted to trading on the GEM, this
document constitutes a base listing particulars (the "Base Listing Particulars™) and, with respect to such Securities, a
reference to the Base Prospectus in this document shall be deemed to be a reference to the Base Listing Particulars
where the context requires. The Base Prospectus has been approved as such by Euronext Dublin. Issuers on GEM,
which is a multilateral trading facility, are not subject to the same rules as issuers on a regulated market. The risk in
investing in debt securities on GEM may therefore be higher than investing in debt securities listed on a regulated
market. Investors should take this into account when making investment decisions. The Central Bank of Ireland has
neither reviewed nor approved any information in this Base Prospectus concerning the Securities admitted to trading
on the GEM.



The Programme provides that Securities may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on such further or
other stock exchanges or markets as the Issuer may determine. The applicable Final Terms will specify whether or not
Securities are to be listed on Euronext Dublin and/or any other stock exchange(s). The Issuer may also issue unlisted
Securities and/or Securities not admitted to trading on any market.

Prospective purchasers of Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant Securities
and the extent of their exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the relevant Securities as an
investment in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition. Securities involve a high degree of
risk, including the risk of their expiring worthless. Potential investors should be prepared to sustain a loss of all
or part of the purchase price of their Securities. It is the responsibility of prospective purchasers to ensure that
they have sufficient knowledge, experience and professional advice to make their own legal, financial, tax,
accounting and other business evaluation of the merits and risks of investing in the Securities and are not
relying on the advice of the Issuer or, if relevant, any Manager in that regard. See Section "'Risk Factors™. The
language of the prospectus is English. Certain legislative references and technical terms have been cited in their
original language in order that the correct technical meaning may be ascribed to them under applicable law.

IMPORTANT — RETAIL INVESTORS - If the Final Terms in respect of any Securities includes a legend entitled
"Prohibition of Sales to Retail Investors"”, the Securities are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made
available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor either in the European
Economic Area (the "EEA") or in one or more specified jurisdictions in the EEA, and/or in one or more specified
jurisdictions outside the EEA. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail
client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU ("MIFID I1'); or (ii) a customer within the
meaning of Directive 2016/97/EU ("1DD"), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined
in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation; or
(iv) a retail client within the meaning of any equivalent definition under the applicable legislation of the specified
jurisdiction outside the EEA. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014
as amended (the "PRIIPs Regulation™) for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to
retail investors in the EEA and/or in the specified jurisdiction(s) only has been prepared and therefore offering or
selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA and/or in the specified
jurisdiction(s) only may be unlawful under the PRIIPS Regulation.

Amounts payable under the Securities may be calculated or otherwise determined by reference to one or more
underlyings that may constitute "benchmarks" for the purposes of Regulation (EU) No. 2016/1011 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2016 (the "Benchmark Regulation" or "BMR"). If any such underlying does
constitute such a benchmark the applicable final terms will indicate whether or not the benchmark is provided by an
administrator included in the register of administrators and benchmarks established and maintained by the European
Securities and Markets Authority ("ESMA™) pursuant to Article 36 of the BMR. Not every underlying will fall within
the scope of the Benchmark Regulation. Furthermore, pursuant to article 51 of the BMR, transitional provisions in the
Benchmark Regulation may have the result that the administrator of a particular benchmark is not required to appear
in the register of administrators and benchmarks at the date of the applicable final terms. The registration status of any
administrator under the BMR is a matter of public record and, save where required by applicable law, the Issuer does
not intend to update the applicable final terms to reflect any change in the registration status of the administrator.

The Securities and, in case of Physical Delivery Securities (only applicable in case of Share Securities and Govies
Securities) the Deliverable Asset (as defined herein) to be delivered upon the exercise of such Securities, have not
been, and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act™) or with any
securities authority of any State or other jurisdiction of the U.S., and trading in the Securities has not been approved
by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC") under the United States Commodity Exchange Act of
1936, as amended (the "Commodity Exchange Act"). The Securities and the Deliverable Asset may not be offered,
sold, pledged or otherwise transferred, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to a U.S. person unless such
offer or sale has been registered under the Securities Act or pursuant to an exemption from, or a transaction not subject
to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

The Securities and the Deliverable Asset are being offered and sold outside the U.S. to persons that are not U.S.
persons (as defined in Regulation S ("Regulation S") under the Securities Act) in reliance on Regulation S. No
Securities of any series, or interests therein, or Deliverable Asset may at any time be offered, sold, resold, traded,
pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered, directly or indirectly, in or into the United States or to, or for
the account or benefit of, any U.S. person and any offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge, exercise, redemption, transfer or
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delivery made, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person will
not be recognised. The Securities and the Deliverable Asset may not be legally or beneficially owned at any time by
any U.S. person. For a description of certain further restrictions on offers and sales of the Securities and on the
distribution of this Base Prospectus, see "Offering and Sale" below.

The Securities have not been approved or disapproved by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, any State
securities commission in the United States or any other U.S. regulatory authority, nor has any of the foregoing
authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of Securities or the accuracy or the adequacy of this
Prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

This Base Prospectus is valid for a period of twelve months from the date of its approval (i.e. 6 March 2026). For the
avoidance of doubt, the Issuer shall have no obligation to supplement this Base Prospectus in the event of significant
new factors, material mistakes or material inaccuracies when this Base Prospectus is no longer valid.

The date of this Base Prospectus is 7 March 2025.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This Base Prospectus comprises a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 8 of the Prospectus
Regulation.

The Issuer (the Responsible Person) accepts responsibility for the information contained in this
Base Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge of the Issuer, the information contained in this
Base Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the
import of such information.

Subject as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the only persons authorised to use this Base
Prospectus in connection with an offer of Securities are the Issuer, the persons named in the
applicable Final Terms as the relevant Manager(s) and the persons named in or identifiable
following the applicable Final Terms as the Authorised Offerors, as the case may be.

This Base Prospectus is to be read and construed in conjunction with any supplement hereto and
with all documents which are deemed to be incorporated herein by reference (see " Information
Incorporated by Reference™ below) and, in relation to any Securities, should be read and
construed together with the applicable Final Terms. This Base Prospectus shall be read and
construed on the basis that such documents are incorporated and form part of this Base
Prospectus.

A description of the Final Terms is set out herein at Section ""Form of Final Terms™ and will
specify with respect to the issue of Securities to which it relates, inter alia, the specific designation
of the Securities, the aggregate number and type of the Securities, the date of issue of the
Securities, the issue price, the credit event of the specified entity or entities to which the
Certificates relate, certain other terms relating to the offering and sale of the Securities including
whether they bear remuneration and the exercise date.

The applicable Final Terms will (if applicable) contain information relating to the underlying
asset, index or other item(s) (each an Underlying) to which the Securities relate and which is
contained in such Final Terms. However, unless otherwise expressly stated in the applicable Final
Terms, any information contained therein relating to an Underlying will only consist of extracts
from, or summaries of, information contained in financial and other information released
publicly by the issuer, owner or sponsor, as the case may be, of such Underlying. The Issuer will,
unless otherwise expressly stated in the applicable Final Terms, confirm that such extracts or
summaries have been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain
from information published by the issuer, owner or sponsor, as the case may be, of such
Underlying, no facts have been omitted that would render the reproduced inaccurate or
misleading, but the Issuer does not accept any further or other responsibility in respect of such
information.

As specified in the applicable Final Terms, each issue of Securities will entitle the holder thereof
to receive from the Issuer the Cash Settlement Amount (if positive), or in the case of Physical
Delivery Securities, the Entitlement to be delivered upon the exercise of such Securities,
calculated in accordance with the Conditions on such terms as are set out in the Conditions, all as
set forth in the Conditions.

To purchase any Security or, upon exercise of Physical Delivery Securities, in order to receive the
relevant Entitlement, each Securityholder will be required to certify (in accordance with the
provisions outlined in ""Offering and Sale" below) that it is not a U.S. person or a person who has
purchased such Security or received such Entitlement for resale to, or for the account or benefit
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of, U.S. persons and that it is not receiving such Security or exercising a Physical Delivery
Security on behalf, or for the account or benefit, of a U.S. person.

Copies of Final Terms will be available from the registered office of the Issuer and, in respect of
Securities which are not Italian Dematerialised Securities, also from the specified offices set out
below of the Security Agents (as defined below).

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuer to give any information or to make any
representation not contained in or not consistent with this Base Prospectus or in the Final Terms
or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Securities and, if
given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been
authorised by the Issuer or any other manager of an issue of Securities (each a Manager).

No Manager has independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no
representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility is
accepted by any Manager as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained or
incorporated in this Base Prospectus or any other information provided by the Issuer in
connection with the Programme.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the
Programme or the Securities (i) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation
or (ii) should be considered as a recommendation by the Issuer that any recipient of this Base
Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any
Securities should purchase any Securities. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Securities
should make its own independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own
appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuer. Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Securities constitutes
an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer to any person to subscribe for or to
purchase any Securities.

Neither the delivery of this Base Prospectus or any Final Terms nor the offering, sale or delivery
of any Securities shall in any circumstances imply that the information contained herein
concerning the Issuer is correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to
the date indicated in the document containing the same or that there has been no material
adverse change in the prospects of the Issuer since the date thereof or, if later, the date upon
which this Base Prospectus has been most recently amended or supplemented. Investors should
review, inter alia, the most recently published documents incorporated by reference into this Base
Prospectus when deciding whether or not to purchase any Securities.

Warrants create options which are exercisable by the relevant holder and/or will be
automatically exercised as provided herein. There is no obligation on the Issuer to pay any
amount to any holder of a Warrant or to deliver any asset to any holder of a Warrant unless the
relevant holder duly exercises such Warrant or such Securities are automatically exercised and,
in certain circumstances, an Exercise Notice is duly delivered. Securities will be exercised or
exercisable in the manner set forth herein and in the applicable Final Terms.

Bearer Securities are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or
delivered within the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, except in certain
transactions permitted by U.S. Treasury regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the
meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended (the ""Code") and



the U.S. Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO THE USE OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS
AND OFFERS OF SECURITIES GENERALLY

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
Securities in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or
solicitation in such jurisdiction. The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of
Securities may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. The Issuer does not represent that
this Base Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or that any Securities may be lawfully offered,
in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or
pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any
such distribution or offering. In particular, unless specifically indicated to the contrary in the
applicable Final Terms, no action has been taken by the Issuer which is intended to permit a
public offering of any Securities or distribution of this document in any jurisdiction where action
for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Securities or Deliverable Asset may be offered or
sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Base Prospectus nor any advertisement or other
offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances
that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose
possession this Base Prospectus or any Securities may come must inform themselves about, and
observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offering and sale
of Securities. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and
the offer or sale of the Securities or the Deliverable Asset in the United States or its possession
and the European Economic Area (including Ireland, Austria, Belgium, Croatia, France, Greece,
Hungary, Italy, Luxembourg, Portugal, Slovakia and Slovenia) (see ""Offering and Sale™).

The Securities of each issue may be sold by the Issuer and/or any Manager at such time and at
such prices as the Issuer and/or the Manager(s) may select. There is no obligation upon the Issuer
or any Manager to sell all of the Securities of any issue. The Securities of any issue may be offered
or sold from time to time in one or more transactions in the over-the-counter market or otherwise
at prevailing market prices or in negotiated transactions, at the discretion of the Issuer.

This Base Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii)
below may apply, any offer of Securities in any Member State of the European Economic Area
(each, a Relevant Member State) will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus
Regulation, from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Securities. Accordingly
any person making or intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of Securities
which are the subject of an offering contemplated in this Base Prospectus as completed by the
Final Terms in relation to the offer of those Securities may only do so (i) in circumstances in
which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Manager to publish a prospectus pursuant to
Article 3(1) of the Prospectus Regulation or publish a supplement to a prospectus pursuant to
Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation, in each case, in relation to such offer, or (ii) if a
prospectus for such offer has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant
Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified
to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State and (in either case) published, all in
accordance with the Prospectus Regulation, provided that any such prospectus has subsequently
been completed by final terms which specify that offers may be made other than pursuant to
Avrticle 1(4) of the Prospectus Regulation in that Relevant Member State, such offer is made in
the period beginning and ending on the dates specified for such purpose in such prospectus or
final terms, as applicable and the Issuer has consented in writing to its use for the purpose of such
offer. Except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) above may apply, neither the Issuer nor any
Manager have authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Securities in
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circumstances in which an obligation arises for the Issuer or any Manager to publish or
supplement a prospectus for such offer.

In connection with the issue of any Securities, the person or persons (if any) named as the
Stabilisation Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilisation Manager(s)) in the
applicable Final Terms may over-allot Securities or effect transactions with a view to supporting
the market price of the Securities at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail.
However, there is no assurance that the Stabilisation Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of a
Stabilisation Manager) will undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on
or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the final terms of the offer of the relevant
Securities is made and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it must end no later than the
earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant Securities and 60 days after the date of the
allotment of the relevant Securities. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted
by the relevant Stabilisation Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilisation
Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT: (A) ANY TAX DISCUSSION
CONTAINED OR REFERRED TO IN THIS BASE PROSPECTUS IS NOT INTENDED TO BE
RELIED UPON BY PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING
PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON THEM UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE
CODE; AND (B) PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON THEIR
PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISER.

All references to ""USD", ""U.S.$", "$", ""US Dollars", ""US dollars" and "U.S. dollars" are to
United States dollars and references to "euro', "EUR'" and "€" are to the currency introduced at
the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on
the Functioning of the European Union, as amended.

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

Intesa Sanpaolo is the surviving entity from the merger between Banca Intesa S.p.A. and Sanpaolo IMI
S.p.A., which was completed with effect from 1 January 2007. Pursuant to the merger, Sanpaolo IMI
S.p.A. merged by incorporation into Banca Intesa S.p.A. which, upon completion of the merger,
changed its name to Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. Accordingly, in this Base Prospectus:

- references to "Intesa Sanpaolo" are to Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. in respect of the period since 1
January 2007 and references to the "Intesa Sanpaolo Group" are to Intesa Sanpaolo and its
subsidiaries in respect of the same period;

- references to "Banca Intesa” or "Intesa" are to Banca Intesa S.p.A. in respect of the period
prior to 1 January 2007 and references to the "Banca Intesa Group" are to Banca Intesa and
its subsidiaries in respect of the same period; and

- references to "Sanpaolo IMI" are to Sanpaolo IMI S.p.A. in respect of the period prior to 1
January 2007 and references to "Sanpaolo IMI Group" are to Sanpaolo IMI and its
subsidiaries in respect of the same period.

In this Base Prospectus, unless the contrary intention appears, a reference to a law or a provision of a
law is a reference to that law or provision as extended, amended or re-enacted.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

The following general description of the programme does not purport to be complete and is taken
from, and is qualified in its entirety by, the remainder of this Base Prospectus and, in relation to
the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche of Securities, the applicable Final Terms. The
Issuer may determine that Securities shall be issued in a form other than that contemplated in the
Terms and Conditions, in which case, in relation to listed Securities only and if appropriate, a
supplement to this Base Prospectus will be published.

This Section constitutes a general description of the Programme for the purposes of Article 25 of
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 2019/980 (the “Prospectus Commission Delegated
Regulation ”) supplementing the Prospectus Regulation.

Words and expressions defined in the Terms and Conditions of the Securities and in the remainder of
this Base Prospectus shall have the same meanings in this general description.

Issuer: Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.

Description: Warrants and Certificates Programme IMI Corporate &
Investment Banking

Certain Restrictions: Each issue of Securities denominated in a currency in respect
of which particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions
or reporting requirements apply will only be issued in
circumstances which comply with such laws, guidelines,
regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements from time
to time (see "Offering and Sale").

Principal Security Agent, BNP Paribas, Luxembourg Branch.

Registrar and Irish Listing

Agent:

Calculation Agent: The Issuer or such other calculation agent specified in the

applicable Final Terms.

Settlement Currencies: Euro, U.S. dollars or any other currency or currencies selected
by the Issuer or any Manager, subject to compliance with all
applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank
requirements. The Issuer may issue Securities in respect of
which the Cash Settlement Amount and/or Early Redemption
Amounts and/or Remuneration Amounts may be payable, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms, in one or more
currencies (Settlement Currency as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) which may be different from the
currency in which the Issue Price was denominated (Issue
Currency as specified in the applicable Final Terms) (Dual
Currency Securities).

Issue Price: Certificates may be issued at such price as shall be
determined by the Issuer or any Manager appointed in respect
of the issue subject to compliance with all applicable legal
and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements. The Issue
Price will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. If the
applicable Final Terms provide for the Reduced Initial Listing
Price, the Issue Price will be considered in order to calculate
the Multiplier.



Offer Price:

Reduced Initial Listing Price:

Purchase Price:

Premium:

Form of Securities:

Certificates may be offered in the context of an offer other
than pursuant to Article 1(4) of the Prospectus Regulation (a
"Non-exempt Offer") or in circumstances where there is an
exemption from the obligation under the Prospectus
Regulation to publish a prospectus (an "Exempt Offer" and,
together with the Non-Exempt Offer, the "Offers"), at such
price (the "Offer Price") that may be equal to the Issue Price,
or such other price as specified in the applicable Final Terms,
in case of Offers in the primary market, or that will be equal
to the market price of the Securities applicable from time to
time, in case of Offers in the secondary market.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the initial price at
which the Securities will be traded on the market will be
determined on the basis of the Reduced Initial Listing Price.
The Reduced Initial Listing Price may be different from the
initial trading price of the Securities and will be lower than
the Issue Price. The Reduced Initial Listing Price will be
applicable only in relation to Securities to be admitted to
listing and/or trading without prior offer.

The Digital Certificates may be subscribed by the investor in
an Exempt Offer at the Purchase Price, if so specified in the
applicable Final Terms. The Purchase Price will be lower than
the Issue Price.

Warrants may be issued at such price (premium) as shall be
determined by the Issuer or any Manager appointed in respect
of the issue subject to compliance with all applicable legal
and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements. The
Premium will be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Bearer Securities

Each issue of Bearer Securities will, on issue, be represented
by either a Temporary Global Security or a Permanent Global
Security as indicated in the applicable Final Terms. The
Temporary Global Security will be exchangeable either, in
accordance with its terms, for a Permanent Global Security or
for Definitive Securities. The Permanent Global Security will
be exchangeable in limited circumstances for Definitive
Securities. Each Temporary Global Security and each
Permanent Global Security will be held by a common
depository on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg.

Registered Securities

Registered Securities will be represented by definitive
registered certificates registered in the name of the beneficial
owner thereof ("Registered Securities") and/or a registered
certificate in global form (a "Global Registered Security")
which will be registered in the name of a nominee for a
common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg or in any clearing system specified in the
applicable Constituting Instrument. Definitive Exchangeable
Bearer Securities will be exchangeable for definitive
Registered Securities only if and to the extent so specified in
the relevant Final terms. Registered Securities will not be
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Type of Securities:

Settlement:

How the value of the investment

exchangeable for Bearer Securities or an interest therein.

Italian Dematerialised Securities

Italian Dematerialised Securities will be issued in bearer (al
portatore), uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form
into Monte Titoli S.p.A. (with registered office and principal
place of business at Piazza degli Affari 6, 20123 Milan, Italy,
or any successor clearing system thereto) ("Monte Titoli")
pursuant to Italian legislative decree no. 58/1998, as amended
and implemented and subsequent implementing provisions
("Italian Dematerialised Securities"). Italian Dematerialised
Securities will not be issued in definitive form. However, the
holder still has the right to obtain the release of the certificate
pursuant to articles 83-quinquies and 83-novies, paragraph 1,
letter b), of the lItalian legislative decree no. 58/1998 as
amended and integrated by subsequent implementing
provisions.

The Issuer may issue Warrants or Certificates (together,
Securities) including Index Securities, Share Securities,
Exchange Rate Securities, Futures Contract Securities, Fund
Securities, Interest Rate Securities, Commodity Securities,
Govies Securities and Combined Securities, as specified
below.

Remuneration Amount(s) may be payable in respect of
Securities, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Warrants may be European Style Warrants or American Style
Warrants.

Settlement will be by cash payment (Cash Settled Securities)
or, in relation to Share Securities and Govies Securities only,
physical delivery (Physical Delivery Securities).

The method of settlement will be specified in the applicable
Final Terms.

In relation to Certificates only, the applicable Final Terms
may also specify that such Certificates are either cash settled
of physically settled depending upon the occurrence or not of
one of the following events (specified in the applicable Final
Terms):

- Barrier Event;

- Barrier Gap Event;

- Buffer Event;

- Consolidation Floor Event;
- One Star Event;

- Restrike Event;

- Settlement Event;

- Switch Event.

Settlement of Italian Dematerialised Securities shall be by
way of cash payment only.

The Cash Settlement Amount, the Entitlement, the Early

11



in the Securities is affected by the
value of the underlying assets:

Index Securities:

Share Securities (including
GDRs/ADRSs Securities):

Exchange Rate Securities:

Futures Contract Securities:

Interest Rate Securities:

Commodity Securities:

Govies Securities:

Redemption Amount (if any) and any Remuneration Amount
(if any) due under the Securities may be affected by the value
of the Underlying or the Underlyings specified in the
applicable Final Terms and will depend on the type of
Securities issued, as specified in Condition 23 “Pay-out
provisions”.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of
Index Securities will be calculated by reference to one or
more indexes or basket of indices or one or more baskets of
baskets of indices, provided that any of such indexes will not
be composed by the Issuer or by any legal entity belonging to
the same group.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of
Share Securities will be calculated by reference to one or
more shares or basket of shares or one or more baskets of
baskets of shares or to one or more GDRs/ADRs or baskets of
GDRs/ADRs or one or more baskets of baskets of
GDRs/ADRs.

In case of Physical Delivery Securities, the Deliverable Asset
will be a specified amount of shares of one or more
companies or an amount of GDRs/ADRs of one or more
issuers of GDRs/ADRs, as applicable, subject to payment of
the Expenses and any other sums payable.

The Share used as Underlying will not:

— issued by the Issuer nor by an entity belonging to the
group of the Issuer, and / or

— be converted or exchanged into shares or other
transferable securities equivalent to shares issued by
the Issuer or by an entity belonging to the group of
that Issuer.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of
Exchange Rate Securities will be calculated by reference to
one or more exchange rates or basket of exchange rates or one
or more baskets of baskets of exchange rates.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of
Futures Contract Securities will be calculated by reference to
one or more future contracts or a basket of future contracts or
one or more baskets of baskets of future contracts.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of
Interest Rate Securities will be calculated by reference to one
or more interest rates or a basket of interest rates or one or
more baskets of baskets of interest rates.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of
Commodity Securities will be calculated by reference to one
or more commodities or a basket of commodities or one or
more baskets of baskets of commaodities.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of

12



Fund Securities:

Combined Securities:

Exercise of Certificates:

Exercise of Warrants:

Govies Securities will be calculated by reference to:

(i) one or more government or supranational bonds or a
basket of government or supranational bonds or one
or more baskets of baskets of government or
supranational bonds; or

(if) the vyield of one or more government or
supranational bonds or the yield of a basket of
government or supranational bonds or one or more
baskets of baskets of government or supranational
bonds.

Govies Securities, only in case of point (i) above, may also be
issued as Physical Delivery Securities. In such case, the
Deliverable Asset will be a specified amount of Govies,
subject to payment of the Expenses and any other sums
payable.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of
Fund Securities will be calculated by reference to units or
shares in one or more funds or a basket of funds or one or
more baskets of baskets of funds.

The amounts or the occurrence of any event in respect of
Combined Securities will be calculated by reference to two or
more Underlyings belonging to different asset class.

Each Certificate shall be automatically exercised on the
Exercise Date, unless an Early Redemption Event occurred (if
applicable), or a Call Option is exercised by the Issuer (if
applicable), or a Put Option is exercised by the Securityholder
(if applicable), or an Open End Feature is applicable (in case
of Benchmark Certificates, Constant Leverage Certificates
and Turbo Certificates), as specified in the relevant Final
Terms, or unless a Termination Event or an Adjustment Event
or a Market Disruption Event has occurred.

In relation to Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities, the
early exercise of such Certificates shall be subject to the
extent such Certificates qualify at such time as liabilities that
are eligible to meet the MREL Requirements or, in case of a
redemption pursuant to Condition 22(C)(ii) (Exercise due to a
MREL Disqualification Event) of Certificates qualified as
liabilities that are eligible to meet the MREL Requirements
before the occurrence of the MREL Disqualification Event, to
the condition that the Issuer has obtained the prior permission
of the Relevant Authority in accordance with Article 78a of
the CRR.

In the case of Certificates listed on the regulated market of
jurisdictions other than Ireland, Securityholders may be
entitled to waive the automatic exercise in accordance with
the specific requirements of such regulated market, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

European Style Warrants are only exercisable on the Exercise
Date or, if such day is not an Exercise Business Day, the
immediately succeeding Exercise Business Day (the Actual
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MREL Disqualification Event:

Modification or Substitution of
Certificates:

Return on the Securities:

Exercise Date and the Expiration Date), unless a
Termination Event, or an Adjustment Event, or a Market
Disruption Event has occurred. Only in case of Warrants to be
admitted to listing and/or trading without prior offer, the
relevant Final Terms may specify an Early Redemption
Event.

American Style Warrants are exercisable on any Exercise
Business Day during the Exercise Period (with the last
Exercise Business Day of the Exercise Period being (the
Expiration Date), unless a Termination Event, or an
Adjustment Event, or a Market Disruption Event has
occurred. Only in case of Warrants to be admitted to listing
and/or trading without prior offer, the relevant Final Terms
may specify an Early Redemption Event.

If Automatic Exercise is not specified in the applicable Final
Terms, any Warrant which has not been duly exercised by the
relevant Securityholder, at or prior to 10.00 a.m., Brussels or
Luxembourg time, as the case may be, on the Expiration Date
shall become void.

If Automatic Exercise is specified in the applicable Final
Terms, any Warrant which has not been duly exercised by the
relevant Securityholder, at or prior to 10.00 a.m., Brussels or
Luxembourg time, as the case may be, on the Expiration Date
and which is, in the determination of the Calculation Agent,
"In-The-Money" shall be automatically exercised on the
Expiration Date. If specified as applicable in the relevant
Final Terms, automatic exercise can be waived by serving a
Renouncement Notice, which shall be substantially in the
form set out in the Agency Agreement, copies of which may
be obtained from the specified office of the Principal Security
Agent and the registered office of the Issuer.

Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities may be
redeemed before their stated maturity at the option of Intesa
Sanpaolo if the Issuer determines that a MREL
Disqualification Event has occurred and is continuing. Any
such redemption shall be subject to the circumstances
described in "Exercise of Certificates" above.

The Issuer may, without the consent of the holders of
Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities, substitute new
securities for such Certificates whereby such new securities
shall replace such Certificates, or vary the terms of such
Certificates, as fully specified in Condition 8(D)(ii) of the
Terms and Conditions.

Cash Settled Securities entitle the holder to payment on the
Settlement Date of the Cash Settlement Amount, if positive.

Physical Delivery Securities entitle the holder to payment on
the Settlement Date of the Entitlement, consisting of the
Deliverable Asset and, if any, the Residual Amount.

If so specified in the relevant Final Terms the Certificates
entitle the holder to payment of one or more Remuneration
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Status of the Securities:

Substitution of the Issuer:

Listing and
Trading:

Governing Law:

Admission

to

Amounts. The payment of one or more Remuneration
Amounts may depend on the value of one or more
Underlyings which may be different from the Underlying(s)
whose value is calculated for the purpose of other
Remuneration Amounts, or whose value is calculated for the
purpose of the same Remuneration Amount but in relation to
a different valuation period, or whose value is calculated for
the purpose of the occurrence of the relevant event(s), or of
the Cash Settlement Amount.

Only in the case of Warrants to be admitted to listing and/or
trading without prior offer, upon the occurrence of an Early
Redemption Event, the Securities are deemed to be early
redeemed and the Securityholders are not entitled to receive
any amount and the Early Redemption Amount will be equal
to O (zero).

The  Securities  constitute  direct,  unsubordinated,
unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and
rank, unless provided otherwise by law, pari passu among
themselves and, (save for certain obligations required to be
performed by law), equally with all other unsecured
obligations other than subordinated obligations, if any, of the
Issuer from time to time outstanding.

Unless otherwise indicated in the relevant Final Terms, the
Issuer is entitled, subject to the Conditions of the Securities,
to substitute any other company as principal debtor in respect
of all obligations arising from or in connection with any
Securities or to change the branch through which it is acting
for the purpose of any Securities. Upon any such substitution
of the Issuer or branch, the Conditions of the Securities will
be amended in all consequential respects.

Application has been made to Euronext Dublin for Securities
issued under the Programme to be (i) listed on the Official
List of Euronext Dublin and (ii) admitted to trading on the
Euronext Dublin's Regulated Market and the multilateral
trading facilities Global Exchange Market of Euronext
Dublin.

The Securities may also be unlisted or admitted to listing and
trading on such other or further stock exchange or market or
trading venues, as the Issuer may specify in the applicable
Final Terms.

After the Issue Date, application may be made to list the
Securities on other stock exchanges or regulated markets or to
admit to trading on other trading venues as the Issuer may
decide.

The Securities and any non-contractual obligations arising out
of or in connection with the Securities will be governed by,
and shall be construed in accordance with, English Law.
Notwithstanding this, (i) in respect of Italian Dematerialised
Securities, the registration and transfer of the Italian
Dematerialised Securities in Monte Titoli will be governed
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by, and will be construed in accordance with, Italian law, and
(ii) in respect of the loss absorption provisions described in
Condition 17 (Acknowledgement of Italian Bail-in Power) and
any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection
with such provisions will be governed by, and will be
construed in accordance with, Italian law.
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RISK FACTORS

The Issuer believes that the following risk factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations in respect
of Securities issued under the Programme and are material and specific to the Issuer and the Securities
issued under the Programme.

The Issuer believes that the factors described below, represent the principal risks inherent in investing
in Securities issued under the Programme, but the inability of the Issuer to pay the Cash Settlement
Amounts in respect of the Cash Settled Securities or deliver the Entitlement in respect of Physical
Delivery Securities may occur or arise for other unknown reasons which may not be considered
significant risks by the Issuer based on information currently available to it or which it may not
currently be able to anticipate. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Issuer or
that the Issuer currently believes to be immaterial could also have a material impact on its business
operations or the Securities.

Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base
Prospectus and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision. An investment in
relatively complex securities such as the Securities involves a greater degree of risk than investing in
less complex securities. In some cases, investors may stand to lose the value of their entire investment
or part of it, as the case may be.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given to them in "Terms
and Conditions of the Securities”.

1. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE ISSUER
Prospective investors are invited to carefully read this chapter on the risk factors before making any
investment decision, in order to understand the risks related to the Intesa Sanpaolo Group and obtain a
better appreciation of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's abilities to satisfy the obligations related to the
Securities issued and described in the relevant Final Terms. The Issuer deem that the following risk
factors could affect its ability to satisfy their obligations arising from the Securities.
The risks below have been classified into the following categories:

1) Risks relating to the financial situation of Intesa Sanpaolo Group;

2) Risks related to legal proceedings;

3) Risks related to the business sector of Intesa Sanpaolo;

4) Risk related to the development of the banking sector regulation and the changes in the
regulation on the solution of banking crises; and

5) Risks related to the entry into force of new accounting principles and the amendment of the
applied accounting principles.

1.1. Risks related to the financial situation of Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Risk exposure to debt Securities issued by sovereign States

As at 30 June 2024, based on management data, the exposure to securities issued by the Republic of
Italy amounted to €21.5 billion. It compared to €22.5 billion as at 31 December 2023.
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The market tensions regarding government bonds and their volatility, as well as Italy's rating
downgrading or the forecast that such downgrading may occur, might have negative effects on the
assets, the economic and/or financial situation, the operational results and the perspectives of the
Bank.

Intesa Sanpaolo Group results are and will be exposed to sovereign debtors, in particular to the
Republic of Italy and certain major European Countries.

As at 31 December 2023, based on management data, the exposure to securities issued by the Republic
of Italy amounted to €22.5 billion (2.3% of the total assets of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group) excluding the
insurance business, to which should be added €8.2 billion represented by loans. On the same date, the
investments in sovereign debt securities issued by EU countries, Republic of Italy included,
corresponded to €65.4 billion (6.8% of the total assets of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group) excluding the
insurance business, to which should be added €10.7 billion represented by loans. On the whole, the
securities issued by governments, central banks and other public entities represented approximately
13% of the total financial assets (calculated excluding the insurance business and including financial
assets represented by due from banks and loans to customers).

As at 31 December 2022, based on management data, the exposure to securities issued by the Republic
of Italy amounted to €26.9 billion (3% of the total assets of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group) excluding the
insurance business, to which should be added approximately €8 billion represented by loans. On the
same date, the investments in sovereign debt securities issued by EU countries, including the Republic
of Italy, corresponded to approximately €56 billion (6% of the total assets of the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group) excluding the insurance business, to which should be added approximately €10 billion
represented by loans. On the whole, the securities issued by governments, central banks and other
public entities represented approximately 11% of the total financial assets (calculated excluding the
insurance business and including financial assets represented by due from banks and loans to
customers).

1.2. Risks related to legal proceedings

As at 30 June 2024, there were a total of around 10,300 non tax related disputes - excluding those
involving Risanamento S.p.A, which is not subject to management and coordination by Intesa Sanpaolo
pending at Intesa Sanpaolo Group level (in addition to around 20,800 "mass" disputes at the
international subsidiary banks, which, as a whole, account for a very low remedy sought) with a total
remedy sought of around 3,370 million euro. This amount includes all disputes, for which the risk of a
disbursement of financial resources resulting from a potential negative outcome has been deemed
possible or likely and therefore does not include disputes for which risk has been deemed remote. The
risks associated with these disputes are thoroughly and individually analysed by the Parent Company
and Intesa Sanpaolo Group companies. Specific and appropriate provisions have been made to the
Allowances for Risks and Charges in the event of disputes for which there is an estimated probability of
a disbursement of more than 50% and where the amount of the disbursement may be reliably estimated
(disputes with likely risk). Without prejudice to the uncertainty inherent in all litigation, the estimate of
the obligations that could arise from the disputes and hence the amount of any provisions recognised
are based on the forward-looking assessments of the outcome of the trial. These forward-looking
assessments are, in any event, prepared on the basis of all information available at the time of the
estimate and updated over the course of the proceedings.

The disputes with likely risk are about 23,200 (of which around 16,600 relating to the above-
mentioned "mass" disputes) with a remedy sought of 1,698 million euro and provisions of 659 million
euro. Compared to the last year, there was a decrease in the number of disputes, which mainly
concerned disputes certain loan contractual topics relating to the subsidiary Banca Intesa Beograd.
The component referring to the Parent Company, totals around 5,000 disputes, with a remedy sought of
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1,420 million euro and provisions of 457 million euro. These include around 2,600 positions relating to
disputes concerning compound interest. There were around 500 disputes relating to other Italian
subsidiaries, with a remedy sought of 160 million euro and provisions of 82 million euro. In Italy, most
of them relate to issues of compound interest (2,600 positions).

With regard to the international subsidiaries, there were around 17,700 disputes with a remedy sought
of 118 million euro and provisions of 120 million euro, impacted by the previously mentioned mass
disputes. Specifically, there were around 14,000 disputes relating to the subsidiary Banca Intesa
Beograd in relation to two areas of litigation that have involved the entire Serbian banking system. The
first concerns processing fees charged by banks when granting loans and the second relates to real
estate loans insured through the National Housing Loan Insurance Corporation (NKOSK).

The most common legal disputes are related to invalidity, cancellation, inefficacy actions or
compensation for damages as a consequence of transactions related to the ordinary banking and
financial activity carried out by the Bank.

For any individual assessment regarding legal disputes, please refer to the section entitled "Description
of the Issuer — Legal Proceedings” of this Base Prospectus. Such paragraph also includes information
concerning the disputes on the marketing of convertible and/or subordinated shares/bonds issued by
Banca Popolare di Vicenza or Veneto Banca, which filed against respectively Banca Nuova and Banca
Apulia (both subsequently merged by incorporation in Intesa Sanpaolo in 2018 and 2019 respectively).

1.3. Risks related to the business sector of Intesa Sanpaolo

Risks related to the economic/financial crisis and the impact of current uncertainties of the macro-
economic context

The future development in the macro-economic context may be considered as a risk as it may produce
negative effects and trends in the economic and financial situation of the Bank and/or the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group.

Any negative variations of the factors described hereafter, in particular during periods of economic -
financial crisis, could lead the Bank and/or the Intesa Sanpaolo Group to suffer losses, increases of
financing costs, and reductions of the value of the assets held, with a potentially negative impact on the
liquidity of the Bank and/or the Intesa Sanpaolo Group and its financial soundness.

The trends of the Bank and the Intesa Sanpaolo Group are affected by the general, national and
economic situation of the Eurozone, the dynamics of financial markets and the soundness and growth
prospects of the economy of other geographic areas in which the Bank and/or the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group operates.

In particular, the profitability capacity and solvency of the Bank and/or the Intesa Sanpaolo Group are
affected by the trends of certain factors, such as the investors' expectations and trust, the level and
volatility of short-term and long-term interest rates, exchange rates, financial markets liquidity,
availability and cost of capital, sustainability of sovereign debt, household incomes and consumer
spending, unemployment levels, business profitability and capital spending, inflation and housing
prices.

The macro-economic framework is currently characterised by significant profiles of uncertainty, in
relation to: (a) the risk of energy supply disruptions and their effects on economic activity and prices,
also in relation to ongoing armed conflicts; (b) the future developments of the European Central Bank
("ECB") monetary policies in the Euro area and of the US Federal Reserve ("FED") in the US Dollar
area; (c) the tensions observed, on a more or less recurrent basis, on the financial markets; (d) the risk
that, in the future, holders of Italian government debt lose confidence in the credit standing of the
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Republic of Italy, owing to domestic political developments, changes in budgetary policies affecting the
sustainability of government debt or turmoil in other member states of the euro area.

The precise impact on the business of the Issuer and the Intesa Sanpaolo Group is difficult to determine.
As such, no assurance can be given that such matters would not adversely affect the ability of the Issuer
to satisfy its obligations under the Securities and/or the market value and/or the liquidity of the
Securities in the secondary market.

Credit risk

We would like to note that, as of 30 September 2024, Intesa Sanpaolo recorded a gross NPL ratio
(based on European Banking Authority ("EBA™) metrics) of 1.9%. On 31 December 2023, the same
data corresponded to 1.8%, compared to 1.9% recorded on 31 December 2022 well below the
threshold which identifies banks in Member States across the Euro area with high levels of non-
performing loans. In this regard the credit institutions which recorded a gross NPL ratio higher than
5% are required — on the grounds of the "Guidelines on management of non-performing and forborne
exposures” of the EBA — to prepare specific strategic and operative plans for the management of such
exposures.

Taking into consideration the pattern of the main credit risk indicators in 2023, in the first nine months
of 2024 and the improvement of the Gross NPL ratio well below the 5% threshold, Intesa Sanpaolo
deems that the risk related to credit quality is of low relevance.

The economic and financial activity and soundness of the Bank depends on its borrower's
creditworthiness. The Bank is exposed to the traditional risks related to credit activity. Therefore, the
clients' breach of the agreements entered into and of their underlying obligations, or any lack of
information or incorrect information provided by them as to their respective financial and credit
position, could have negative effects on the economic and/or financial situation of the Bank.
Furthermore, any exposures in the bank portfolio towards counterparties, groups of connected
counterparties and counterparties of the same economic sector, which perform the same activity or
belong to the same geographic area, could increase the Bank concentration risk.

More generally, the counterparties may not satisfy their respective obligations towards the Bank by
reason of bankruptcy, absence of liquidity, operational disruption or any other reason. The bankruptcy
of an important stakeholder, or any concerns about its default, could cause serious liquidity issues,
losses or defaults by other institutions, which, in turn, could negatively affect the Bank. The Bank may
also be subject to the risk, under specific circumstances, that some of its credits towards third parties are
no longer collectable. Furthermore, a decrease of the creditworthiness of third parties, including
sovereign States, of which the Bank holds securities or bonds, might cause losses and/or negatively
affect the ability of the Bank to invest again or use in a different way such securities or bonds for
liquidity purposes. A significant decrease of the creditworthiness of the counterparties of the Bank
might, therefore, have a negative impact on the results of the Bank's performances. However, in many
cases, the Bank could require further guarantees to the counterparties which are in financial difficulties,
certain disputes may arise with respect to the amount of guarantee that the Bank is entitled to receive
and the value of the assets which are the object of the guarantee. The default rates, counterparties rating
deterioration and disputes in relation to counterparties on the guaranteed appraisal could be
significantly increased during periods of market tensions and illiquidity.

Intesa Sanpaolo has always managed its risk portfolio proactively and prudently, overcoming the
various crises of recent years unscathed. Over the 2022-25 planning horizon, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group
intends to pursue a modular de-risking strategy — which was already launched in the last Business Plan
with significant results — ranking among the best in Europe in terms of NPL ratios and stock (a Zero-
NPL Bank) and generating a sharp drop in the cost of risk. The implementation of the 2022-2025
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Business Plan is proceeding at full speed.

The results for the first nine months of 2024 confirm that Intesa Sanpaolo is able to generate sustainable
profitability even in complex environments thanks to its well-diversified and resilient business model.
As at 30 September 2024, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s gross non-performing loans amounted to 9.6
billion euro, down by 317 million euro (-3.2%) compared to December 2023. Their ratio to total loans
decreased slightly to 2.2% and to 1.1% net of related provisions for impairments (2.3% and 1.2%
respectively at the end of 2023). According to the EBA methodology, on the same date the NPL ratio
stood at 1.9% and 0.9% before and after adjustments (respectively 1.8% and 0.9%, in at the end of
2023). This result was also attributable to the ongoing de-risking initiatives, and also reflect an amount
of non-performing loans classified as asset held for sale, having met the conditions for applicability
based on IFRS 5- The process of NPL deleveraging also continued to benefit from modest new inflows
from performing loans due to the performance of the prevention initiatives.

As at 30 September 2024, the net non-performing loans of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group amounted to
€4,737 million, lower than the figure recorded as at 31 December 2023 (€4,980 million), and
representing a new all-time low, continuing the virtuous trend already recorded in the previous quarters.
In further detail, in September 2024 bad loans amounted to €1,109 million (+18% from 31 December
2023), net of adjustments, representing 0.3% of total net loans with a coverage ratio of 69.7%. Loans
included in the unlikely-to-pay category amounted to €3.2 billion, down by 10.9%, accounting for 0.7%
of total net loans to customers, with a coverage ratio of 40.1%. Past-due loans amounted to €441
million (-5.2% from the end of 2023), with a coverage ratio of 31.0%.

Intesa Sanpaolo continues to operate as a growth accelerator in the real economy in Italy: in the first
nine months of 2024, medium/long-term new lending granted by the group to Italian households and
businesses amounted to around €30 billion. In the first nine months of 2024, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group
facilitated the return to performing status of around 2,250 companies, thus safeguarding around 11,000
jobs. This brought the total to over 143,000 companies since 2014, with over 715,000 jobs safeguarded
over the same period.

For more information on European legislative initiatives on Non-Performing Loans, please refer to the
"Regulatory Section" of this Base Prospectus.

For further information on the management of the "credit risk", please refer to Report on operations —
Risk management — Credit Risk of the Interim Statement as at 30 September 2024, included by
reference in this Base Prospectus.

Market risk

In the first nine months of 2024, with regard to the overall limit relating to trading and the hold to
collect and sell (HTCS) business model, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's average managerial Value at Risk
("VaR") was equal to € 137 million, in reduction compared to the same period of 2023, which was
equal to € 167 million.

Regarding the held for trading portfolio only, managerial VaR has recorded in the first nine months of
2024 an average value of € 28.9 million (€ 32.3 million was the average value on 30 September 2023):
the slight reduction is attributable to both the lower volatility registered on credit spreads as well as
the lower exposure towards interest rate risk on IMI C&IB Division portfolio.

The market risk is the risk of losses in the value of financial instruments, including the securities of
sovereign States held by the Bank, due to the movements of market variables (by way of example and
without limitation, interest rates, prices of securities, exchange rates), which could determine a
deterioration of the financial soundness of the Bank and/or the Intesa Sanpaolo Group. Such
deterioration could be produced either by negative effects on the income statement deriving from
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positions held for trading purposes, or from negative changes in the FVOCI (Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income) reserve, generated by positions classified as financial Activities evaluated at
fair value, with an impact on the overall profitability.

The Bank is therefore exposed to possible changes in the financial instruments value, including the
securities issued by sovereign States, due to fluctuations of interest rates, exchange rates of currencies,
prices of the securities listed on the markets, commaodities and credit spreads and/or other risks. Such
fluctuations could be caused by changes in the general economic trend, the investors' propensity to
investments, monetary and tax policies, liquidity of the markets on a global scale, availability and
capital cost, interventions of rating agencies, political events both at social and international level, war
conflicts and acts of terrorism. The market risk occurs both with respect to the trading book, which
includes the financial trading instruments and derivative instruments related thereto, and the banking
book, which includes the financial assets and liabilities that are different from those contained in the
trading book.

For further information please see Part E of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements,
incorporated by reference to this Base Prospectus.

Liquidity risk of Intesa Sanpaolo

The ratio between the loans to customers and the direct deposits from banking business, as reported in
the Intesa Sanpaolo Group 2024 Interim 3rd Quarter Report (“Loan to deposit ratio”), on 30
September 2024 was at 71.6%, compared to 74.5% on 31 December 2023.

Both regulatory indicators, LCR and NSFR, were above the minimum regulatory requirements (100%).
The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, measured according to Delegated
Regulation (EU) 2015/61, amounted to an average of 161.5% over the last twelve months ending
September 2024*. The NSFR measured in accordance with regulatory instructions, was 122,3% at the
end of September 2024.

At the end of September, there are still no TLTRO funding transactions in place.

Although the Bank constantly monitors its own liquidity risk, any negative development of the market
situation and the general economic context and/or creditworthiness of the Bank, may have negative
effects on the activities and the economic and/or financial situation of the Bank and the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group. In particular, in light of the findings set forth in the EBA third report on LCR and NSFR
monitoring?, the Issuer remains attentive to the evolution of the funding market to ensure that its
ordinary refinancing strategies and normal business are not affected by the cumulative effect of the
maturity of all the remaining central bank funding and additional outflows due to the impact of adverse
market liquidity scenarios.

In particular, in light of the findings set forth in the EBA third report on LCR and NSFR monitoring,
the Issuer remains attentive to the evolution of the funding market to ensure that its ordinary
refinancing strategies and normal business are not affected by effect due to the impact of adverse
market liquidity scenarios.

The liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is not able to satisfy its payment obligations at maturity, both
due to the inability to raise funds on the market (funding liquidity risk) and of the difficulty to disinvest
its own assets (market liquidity risk).

1 The LCR ratio refers to the simple average of the last 12 months of monthly observations, as per Regulation (EU) 2021/637.
2 EBA Report on “Monitoring of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio implementation in the EU” of 15 June
2023.
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The liquidity of the Bank may be prejudiced by the temporary impossibility of accessing capital
markets by the issuance of debt securities (both guaranteed and not guaranteed), the inability to receive
funds from counterparties which are external to or of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, the inability to sell
certain assets or redeem its investments, as well as unexpected cash outflows or the obligation to
provide more guarantees. Such a situation may occur by reason of circumstances that are independent
of the control of the Bank, such as a general market disruption or an operational issue which affects the
Bank or any third parties, or also by reason of the perception among the participants in the market that
the Bank or other participants in the market are experiencing a higher liquidity risk. The liquidity crisis
and the loss of trust in the financial institutions may increase the Bank's cost of funding and limit its
access to some of its traditional liquidity sources.

Examples of liquidity risk manifestation are the bankruptcy of an important participant to the market, or
concerns about its possible default, which may cause serious liquidity issues, losses or defaults of other
banks which, in turn, could negatively affect the Bank; and a decrease of the creditworthiness of third
parties of which the Bank holds securities or bonds, that may determine losses and/or negatively affect
the ability of the Bank to invest again or use in a different way such securities or bonds for liquidity
purposes.

For further information please see Part E of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements,
incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus.

Operational risk

The Bank is exposed to several categories of operational risk which are intrinsic to its business, among
which are those mentioned herein, by way of example and without limitation: frauds by external
persons, frauds or losses arising from the unfaithfulness of the employees and/or breach of control
procedures, operational errors, defects or malfunctions of computer or telecommunication systems,
computer virus attacks, default of suppliers with respect to their contractual obligations, terrorist
attacks and natural disasters. The occurrence of one or more of said risks may have significant
negative effects on the business, the operational results and the economic and financial situation of the
Bank. The capital absorption amounts to €2,364 million as at 30 September 2024 and represents
approximately 10% of the total value of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group requirement.

The operational risk may be defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. Operational risk includes the following risks:
legal, conduct, compliance, financial crime, fiscal, IT and Cyber, physical security, business continuity,
third-party, data quality, fraud, process and employer risks; strategic and reputational risk are not
included.

The Bank has defined a framework for the operational, ICT & security risk management which consists
of the following phases:

- identification: the detection and description of potential operational, ICT & security risk areas
(e.g. operational events, presence of issues, applicability of risk factors, significant risk
scenarios);

- assessment and measurement: this phase includes the activities aimed at the
qualitative/quantitative determination of the Intesa Sanpaolo operational, ICT & security risk
exposure and the transformation of the evaluations collected (e.g. internal and external
operational loss data, management levels of risk factors, probability and impact in case of
realisation of risk scenarios) in synthetic risk measures;
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- monitoring and control: continuous management of changes in the operational, ICT & security
risk exposure, also to prevent the occurrence of harmful events and to promote active risk
management;

- mitigation: operational risk containment through appropriate mitigation actions and suitable risk
transfer strategies, based on a risk-driven approach;

- reporting: preparation of information flows related to operational, ICT & security risk
management, designed to ensure adequate knowledge of the exposure to this risk.

Although the Bank constantly supervises its own operational risks, certain unexpected events and/or
events out of the Bank's control may occur (including those mentioned above by way of example and
without limitation), with possible negative effects on the business and the economic and/or financial
situation of the Bank and the Intesa Sanpaolo, as well as on its reputation.

Moreover, starting from 30 June 2023, the Bank implemented certain organizational arrangements to
ensure compliance with the changes recently introduced to Circular No. 285 aimed to implement the
EBA Guidelines on ICT and security risk management.

For further information please see Part E of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2023,
incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus.

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank is exposed to several categories of foreign exchange risk which are intrinsic to its business
and are lied in foreign currency loans and deposits held by customers, purchases of securities, equity
investments and other financial instruments in foreign currencies, conversion to domestic currency of
assets, liabilities and income of branches and subsidiaries abroad, trading of foreign currencies and
banknotes, and collection and/or payment of interest, commissions, dividends and administrative costs
in foreign currencies. Although the Bank constantly monitors its exposure to foreign currencies, any
negative development of the foreign rates may have negative effects on activities and the economic
and/or financial situation of the Bank and the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

"Foreign exchange risk" is defined as the potential loss resulting from changes in the exchange rate that
could have a negative impact on the valuation of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
on earnings and capital ratios. Two types of Foreign Exchange Risk are identified: Structural and
Transaction risk. Structural Foreign Exchange Risk is defined as the potential loss resulting from
changes in the exchange rate that could have a negative impact on the foreign exchange reserves that
are part of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's consolidated shareholders' equity, and includes the foreign
exchange risk associated with hybrid capital instruments. The key sources of structural foreign
exchange risk are therefore the investments in associates and companies subject to joint control.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group's management of the Structural Foreign Exchange Risk assigns the Parent
Company the related management and coordination powers in order to achieve a consistent Intesa
Sanpaolo Group strategy. This choice, which is consistent with the Parent Company's role as the liaison
with the Supervisory Authority, allows the activities to be performed based on the specific
responsibilities set out in the prudential supervision regulations, in addition to suitably mitigating
and/or managing this type of risk. Transaction Foreign Exchange Risk is defined as the potential loss
resulting from changes in the exchange rate that may have a negative impact both on the valuation of
the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and on the earnings from funding and lending
transactions in currencies other than the euro.

The main sources of this foreign exchange risk consist in: non-euro loans and deposits held by
corporate and/or retail customers; conversion into domestic currency of assets, liabilities and income of
the international branches; trading of foreign currencies; collection and/or payment of interest,
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commissions, dividends and administrative expenses in foreign currencies; purchase and sale of
securities and financial instruments for the purpose of resale in the short term; etc. Transaction foreign
exchange risk also includes the risk related to transactions connected to operations that generate the
type of structural foreign exchange risk represented, for example, by dividends, earnings in the process
of being generated, and corporate events

1.4. Risk related to the development of the banking sector regulation and the changes in the
regulation on the solution of banking crises

The Bank is subject to a complex and strict regulation, as well as to the supervisory activity performed
by the relevant institutions (in particular, the ECB, the Bank of Italy and CONSOB). Both the
aforementioned regulation and supervisory activity are subject, respectively, to continuous updates and
practice developments.

Furthermore, as a listed Bank, the Bank is required to comply with further provisions issued by
CONSOB.

The Bank, besides the supranational and national rules and the primary or regulatory rules of the
financial and banking sector, is also subject to specific rules on anti-money laundering, usury and
consumer protection.

Although the Bank undertakes to comply with the set of rules and regulations, any changes of the rules
and/or changes of the interpretation and/or implementation of the same by the competent authorities
could give rise to new burdens and obligations for the Bank, with possible negative impacts on the
operational results and the economic and financial situation of the Bank.

Regulatory framework

Starting from 1 January 2014, a part of the prudential rules has been amended on the grounds of the
directions deriving from the so-called Basel 11l agreements, mainly with the intention of significantly
strengthening the minimum capital requirements, the restraint of the leverage degree and the
introduction of policies and quantitative rules for the mitigation of the liquidity risk of the banks.

As for the capital requirements, the prudential provisions in force provide for minimum capitalisation
levels. In particular, the banks are required to have a Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET 1") ratio at least
equal to 7% of the risk-weighted assets, a Tier 1 ratio equal at least to 8.5% of the risk-weighted assets
and a Total Capital ratio equal at least to 10.5% of said risk-weighted assets (such minimum levels
include the so-called "capital conservation buffer”, namely a "buffer" of further mandatory
capitalisation).

As known, Intesa Sanpaolo, as a bank of significant importance for the European financial system, is
subject to the direct supervision of the ECB. Following the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process
("SREP") the ECB provides, on an annual basis, a final decision of the capital requirement that Intesa
Sanpaolo must comply with at a consolidated level. On 30 November 2023, Intesa Sanpaolo announced
that it had received the final decision of the ECB concerning the capital requirement that the Bank has
to meet as of 1 January 2024. The overall capital requirement the Bank is required to meet in terms of
CET 1 ratio is currently 9.37%.

This is the result of: a) a SREP requirement in terms of Total Capital ratio equal to 9.50%, which
includes a Pillar I minimum requirement of 8%, of which 4.50% in terms of CET 1, and an additional
Pillar Il requirement of 1.50%32, of which 0.84% in terms of CET 1; b) the additional requirements,

3 Following the additional Article 3 CRR deduction made to Own funds in June 2023 (for the calendar provisioning on

exposures included in the scope of Pillar 2), the Supervisor updated the Pillar 2 Requirement ("P2R") applicable. As a result,
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entirely in terms of CET 1, represented by: the Capital Conservation Buffer of 2.50%; the O-SII Buffer
(Other Systematically Important Institutions Buffer) of 1.25% and the Countercyclical Capital Buffer of
0.28% 4.

As at 30 September 2024, the CET 1 ratio stood at 13.6%°, the Tier 1 ratio at 16.6% and the Total
Capital ratio at 19.4%.

As for the liquidity, the European rules envisage, inter alia, a short-term indicator (LCR), aimed at
creating and maintaining a liquidity buffer able to allow the survival of the bank for a period of thirty
days in case of serious market stress, and a structural liquidity indicator (NSFR) with a temporal
horizon longer than a year, introduced to ensure that the assets and liabilities have a sustainable
maturity structure.

Both indicators of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group are above the minimum limits provided by the European
rules.

Despite the overall liquidity situation of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group being more than safe and under
constant control, some risks may materialize over the horizon. An important mitigating factor to these
risks are the contingency management policies in place in the Intesa Sanpaolo Group system of rules.

With regard to the Russia-Ukraine conflict, currently, in light of the low exposure to Russian and
Ukrainian counterparties, there were no significant impacts on the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s
consolidated liquidity position. See: "Description of the Issuer — The military conflict between Russia
and Ukraine".

Furthermore, the Capital Requirement Regulation (CRR2, transposing the Basel 111 Accord) introduced
the financial Leverage Ratio, which measures the coverage degree of Class 1 Capital compared to the
total exposure of the Bank Group. Such index is calculated by considering the assets and exposures out
of the budget. The objective of the indicator is to contain the degree of indebtedness in the balance
sheets of the banks. The ratio is subject to a minimum regulatory limit of 3%.

Although the above-mentioned regulatory evolution (further described under the "Regulatory Section™
of this Base Prospectus) envisages a gradual adaptation to the new prudential requirements, the impacts
on the management dynamics of the Bank could be significant.

In this context, a few other relevant provisions include the implementation of Directives 2014/49/EU
(Deposit Guarantee Schemes Directive) of 16 April 2014 and the adoption of the (EU) Regulation no.
806/2014 of the European Parliament and the Council of 15 July 2014 (Single Resolution Mechanism
Regulation — so called "SRMR™"), which may create a significant impact on the economic and financial
position of the Bank and the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, as such rules set the obligation to create specific
funds with financial resources that shall be provided, starting from 2015, by means of contributions by
the credit institutions.

Moreover, the Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and the Council (Bank Recovery and
Resolution Directive, "BRRD", as amended by Directive 879/2019/EU, "BRRD I1"), which, inter alia,
introduced the so-called "bail-in", Regulation 2019/876/EU of the European Parliament and the

from the second half of 2023, the P2R on Total Capital is 1.50% (compared to 1.72% previously).

Computed taking into account the exposure as at 30 September 2024 in the various countries where the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group has a presence, as well as the respective requirements set by the competent national authorities and relating to 2025,
where available, or the most recent update of the reference period (requirement was set at zero in Italy for 2024).

Common Equity Tier 1 ratio of 13.6% does not include in capital any net income accrued in the third quarter 2024, in
compliance with the ECB’s recent guidance, which specifically states that a supervised entity is not allowed to include any
interim or year-end profits in Common Equity Tier 1 in case it adopts a distribution policy that does not specify any upper
limit for cash dividends and any share buybacks, and it does not commit not to distribute neither via cash dividends nor via
share buybacks the profits that it wants to include in Common Equity Tier 1. Including in capital the net income of the third
quarter of 2024 and deducting dividends accrued in the nine months of 2024 for €5 billion, capital ratios as at 30 September
2024 were as follows: Common Equity Tier 1 ratio at 13.9%, Tier 1 ratio at 16.8% and Total Capital Ratio at 19.6%.
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Council, which amends Regulation 575/2013/EU (s.c. "CRR 1) and the Directive of the Parliament
and the Council 2019/878/EU, which amends Directive 2013/36/EU (s.c. "CRD V") must be taken into
consideration and put in force by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group is subject to the BRRD, as subsequently amended, which is intended to
enable a wide range of actions that could be taken towards institutions considered to be at risk of failing
(i.e., the sale of business, the asset separation, the bail-in and the bridge bank). The execution of any
action under the BRRD towards the Intesa Sanpaolo Group could materially affect the value of, or any
repayments linked to the Securities.

On 15 October 2013, the Council of the European Union adopted the Council Regulation (EU) No.
1024/2013 granting specific tasks to the ECB as per prudential supervision policies of credit institutions
(the "SSM Regulation") in order to establish a single supervisory mechanism (the "Single Supervisory
Mechanism" or "SSM"). From 4 November 2014, the SSM Regulation has conferred to the ECB, in
conjunction with the national regulatory authorities of the Eurozone and participating Member States,
direct supervisory responsibility over "banks of significant importance™ in the Eurozone.

In this respect, "banks of significant importance™ include any Eurozone bank in relation to which (i) the
total value of its assets exceeds €30 billion or — unless the total value of its assets is below €5 billion —
the ratio of its total assets over the national gross domestic product exceeds 20%; (ii) is one of the three
most significant credit institutions established in a Member State; (iii) has requested, or is a recipient of,
direct assistance from the European Financial Stability Facility or the European Stability Mechanism;
(iv) is considered by the ECB to be of significant relevance where it has established banking
subsidiaries in more than one participating Member State and its cross-border assets/liabilities represent
a significant part of its total assets/liabilities.

Notwithstanding the fulfilment of the relevant criteria, the ECB, on its own initiative after consulting
with each national competent authority or upon request by a national competent authority, may declare
an institution significant to ensure the consistent application of high-quality supervisory standards.
Intesa Sanpaolo and the Intesa Sanpaolo Group have been classified, respectively, as a significant
supervised entity and a significant supervised group within the meaning of Regulation (EU) No.
468/2014 of the ECB of 16 April 2014 establishing the framework for co-operation within the Single
Supervisory Mechanism between the ECB and each national competent authority and with national
designated authorities (the "SSM Framework Regulation") and, as such, are subject to direct
prudential supervision by the ECB in respect of the functions granted to ECB by the SSM Regulation
and the SSM Framework Regulation.

Moreover, as of the date of this Base Prospectus, the Bank of Italy has recently announced the
introduction of a systemic risk buffer and borrower-based measures applicable to all banks and banking
group authorized in Italy of 1.0 per cent of exposures towards Italian residents weighted for credit and
counterparty credit risk (to be gradually phase-in until June 2025). Therefore, it is not yet clear what
impact these regulatory changes will have on the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's operations. Moreover, as at
the date of this Base Prospectus, the CRD VI and CRR Il (as both defined below) have only been
recently published in the Official Journal of the European Union and there is uncertainty as to its
adoption and implementation of the legislative acts and in particular it is not yet clear how and to what
extent the changes brought by both the CRR Ill and the CRD VI may impact the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group's operations. Finally, as at the date of this Base Prospectus, the Council announced that it had
agreed a negotiating mandate on the review of the CMDI Reform (as defined below). The CMDI
Reform includes, among other things, the amendment of the ranking of claims in insolvency ensuring a
general depositor preference with a single-tier depositor preference. The implementation of the CMDI
Proposal is subject to further legislative procedures and, as at the date of this Base Prospectus, there is
still legal uncertainty as to what extent its adoption and implementation would impact on the Issuer’s
operation.

27



For further details, please see the "Regulatory Section" of this Base Prospectus.

Reputational and ESG Risk of Intesa Sanpaolo

Financial institutions are facing increased scrutiny on climate and broader environmental, social and
governance ("ESG")-related issues from governments, regulators, shareholders and other bodies. This
focus on ESG may lead to reputational risks if the Bank is not perceived to support the transition to a
lower carbon economy, as well as to protect biodiversity and human rights. The Bank is also required
to review and enhance our ESG risk management frameworks in alignment with emerging regulatory
guidance and to ensure that we accurately portray the ESG aspects of our activities.

Within the Bank the governance of reputational and ESG risks is closely integrated due to the strong
interconnections between these risk profiles.

Reputational risk is the current or prospective risk of a decline in profits or enterprise value
(capitalization) resulting from a negative perception of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's image by
customers, counterparties, Intesa Sanpaolo Group shareholders, investors, or regulatory authorities.
While ESG risks include all risks arising from potential negative impacts, direct or indirect, on the
environment, people and communities and more generally all stakeholders, in addition to those arising
from corporate governance. Within this category of risk climate change risk is of significant relevance.

The Bank is exposed to risks arising from climate change either directly through its own operations or
indirectly through its financing and investment activities. The taxonomy adopted by Intesa Sanpaolo
divides climate change risks into physical and transition risks.

Physical risks represent the negative financial impact from climate change, including more frequent
extreme weather events and gradual climate change, as well as environmental degradation, i.e. air,
water and soil pollution, water stress, biodiversity loss, and deforestation. These types of risks — which
can usually arise in both the short/medium and long term — can be broken down into acute and chronic
risks:

. acute physical risks refer to specific events that have the potential to create significant physical
damage (e.g. flooding of rivers and oceans, tropical storms). These events are occurring more
frequently, on both a regional and global basis;

. chronic physical risks involve a series of physical impacts of considerably longer duration than
those posed by acute risks. They are identifiable as processes of change rather than single events.
In most cases, the impacts are localised (e.g., drought) but chronic risks are likely to become
more significant in the long term.

Transition risks are the negative financial impacts that an institution may incur, directly or indirectly, as
a result of the process of adjustment to a low-carbon and more environmentally sustainable economy,
arising from:

. public policy and legal risks: this category includes policies that attempt to limit actions that
contribute to the negative effects of climate change or political actions that seek to promote
adaptation to climate change and the legal risk arising from the inability of organisations to
mitigate/adapt to climate change;

o technological developments: these include innovations that support the transition to a low-
carbon and energy-efficient economic system;

. consumer preferences: changes in the demand and supply of certain goods, products and
services;

28



. reputational risk arising from changes in customer or community perceptions of an
organisation’s contribution to the transition to a low-carbon economy.

Even though the Bank is working on the identification of the potential impact and the mitigation action
to be taken to address both transition and physical risks, climate change could nonetheless have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In our Business
Plan, we aim at creating strong and sustainable value for our shareholders, further increasing our solid
capital position and our ESG commitment. We are also working to achieve a net-zero emission target,
in terms of own emissions by 2030, and in terms of loan and investment portfolios, asset management
and insurance sectors by 2050. This includes the ability to identify, monitor and manage ESG-related
risks associated with the activities of customer companies in the investment and lending decisions by
the Intesa Sanpaolo Group. Both rapidly changing regulatory as well as stakeholder demands, combined
with significant focus by stakeholders, may materially affect our businesses if we fail to adopt such
demands or appropriately implement our strategic plans.

1.5. Risks related to the entry into force of new accounting principles and the amendment of
the applied accounting principles

The Bank is exposed, as much as any other entity operating within the bank sector, to the effects
deriving from both the entry into force of new accounting principles and the amendment of the existing
ones, in particular with respect to the International Accounting Standards ("IAS") and International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), as approved and adopted within the European legal system.

It is primarily noted that IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, published by the International Accounting and
Standards Board in May 2017 and subject to subsequent amendments, endorsed with Regulation (EU)
no. 2036/2021 of 19 November 2021, is applicable from 1 January 2023.

The Interim Statement as at 31 March 2023 was the first financial statement drawn up in application of
IFRS 17. At the same time, the insurance companies of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group also applied for the
first time IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the application of which was deferred by virtue of the
application of the deferral approach®.

The new standard envisages the introduction of new balance sheet figures and different ways of
recognising the profitability of insurance products in the financial statements, which could lead to both
balance sheet impacts upon first-time adoption of the standard and volatility in the income statement
once the standard is being implemented. The balance sheet impact upon first-time adoption depends on
the level of market rates at the transition date, as well as the transition approaches adopted. On the other
hand, the income statement result is closely related to how the Contractual Service Margin ("CSM") is
released over time and how it is adjusted following revisions to the operational and financial
assumptions included in the cash flow and risk adjustment. With regard to the effects of the application
of IFRS 17, at the transition date (1 January 2022), the Shareholders' Equity in the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group Consolidated Financial Statements decreased by €985 million, net of the tax effect, due to
greater insurance liabilities for €731 million (€505 million net of the tax effect) due to the different
measurement criteria set out in IFRS 17 in place of the previous IFRS 4 and to the derecognition of
intangible assets (new business and distribution) with a finite useful life, for a total of €685 million
(€480 million net of the tax effect). The total effect on shareholders' equity as at 31 December 2022
deriving from the combined application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 17 was a negative €552 million net of the
tax effect. That effect is due to the impacts of transition to IFRS 17/IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2022 (a

6 Note that, by virtue of the application of the Deferral Approach, the financial assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
insurance companies continued to be recognised in accordance with the provisions of 1AS 39, while awaiting the entry
into force of the new international financial reporting standard on insurance contracts (IFRS 17).
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negative €985 million), partially offset during the year by greater income (€25 million) and greater
reserves (€408 million) expressed in accordance with the new standards.

Shareholders' Equity in terms of own funds decreased as at 31 December 2022 by €408 million, with an
impact of -11 basis points on the CET 1 ratio. Note that, for the purpose of the prudential calculation,
the investment in the insurance companies falls under the Danish Compromise regime, which allows
the investment to be weighted at 370% instead of deducting it from CET 1.

For further details on the first adoption of the new principle IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 for the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group’s insurance companies, including a complete illustration of the provisions of these
standards, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s choices and the related impacts, please refer to the specific
section “Transition to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments by the Group’s
insurance companies” included in the 2023 Audited Financial Statements.

For further details on the first adoption of the new principle or amendment to existing international I1AS
and IFRS accounting principles please refer to the specific information included in the chapter “Notes
to the consolidated financial statements — Part A — Accounting policies” of the 2022 Annual Report and
the 2023 Annual Report and in the chapter “Notes - Accounting policies” included in the 2023 Audited
Financial Statements.

2. MATERIAL RISKS THAT ARE SPECIFIC TO THE SECURITIES BEING OFFERED
AND/OR ADMITTED TO TRADING

Prospective investors are invited to carefully read this chapter on the risk factors before making any
investment decision, in order to understand the risks related to the Securities issued under this Base
Prospectus to be offered and/or admitted to trading.

The risks below have been classified into the following categories:
1) Risks related to the nature of the Securities;
2) Risks related to the Underlying;
3) Specific risks related to Certificates;
4) Specific risks related to Warrants;
5) Risks related to Securities generally; and

6) Risks related to the offer to the public and/or admission of the Securities to trading on a
regulated market.

2.1  Risks related to the nature of the Securities
The Certificates may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each potential investor in the Certificates must determine the suitability of the investment in light of its
own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

(i) have sufficient knowledge and experience to evaluate the Certificates, the merits and risks of
investing in the Certificates and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this
Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement to the Base Prospectus and all information
contained in the applicable Final Terms;

(i) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
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particular financial situation, an investment in the Certificates and the impact that the
Certificates will have on its overall investment portfolio;

(iii) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
Certificates, including Certificates with amounts payable in one or more currencies, or where
the Settlement Currency is different from the potential investor's currency;

(iv) understand thoroughly the terms of the Certificates and be familiar with any relevant indices
and financial markets; and

(v) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear
the applicable risks.

In addition, an investment in Index Securities, Share Securities, Futures Contract Securities, Interest
Rate Securities, Exchange Rate Securities, Fund Securities, Commodity Securities, Govies Securities or
Combined Securities may entail significant risks not associated with investments in conventional
securities such as debt or equity securities, including, but not limited to, the risks set out in "Risks
related to the structure of a particular issue of Securities” set out below.

Certificates are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do not
purchase complex financial instruments as stand-alone investments. They purchase complex financial
instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured and appropriate
addition of risk to their overall portfolios. A potential investor should not invest in Certificates which
are complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise (either alone or with the help of a financial
adviser) to evaluate how the Certificates will perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects
on the value of the Certificates and the impact this investment will have on the potential investor's
overall investment portfolio.

Resolution Powers and contractual recognition of the BRRD

Under the BRRD framework the Relevant Authorities have the power to apply "resolution™ tools if the
relevant Issuer is failing or likely to fail, as an alternative to compulsory liquidation proceedings.
Specifically, these tools are: (1) the sale of business assets or shares of the relevant Issuer; (2) the
establishment of a bridging institution; (3) the separation of the unimpaired assets of the relevant Issuer
from those which are deteriorated or impaired; and (4) a bail-in, through write-down/conversion into
equity of regulatory capital instruments as well as other liabilities of the Issuer if the relevant conditions
are satisfied and in accordance with the creditors' hierarchy provided under the relevant provisions of
Italian law.

Furthermore, Article 33a of BRRD Il introduces a new pre-resolution moratorium tool as a temporary
measure in an early stage and new suspension powers, which the resolution authority can use within the
resolution period. Any suspension of activities can, as stated above, result in the partial or complete
suspension of the performance of agreements (including any payment or delivery obligation) entered
into by the respective credit institution. The exercise of any such power or any suggestion of such
exercise could materially adversely affect the rights of the holders of securities issued by the Issuer, the
price or value of their investment in any such security and/or the ability of the credit institution to
satisfy its obligations under any such security.

In particular, by its acquisition of a Security (whether on issuance or in the secondary market), each
holder of the Securities acknowledges, accepts, agrees to be bound by and consents to the exercise of
any resolution power by a Relevant Authority that may result in the cancellation of all, or a portion, of
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the principal amount of, or any amount due on, the Securities and/or the conversion of all, or a portion,
of the principal amount of, or any amount due on, the Securities into equity or other securities or other
obligations of the Issuer or another person, including by means of a variation to the terms of the
Securities, to give effect to the exercise by a Relevant Authority of such resolution power. Each holder
of the Securities acknowledges, accepts and agrees that its rights as a holder of the Securities are
subject to, and will be varied, if necessary, so as to give effect to, the exercise of any such power by any
Relevant Authority. The exercise of the resolution power by the Relevant Authority will not constitute
an event of default under the Securities.

The exercise of any resolution power, which could result in the Securities being written down or
converted into equity pursuant to such statutory measures, or any suggestion of such exercise could,
therefore, materially adversely affect the rights of the Securityholders, the price or value of their
investment in the Securities, the ability of the Issuer to satisfy its obligations under the Securities, and
may have a negative impact on the market value of the Securities.

Regulatory restrictions with regard to certain types of Certificates

The BRRD Il and the SRMR 1l have detailed the scope of liabilities that are intended to be eligible
for the purposes of the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities ("MREL"). In
particular, according to Article 45b para. 2 of the BRRD Il and Avrticle 12c par. 2 of the SRMR I,
certain types of Certificates may be considered as eligible liabilities available to meet the MREL
Requirements (as defined below).

As a consequence, in relation to Certificates that may be considered as eligible liabilities according to
such Articles, all the provisions concerning the eligible liabilities set out in the BRRD II, in the SRMR
Il and in the CRR 11, should be deemed applicable for the Certificates which satisfy the conditions set
out the in the MREL Requirements.

Certificates intended to be eligible are subject to certain restrictions. In particular, the respective
Securityholders are not entitled to set off claims arising from such Certificates against any of the
Issuer’s claims. No security of whatever kind and no guarantee is, or shall at any time be, provided by
the Issuer or other entities related to the Issuer, which enhances the seniority of the claims under these
Certificates. Furthermore, the early redemption and the repurchase of Certificates that are intended to
be eligible for the purposes of MREL are subject to specific restrictions such as the prior consent of the
competent authority. Further, termination rights, if any, are excluded for the respective Securityholders,
other than in the case of the insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer, under all relevant laws and
regulations amended from time to time, which are and will be applicable to it.

These restrictions limit the rights of the Securityholders and might expose them to the risk that their
investment will have a lower potential return than expected.

In addition, the BRRD II, the SRMR Il and the CRR Il have been recently adopted and there is
uncertainty as to their implementation and interpretation in the relevant Member States.

Option risk

The Certificates are derivative financial instruments which may include an option right and which,
therefore, have many characteristics in common with options. Transactions in options involve a high
level of risk. An investor who intends to trade in options must first of all understand the functioning of
the types of contracts which he intends to trade in (for example, call options and put options). An
investment in options constitutes a highly volatile investment and there is a high likelihood that the
option may have no value whatsoever at expiration. In such case, the investor would lose the entire
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amount used to purchase the option (known as the "premium®).

An investor who is considering the purchase of a call option over an Underlying, the market price of
which is much lower than the price at which the exercise of the option would be opportune (known as
"deep out of the money"), must consider that the possibility that the exercise of the option will become
profitable is remote. Likewise, an investor who is considering the purchase of a put option over an
Underlying, the market price of which is much higher than the price at which the exercise of the option
would be opportune, must consider that the possibility that the exercise of the option will become
profitable is remote.

The Certificates include some options on the Underlying(s). The amount potentially paid or deliverable
on exercise will depend on the value of such options. Prior to the expiration of a Certificate, a variation
in the value of the relevant options may involve a reduction in the value of such Certificate.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls

The Issuer will pay any cash amount in respect of the Securities in the Settlement Currency specified in
the applicable Final Terms. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an investor's
financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the "Investor's
Currency") other than the Settlement Currency. These include the risk that exchange rates may
significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of the Settlement Currency or revaluation of
the Investor's Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor's Currency may
impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor's Currency relative to
the Settlement Currency would decrease (i) the Investor's Currency-equivalent yield on the Securities,
(ii) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the cash amount in respect of the Securities and (iii) the
Investor's Currency equivalent market value of the Securities.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls
that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, the cash amount that investors may
receive may be less than expected or zero.

The above risks may be increased for currencies of emerging market jurisdictions.
2.2 Risks related to the Underlying

General risks and risks relating to the Underlying

The Securities involve a high degree of risk, which may include, among others, interest rate, foreign
exchange, time value and political risks. Purchasers should be prepared to sustain a partial or total loss
of the purchase price of their Securities. This risk reflects the nature of a Security as an asset which,
other factors held constant, tends to decline in value over time and which may become worthless on
expiration. See "Certain Factors Affecting the Value and Trading Price of Securities" below.
Prospective purchasers of Securities should be experienced with respect to options and option
transactions, should understand the risks of transactions involving the relevant Securities and should
reach an investment decision only after careful consideration with their advisers of the suitability of
such Securities in light of their particular financial circumstances, the information set forth herein, the
information regarding the relevant Securities and the particular Underlying.

The risk of the loss of some or all of the purchase price of a Security upon expiration means that, in
order to recover and realise a return upon his or her investment, a purchaser of a Security must
generally be correct about the direction, timing and magnitude of an anticipated change in the value of
the relevant Underlying. Assuming all other factors are held constant, the lower the value of a Security
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and the shorter its remaining term to expiration, the greater the risk that purchasers of such Security will
lose all or part of their investment. The only means through which a holder can realise value from such
Security prior to the Exercise Date in relation to such Security is to sell it at its then market price in an
available secondary market. See "Possible illiquidity of the Securities in the secondary market" below.

Fluctuations in the value of the relevant Underlying will affect the value of the Securities. Purchasers of
Securities risk losing their entire investment if the value of the relevant underlying basis of reference
does not move in the anticipated direction.

The Issuer may issue several issues of Securities relating to various reference indices, exchange rates,
shares, funds, interest rates, commaodities, or future contracts, as may be specified in the applicable
Final Terms. At any given time, the number of Securities outstanding may be substantial. Securities
provide opportunities for investment and pose risks to investors as a result of fluctuations in the value
of the underlying investment. In general, certain of the risks associated with the Securities are similar to
those generally applicable to other options of private corporate issuers. Options or Securities on equities
or debt securities are priced primarily on the basis of the value of underlying securities. The trading
value of Commodity Securities is likely to reflect primarily present and expected values of the
commodity (or basket of commodities).

The Securities do not represent a claim against any Underlying (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or
other connected person in respect of an Underlying) and Securityholders will not have any right of
recourse under the Securities to any such Underlying (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or other
connected person in respect of an Underlying). The Securities are in no way sponsored, endorsed or
promoted by any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying and
such entities have no obligation to take into account the consequences of their actions on any
Securityholders.

Risk arising from the Benchmark Regulation

The Underlying or a Basket Constituent may qualify as a benchmark (the "Benchmark™) within the
meaning of Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the Council dated 8 June
2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure the
performance of investment funds and amending Directives 2008/48/EC and 2014/17/EU and
Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 (the "Benchmark Regulation™). According to the Benchmark
Regulation, a Benchmark could not be used as such if its administrator does not obtain authorisation or
is based in a non-EU jurisdiction which (subject to applicable transitional provisions) does not satisfy
the "equivalence™ conditions (according to Article 30 of the BMR), is not "recognised” pending such a
decision (according to Article 32 of the BMR) and is not "endorsed” for such purpose (according to
Article 33 of the BMR). Consequently, it might be not possible to further utilise a Benchmark as
Underlying or Basket Constituent of the Securities. In such event, depending on the particular
Benchmark and the applicable terms of the Securities, the Securities could be de-listed, adjusted,
redeemed prior to maturity or otherwise impacted.

Any changes to a Benchmark as a result of the Benchmark Regulation could have a material adverse
effect on the costs of refinancing a Benchmark or the costs and risks of administering or otherwise
participating in the setting of a Benchmark and complying with the Benchmark Regulation. Such
factors may have the following effects on certain Benchmarks: (i) discourage market participants from
continuing to administer or contribute to such Benchmark; (ii) trigger changes in the rules or
methodologies used in the Benchmarks; or (iii) lead to the disappearance of the Benchmark. Any of the
above changes or any other consequential changes as a result of international, national or other proposal
for reform or other initiatives or investigations, could have a material adverse effect on the value of and
the amount payable under the Securities.
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The potential elimination of a Benchmark, or changes in the manner of administration of such
Benchmark, as a result of the Benchmark Regulation or otherwise, could require an adjustment to the
terms and conditions, or result in other consequences. These reforms and changes may cause a
Benchmark to perform differently than it has done in the past or be discontinued. The application of the
fallback methods may expose investors to certain risks including, but not limited to (i) conflicts of
interest of the Calculation Agent when making the required adjustments to the Securities, or (ii) the
replacement of the Underlying or Basket Constituent with a different Underlying or Basket Constituent
which could perform differently than the original Underlying or Basket Constituent and therefore affect
amounts payable in respect of the Securities, or (iii) the early redemption of the Securities.

Investors should be aware that they face the risk that any changes to the relevant Benchmark may have
a material adverse effect on the value of and the amount payable under the Securities.

Investors should consult their own independent advisers and make their own assessment about the
potential risks imposed by the Benchmark Regulation reforms, investigations and licensing issues in
making any investment decision with respect to the Securities linked to a Benchmark.

Certain factors affecting the value and trading price of the Securities

The Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Cash Settled Securities) or the value of the Deliverable
Asset and, if any, of the Residual Amount (the quantities of which are determined by reference to the
Entitlement) (in the case of Physical Delivery Securities) at any time prior to expiration is typically
expected to be less than the trading price of such Securities at that time. The difference between the
trading price and the Cash Settlement Amount or the Deliverable Asset and, if any, of the Residual
Amount, as the case may be, will reflect, among other things, a "time value” for the Securities. The
"time value" of the Securities will depend partly upon the length of the period remaining to expiration
and expectations concerning the value of the Underlying. Securities offer hedging and investment
diversification opportunities but also pose some additional risks with regard to interim value. The
interim value of the Securities varies with the price of the Underlying, as well as by a number of other
interrelated factors, including those specified herein.

Before exercising (in the case of Warrants) or selling Securities, Securityholders should carefully
consider, among other things, (i) the trading price of the Securities, (ii) the value and volatility of the
Underlying, (iii) the time remaining to expiration, (iv) in the case of Cash Settled Securities, the
probable range of Cash Settlement Amounts, (v) any change(s) in interim interest rates and dividend
yields if applicable, (vi) any change(s) in currency exchange rates, (vii) the depth of the market or
liquidity of the Underlying and (viii) any related transaction costs.

Certain considerations regarding hedging

Prospective purchasers intending to purchase Securities to hedge against the market risk associated with
investing in an underlying asset, should recognise the complexities of utilising Securities in this
manner. For example, the value of the Securities may not exactly correlate with the value of the
underlying asset which may be specified in the applicable Final Terms. Due to fluctuating supply and
demand for the Securities, there is no assurance that their value will correlate with movements of the
underlying asset which may be specified in the applicable Final Terms. For these reasons, among
others, it may not be possible to purchase or liquidate securities in a portfolio at the prices used to
calculate the value of any relevant index or basket.

The Issuer and/or any of its respective Affiliates or agents may from time to time hedge the Issuer's
obligations under such Securities (and under other instruments and OTC contracts issued by or entered
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into from time to time by the Issuer and/or any of its respective Affiliates or agents relating to such
securities) by taking positions, directly or indirectly, in the underlying asset. Although the Issuer has no
reason to believe that such hedging activities will have a material impact on the price of any underlying,
there can be no assurance that such hedging activities will not adversely affect the value of the
Securities.

Certain considerations associated with Share Securities

An investment in Share Securities will entail significant risks not associated with an investment in a
conventional debt security. On redemption or exercise, as the case may be, of Share Securities, Holders
will receive an amount (if any) determined by reference to the value of the share(s), GDRs and/or
ADRs and/or the physical delivery of a given number of share(s), GDRs and/or ADR/s. Accordingly,
an investment in Share Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct equity investment and
investors should take advice accordingly. Share Securities pay amounts calculated by reference to the
value of the underlying share(s), GDRs and/or ADRs.

In the case of Share Securities, no issuer of the underlying shares will have participated in the
preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing the terms of the Securities and neither the
Issuer nor any Manager will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with
respect to any information concerning any such issuer of shares contained in such Final Terms or in the
documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that
all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or
completeness of the publicly available information described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final
Terms) that would affect the trading price of the share, GDRs and/or ADRs will have been publicly
disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material
future events concerning such an issuer of shares could affect the trading price of the share, GDRs
and/or ADRs and therefore the trading price of the Securities.

Except as provided in the Conditions in relation to Physical Delivery Securities, Securityholders will
not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions or any other rights with respect to
the relevant shares to which such Securities relate.

Certain considerations associated with Exchange Rate Securities

An Investment in Exchange Rate Securities will entail significant risks not associated with an
investment in a conventional debt security. Fluctuations in exchange rates will affect the value of
Exchange Rate Securities. Currency values related to the exchange rates may be affected by complex
political and economic factors, including governmental action to fix or support the value of an
exchange rate, regardless of other market forces (see "Exchange rate risks and exchange controls”
below). Purchasers of Securities risk losing their entire investment if the relevant exchange rates do not
move in the anticipated direction.

Certain considerations associated with Fund Securities

An investment in Fund Securities will entail significant risks not associated with an investment in a
conventional debt security. An investment in Fund Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct
investment in the relevant fund(s) and investors should take advice accordingly.

The Issuer or any of its Affiliates may have agreements in place with the Management Company and/or
with the Fund Manager of a Fund pursuant to which they undertake to provide, on a continuous basis,
to the Issuer or any of its Affiliates the information of the Fund which allows the Issuer to apply the
lookthrough of the Fund, pursuant to the Fundamental Review of the Trading Book (FRTB), as
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amended from time to time. In case of any breach by the Management Company and/or by the Fund
Manager of such obligations, a negative change in the accounting treatment of the Fund (and, therefore,
a higher capital absorption requirement for the Issuer) may occur. In such case, investors should
consider that the Issuer may early redeem the Securities by paying to the Securityholders the market
value of such Securities, as determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with Paragraph 15(2)(F)
(“Adjustment Events in relation to Fund Securities”™).

In case of Fund Securities whose Underlying is a Fund investing in cryptocurrencies or other digital
assets, investors should also consider that these investment products entail unique and substantial risks,
may be more volatile than other types of investments and that the value of the Fund could decline
significantly and without warning. In addition, compared to other financial assets, digital assets are
more expose to other risks, such as technology risk, legal and regulatory risk and liquidity risk.

Certain considerations associated with Futures Contract Securities

An investment in Futures Contract Securities will entail significant risks not associated with an
investment in a conventional debt security. The yield on Securities which are linked to futures contracts
may not be perfectly correlated to the trend in the price of the underlying asset of the future contract, as
the use of futures contracts generally involves a rolling mechanism. This means that any futures
contracts which expire prior to the relevant payment date under the applicable underlying securities are
replaced with futures contracts that have a later expiry date. Investors may, therefore, only marginally
benefit from any rise or fall in the price of the underlying asset of the future contract.

In addition, the trend of futures contracts may differ significantly from that of the underlying asset's
spot markets. In relation to commodity futures contracts, the trend in the price of a futures contracts
compared to the underlying commodity is closely linked to the present and future level of production of
the underlying commodity, or to the level of estimated natural reserves, particularly in the case of
energy linked products. In addition, the price of the relevant commodity futures contract may not be
considered an accurate prediction of a market price, since it also includes so-called "carrying costs" (for
example, warehouse or insurance costs). These factors substantially explain the imperfect correlation
between commaodity spot markets and commodity futures contracts.

If the Futures Contract N-th Near-by Feature is specified as applicable, it will be specified in the
relevant Final Terms if the Issuer will be entitled to determine, on the basis of a Futures Contract N-th
Near-by, the Initial Reference Value and/or the Reference Value and/or the Final Reference Value, if
the feature Rolling is also specified as applicable. The Futures Contract N-th Near-by is the n-th futures
contract that has the same features of the Futures Contract indicated as Underlying.

Therefore, in the Final Terms will be specified:

1) the ordinal number of the Futures Contract N-th Near-by to be used for the determination of
the Initial Reference Value and/or only the Reference Value and the Final Reference Value;
and

2) if the Initial Reference Value will be determined on the basis of the Futures Contract N-th
Near-by. In such case, the Futures Contract N-th Near-by will be the n-th futures contract that
has an expiration date which is the closest (but beyond) to the Determination Date; and/or

3) if the feature Rolling is also applicable. In such case, the Reference Value and/or the Final
Reference Value will be determined on the basis of the Futures Contract N-th Near-by that will
have an expiration date which is the closest (but beyond) to any valuation period/date during
the lifetime of the Certificates and/or to the Valuation Date.
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Since the Issuer will not make any adjustment to the price of the Securities following such rollover,
investors should consider that the price of the futures contract used before the rollover may be different
from the price of the futures contract used after the rollover.

Certain considerations associated with Commodity Securities

An investment in Commodity Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct commodity
investment and potential investors should take advice accordingly. The movements in the price of the
Commodity may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest
rates, currencies or other indices.

The price of Commodities may be affected by economic, financial and political events in one or more
jurisdictions, including factors affecting the exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which the relevant
Commodities may be traded.

Certain considerations associated with Index Securities

Securities that are linked to an Index as Underlying or Basket Component are associated with risks for
the Securityholders comparable to those of a direct investment in a comparable portfolio of asset classes
underlying the respective Index. The development of the price of the Index depends on the individual
index components of which the relevant Index is comprised. The development of the price of the
individual index components depends on macroeconomic factors, such as interest rates and price levels
on the capital markets, currency developments, political factors as well as, in the case of shares as index
components, company-specific factors such as earnings position, market position, risk situation,
shareholder structure and distribution policy. In the case of an adverse development of such
macroeconomic factors this may adversely affect the price development of the index components and
the Index as a whole and accordingly, the value of the Securities and/or any other payments to be made
under the Securities.

In case of Index Securities whose Underlying is an Index composed by cryptocurrencies or other digital
assets, investors should also consider that these investment products entail unique and substantial risks,
may be more volatile than other types of investments and that the value of the Index could decline
significantly and without warning. In addition, compared to other financial assets, digital assets are
more expose to other risks, such as technology risk, legal and regulatory risk and liquidity risk.

Certain considerations associated with Interest Rate Securities

An investment in Interest Rate Securities will entail significant risks not associated with an investment
in a conventional debt security. On exercise of Interest Rate Securities, Securityholders will receive an
amount (if any) determined by reference to the value of the underlying interest rate(s). Accordingly, an
investment in Interest Rate Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the
underlying interest rate and investors should take advice accordingly.

Certain considerations associated with Govies Securities

An investment in Govies Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct investment in the relevant
government/supranational bond. The movements in the value of such bond or in its yield may be
affected by economic, financial and political events in the relevant country or regional area. The credit
ratings of the relevant country may change and any ratings downgrade could adversely affect the value

of the underlying bond and, therefore, the value of the Securities.

Certain considerations associated with Combined Securities
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An investment in Combined Securities will entail significant risks depending on the specific underlying
assets. The risk associated with the aforementioned types should be considered in accordance with the
specific financial assets of each issue and investors should take advice accordingly.

2.3 Specific risks related to Certificates

Loss risk in relation to the investment

Securityholders shall consider that, in relation to their investment, there is a risk of loss of the capital
invested depending on the features of the Securities and, unless the relevant Values are set as
predetermined values in the applicable Final Terms, on the performance of the Underlying. In
particular, if the relevant Final Terms provides a Barrier Level, the investor shall consider that, in the
event of a negative performance of the Underlying at the Valuation Date or a negative Spread or a
negative Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), in the event a Barrier
Event or a Barrier Gap Event (in the case of Gap Certificates) has occurred, a loss will occur in respect
of the capital invested. If the Final Reference Value of the Underlying is equal to zero, the investor
might suffer a total loss of the capital. Moreover, if prior to the exercise the investor decides to
terminate the investment in the Certificates, the investor might be subject to the loss of the value of the
certificate and, therefore, might be subject to the total or partial loss of the investment.

Risk related to the determination of the Multiplier or the Initial Reference Value

The Securities may have a determination of the Multiplier that may increase or decrease the percentage
of the Underlying(s) used to determine the amount(s) payable or deliverable to investors. In such case,
investors should consider that, due to the determination of the Multiplier, the amount(s) payable or
deliverable may be decreased.

In addition, the Securities may have a determination of the Initial Reference Value whereby the
percentage of the Value of the Underlying(s) to be considered is higher than, equal to or lower than
100% of the Value of the Underlying on the Determination Date(s). In such case, investors should
consider that, due to the determination of the Initial Reference Value, the amount(s) payable or
deliverable may be decreased if (i) in relation to Securities with Long Strategy, the Initial Reference
Value is calculated as a percentage of the Value of the Underlying higher than 100% or (ii) in relation
to Securities with Short Strategy, the Initial Reference Value is calculated as a percentage of the Value
of the Underlying lower than 100%.

Certain considerations associated with Securities providing for the application of a cap

The Securities may provide for the application of a maximum return payable to investors or of a
maximum value or level to the relevant Underlying(s).

In such case, the amounts payable to Securityholders will be subject to the predetermined maximum. If
the relevant Underlying(s) outperforms the predetermined maximum, this will not be taken into
consideration when calculating the amount payable or deliverable in respect of the Securities.

The Cash Settlement Amount or the Entitlement may be less than the value of an investment in the
Securities

Securityholders may receive the Cash Settlement Amount and/or physical delivery of the Deliverable

Asset and, if any, the payment of the Residual Amount (the quantities of which are determined by
reference to the Entitlement), the aggregate value of which may be less than the value of the
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Securityholder's investment in the relevant Securities. In certain circumstances Securityholders may
lose the entire value of their investment.

Risk related to a protection level lower than 100% or a protection amount lower than the Issue Price

The Certificates may provide a protection level or a protection amount. The protection level represents
the protection percentage of the Initial Reference Value of the Certificate and that the Cash Settlement
Amount will not fall below such protection level. The protection amount represents the minimum
amount of Cash Settlement Amount that the Securityholders will receive. The lower the protection level
or the protection amount, the higher the loss (if any) that the Securityholders might suffer given that the
Issue Price of the Certificate will not be entirely protected and the Cash Settlement Amount at the
Exercise Date might be lower than the Issue Price.

Exchange Rate risk related to the absence of a Quanto Option

The investment in Cash Settled Securities which do not provide a Quanto Option (i.e. Non Quanto
Securities) when the Underlying Reference Currency of the underlying asset differs from the Settlement
Currency may entail risks related to the exchange rate.

In such case, the Cash Settlement Amount or Early Redemption Amounts or Remuneration Amounts or
Corridor Early Amounts or Early Partial Capital Payment and the relevant events will be determined by
exchanging the Underlying Reference Currency in the Settlement Currency at the applicable Exchange
Rate. Therefore, without a Quanto Option, any adverse variation of the Exchange Rate might frustrate
either the performance of the underlying asset at maturity and the returns linked to a remuneration
amount and might determine a loss of the capital invested.

In the case of Cash Settled Securities without a Quanto Option (i.e. Non Quanto Securities), any
adverse variation of the exchange rate might also reduce the effect of total or partial protection on the
capital invested (depending on the structure of the product) represented by such protection. In fact, the
Cash Settlement Amount at the maturity (and, therefore, the protection level that is part of the
calculation of such amount of Settlement, subject to certain conditions) shall be determined by
exchanging the Underlying Reference Currency into the Settlement Currency at the applicable
Exchange Rate with the consequence of suffering the decrease in value of the Underlying Reference
Currency of the underlying asset in respect of the Settlement Currency.

Conversely, in case of Quanto Securities, the Underlying Reference Currency is in any case
conventionally denominated in the Settlement Currency and the Exchange Rate is not applicable and
therefore the effects of the Exchange Rates on the amount paid in relation to the Securities are
neutralised. However, it cannot be excluded that the variations on the Exchange Rates might have
negative effects on the performance of the underlying asset and therefore, indirectly, also on the
Securities with the Quanto Option.

Risk relating to Dual Currency Securities

An investment in Dual Currency Securities will entail significant risks not associated with an
investment in a conventional debt security. In particular, the Cash Settlement Amount and the
Remuneration Amount(s) are payable in a currency specified in the applicable Final Terms (the
Settlement Currency) which is different from the currency in which the Certificates are denominated
(the Issue Currency).

Currency exchange rates may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes
in the Cash Settlement Amount and/or Remuneration Amount(s) and the timing of changes in the
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exchange rates may affect the actual return to investors.

Therefore, fluctuations in exchange rates of the relevant currencies (i.e. the Issue Currency and the
Settlement Currency) will affect the value of Dual Currency Securities, and may determine a loss of the
capital invested.

Risk relating to Dual Currency FX Certificates

An investment in Dual Currency FX Certificates will entail significant risks not associated with an
investment in a conventional debt security. In particular, upon occurrence of a Barrier Event, the Cash
Settlement Amount may be payable in a currency specified in the applicable Final Terms (the Dual
Currency) which is different from the currency in which the Certificates are denominated (the Issue
Currency).

Currency exchange rates may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes
in the Cash Settlement Amount and the timing of changes in the exchange rates may affect the actual
return to investors.

Therefore, fluctuations in exchange rates of the relevant currencies (i.e. the Issue Currency and the Dual
Currency) will affect the value of Dual Currency FX Certificates, and may determine a loss of the
capital invested.

Price risk and components that determine the value of the Certificates

The Certificates are composed of a combination of several options and the Securityholder shall take
into account that the value of the Certificates will depend on the value of each option composing the
Certificate. The fluctuation over time of the value of each optional components (and therefore of the
Certificates) mostly depends on the current value of the Underlying to which the Certificates relate and
its volatility (unless the relevant Values are set as predetermined values in the applicable Final Terms),
the residual life of the options composing the Certificates, the levels of the interest rates of the
monetary markets, the expected dividends (in the case of Share Securities), the correlation (in the event
that the underlying asset is a Basket or a Basket of Baskets) as well as the business of the Issuer of the
underlying asset, speculative contractions and other factors.

An increase in the value of the Underlying might determine an increase in the price of the Certificates.
Moreover, such determinations are uncertain as the effect on the price of the Certificates is given by the
implicit optional structure that takes into account the possibility that an event linked to the payment of a
Remuneration Amount as well as a Barrier Event (or a Barrier Gap Event) may occur during the life of
the certificate. Prior to the maturity of the Certificate, the value of the options might decrease and
therefore it will affect the value of the Certificate or some of them might expire.

The value of the Underlying may vary during the course of time and may increase or decrease as the
consequence of several factors including corporate transactions, distribution of dividends,
microeconomic factors and speculative negotiations. Changes in the value of the Underlying may affect
the trading price of the Certificates but it not possible to foresee if the value of the Underlying will
suffer from decreasing or increasing variations. Furthermore, the price of the Certificates might be
influenced (in case of listing after offering) by the underwriting and/or placement commissions that will
be paid to the Managers and/or the Lead Manager and/or the or distribution commissions that will be
paid to the Distributor. The price of the Certificates might be negatively influenced by the worsening of
the asset stability of the Issuer.

Risk related to the Participation Factor, the Up Participation Factor and Down Participation Factor
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If the Participation Factor, which is a value predetermined by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms that
may be lower than, equal to or higher than 100%, is specified in the relevant Final Terms, such
Participation Factor determines the potential return of the Certificates. If it is lower than 100%, the
Securityholders will partially benefit from the positive performance (or from the negative performance
in case of Short Strategy) of the Underlying.

If the Up Participation Factor and Down Participation Factor are specified in the relevant Final Terms,
the return deriving from the positive performance of the Underlying (respectively, positive performance
in case of Long Strategy and negative performance in case of Short Strategy) will depend on the Up
Participation Factor, which may be lower than 100%. If it is lower than 100%, the Securityholders will
partially benefit from the positive performance of the Underlying. Conversely, the return deriving from
the negative performance of the Underlying (respectively, negative performance in case of Long
Outperformance Certificates and positive performance in case of Short Outperformance Certificates)
will depend on the Down Participation Factor, which may be higher than 100%. If it is higher than
100%, the negative impact of the negative performance of the Underlying will be amplified.

Risk related to a Remuneration Amount linked to the performance of an Underlying

The Certificates may provide for the payment of one or more Remuneration Amounts, as specified in
the applicable Final Terms. The amount of any of such Remuneration Amount may be conditional upon
the performance of one or more Underlyings. Securityholders should consider that if such Underlying/s
does/do not perform in a way that benefits the value of the Certificates, they may not receive any
remuneration during the life of the Certificates.

Risk related to the Digital Level

In relation to the Certificates, the Issuer may set, at its own discretion, one or more Digital Levels. If the
Digital Level is set as a percentage of the Initial Reference Value or of the Reference Value,
Securityholders should consider that the higher the Digital Level is set in respect of the Initial
Reference Value or of the Reference Value (or the lower, in case of Short Strategy), the greater the
possibility that a Digital Event will not occur and therefore that the relevant Digital Amount will not be
paid.

In relation to the Cliquet Feature, the investor should also consider that the Digital Level might change
in relation to one or more Digital Valuation Periods and, in relation to each Digital Level, a different
Digital Amount may be provided.

If an Up Range Digital Level and a Down Range Digital Level are specified in the relevant Final
Terms, the possibility that a Digital Event will not occur and therefore that the relevant Digital Amount
will not be paid will depend on how the Up Range Digital Level and the Down Range Digital Level
will be set by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms and on whether the value of the Underlying will be
closer (in case it is represented by a value falling within the range) or more distant (in case it is
represented by a value falling out of the range) in respect of the Initial Reference Value.

Risk related to the Participation Remuneration Level

In relation to the Certificates to be issued, the Issuer may set, at its own discretion, one or more
Participation Remuneration Levels. If the Participation Remuneration Level is set as a percentage of the
Initial Reference Value or of the Reference Value, Securityholders should consider that the higher the
Participation Remuneration Level is set in respect of the Initial Reference Value or of the Reference
Value (or the lower, in case of Short Strategy), the greater the possibility that a Participation
Remuneration Event will not occur and therefore that the relevant Participation Remuneration Amount
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will not be paid.

In relation to the Cliquet Feature, the investors should also consider that the Participation Remuneration
Level might change in relation to one or more Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Periods.

If an Up Range Participation Remuneration Level and a Down Range Participation Remuneration Level
are specified in the relevant Final Terms, the possibility that a Participation Remuneration Event will
not occur and therefore that the relevant Participation Remuneration Amount will not be paid will
depend on how the Up Range Participation Remuneration Level and the Down Range Participation
Remuneration Level will be set by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms and on whether the value of
the Underlying will be closer (in case it is represented by a value falling within the range) or more
distant (in case it is represented by a value falling out of the range) in respect of the Initial Reference
Value.

Risk related to the Knock-out Feature

In relation to any Remuneration Amount, a Knock-out Feature may be applicable if specified in the
relevant Final Terms. In this case, if the Knock-out Event occurs, the Remuneration Amount provided
in relation to either such Knock-out Valuation Period and/or the valuation period(s) following such
Knock-out Valuation Period will be deactivated and will not be paid. In relation to the Knock-out
Feature, the Issuer will set, at its own discretion, one or more Knock-out Levels higher, equal or lower
than the Initial Reference Value of the relevant underlying asset. In particular, the closer the Knock-out
Level is set in respect of the Initial Reference Value, the greater the possibility that a Knock-out Event
will occur and therefore that the relevant Remuneration Amount will not be paid.

Risk related to the Knock-in Feature

In relation to any Remuneration Amount, a Knock-in Feature may be applicable if specified in the
relevant Final Terms. In this case, if the Knock-in Event does not occur, the Remuneration Amount
provided will not be activated and therefore will not be paid. In relation to the Knock-in Feature, the
Issuer will set, at its own discretion, one or more Knock-in Levels higher, equal or lower than the Initial
Reference Value of the relevant underlying asset. In particular, the higher the Knock-in Level is set in
respect of the Initial Reference Value (or the lower, in case of Short Strategy), the greater the possibility
that a Knock-in Event will not occur and therefore that the relevant Remuneration Amount will not be
paid.

Risk related to the occurrence of an Early Redemption Event

If an Early Redemption Event occurs, the Certificates will be redeemed earlier than the Exercise Date
(and therefore terminated). In such case, the Securityholders will receive the relevant Early Redemption
Amount on the relevant Early Payment Date and no other amounts will be paid. Investors should
consider that the Early Redemption Amount to be paid to the Securityholder may be either an amount
predetermined by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms or an amount that will depend on the value of
the relevant underlying asset.

If the Early Redemption Amount is an amount predetermined by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms,
such amount will not depend on the value of the relevant underlying asset and, therefore, the potential
positive performance (or the negative performance, in case of Short Strategy) of such underlying asset
will not be considered. If the Early Redemption Amount is an amount that depends on the value of the
relevant underlying asset, the investor shall consider that there is a risk of loss of the capital invested
depending on the performance of the underlying asset. In addition, in the event that the relevant
underlying asset is registering a positive performance when and Early Redemption Event occurs,
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investors should consider that it may not be possible to reinvest in such underlying asset at the same
conditions applied to the initial investment made in the Certificates.

In relation to Turbo Certificates, investors should also consider that there is a risk of total loss of the
capital invested depending on the performance of the underlying asset. In particular, if an Early
Redemption Event occurs, the Certificates will be exercised automatically and will expire worthless
immediately. The Securityholder will not receive any amount and the Early Redemption Amount will
be always equal to 0 (zero).

Furthermore, if the value of the Underlying is calculated as Intraday Value, the Underlying will be
observed on a continuous basis and the probability that an Early Redemption Event occurs may be
magnified.

Risk related to the Early Partial Capital Payment

The Securities may provide for the application of an Early Partial Capital Payment. In such case, the
Securityholder will receive part of the Issue Price on the Early Partial Capital Payment Date specified
in the Final Terms.

The investors should therefore consider that, in relation to their investment, the Cash Settlement
Amount will be adjusted relative to the Outstanding Amount after the relevant Early Partial Capital
Payment Date. Therefore, Early Partial Capital Payment might frustrate investment strategies pursued
by the investors, by reducing their exposure (proportionately to the Early Partial Capital Payment
Amount paid from time to time) to any potential gain arising out of the positive performance of the
Underlying.

Risk related to the Barrier Event and the Barrier Gap Event

The Barrier Event or the Barrier Gap Event (in the case of Gap Certificates) indicates the achievement
by one or more underlying assets of a value equal to, higher than or lower than the Barrier Level or
below the Lower Barrier Level or higher than the Upper Barrier Level, or the Barrier Gap Level,
respectively, on the Barrier Event Determination Period (or/and on a Valuation Date) or on a Barrier
Gap Observation Date, as specified in the relevant Final Terms. If a Barrier Event or a Barrier Gap
Event occurs, the Cash Settlement Amount will be determined in accordance with a calculation method
other than the calculation method applicable if the Barrier Event or the Barrier Gap Event does not
occur and such circumstance may have a negative influence on the price. For example, if the relevant
Final Terms do not provide a Protection Level or an Air Bag Factor or other similar features, upon
occurrence of the Barrier Event, the Cash Settlement Amount will be linked only to the performance of
the underlying asset. This may entail the risk of partial or total loss of the investment.

The Securityholder shall consider that the occurrence of a Barrier Event or the Barrier Gap Event will
also depend on the volatility of the underlying asset i.e. the more frequent and intense the fluctuations
in the value of the underlying asset during the life of the Certificates are, the higher the volatility will be
and the greater the chance that the value of the underlying asset will reach the Barrier Level or the
Barrier Gap Level and therefore a Barrier Event or a Barrier Gap Event will occur. In relation to the
Certificates to be issued, the Issuer might set, at its own discretion, a Barrier Level or a Barrier Gap
Level.

Furthermore, if the value of the Underlying is calculated as Intraday Value, the underlying asset(s) will
be observed on a continuous basis and the probability that a Barrier Event or a Barrier Gap Event
occurs may be magnified.

Finally, if the applicable Final Terms provide for the payment of one or more Premium Gap Amount
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payable to the Securityholders during the life of the Gap Certificates, the investor should consider that
after the occurrence of the Barrier Gap Event the Premium Gap Amount will be determined on the basis
of the actual number of days within the relevant Premium Gap Observation Period and not on the basis
of all the days of the relevant Premium Determination Period and after the payment of the Premium
Gap Amount that will be paid on the first Premium Payment Date following the Barrier Gap Event Date
on which a Barrier Gap Event has occurred, no further Premium Gap Amount will be paid to the
Securityholders.

Risk related to the Predetermined Loss Percentage

In relation to the Certificates, the Predetermined Loss Percentage option may be also included together
with the Barrier Level. If a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Settlement Amount will depend on the
Predetermined Loss Percentage. Consequently, the lower the Predetermined Loss Percentage the
smaller the Cash Settlement Amount that the Securityholders will receive on the Settlement Date.

Risk related to Digital Certificates

The investor shall consider that, in relation to the Digital Certificates, there is a risk of total loss of the
capital invested depending on the performance of the underlying asset. In particular, if the Settlement
Event does not occur, the Securityholders will not receive any Settlement Amount and will lose the
entire capital invested.

Furthermore, if a Settlement Event occurs, the Cash Settlement Amount to be paid to the Securityholder
will not depend on the value of the Underlying, but it will be a predetermined amount dependant on a
percentage of the Issue Price specified as "Digital Percentage” in the applicable Final Terms.

Risk related to the Best Of Feature and Worst Of Feature

In relation to the Best Of Feature, for the purposes of the calculation of the Settlement Amount and/or a
Remuneration Amount and/or the determination of the Early Redemption Event, the Issuer will indicate
in the relevant Final Terms whether it will be considered the underlying financial asset with the first
best Performance, second best Performance, third best Performance, or n-th best Performance.

In the case of Best Of Feature, the lower the Issuer selects the performance among the financial
activities (First Best Of, Second Best Of, etc.), the lower will be the amount that the Securityholders
will receive.

In relation to the Worst Of Feature, for the purposes of the calculation of the Settlement Amount and/or
a Remuneration Amount and/or the determination of the Early Redemption Event, the Issuer will
indicate in the relevant Final Terms whether it will be considered the underlying financial asset with the
first worst Performance, second worst Performance, third worst Performance, or n-th worst
Performance.

In the case of Worst Of Feature, the higher the Issuer selects the performance among the financial
activities (First Worst Of, Second Worst Of, etc.), the lower will be the amount that the Securityholders
will receive.

Risk related to Baskets — Risk related to the Rainbow Feature — Correlation risk

The investor shall take into account that in the case of a Basket, the value and the return of the
Certificates depends on the value of each Basket Constituents, the weighting allocated to each Basket
Constituents and the correlation between the Basket Constituent. The investor shall consider that in the
case of a Basket, a different weighting allocated to the Basket Constituents entails a higher or lower
value of the Basket. In the case of a Rainbow Feature, unlike the financial instruments that normally are
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linked to one or more Basket(s), the Issuer will indicate in the relevant Final Terms (i) the financial
assets that represent the Basket Constituents, (ii) the relative weighting within the Basket without a
preliminary indication of the relevant allocation to a specific financial asset and (iii) the predetermined
criteria pursuant to which the allocation among the weights will be made by the Calculation Agent
(providing, for instance, in a Basket composed of three financial assets, the Basket would be weighted
as follows: 50% for the Basket Constituent with the best performance; 30% for the Basket Constituent
with the worst performance; and 20% for a Basket Constituent with the second best performance). For
each determination period (during the life of the Certificates and at the exercise date) the Calculation
Agent will allocate the weights to the relevant Basket Constituents on the basis of the performance
recorded in that relevant determination period and in accordance with the objective criteria provided in
the relevant Final Terms. The allocation of the weights might result differently on each determination
date pursuant to the performance of each Basket Constituents. Once the Calculation Agent has
determined the weighting of the Basket on the relevant determination date, the Calculation Agent will
determine the total value of the Basket in accordance with the methods applied for the financial
instruments normally linked to the Baskets. Therefore the Rainbow Feature entails that the Basket will
have a variable weighting for all the life of the Certificates depending on the performance of the Basket
Constituents and, consequently, it will affect the total value of the Basket. The investor shall consider
that in the case of Rainbow Feature, upon variation of even only one Basket Constituent, the Reference
Value of Basket recorded on a determination date might be completely different from a Reference
Value recorded on a prior date.

Furthermore, the higher the correlation between the Basket Constituents the higher the volatility of the
value of the Basket and therefore the price of the Certificates. In particular, it will broaden on account
of the bullish and bearish effects of the Basket Constituents on the value of such Basket.

Risk related to management fees applied by the Issuer

The Issuer may apply to Benchmark Certificates an Annual Management Feel ("AMF1") or an Annual
Management Fee2 ("AMF2") that will be determined on the basis, respectively, of the AMF1
Percentage or of the AMF2 Percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms. Such fees will accrue
gradually and proportionally to the tenor of the Certificates and will not be affected in any way by the
performance of the Underlying. The AMF1 or the AMF2 will be deducted from the Cash Settlement
Amount and, in case of listing of the Certificates on an exchange, the price of the Certificates for
trading purposes will include the AMF1 or the AMF2 gradually accrued on each Exchange Business
Day.

Moreover, the Issuer may also apply to Benchmark Certificates or to Constant Leverage Certificates a
Variable Management Fee ("VMF"), whose VMF Percentagex (specified as a range in the relevant
Final Terms) may vary during the life of the Certificates. Any variation of the VMF Percentagex will be
published by the Issuer on its website and by appropriate communication to the relevant exchange
where the Certificates are listed/traded. The VMF will be deducted from the Cash Settlement Amount
and, in case of listing of the Certificates on an exchange, the price of the Certificates will include such
VMF, as accrued progressively.

Prospective investors should consider that, if the AMF1 or the AMF2 are applicable (in case of
Benchmark Certificates) or the VMF is applicable (in case of Benchmark Certificates or Constant
Leverage Certificates), pursuant to the relevant Final Terms, the daily value of the Certificates will be
affected by such fees and, consequently, at maturity, the positive (or negative) performance of the
Underlying during the life of the Certificates shall be considered net of the AMF1 or of the AMF2 or
net of the VMF.

Risks related to Turbo Certificates

In relation to Turbo Certificates, the return on the Securities depends on the performance of the
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Underlying(s) and whether early redemption features apply. Additionally, the return may depend on
other market factors such as interest rates, the implied volatility of the Underlying(s) and the time
remaining until redemption. Turbo Certificates include a leverage feature that magnifies gains and
losses. If the Underlying moves against expectations, Securityholders risk losing a greater proportion of
their investment than if they had invested in a Security that is not leveraged. As a consequence,
investors may be exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

Risks related to Reverse Split

In relation to Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates and Constant Leverage Certificates, if Reverse
Split is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, investors should also be aware that the
Issuer may, at its discretion, perform the Reverse Split. In such case the number of Certificates will be
aggregated and these Certificates will be converted into a smaller number of Certificates calculated by
dividing the number of Pre-Conversion Certificates by the Reverse Split Ratio. Although Reverse Splits
are intended to provide additional liquidity to holders and to prevent the forced liquidation (and
therefore complete exit) of a Certificate, Securityholders of such Certificates should be aware that if
such conversion entitles the Securityholder to a fraction of a Certificate, such fraction will be settled in
cash.

Risks related to Constant Leverage Certificates

Constant Leverage Certificates are financial instruments without capital protection and the return on the
Certificates depends, in case of Type A Constant Leverage Certificates, on the performance of a
reference asset (i.e. the Reference Underlying) to which the index sponsor of the Index used as
Underlying applies the Index Leverage Factor (with an upward or downward strategy) in order to
calculate the Value of such Underlying and, in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and
Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates, on the performance of the Underlying to which a
Constant Leverage Factor applies (with an upward or downward strategy).

In case of Type A Constant Leverage Certificates, in the event of significant and adverse changes in the
performance of the Reference Underlying, an intra-day recalculation mechanism (intra-day reset) is
provided by the index sponsor to prevent that the value of the Index used as Underlying will become
negative due to the Index Leverage Factor. Specifically, when the performance of the Reference
Underlying is lower (in case of Underlying with long leverage) or higher (in case of Underlying with
short leverage) than a certain threshold (i.e. the Trigger Value), the index sponsor of the Index used as
Underlying sets a new base value for the calculation of the daily performance of the Reference
Underlying and, consequently, will result in an adjustment of the value of the of the Index used as
Underlying. Therefore, in such case the performance of the of the Index used as Underlying could differ
significantly from the performance of the Reference Underlying multiplied by the Index Leverage
Factor. Investors should be aware that following the intra-day reset made by the index sponsor, the
Certificates may price at a lower level than the last price recorded by the Certificate and, therefore, any
subsequent recovery of potential losses may be difficult.

In case of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B Short Constant Leverage
Certificates, in the event of significant and adverse changes in the performance of the Underlying, an
Intraday Reset Event is provided to prevent that the Payout Value Long or the Payout Value Short will
become negative due to the Constant Leverage Factor. Specifically, when the performance of the
Underlying is lower (in case of Long Constant Leverage Certificates) or higher (in case of Short
Constant Leverage Certificates) than the Trigger Value, the Calculation Agent sets a new base value for
the calculation of the daily performance of the Underlying and, consequently, will result in an
adjustment of the value of the Certificates. Therefore, in such case the performance of the Certificates
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could differ significantly from the performance of the Underlying multiplied by the Constant Leverage
Factor. Investors should be aware that following the Intraday Reset Event, the Certificates may price at
a level lower than the last price recorded by the Certificate and, therefore, any subsequent recovery of
potential losses may be difficult.

The calculation of the value of the Underlying by the relevant index sponsor of the Index used as
Underlying is based on the daily performance of the Reference Underlying (in case of Type A Constant
Leverage Certificates) or the calculation of the Payout Value Long or the Payout Value Short by the
Calculation Agent (in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B Short Constant
Leverage Certificates), takes also into consideration certain figurative financial costs (in case of Type A
Constant Leverage Certificates) or Cost Component (in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage
Certificates and Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates). Therefore, investors should be also
aware that the performance of the Underlying/Certificates will be different from the performance of the
Reference Underlying multiplied by the Index Leverage Factor (in case of Type A Constant Leverage
Certificates) or of the Underlying multiplied by the Constant Leverage Factor (in case of Type B Long
Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates).

The performance of Constant Leverage Certificates over a period longer than one day may be derived
from the compounded daily performance of the relevant Reference Underlying as calculated by the
relevant index sponsor (in case of Type A Constant Leverage Certificates) or of the relevant Underlying
as calculated by the Calculation Agent (in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and
Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates). Therefore, their performance could differ significantly
from the performance of the Reference Underlying multiplied by the Index Leverage Factor (in case of
Type A Constant Leverage Certificates) or of the relevant Underlying multiplied by the Constant
Leverage Factor (in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B Short Constant
Leverage Certificates) during that period. The investors shall take into account that they are exposed to
the risk that an investment in Constant Leverage Certificates may perform worse than a direct
investment in the relevant Reference Underlying/Underlying and such risk increases the longer the
period that Securityholders hold Constant Leverage Certificates and the more volatility the Reference
Underlying/Underlying experiences during the holding period.

Constant Leverage Certificates are generally suited to short term investments intraday or over a few
days. Investments held for a longer period of time may be affected by volatile market conditions which
may have a negative impact on the performance of the Underlying. As a consequence, investors may be
exposed to a partial or total loss of their investment.

Moreover, investors should also consider that the Constant Leverage Certificates provide for a fee
charged to the Securityholders called Variable Management Fee or VMF; which is calculated by
applying a predetermined formula that takes into account the AMF Percentage and the VMF
Percentage. Being calculated progressively and daily, it affects the market value of the Certificate
throughout its entire life. Therefore, the Securityholders will receive a settlement amount linked to the
performance of the Underlying (in case of Type A Constant Leverage Certificates) or linked to the
Payout Value Long or the Payout Value Short (in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates
and Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates) that, however, will be reduced by the application of
such Variable Management Fee.

Risk related to the Restrike Feature

In relation to the Restrike Feature, if a Restrike Event has occurred, the Initial Reference Value will be
recalculated and set at the Restrike Percentage. Therefore, the amounts that the Securityholders may
receive, in case of Restrike Feature and upon occurrence of the Restrike Event, depend on the Restrike
Percentage defined in the relevant Final Terms.
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Risk related to the Call Option

Prospective investors should consider that if the Certificates will be exercised upon the exercise of the
Call Option by the Issuer. Therefore, the exercise of the Call Option by the Issuer might frustrate long
term investment strategies pursued by the investors.

In relation to Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities under the MREL Requirements, the exercise
of the Call Option by the Issuer may be subject to particular restrictions prescribed by the applicable
laws and regulations at the relevant time, as described in Risk Factor “Early redemption and
repurchase of the Certificates which qualify as MREL eligible liabilities may be restricted ” below.

Risk related to the early exercise of the Certificates following a MREL Disqualification Event

If the Securities qualified as MREL eligible liabilities at the time of the issuance and subsequently
become ineligible due to a change in MREL Requirements, then a MREL Disqualification Event will
occur.

If a MREL Disqualification Event occurs and is continuing in relation to any Series of such Certificates,
the Issuer in its discretion may redeem all, but not some only, of the Certificates of such Series.

If the Issuer should redeem such Certificates, the Securityholders will receive an amount which shall be
equal to the fair market value of the Certificates (the bid-value in case of Italian Traded Securities).
Such Certificates may only be redeemed by the Issuer subject to compliance by the Issuer with any
conditions or restrictions to such redemption or repurchase prescribed by the MREL Requirements at
the relevant time. See "Early redemption and purchase of the Certificates which qualify as MREL
eligible liabilities may be restricted” below.

A MREL Disqualification Event shall be deemed to have occurred if, by reason of the introduction of,
or a change in, the MREL Requirements, which was not reasonably foreseeable by the Issuer at the
Issue Date of the Certificates initially qualified as MREL eligible liabilities, all or part of the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of such Certificates are or will be excluded fully or partially from the
liabilities that are eligible to meet the MREL Requirements.

In such case the Securityholders may be exposed to the risk that, due to the early redemption, their
investment may have a lower than expected potential return and that it may not be possible to reinvest
the amount received at the same conditions applied to the initial investment made in the Certificates.

Early redemption and repurchase of the Certificates which qualify as MREL eligible liabilities may
be restricted

Any early redemption or repurchase of Certificates intended to qualify as eligible liabilities under the
MREL Requirements, is subject to compliance by the Issuer with any conditions or restrictions to such
redemption or repurchase prescribed by the applicable laws and regulations at the relevant time,
including any requirements applicable to such redemption due to the qualification of such Securities at
such time as eligible liabilities available to meet the MREL Requirements.

The new regulatory framework, set out in Articles 77 and 78a of CRR I, provides that the relevant
resolution authority shall grant permission to call, redeem, repay or repurchase liabilities that are
eligible to meet the MREL Requirements (eligible liabilities instruments), prior their contractual
maturity.
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In particular, according to such provisions the relevant resolution authority would approve an early
redemption of the eligible liabilities in accordance with Article 78a of the CRR where one of the
following conditions is met:

(i) on or before such call, redemption, repayment or repurchase (as applicable), the Issuer
replaces the eligible liabilities with own funds instruments or eligible liabilities instruments of
equal or higher quality at terms that are sustainable for its income capacity; or

(ii) the Issuer has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the resolution authority that its own funds
and eligible liabilities would, following such call, redemption, repayment or repurchase,
exceed the requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities laid down in the applicable
MREL Requirements by a margin that the Relevant Authority considers necessary; or

(iii) the Issuer has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the resolution authority that the partial or full
replacement of the eligible liabilities with own funds instruments is necessary to ensure
compliance with the own funds requirements laid down in the applicable MREL Requirements
actions for continuing authorization,

subject in any event to any different conditions or requirements as may be provided from time to time
under the applicable laws and regulations, as adopted by the Republic of Italy.

The BRRD 11, the SRMR Il and CRR Il have been recently adopted and there are still some provisions
related to Article 78a CRR 1l that need to be specified in Regulatory Technical Standards ("RTS") to be
adopted by the European Banking Authority ("EBA™). The RTS require the EBA to develop the
procedure — in terms of coordination between competent and resolution authorities, timelines and
information — for relevant resolution authorities to follow to provide prior permission to banks to
replace or reduce eligible liabilities instruments. Such new regulatory framework recently adopted
leaves uncertainty as to its interpretation in the relevant Member States.

Risks related to Certificates qualifying as eligible liabilities instruments according to the MREL
Requirements which may be subject to modification without the Securityholders’ consent

If (i) at any time a MREL Disqualification Event occurs and is continuing in relation to any Series of
Certificates qualifying as eligible liabilities instruments according to the MREL Requirements and/or
(ii) in order to ensure the effectiveness and enforceability of Condition 17 (Acknowledgement of the
Italian Bail-in Power), then the Issuer may, subject to giving any notice required to be given to, and
receiving any consent required from, the competent authority and/or as appropriate the Relevant
Authority (without any requirement for the consent or approval of the holders of the Securities of that
Series), at any time vary the terms of such Securities so that they remain or, as appropriate, become,
Qualifying Certificates (as defined below), provided that such variation does not itself give rise to any
right of the Issuer to redeem the varied securities.

Qualifying Certificates are securities issued by the Issuer that, other than in respect of the effectiveness
and enforceability of Condition 17 (Acknowledgement of the Italian Bail-in Power), have terms not
materially less favourable to the Securityholders (as reasonably determined by the Issuer) than the
terms of the Securities qualifying as eligible liabilities instruments according to the MREL
Requirements. However, no assurance can be given as to whether any of these changes will negatively
affect any particular Securityholders. In addition, the tax and stamp duty consequences of holding such
varied securities could be different for some categories of Securityholders from the tax and stamp duty
consequences for them of holding the securities prior to such variation.

Risk related to the Accumulated Amount's payment contingent upon occurrence of an Early

50



Redemption Event

If an Early Redemption Level is applicable under the relevant Final Terms, and if so specified in such
Final Terms, the Accumulated Amount will be paid only upon occurrence of an Early Redemption
Event. As a result, even if one or more Accumulating Events have occurred, the Securityholders will
not receive any Accumulated Amount unless an Early Redemption Event has occurred.

Risks associated with Certificates with Open End Feature

Certificates with Open End Feature do not have a pre-determined Exercise Date and may be redeemed
upon exercise of the Call Option by the Issuer or the exercise of the Put Option by the Securityholders,
as specified in the applicable Final Terms. Investment in Certificates with Open End Feature will entail
additional risks compared with other Certificates, due to the fact that they do not have a prescribed
tenor and Securityholders may receive a lower return than expected and depending on when the
Certificates with Open End Feature are redeemed.

Risk related to the Strike Percentage

If the Cash Settlement Amount is calculated also on the basis of the Strike Percentage, which is a value
predetermined by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms that may be lower than, equal to or higher than
100%, such Strike Percentage contributes to the determination of the potential return of the Certificates.
If it is higher than 100%, the positive performance of the Underlying will be considered partially in
order to calculate the Cash Settlement Amount. Furthermore, in case of negative performance of the
Underlying, if the Strike Percentage is equal to or higher than 100% the Cash Settlement Amount will
be equal to zero.

Impact of running structuring fees on the value of the Securities

Investors should also note that running structuring fees may be applied by the Issuer in respect of the
value of the Securities.

Such running structuring fees will not be affected in any way by the performance of the relevant
Underlying.

The Issuer will specify in the relevant Final Terms the running structuring fee (and, in the case, how
such structuring fee will be charged). Prospective investors should consider that, if the running
structuring fees are applicable, the value of the Securities will be affected by such fees also on the
secondary markets.

Impact of running commissions and costs on the value of the Securities

Investors should be aware that, if so provided in the applicable Final Terms, there may be running
commissions/costs, fixed or variable. In this case, the applicable Final Terms will specify any
applicable details of such commissions/costs and to whom they will be due, if applicable.

Prospective investors should consider that, if the running commissions/costs are applicable, the value of
the Securities will be affected by such commissions/costs also on the secondary markets.

Certificates issued as ""Green Certificates', ""Social Certificates", ""Sustainability Certificates' or
""Climate Certificates™ may not be a suitable investment for all investors seeking exposure to green
assets or social assets or sustainable assets
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If so specified in the relevant Final Terms, the Issuer may issue Certificates under the Programme
described as "green" ("Green Certificates"), "climate” ("Climate Certificates"), "social" ("Social
Certificates"), "sustainability” ("Sustainability Certificates") in accordance with the principles set out
by the International Capital Market Association ("ICMA") (respectively, the Green Bond Principles
("GBP™), the Social Bond Principles ("SBP") and the Sustainability Bond Guidelines ("SBG")), or in
accordance with the Climate Bonds Standard set out by the Climate Bonds Initiative.

In such a case, prospective investors should have regard to the information set out at "Reasons for the
Offer, estimated net proceeds and total expenses" in the applicable Final Terms and must determine for
themselves the relevance of such information for the purpose of any investment in the Certificates
together with any other investigation such investors deem necessary, and must assess the suitability of
that investment in light of their own circumstances. In particular, no assurance is given by the Issuer or
the Manager that the use of such proceeds for the funding of any green project or social project or
combination of any green and social project, as the case may be, will satisfy, whether in whole or in
part, any present or future investor expectations or requirements as regards any investment criteria or
guidelines with which such investor or its investments are required to comply, whether by any present
or future applicable law or regulations (including, amongst others, Regulation (EU) 2020/852 on the
establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment (the "EU Taxonomy Regulation™))
and the Sustainable Finance Taxonomy Regulation Delegated Acts for climate change adaptation and
mitigation objectives (the "EU Taxonomy Regulation Delegated Acts™) approved in principle by the
EU Commission on 21 April 2021 and formally adopted on 4 June 2021 (the EU Taxonomy Regulation
and the EU Taxonomy Regulation Delegated Acts, jointly, the ("EU Taxonomy Framework™)) or by
its own by-laws or other governing rules or investment portfolio mandates (in particular with regard to
any direct or indirect environmental, sustainability or social impact of any projects or uses, the subject
of or related to, the relevant Eligible Green Projects, Eligible Social Projects or Eligible Sustainable
Projects). On 9 December 2021, a first delegated act on sustainable activities for climate change
mitigation and adaptation objectives of the EU Taxonomy ("Climate Delegated Act™) was published in
the Official Journal and is applicable from 1 January 2022. On 6 July 2021 the European Commission
adopted the delegated act supplementing Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation (“Disclosure
Delegated Act”) which was then published in the Official Journal on 10 December 2021 and is
applicable since January 2022. This delegated act specifies the content, methodology and presentation
of information to be disclosed by financial and non-financial undertakings concerning the proportion of
environmentally sustainable economic activities in their business, investments or lending activities. On
9 March 2022, the European Commission adopted a complementary climate delegated act including,
under strict conditions, specific nuclear and gas energy activities in the list of economic activities
covered by the EU taxonomy. It was published in the Official Journal on 15 July 2022 and is applicable
from January 2023. The criteria for the specific gas and nuclear activities are in line with EU climate
and environmental objectives and will help accelerate the shift from solid or liquid fossil fuels,
including coal, towards a climate-neutral future. On 21 November 2023, a delegated act and annexes
containing the technical screening criteria of the remaining four environmental objectives and the
amendments to the Disclosure Delegated Act were published in the Official Journal; on the same day, a
delegated act amending the Climate Delegated Act, was published in the Official Journal.

On 18 June 2019, the Commission Technical Expert Group on sustainable finance published its final
report on a future European standard for green bonds (the "EU Green Bond Standard"). In the context
of the public consultation on the renewed sustainable finance strategy, the European Commission
launched a targeted consultation on the establishment of an EU Green Bond Standard, that builds and
consults on the work of the Commission Technical Expert Group and has run between 12 June and 2
October 2020. On 19 October 2020, the European Commission published the Commission Work
Programme 2021, in which expressed the intention to deliver a legislative proposal by the end of the
second quarter of 2021. On 6 July 2021, the European Commission officially adopted a legislative
proposal for a EU Green Bond Standard setting out four main requirements: (i) allocation of the funds
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raised by the green bond should be made in compliance with the EU Taxonomy (as defined below); (ii)
full transparency on the allocation of the green bond proceeds; (iii) monitoring and compliance
activities to be carried out by an external reviewer; and (iv) registration of external reviewers with the
ESMA and subject to its supervision. The European Commission, the European Council and the
European Parliament entered into trilogue negotiations and reached a provisional agreement on 28
February 2023 on the legislative proposal for an EU Green Bond Standard introducing a voluntary
standard. On 10 May 2023, a version of the regulation adopted by the legislative bodies of the European
Union was published. Finally, on 30 November 2023, the regulation on the “European Green Bonds
and optional disclosures for bonds marketed as environmentally sustainable and for sustainability-
linked bonds” was published in the Official Journal (the “EU Green Bond Regulation”); the
Regulation has entered into force on 20 December 2023 and applied from 21 December 2024, with a
transition period for certain requirements until 21 June 2026.

The securities issued, as Green Certificates, under this Programme may not at any time be eligible for
the Issuer to be entitled to use the designation of "European Green Bond" or "EuGB" nor is the Issuer
under any obligation to take steps to have any such green bonds become eligible for such designation.

Furthermore, it should be noted that there is currently no clearly established definition (legal, regulatory
or otherwise) of, nor market consensus as to what constitutes, respectively "green™ or a "social" or a
"sustainable™ project or as to what precise attributes are required for a particular project to be defined as
"green™ or "social” or "sustainable™ or such other equivalent label. The EU Taxonomy Regulation is
nevertheless subject to further developments.

Accordingly, no assurance is or can be given to investors that any green or social project, as the case
may be, towards which proceeds of the Certificates are to be applied will meet the investor expectations
regarding such "green" or "social" performance objectives (including those set out under the EU
Taxonomy Regulation and any related technical screening criteria, the EU Green Bond Regulation,
SFDR - the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation EU 2019/2088 on sustainability related
disclosures in the financial services sector — and any implementing legislation and guidelines, or any
similar legislation in the United Kingdom) or that any adverse social, green, sustainable and/or other
impacts will not occur during the implementation of any green or social or combination of any green
and social project.

Further, no assurance can be given that Eligible Loans (as defined in "Use of Proceeds" below) will
meet investor expectations or requirements regarding such "green", "sustainable", "social” or similar
labels (including in relation to the EU Taxonomy Regulation and any related technical screening
criteria, SFDR, and any implementing legislation and guidelines, or any similar legislation in the
United Kingdom) or any requirements of such labels as they may evolve from time to time. Green
Certificates issued under the Programme are only intended to comply with the requirements and
processes in the Issuer's Green, Social and Sustainability Bond Framework and will not be compliant
with the EU Bond Regulation. It is yet to be verified whether the establishment under the EU Green
Bond Regulation of the EuGB label and the optional disclosures regime for bonds issued as
"environmentally sustainable™ could have an impact on investor demand for, and pricing of, green use
of proceeds bonds that do not comply with the requirements of the EuGB label or the optional
disclosures regime, such as the Green Certificates issued under this Programme. Should there be an
impact, it could result in reduced liquidity or lower demand or could otherwise affect the market price
of any Green Certificates issued under this Programme that do not comply with the standards under the
EU Green Bond Regulation.

While it is the intention of the Issuer to apply an amount equivalent to the proceeds of Social
Certificates, Green Certificates, Climate Certificates or Sustainability Certificates in, or substantially in,
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the manner described in the applicable Final Terms, there can be no assurance that the green, low
carbon, social or combination of any green and social projects (either resulting from the original
application of the proceeds of the Certificates or a subsequent reallocation of such proceeds), as the
case may be, will be capable of being implemented in or substantially in such manner and/or in
accordance with any timing schedule and that accordingly the proceeds of the relevant Green
Certificates, Climate Certificates, Social Certificates or Sustainability Certificates will be totally or
partially disbursed for such projects. Nor can there be any assurance that such green, low carbon, social
or combination of any green and social projects will be completed within any specified period or at all
or with the results or outcome as originally expected or anticipated by the Issuer, or that the originally
designated green, low carbon, social or combination of any green and social project (or any project(s)
resulting from any subsequent reallocation of some or all of the proceeds of the relevant Green
Certificates, Climate Certificates, Social Certificates or Sustainability Certificates) will not be
disqualified as such.

The Issuer does not undertake to ensure that there are at any time sufficient Eligible Loans to allow for
allocation of an amount equal to the net proceeds of the issue of such Green/Social/Sustainable
Certificates in full.

An amount equal to the net proceeds of the issue of any Green/Social/Sustainable Certificates which,
from time to time, are not allocated as funding for Eligible Loans is intended by the Issuer to be held
pending allocation.

The Green, Social and Sustainability Bond Framework may be subject to review and change and may
be amended, updated, supplemented, replaced and/or withdrawn from time to time and any subsequent
version(s) may differ from any description given in this Base Prospectus. A withdrawal of the Green,
Social and Sustainability Bond Framework may affect the value of such Green Certificates, Climate
Certificates, Social Certificates or Sustainability Certificates and/or may have consequences for certain
investors with portfolio mandates to invest in green or social or sustainable assets. The Green, Social
and Sustainability Bond Framework does not form part of, nor is incorporated by reference, in this Base
Prospectus.

No assurance of suitability or reliability of any Second Party Opinion or any other opinion or
certification of any third party relating to any Green/Social/Sustainable Certificates

Furthermore, it should be noted that in connection with the issue of Green Certificates, Climate
Certificates, Social Certificates and Sustainability Certificates, the Issuer may request a sustainability
rating agency or sustainability consulting firm to issue a second-party opinion confirming that the
relevant green and/or low carbon and/or social and/or combination of any green and social project, as
the case may be, have been defined in accordance with the broad categorisation of eligibility for green,
social and combination of any green and social projects set out in the GBP, the SBP and the SBG
and/or a second-party opinion regarding the suitability of the Certificates as an investment in
connection with certain environmental, sustainability or social projects (any such second-party opinion,
a "Second-party Opinion™). A Second-party Opinion may not reflect the potential impact of all risks
related to the structure, market, additional risk factors discussed above and other factors that may affect
the value of the Certificates or the projects financed or refinanced toward an amount corresponding the
net proceeds of the relevant issue of Green Certificates, Climate Certificates, Social Certificates or
Sustainability Certificates. A Second-party Opinion would not constitute a recommendation to buy, sell
or hold the relevant Green Certificates or Climate Certificates or Social Certificates or Sustainability
Certificates and would only be current as of the date it is released. The criteria and/or considerations
that formed the basis of the Second Party Opinion and any other such opinion or certification may
change at any time and the Second Party Opinion may be amended, updated, supplemented, replaced
and/or withdrawn. A withdrawal of the Second-party Opinion may affect the value of such Green
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Certificates, Climate Certificates, Social Certificates or Sustainability Certificates and/or may have
consequences for certain investors with portfolio mandates to invest in green or social or sustainable
assets.

No representation or assurance is given as to the suitability or reliability of any Second-party Opinion
or certification of any third party made available in connection with an issue of Certificates issued as
"Green Certificates", "Social Certificates", "Sustainability Certificates” or "Climate Certificates". For
the avoidance of doubt, any such Second-party Opinion or certification is not incorporated in this Base
Prospectus. Any such Second-party Opinion or certification is not a recommendation by the Issuer, the
Managers or any other person to buy, sell or hold any such Certificates and is current only as of the date
it was issued. As at the date of this Base Prospectus, the providers of any such Second-party Opinion
and certifications are not subject to any specific regulatory or other regime or oversight. Prospective
investors must determine for themselves the relevance of any such Second-party Opinion or
certification and/or the information contained therein.

No assurance that Green/Social/Sustainable Certificates will be admitted to trading on any dedicated
*'green™, 'sustainable™, 'social’* (or similar) segment of any stock exchange or market, or that any

admission obtained will be maintained

In the event that any such Certificates are listed or admitted to trading on a dedicated "green",
"sustainable", "social" or other equivalently labelled segment of a stock exchange or securities market,
no representation or assurance is given by the Issuer, the Managers or any other person that such listing
or admission satisfies any present or future investment criteria or guidelines with which such investor is
required, or intends, to comply. Furthermore, it should be noted that the criteria for any such listings or
admission to trading may vary from one stock exchange or securities market to another. No
representation or assurance is given or made by the Issuer, the Managers or any other person that any
such listing or admission to trading will be obtained in respect of any such Certificates or that any such

listing or admission to trading will be maintained during the life of the Certificates.
ESG Ratings

ESG ratings may vary amongst ESG ratings agencies as the methodologies used to determine ESG
ratings may differ. The Issuer’s ESG ratings are not necessarily indicative of its current or future
operating or financial performance, or any future ability to service the Certificates and are only current
as of the dates on which they were initially issued. ESG ratings shall not be deemed to be a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Certificates. Currently, the providers of such ESG ratings are
not subject to any regulatory or other similar oversight in respect of their determination and award of
ESG ratings. Prospective investors must determine for themselves the relevance of any such ESG rating
information contained in this Base Prospectus or elsewhere in making an investment decision.

2.4 Specific risks related to Warrants
Loss risk in relation to the Covered Warrants
An investment in Covered Warrants entails the risk of loss of the capital invested.

In relation to Call Covered Warrants, in case of negative performance of the Underlying, if the Final
Reference Value is lower than the Exercise Price, Securityholders will bear a total loss of the capital
invested. Furthermore, if the Final Reference Value is higher than the Exercise Price, but not enough to
offset the price paid for the purchase of the Covered Warrants, Securityholders will bear a partial loss
of the capital invested.
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In relation to Put Covered Warrants, in case of positive performance of the Underlying, if the Final
Reference Value is higher than the Exercise Price, Securityholders will bear a total loss of the capital
invested. Furthermore, if the Final Reference Value is lower than the Exercise Price, but not enough to
offset the price paid for the purchase of the Covered Warrants, Securityholders will bear a partial loss
of the capital invested.

Risk related to the Exercise Price

The Cash Settlement Amount of the Covered Warrants will be calculated also on the basis of the
Exercise Price, which is a value either predetermined by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms or
communicated to Securityholders on the date(s) specified in the relevant Final Terms through the
relevant notice. Such Exercise Price contributes to the determination of the potential return of the
Covered Warrants.

Risk related to the Strike Percentage

The Cash Settlement Amount will be calculated on the basis of the Strike Percentage, which is a value
predetermined by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms that may be lower than, equal to or higher than
100%. Such Strike Percentage contributes to the determination of the potential return of the Warrants.

In particular, in relation to Call Warrants, if it is higher than 100%, the positive performance of the
Underlying will be considered partially in order to calculate the Cash Settlement Amount. Furthermore,
in case of negative performance of the Underlying, if the Strike Percentage is equal to or higher than
100% the Cash Settlement Amount will be equal to zero.

In relation to Put Warrants, if it is lower than 100%, the negative performance of the Underlying will be
considered partially in order to calculate the Cash Settlement Amount. Furthermore, in case of positive
performance of the Underlying, if the Strike Percentage is lower than 100% the Cash Settlement
Amount will be equal to zero.

Risk related to the Interest Rate Warrants

Prospective investors should consider that the payment of the Floating Amount and the Cash Settlement
Amount will depend, among other things, on the Interest Cap. In particular, such rate will be detracted
from the Reference Rate, reducing therefore the potential amount of the Floating Amount and/or the
Cash Settlement Amount, as the case may be.

The Floating Amount will also depend on the Notional Amount specified for the relevant Floating
Amount Determination Period. In particular, the Notional Amount may vary on each Floating Amount
Determination Period and the Floating Amount received at a later Floating Amount Payment Date may
differ considerably from the Floating Amount received on the First Floating Amount Payment Date.
Furthermore, for the purposes of the calculation of the Cash Settlement Amount, also the Final Notional
Amount is different from the Notional Amount considered for the purposes of the calculation of the
Floating Amounts.

Risk related to the Barrier Event (in case of Corridor Warrants)

The Barrier Event indicates the achievement by one or more underlying assets of a value below the
Lower Barrier Level or higher than the Upper Barrier Level, on the Barrier Event Determination Period.
If a Barrier Event occurs, the term of the Securities will end immediately and the Securityholders will
only receive the Corridor Early Amount which can be equal to zero. This may entail the risk of partial
or total loss of the investment.
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The Securityholder shall consider that the occurrence of a Barrier Event will also depend on the
volatility of the underlying asset i.e. the more frequent and intense the fluctuations in the value of the
underlying asset during the life of the Warrants are, the higher the volatility will be and the greater the
chance that the value of the underlying asset will be below the Lower Barrier Level or higher than the
Upper Barrier Level and therefore a Barrier Event will occur. In relation to the Warrants to be issued,
the Issuer might set, at its own discretion, the Lower Barrier Level and the Upper Barrier Level.

The Barrier Event could occur on any day within the Barrier Valuation Period. Furthermore, if the
value of the Underlying is calculated as Intraday Value, the underlying asset(s) will be observed on a
continuous basis and the probability that a Barrier Event occurs may be magnified.

Time lag after exercise

In the case of any exercise of Warrants, there will be a time lag between the time a Warrant holder
gives instructions to exercise, or the time the Warrant is automatically exercised, and the time the
applicable Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Warrants that are Cash Settled Securities) relating to
such exercise is determined. Any such delay between the time of exercise and the determination of the
Cash Settlement Amount will be specified in the Terms and Conditions of the Securities. However,
such delay could be significantly longer, particularly in the case of a delay in exercise of Warrants
arising from any daily maximum exercise limitation (in the case of American Style Warrants), the
occurrence of a market disruption event or failure to open of an exchange or related exchange (if
applicable) or following the imposition of any exchange controls or other similar regulations affecting
the ability to obtain or exchange any relevant currency (or basket of currencies) in the case of Currency
Warrants. The applicable Cash Settlement Amount may change significantly during any such period,
and such movement or movements could decrease the Cash Settlement Amount of the Warrants being
exercised and may result in such Cash Settlement Amount being zero.

Minimum Exercise Amount

If so indicated in the applicable Final Terms, a Warrantholder must tender or hold a specified number
of Warrants at any one time in order to exercise. Thus, Warrantholders with fewer than the specified
minimum number of Warrants will either have to sell their Warrants or purchase additional Warrants,
incurring transaction costs in each case, in order to realise their investment. Furthermore, holders of
such Warrants incur the risk that there may be differences between the trading price of such Warrants
and the Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Warrants that are Cash Settled Securities) or the
Deliverable Asset constituting part or all of the Entitlement (in the case of Warrants that are Physical
Delivery Securities) of such Warrants.

Limitations on exercise

In the case of American Style Warrants, if so indicated in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will
have the option to limit the number of American Style Warrants exercisable on any date (other than the
final exercise date) to the maximum number specified in the applicable Final Terms and, in conjunction
with such limitation, to limit the number of American Style Warrants exercisable by any person or
group of persons (whether or not acting in concert) on such date. In the event that the total number of
American Style Warrants being exercised on any date (other than the final exercise date) exceeds such
maximum number and the Issuer elects to limit the number of American Style Warrants exercisable on
such date, a Warrant holder may not be able to exercise on such date all American Style Warrants that
such holder desires to exercise. In any such case, the number of American Style Warrants to be
exercised on such date will be reduced until the total number of American Style Warrants exercised on
such date no longer exceeds such maximum, such American Style Warrants being selected at the
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discretion of the Issuer or in any other manner specified in the applicable Final Terms. Unless otherwise
specified in the applicable Final Terms, the American Style Warrants tendered for exercise but not
exercised on such date will be automatically exercised on the next date on which American Style
Warrants may be exercised, subject to the same daily maximum limitation and delayed exercise
provisions.

2.5 Risks related to Securities generally

Option to vary Settlement

The Issuer may have an option to vary settlement in respect of the Securities, at its sole and unfettered
discretion and may elect (1) not to pay the relevant Securityholders the Cash Settlement Amount, but to
deliver or procure delivery of the Entitlement or (2) not to deliver or procure delivery of the
Entitlement, but to make payment of the Cash Settlement Amount on the Settlement Date to the
relevant Securityholders.

Modification

The Conditions contain provisions for calling meetings of Securityholders to consider matters affecting
their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Securityholders
including Securityholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Securityholders who
voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

The Conditions also provide that the Principal Security Agent and the Issuer may, without the consent
of Securityholders, agree to (i) any modification (subject to certain specific exceptions) of the Securities
or the Agency Agreement which is not prejudicial to the interests of the Securityholders or (ii) any
modification of the Securities or the Agency Agreement which is of a formal, minor or technical nature
or is made to correct a manifest error or proven error or to comply with mandatory provisions of law.

Expenses and taxation

A holder of Securities must pay all Expenses relating to such Securities. As used in the Conditions,
Expenses means all taxes, duties and/or expenses, including any applicable depository charges,
transaction or exercise charges, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, issue, registration, securities
transfer and/or other taxes or duties arising from the exercise and settlement of such Securities pursuant
to the terms of such Securities as more fully set out in Condition 10.

The Issuer shall not be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay any tax, duty, withholding or other
payment which may arise as a result of the ownership, transfer, exercise or enforcement of any Security
by any person and all payments made by the Issuer shall be made subject to any such tax, duty,
withholding or other payment which may be required to be made, paid, withheld or deducted.

U.S. Foreign Account Tax Compliance Withholding

The Issuer and other financial institutions through which payments on the Securities are made may be
required to withhold U.S. tax at a rate of 30 per cent. on all, or a portion of, "foreign passthru
payments"” (a term not yet defined) made two years after the date of publication of final U.S. Treasury
Regulations defining the term “foreign passthru payment”, or later. This withholding would potentially
apply to payments in respect of (i) any Securities characterised as debt (or which are not otherwise
characterised as equity and have a fixed term) for U.S. federal tax purposes that are issued after the
"grandfathering date™ which (A) with respect to Securities that give rise solely to foreign passthru
payments, is the date that is six months after the date on which final U.S. Treasury Regulations defining
the term foreign passthru payment are filed with the Federal Register, and (B) with respect to Securities
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that give rise to a dividend equivalent pursuant to Section 871(m) of the Code as discussed below (and
therefore do not give rise to foreign passthru payments), is the date that is six months after the date on
which obligations of their type are first treated as giving rise to dividend equivalents, or in either case
are issued on or before the grandfathering date and are materially modified thereafter, and (ii) any
Securities characterised as equity or which do not have a fixed term for U.S. federal tax purposes,
whenever issued. If Securities are issued on or before the grandfathering date, and additional Securities
of the same series are issued after that date, the additional Securities may not be treated as
grandfathered, which may have negative consequences for the existing Securities, including a negative
impact on market price.

While the Securities are in global form and held within the clearing systems, it is not expected that
FATCA will affect the amount of any payment received by the clearing systems. However, FATCA
may affect payments made to custodians or intermediaries in the subsequent payment chain leading to
the ultimate investor if any such custodian or intermediary generally is unable to receive payments free
of FATCA withholding. FATCA also may affect payment to any ultimate investor that is a financial
institution not entitled to receive payments free of withholding under FATCA, or an ultimate investor
that fails to provide its broker (or other custodian or intermediary from which it receives payment) with
any information, forms, other documentation or consents that may be necessary for the payments to be
made free of FATCA withholding. Investors should choose their custodians and intermediaries with
care (to ensure each is compliant with FATCA or other laws or agreements related to FATCA) and
provide each custodian or intermediary with any information, forms, other documentation or consents
that may be necessary for such custodian or intermediary to make a payment free of FATCA
withholding. The Issuer’s obligations under the Securities are discharged once it has paid the common
depositary for the clearing systems (as bearer or registered holder of the Securities) and the Issuer has
therefore no responsibility for any amount thereafter transmitted through the hands of the clearing
systems and custodians or intermediaries. The documentation expressly contemplates the possibility
that the Securities may go into definitive form and therefore that they may be taken out of the clearing
systems. If this were to happen, then a non-FATCA compliant holder could be subject to FATCA
withholding.

If an amount in respect of U.S. withholding tax were to be deducted or withheld from payments on the
Securities, none of the Issuer, any paying agent or any other person would, pursuant to the conditions of
the Securities, be required to pay additional amounts as a result of the deduction or withholding of such
tax. As a result, investors may receive a lesser amount than expected. Holders of Securities should
consult their own tax advisers for a more detailed explanation of FATCA and how FATCA may apply
to payments they receive under the Securities.

FATCA is particularly complex and its application to the Issuer, the Securities, and investors in the
Securities is uncertain at this time. The application of FATCA to "foreign passthru payments" on the
Securities or to Securities issued or materially modified after the grandfathering date may be addressed
in the relevant Final Terms or a supplement to the Base Prospectus, as applicable.

On 10 January 2014, representatives of the Governments of Italy and the United States signed an
intergovernmental agreement to implement FATCA in Italy (the "IGA"), which entered into force on
1st July 2014. The IGA ratification law entered into force on 8 July 2015. Under these rules, the Issuer,
as a reporting financial institution, will be required to collect and report certain information in respect
of its account holders and investors to the Italian tax authorities, which would automatically exchange
such information periodically with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service.

U.S. Dividend Equivalent Payments
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U.S. Treasury Regulations under Section 871(m) of the Code imposing a withholding tax on certain
“dividend equivalents” under certain “equity linked instruments” exclude from their scope instruments
issued before calendar year 2021 that do not have a “delta of one” with respect to underlying securities
that could pay U.S.-source dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes (each an “Underlying
Security”). Subject to this pre-2021 exemption, Section 871(m) of the Code will apply to a financial
instrument (a "Specified Security™) if it meets either (i) a "delta” test, if it is a "simple™ contract, or (ii) a
"substantial equivalence" test, if it is a "complex" contract. Section 871(m) of the Code provides certain
exceptions to this withholding regime, in particular for instruments linked to certain broad-based
indices that meet requirements set forth in the applicable Treasury regulations, as well as instruments
that track such indices. If the terms of a financial instrument issued before calendar year 2021 (that is
exempt from withholding under Section 871(m) of the Code) are "significantly modified" sometime
after calendar year 2020 such that the financial instrument is treated as retired and reissued for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, it will lose this exemption. Withholding in respect of dividend equivalents
will generally be required when cash payments are made on a Specified Security or upon the date of
maturity, lapse or other disposition by the non-U.S. holder of the Specified Security. If U.S. Underlying
Equities are expected to pay dividends during the term of the Specified Security, withholding generally
will still be required even if the Specified Security does not provide for payments explicitly linked to
dividends. If the Issuer or any other relevant withholding agent determines that withholding is required,
neither the Issuer nor any withholding agent will be required to pay any additional amounts with respect
to amounts so withheld.

Section 871(m) of the Code is complex and its application may depend on your particular
circumstances, including whether you enter into other transactions with respect to an Underlying
Security. You should consult your tax advisor regarding the potential application of Section 871(m) of
the Code to the Securities.

Other taxation considerations

It is not possible to predict whether the taxation regime applicable to Securities on the date of purchase
or subscription will be amended during the term of the Securities. If such amendments are made, the
taxation regime applicable to the Securities may differ substantially from the taxation regime in
existence on the date of purchase or subscription of the Securities.

Illegality and cancellation

If the Issuer determines that its performance under any Securities has, or that any arrangements made to
hedge the Issuer's obligations under any Securities have, become (i) illegal in whole or in part for any
reason, or (ii) by reason of a force majeure event (such as an act of God, fire, flood, severe weather
conditions, or a labour dispute or shortage) or an act of state, impossible or impracticable, the Issuer
may cancel such Securities. The Issuer may also cancel the Securities upon the occurrence of certain
adjustment events as set out in Condition 15 (Market Disruption Events and Adjustment Events). If the
Issuer cancels the Securities, then the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay
an amount to each Securityholder in respect of each Security held by such holder, equal to the fair
market value the Securities (the bid-value in case of Italian Traded Securities), notwithstanding such
illegality, force majeure event or act of state, less the cost to the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates or
agents of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements (including any cost of funding in
respect of such hedging arrangements), all as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion (such cost shall not be applicable in case of Italian Traded Securities). Payment will
be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9
(Notices).

Hedging disruption
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In respect of the Securities linked to one or more Underlying(s), the Issuer or one of its affiliates may
be unable, after using commercially reasonable efforts, to either (a) acquire, establish, re-establish,
substitute, maintain, unwind or dispose of any transaction(s) or asset(s) it deems necessary to hedge the
equity price risk (or any other relevant price risk including, but not limited to, the currency risk) of
entering into and performing its obligations with respect to the Securities; or (b) freely realize, recover,
receive, repatriate, remit or transfer the proceeds of hedge positions as the case may be between
accounts within the jurisdiction of the hedge position (the "Affected Jurisdiction™) or from accounts
within the Affected Jurisdiction to accounts outside of the Affected Jurisdiction.

In connection with such hedging activities, the Issuer and/or its affiliates may enter into transactions
which may affect the liquidity or value of the Securities and which could be deemed to be adverse to
the interests of the relevant Securityholders.

If an Hedging Disruption occurs, the Calculation Agent may consider such event as a Termination
Event and the Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid an amount on the basis of the fair market value of the
Securities (the bid-value in case of Italian Traded Securities).

Change of law

The Conditions are based on English law in effect as at the date of this Base Prospectus. No assurance
can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to English law or
administrative practice after the date of this Base Prospectus.

Potential conflicts of interest

The Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates may also engage in trading activities (including hedging
activities) related to the asset or other basis of reference underlying any Securities and other instruments
or derivative products based on or related to the asset or other basis of reference underlying any
Security for their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under their management. The Issuer and/or
any of its Affiliates may also issue other derivative instruments in respect of the asset or other basis of
reference underlying Securities. The Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates may act as paying agent for the
Italian Dematerialised Securities. In case of Fund Securities or in case of Index Securities when the
Underlying is one or more fund indices, the Issuer or any of its Affiliates may have agreements in place
with the Management Company or the Fund Manager (or the Index Sponsor) pursuant to which such
entities have the obligation to provide the Issuer or any of its Affiliates, on a continuous basis, with the
information of the Fund(s) (or of the funds composing the Index) that the Issuer is required to receive in
order to apply the lookthrough approach pursuant to the Fundamental Review of the Trading Book
(FRTB). In such case, the Management Company or the Fund Manager (or the Index Sponsor) may be
an Affiliate of the Issuer. The Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates may also act as underwriter in
connection with future offerings of shares or other securities related to an issue of Securities or may act
as financial adviser to certain companies or companies whose shares are included in a basket of shares
or in a commercial banking capacity for such companies. Such activities could present certain conflicts
of interest, could influence the prices of such shares or other securities and could adversely affect the
value of such Securities.

Under the Conditions of the Securities, the Calculation Agent may make certain determinations in
respect of the Securities which could affect the amount payable by the Issuer on the Securities. In
exercising its right to make such determinations the Calculation Agent is entitled to act in its sole and
absolute discretion. Where the Issuer acts as Calculation Agent, potential conflicts of interest may exist
between the Calculation Agent and the Securityholders, including with respect to those determinations
that the Calculation Agent may make pursuant to the Securities that may influence the amount payable
in relation to such Securities.
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Any further conflict of interest, including conflicts between the Issuer and any Managers or Distributors
will be indicated in the relevant Final Terms.

Risk related to Physical Delivery Securities

If the Securities are Physical Delivery Securities (only applicable in case of Share Securities and
Govies Securities), the Securityholder may receive the Deliverable Asset constituting part or all of the
Entitlement, as specified in the relevant Final Terms. In such case, the Securityholders will be exposed
to the risk that the market value of the Deliverable Asset is less than the market value of the Securities.

There is a risk of price losses of the Deliverable Asset constituting part or all of the Entitlement in the
event that the Securityholders sell such Deliverable Asset. In particular, should the value of the
Deliverable Asset constituting the Entitlement continues to fall between the time of its delivery and the
sale by the Securityholder, the loss of the Securityholder increases accordingly, and Securityholders
may not subsequently be able to realise any cash value from the assets comprising the Entitlement.

Investors should also take into consideration that, the holding or sale of the Deliverable Asset may
result in fees (for example, custody fees) or other costs which reduce the potential return or increase the
loss of the Securityholder.

Physical Delivery requirements and settlement risk

In relation to Physical Delivery Securities, in order to receive the Entitlement, Securityholders shall
follow the exercise procedures specified under Condition 19 (Exercise rights and procedures (only
applicable to Warrants)) or Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures (only applicable to
Certificates)) and detailed in the applicable Final Terms. Failure to do so will result (i) in the case of a
Warrant where Automatic Exercise is not specified in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant
Warrant's becoming void or (ii) in the case of a Warrant where Automatic Exercise is specified in the
applicable Final Terms, or (iii) in the case of a Certificate, the Securityholder receiving the Assessed
Value Payment Amount instead of the Entitlement. The Assessed Value Payment Amount will be
determined by the Calculation Agent by reference to the fair market value of the Deliverable Asset
constituting part or all of the Entitlement.

In connection with the exercise of Physical Delivery Securities, unless otherwise indicated in the Final
Terms, the Calculation Agent may determine that a Settlement Disruption Event or, if applicable, a
Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity has occurred. Any such determination may affect the value of the
Securities and/or may delay settlement and/or lead to cash settlement rather than physical settlement in
respect of the Securities.

In particular, if a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on the Settlement Date, settlement will
be postponed until the next Settlement Business Day on which no Settlement Disruption Event occurs.
The Issuer in these circumstances has also the right to pay the Settlement Disruption Amount (as
defined in the Conditions) in lieu of delivering the Entitlement. Such a determination may have an
adverse effect on the value of the relevant Securities since the Settlement Disruption Amount may be
less than the fair market value of the Entitlement and could be less than the return that the investor had
anticipated.

If so indicated in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer has an option to vary settlement in respect of
the Securities. If exercised by the Issuer, this option will lead to Physical Delivery Securities being cash
settled or Cash Settled Securities being physically settled. Exercise of such option may affect the value
of the Securities.
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Exercise risk

Exercise of the Securities is subject to all applicable laws, regulations and practices in force on the
Exercise Date and none of the Issuer, any of its Affiliates, the Security Agents and the Calculation
Agent shall incur any liability whatsoever if it is unable to effect the transactions contemplated, after
using all reasonable efforts, as a result of any such laws, regulations or practices. None of the Issuer,
any of its Affiliates, the Security Agents, the Registrar and the Calculation Agent shall under any
circumstances be liable for any acts or defaults of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg in relation to
the performance of their duties in relation to the Certificates.

European financial transactions tax

On 14 February 2013, the European Commission issued proposals, including a draft Directive (the
Commission Proposal), for a financial transaction tax (FTT) to be adopted in Belgium, Germany,
Estonia, Greece, Spain, France, Italy, Austria, Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the participating
Member States)’. However, Estonia has since stated that it will not participate. If the Commission's
Proposal was adopted, the FTT would be a tax primarily on "financial institutions” (which could
include the Issuer) in relation to “financial transactions” (which would include the conclusion or
modification of derivative contracts and the purchase and sale of financial instruments).

Under the Commission’s Proposal, the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both within
and outside of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in the
Certificates where at least one party is a financial institution, and at least one party is established in a
participating Member State. A financial institution may be, or be deemed to be, "established” in a
participating Member State in a broad range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a
person established in a participating Member State or (b) where the financial instrument which is
subject to the dealings is issued in a participating Member State.

The FTT may give rise to tax liabilities for the relevant Issuer with respect to certain transactions if it is
adopted based on the Commission’'s Proposal. Examples of such transactions are the conclusion of a
derivative contract in the context of the relevant Issuer's hedging arrangements or the purchase or sale
of securities (such as charged assets) or the exercise/settlement of a warrant. The relevant Issuer is, in
certain circumstances, able to pass on any such tax liabilities to holders of the Securities and therefore
this may result in investors receiving less than expected in respect of the Securities. It should also be
noted that the FTT could be payable in relation to relevant transactions by investors in respect of the
Securities (including secondary market transactions) if conditions for a charge to arise are satisfied and
the FTT is adopted based on the Commission's Proposal. Primary market transactions referred to in
Acrticle 5(c) of Regulation EC No 1287/2006 are expected to be exempt. There is however some
uncertainty in relation to the intended scope of this exemption for certain money market instruments
and structured issues.

However, the FTT proposal remains subject to negotiation between the participating Member States. It
may therefore be altered prior to implementation, the timing of which remains unclear. Additional
Member States may decide to participate. Prospective Securityholders are advised to seek their own
professional advice in relation to the FTT.

United Kingdom’s exit from the European Union

7 Several EU Member States (e.g. France, Italy and Spain) have already introduced national FTTs.
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On 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom (the "UK") held a referendum on the UK’s membership of the
EU. The result of the referendum’s vote was to leave the EU and the UK Government invoked article
50 of the Lisbon Treaty. On 24 January 2020, it was announced that the government of the UK and the
EU had executed and entered into to a withdrawal agreement (the “Withdrawal Agreement”). On 29
January 2020, the European Parliament voted to consent to the Withdrawal Agreement, and on 30
January 2020, the European Council (the "EU Council™) adopted, by written procedure, the decision on
the conclusion of the Withdrawal Agreement on behalf of the EU. On 31 January 2020, upon the United
Kingdom’s exit from the EU, the Withdrawal Agreement entered into force. A transition period begins
following the date of the United Kingdom’s withdrawal until 31 December 2020 (the “Transition
Period”). During the Transition Period, the UK was bound by EU rules despite not being its member
state and remained in the single market area, while the future terms of the UK's relationship with the
EU were being negotiated.

On 24 December 2020, the EU and the UK reached an agreement on the Trade and Cooperation
Agreement (the "Trade and Cooperation Agreement”), which sets out the principles of the
relationship between the EU and the UK following the end of the Transition Period. The Trade and
Cooperation Agreement was signed on 30 December 2020. The Trade and Cooperation Agreement has
provisional application until the EU and UK complete their ratification procedures. On 29 April 2021,
the EU Council ratified the Trade and Cooperation Agreement. The Trade and Cooperation Agreement
does not create a detailed framework to govern the cross-border provision of regulated financial
services from the UK into the EU and from the EU into the UK. Notwithstanding the conclusion of the
Withdrawal Agreement, the application of the Trade and Cooperation Agreement by the EU and the
UK and the implementation by the UK of retained EU law, there remain significant uncertainties with
regard to the political and economic outlook of the UK and the EU.

There are a number of areas of uncertainty in connection with the future of the UK and its relationship
with the European Union and the negotiation of the UK's exit terms and related matters may take
several years. Given this uncertainty and the range of possible outcomes, it is not currently possible to
determine the impact that the referendum, the UK's departure from the European Union and/or any
related matters may have on general economic conditions in the UK and the European Union. It is also
not possible to determine the impact that these matters will have on the Issuer or any other party to the
transaction documents, or on the regulatory position of any such entity or of the transactions
contemplated by the transaction documents under EU regulation or more generally.

Legal risks
Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

Each prospective purchaser of Securities must determine, based on its own independent review and
such professional advice as it deems appropriate under the circumstances, that its acquisition of the
Securities (i) is fully consistent with its (or if it is acquiring the Securities in a fiduciary capacity, the
beneficiary's) financial needs, objectives and condition, (ii) complies and is fully consistent with all
investment policies, guidelines and restrictions applicable to it (whether acquiring the Securities as
principal or in a fiduciary capacity) and (iii) is a fit, proper and suitable investment for it (or if it is
acquiring the Securities in a fiduciary capacity, for the beneficiary), notwithstanding the clear and
substantial risks inherent in investing in or holding the Securities. Potential investors should consult
with their own tax, legal, accounting and/or financial advisers before considering investing in the
Securities.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or
review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to
determine whether and to what extent (1) Securities are legal investments for it, (2) Securities can be
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used as collateral for various types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or
pledge of any Securities. Financial institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate
regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of Securities under any applicable risk-based capital
or similar rules.

No reliance

A prospective purchaser may not rely on the Issuer, the Managers, if any, or any of their respective
affiliates in connection with its determination as to the legality of its acquisition of the Securities or as
to the other matters referred to above. None of the Issuer, the Managers, if any, or any of their
respective affiliates has or assumes responsibility for the lawfulness of the acquisition of the Securities
by a prospective purchaser of the Securities, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of its
incorporation or the jurisdiction in which it operates (if different), or for compliance by that prospective
purchaser with any law, regulation or regulatory policy applicable to it.

2.6  Risks related to the offer to the public and/or admission of the Securities to trading on a
regulated market

Impact of implicit fees on the Issue Price / Offer Price

Investors should note that implicit fees (e.g. placement commissions/distribution commissions,
structuring fees) may be a component of the Issue Price / Offer Price of the Securities, but such fees
will not be taken into account for the purposes of determining the price of the relevant Securities in the
secondary market.

The Issuer will specify in the relevant Final Terms the type and amount of any implicit fees which are
applicable from time to time.

Investors should also take into consideration that if Securities are sold on the secondary market
immediately following the offer period relating to such Securities, the implicit fees included in the Issue
Price /Offer Price on initial subscription for such Securities will be deducted from the price at which
such Securities may be sold in the secondary market.

Certain considerations associated with Offers of Securities

If Securities are distributed by means of an Offer, under certain circumstances indicated in the relevant
Final Terms, the Issuer and/or other entities specified in the Final Terms may have the right to
withdraw the Offer, which in such circumstances will be deemed to be null and void according to the
terms indicated in the relevant Final Terms.

In such case, investors who have already paid or delivered subscription monies for the relevant
Securities will be entitled to reimbursement of such amounts, but (in the case of Certificates) will not
receive any remuneration that may have accrued in the period between their payment or delivery of
subscription monies and the reimbursement of the Securities.

Possible illiquidity of the Securities in the secondary market

It is not possible to predict the price at which Securities will trade in the secondary market or whether
such market will be liquid or illiquid. The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, list or admit to trading
Securities on a stock exchange or market. If the Securities are not listed or admitted to trading on any
exchange or market, pricing information for the Securities may be more difficult to obtain and the
liquidity of the Securities may be adversely affected. If the Issuer does list or admit to trading an issue
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of Securities, there can be no assurance that at a later date, the Securities will not be delisted or that
trading on such exchange or market will not be suspended. In the event of a delisting or suspension of
listing or trading on a stock exchange or market, the Issuer will use its reasonable efforts to list or admit
to trading the Securities on another exchange or market. Also, (in the case of Warrants) to the extent
Warrants of a particular issue are exercised, the number of Warrants of such issue outstanding will
decrease, resulting in a diminished liquidity for the remaining Warrants of such issue. A decrease in the
liquidity of an issue of Warrants may cause, in turn, an increase in the volatility associated with the
price of such issue of Warrants.

The Issuer, or any of its Affiliates may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase Securities at any
price in the open market or by tender or private treaty. Any Securities so purchased may be held or
resold or surrendered for cancellation. The Issuer or any of its Affiliates may, but is not obliged to, be a
market-maker for an issue of Securities. Even if the Issuer or such other entity is a market-maker for an
issue of Securities, the secondary market for such Securities may be limited. To the extent that an issue
of Securities becomes illiquid, Securityholders may have to exercise such Securities (in the case of
American Style Warrants) or wait until the Exercise Date (in the case of European Style Warrants and
Certificates) to realise value.

Finally, investors should note that if an entity is appointed as market-maker or liquidity provider with
respect to the Securities in the secondary market, this may, in certain circumstances, affect the price of
the Securities in the secondary market.

Listing of Securities

In respect of Securities which are (in accordance with the applicable Final Terms) to be listed on a
stock exchange, market or quotation system, the Issuer shall use all reasonable endeavours to maintain
such listing, provided that if it becomes impracticable or unduly burdensome or unduly onerous to
maintain such listing, then the Issuer may apply to de-list the relevant Securities, although in this case it
will use all reasonable endeavours to obtain and maintain (as soon as reasonably practicable after the
relevant de-listing) an alternative admission to listing, trading and/or quotation by a stock exchange,
market or quotation system within or outside the European Union, as it may decide. If such an
alternative admission is not available or is, in the opinion of the Issuer, impracticable or unduly
burdensome, an alternative admission will not be obtained.

In case of Offers in the secondary market, the Securities may be purchased upon payment of the Offer
Price, which will be equal to the market price of the Securities applicable from time to time and, in
addition, any costs and commissions payable to the relevant Authorised Offeror (if applicable).

Only in case of Securities to be admitted to listing and/or trading without prior offer, the applicable
Final Terms may specify the Reduced Initial Listing Price. In such case, the initial price at which the
Securities will be traded on the market will be determined on the basis of the Reduced Initial Listing
Price. Investors should take into account that the Reduced Initial Listing Price may be lower or higher
than the initial trading price of the Securities.
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INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following information, which has previously been published and filed with the Central Bank of
Ireland is incorporated by reference in, and forms part of, this Base Prospectus:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

the press release issued by Intesa Sanpaolo on 4 February 2025 and entitled "Intesa Sanpaolo:
consolidated results as at 31 December 2024" (the "2024 Results Press Release");

https://group.intesasanpaolo.com/content/dam/portalgroup/repository-documenti/investor-
relations/comunicati-stampa-en/2025/02/20250204 RisFY?24 uk.pdf

the English translation of the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group as at and for the nine months ended 30 September 2024;

https://group.intesasanpaolo.com/content/dam/portalgroup/repository-documenti/investor-

relations/bilanci-relazioni-en/2024/30092024 Interim_statement.pdf

the English translation of the unaudited condensed consolidated half-yearly financial
statements of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group as at and for the six months ended 30 June 2024, as
shown in the Intesa Sanpaolo Group 2024 Half-yearly Report;

https://group.intesasanpaolo.com/content/dam/portalgroup/repository-documenti/investor-

relations/bilanci-relazioni-en/2024/30062024 Half-yearly report.pdf

the English translation of the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023, as shown in the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group 2023 Annual Report;

https://group.intesasanpaolo.com/content/dam/portalgroup/repository-documenti/investor-

relations/bilanci-relazioni-en/2023/2023 Annual _report.pdf

the English translation of the unaudited condensed consolidated half-yearly financial
statements of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group as at and for the six months ended 30 June 2023, as
shown in the Intesa Sanpaolo Group 2023 Half-yearly Report;

https://group.intesasanpaolo.com/content/dam/portalgroup/repository-documenti/investor-

relations/bilanci-relazioni-en/2023/30062023 Half-yearly report.pdf

the English translation of the audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022, as shown in the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group 2022 Annual Report;

https://group.intesasanpaolo.com/content/dam/portalgroup/repository-documenti/investor-

relations/bilanci-relazioni-en/2022/2022 Annual _report.pdf

the section "Terms and Conditions of the Securities" contained in the Base Prospectus dated 1
March 2024 from page 71 to and including page 288, available at the following website:

https://www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com/en/Documentazione-Emissioni

This Base Prospectus will be available, in electronic format, on the website of Euronext Dublin
(https://www.euronext.com) and at the following website:

www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com.
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https://group.intesasanpaolo.com/content/dam/portalgroup/repository-documenti/investor-relations/bilanci-relazioni-en/2022/2022_Annual__report.pdf
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https://www.euronext.com/
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Any information contained in or incorporated by reference in any of the documents specified above
which is not included in the cross-reference list in this Base Prospectus is not incorporated by reference
and is either not relevant to investors or is covered elsewhere in this Base Prospectus and, for the
avoidance of doubt, unless specifically incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus, information
contained on the website does not form part of this Base Prospectus.

The Issuer declares that the English translation of each of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's financial
statements incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus is an accurate and not misleading
translation in all material respect of the Italian language version of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's
financial statements. Intesa Sanpaolo takes responsibility for the accuracy of such translations.

The Issuer confirms that the unaudited results and other figures contained in the 2024 Results Press
Release are consistent with the corresponding figures that will be contained in the Issuer’s consolidated
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the "2024 Annual Report™) and
therefore have been prepared on the basis of the same accounting principles and standards utilised for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of Intesa Sanpaolo as at and for the year ended
31 December 2023 in all material respects.

In the reclassified statements, the figures are normally restated, where necessary and if they are
material, for ease of comparison. In particular, the amounts are provided as uniformly as possible with
reference to the different periods covered, above all in relation to intervening changes in the scope of
consolidation. Therefore, the unaudited results for the full year 2024 have been compiled and prepared
on a basis which is comparable with the historical financial information.

Audit procedures by the statutory auditors on the 2024 Annual Report are currently in progress and the
2024 Annual Report will be available to the investors forthwith following its publication. See further
"General Information — Financial statements available™.

Cross-reference list

The following table shows where the information required under article 19(2) of Regulation (EU)
2017/1129 can be found in the above-mentioned documents.

2024 Results Press Release Page
number(s)
Reclassified consolidated statement of iNCOME ......ccooovviiiiiiiee e 28
Quarterly development of the reclassified consolidated statement of income.............. 29
Reclassified consolidated balance Sheet .........cccoeeii i 30
Quarterly development of the reclassified consolidated balance sheet...............c......... 31
Breakdown of financial highlights by business area...........ccccccoevvevivevicviececce e, 32

Intesa Sanpaolo Group — Interim Statement as at 30 September 2024

Page number(s)

Consolidated Dalance SEEL............c.ooiii i s 34-35
Consolidated INCOME SLALEMENT ...........oiiiiiiiieie e e e 36
Statement of consolidated comprehensive INCOME ..o 37
Changes in consolidated shareholders' eqUILY ..o 38-39
ACCOUNTING POIICIES ..ttt ettt st st sbe e s 115-120
A 17 1ol 11 ) S 123-146
Intesa Sanpaolo Group Half-yearly Report as at 30 June 2024 Page
number(s)
Consolidated balance SEEL..........coiiiiiiiiicee e 132-133
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Information on the consolidated balance sheet...........ccccooreiiiineniiienccnen,
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RISK MaNAGEMENT.....ccuiieieieeie et b e e sre e
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S T=To gl a LA =] o o] o ] o SRR
Certification of the Half-yearly condensed consolidated financial statements pursuant
to Art. 154 bis of Legislative Decree 58/1998..........cccceoviieiinenennieneeene,
Independent AUdItOrs' REPOIT........coiriiiiirieireieis e
ATEACHMENTS ...ttt sre s

Intesa Sanpaolo Group 2023 Annual Report

Alternative Performance MeasuUres..........c.ovviiiiiii i
Consolidated balance sheet........ ...
Consolidated iNnCome StatemMeNt. .........oouiinit it
Statement of consolidated comprehensive income....................ooeeeenenn.
Changes in consolidated shareholders' equity................cooceiiiiiiint.
Consolidated statement of cash flows. ...
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES

The following is the text of the Terms and Conditions (the Conditions) of the Securities which will
apply to each issue of Securities and, except in the case of Italian Dematerialised Securities, be
incorporated by reference into each Global Security. The terms of the Final Terms (the "Final
Terms') applicable to the respective issue of Securities complete and specify the Terms and
Conditions of the Securities. The completed and specified Final Terms together with the Terms and
Conditions of the Securities represent the conditions applicable to the relevant issue of Securities

Securities other than Italian Dematerialised Securities are issued by Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. (the Issuer)
pursuant to an Agency Agreement dated on or about 7 March 2025 (as amended and/or supplemented
and/or restated from time to time, the Agency Agreement) between the Issuer and BNP Paribas,
Luxembourg Branch®, acting as principal security agent (the Principal Security Agent, which
expression shall include any successor principal security agent and, together with any additional
security agents appointed pursuant to Clause 17 of the Agency Agreement, the Security Agents, which
expression shall include any additional or successor security agents) and as registrar (the Registrar,
which expression shall include any successor registrar).

The Issuer shall undertake the duties of calculation agent (in this capacity, the Calculation Agent) in
respect of the Securities (including Italian Dematerialised Securities) unless another entity is so
specified as the calculation agent in the applicable Final Terms. The expression Calculation Agent
shall, in relation to the relevant Securities, include such other specified Calculation Agent.

The Securities (including Italian Dematerialised Securities) will be either warrants (Warrants) or
certificates (Certificates), as specified in the applicable Final Terms, and references in these Conditions
to Security and Securities will be construed accordingly. Conditions 19 and 20 apply only to Warrants
and Condition 21 applies only to Certificates. Other Conditions apply to Warrants and/or Certificates,
as applicable. References herein to the applicable Final Terms or relevant Final Terms are to the
Final Terms or to each Final Terms (in the case of any further securities issued pursuant to Condition
11 and forming a single series with the Securities) in relation to each single issuance made under this
Programme, which for the avoidance of doubt may be issued in respect of more than one series of
Securities.

In respect of Securities other than Italian Dematerialised Securities, the applicable Final Terms is
attached to the Global Security or Global Registered Security or any Securities in definitive form.

Bearer Securities

Each series of Securities that are not Registered Securities (as defined below in these Terms and
Conditions of Securities) (Bearer Securities) will on issue be constituted by either (a) in the case of
Bearer Securities with a maturity of more than one year, a temporary global security in bearer form
(Temporary Global Security) or (b) in the case of Securities with a maturity of one year or less, a
permanent global security in bearer form (Permanent Global Security and together with the
Temporary Global Security, Global Securities and each a Global Security) as indicated in the
applicable Final Terms which, in either case, will be deposited with a depositary (Common
Depositary) common to Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (Euroclear) and Clearstream Banking, S.A.

8 BNP Paribas, Luxembourg Branch, being part of a financial group providing client services with a worldwide network covering
different time zones, may entrust parts of its operational processes to other BNP Paribas Group entities and/or third parties,
whilst keeping ultimate accountability and responsibility in Luxembourg.
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(Clearstream, Luxembourg).

On or after the 40th day following the Issue Date of the Temporary Global Securities (the Exchange
Date) the Temporary Global Security will be exchangeable (a) for a Permanent Global Security or (b)
for bearer securities in definitive form (Definitive Securities, and the expression Definitive Certificates
or Definitive Warrants shall be construed accordingly), as indicated in the applicable Final Terms and
in each case only to the extent that certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the
beneficial owners of interests in such Bearer Security are not United States persons or persons who
have purchased for resale directly or indirectly to any United States person or to a person within the
United States or its possessions, as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been received by
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as
applicable, has given a like certification (based on the certification received) to the Principal Security
Agent. A Permanent Global Security will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for
Definitive Securities only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, Exchange
Event means that (i) the Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday,
statutory or otherwise) and have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact
done so and no successor clearing system is available or (ii) as a result of a change in law, the Issuer
has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered were the
Securities represented by the Securities in definitive form. The Issuer will promptly give notice to
Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices) if an Exchange Event occurs.

Bearer Securities will only be delivered outside the United States and its possessions.

With respect to any Bearer Security, payments of principal and interest in all cases will be made only
outside the United States and its possessions, and if a payment of interest is made before the Exchange
Date, only to the extent that certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership, as described above, has
been received.

The following legend will appear on all Bearer Securities with a maturity of more than one year:

"Any United States person who holds this obligation will be subject to limitations under the United
States income tax laws, including the limitations provided in Sections 165(j) and 1287(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code."”

Registered Securities

Any Securities that are “registration-required obligations” under the Code and US Treasury Regulations
will be issued in “registered form” for US federal income tax purposes (Registered Securities).
Registered Securities will be represented by definitive registered certificates registered in the names of
the beneficial owners thereof (Registered Certificates or Registered Securities) and/or a registered
certificate in global form (a Global Registered Certificate) which will be registered in the name of a
nominee for a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or in any clearing
system specified in the applicable Final Terms. Definitive Securities will be exchangeable for definitive
Registered Securities only if and to the extent so specified in the relevant Final Terms. Definitive
Registered Securities will not be exchangeable for Definitive Securities or an interest therein.

Italian Dematerialised Securities

Italian Dematerialised Securities will be issued in bearer (al portatore), uncertificated and
dematerialised form evidenced at any time through book-entries into Monte Titoli S.p.A. (with
registered office and principal place of business at Piazza degli Affari 6, 20123 Milan, Italy, or any
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successor clearing system thereto) (Monte Titoli) pursuant to Italian legislative decree no. 58/1998, as
amended and implemented and subsequent implementing provisions and in accordance with CONSOB
and Bank of Italy Joint Regulation dated 13 August 2018 (“Italian Dematerialised Securities"). Italian
Dematerialised Securities will not be issued in definitive form. However, the holder still has the right to
obtain the release of the certificate pursuant to articles 83-quinquies and 83-novies, paragraph 1, letter
b), of the Italian legislative decree no. 58/1998 as amended and integrated by subsequent implementing
provisions. While the Italian Dematerialised Securities are represented by book entries, investors will
be able to trade their beneficial interests only through Monte Titoli and the authorized financial
intermediaries holding accounts on behalf of their customers with Monte Titoli. As the Italian
Dematerialised Securities are held in dematerialised form with Monte Titoli, investors will have to rely
on the procedures of Monte Titoli and the financial intermediaries authorised to hold accounts
therewith, for transfer, payment and communication with the Issuer.

General

Copies of the Agency Agreement (which contains the form of the Final Terms) and the applicable Final
Terms are available at the specified office of the Principal Security Agent, and in the case of Registered
Securities, the Registrar, save that if the Securities are neither admitted to trading on a regulated market
in the European Economic Area nor offered in the European Economic Area in circumstances where a
prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Regulation, the applicable Final Terms will
only be made available to Securityholders holding one or more Securities and such Securityholder must
produce evidence satisfactory to the Issuer or the relevant Security Agent as to its holding of such
Securities and identity.

Words and expressions defined in the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable Final Terms shall
have the same meanings where used in these Conditions unless the context otherwise requires or unless
otherwise stated.

The holders of Securities other than Italian Dematerialised Securities are entitled to the benefit of and
are deemed to have notice of and are bound by all the provisions of the Agency Agreement (insofar as
they relate to the Securities) and the applicable Final Terms, which are binding on them.

1. Type, Title and Transfer

(A) Type

Depending on the type of financial asset used as Underlying(s), the Securities may be Index
Securities, Share Securities, Exchange Rate Securities, Futures Contract Securities, Fund
Securities, Govies Securities, Interest Rate Securities, Commodity Securities or Combined
Securities (i.e. a combination of two or more of the foregoing), as specified in the applicable
Final Terms. The Securities may also be Dual Currency Securities if so specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

The applicable Final Terms will also indicate inter alia:
1) Both in relation to Certificates and Warrants, whether settlement shall be by way of

cash payment (Cash Settled Securities) and/or, in relation to Share Securities and
Govies Securities only, physical delivery (Physical Delivery Securities).
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2)

3)

In relation to Certificates only, the applicable Final Terms may also specify that such
Certificates are either cash settled of physically settled depending upon the
occurrence or not of one of the following events:

Barrier Event;

Barrier Gap Event;

Buffer Event;
Consolidation Floor Event;
One Star Event;

Restrike Event;

Settlement Event;

Switch Event.

Italian Dematerialised Securities may be issued as Cash Settled Securities only and
relevant settlement and payments shall be by way of cash payment only;

In the case of Warrants only:

(i)

(i)

whether the Warrants are American style Warrants, being Warrants which are
exercisable during a specified period (American Style Warrants) or European
style Warrants, being Warrants which are exercisable on a specified date
(European Style Warrants) and whether automatic exercise (Automatic
Exercise) applies to Warrants;

whether the Warrants are call Warrants (Call Warrants) or put Warrants (Put
Warrants);

(iii) whether the Warrants are corridor Warrants (Corridor Warrants) being

Warrants which allow to obtain a fixed Cash Settlement Amount, specified in the
Final Terms, if the value of the Underlying remains within a range (a corridor)
defined by two Barrier (the Lower Barrier Level and the Upper Barrier Level).
Otherwise, if the value of the Underlying, on any day within the Barrier
Valuation Period, falls below the Lower Barrier Level or above the Upper Barrier
Level, the Corridor Warrants will expire immediately and the Securityholder is
entitled to receive the Corridor Early Amount, specified in the applicable Final
Terms, instead of the Cash Settlement Amount and such Corridor Early Amount
can be equal to zero; and

in the case of Certificates only, whether Remuneration Amount(s) and/or Early
Redemption Amount(s) shall be payable in respect of the Securities.

References in these Conditions, save for the Italian Dematerialised Securities and unless the
context otherwise requires, to Cash Settled Securities shall be deemed to include references to
Physical Delivery Securities which include an option (as set out in the applicable Final Terms)
at the Issuer's election to request cash settlement of such Security and where settlement is to be
by way of cash payment. References in these Conditions, save for the Italian Dematerialised
Securities and unless the context otherwise requires, to Physical Delivery Securities shall be
deemed to include references to Cash Settled Securities which include an option (as set out in
the applicable Final Terms) at the Issuer election to request physical delivery of the relevant
Underlying in settlement of such Security and where settlement is to be by way of Physical
Delivery.
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(B)

©

Securities may, if so specified and provided for in the applicable Final Terms, allow
Securityholders to elect for settlement by way of cash payment or by way of physical delivery
or by such other method of settlement as is specified in the applicable Final Terms. Those
Securities where the holder has elected for cash payment will be Cash Settled Securities and
those Securities where the holder has elected for physical delivery will be Physical Delivery
Securities. The rights of a holder as described in this paragraph may be subject to the Issuer's
right to vary settlement if so indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

Title to Securities other than Registered Securities

For so long as the Securities are represented by a Global Security, each person (other than
Euroclear or Clearstream Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular number of Securities (in
which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg as to the number of Securities standing to the account of any person shall be
conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by
the Issuer, the Security Agents and the Calculation Agent as the holder of such number of
Securities for all purposes (and the expressions Securityholder and holder of Securities and
related expressions shall be construed accordingly).

For so long as any of the Securities are represented by an Italian Dematerialised Securities, the
person who is for the time being shown in the records of Monte Titoli as the holder of a
particular amount of Securities (in which regard any certificate, record or other document
issued by Monte Titoli as to the amount of Securities standing to the account of any person
shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall
(except as otherwise required by applicable law) be treated for all purposes by the Issuer and
all other persons dealing with such person as the holder thereof and as the person entitled to
exercise the rights represented thereby notwithstanding any notice to the contrary (and the
expressions Securityholder and holder of Securities and related expressions shall be
construed accordingly, except where Italian law is applicable, in which case Securityholder
and holder of Securities will be exclusively deemed to be the beneficial owner of the Italian
Dematerialised Securities). The Issuer shall cause Italian Dematerialised Securities to be
dematerialised and centralised with Monte Titoli, pursuant to Italian legislative decree no.
58/1998 as amended and integrated by subsequent implementing provisions.

Title to Registered Certificates

For so long as the Securities are represented by a Global Registered Certificate held on behalf
of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any other relevant Clearing System, as
the case may be, each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any
other relevant Clearing System, as the case may be) who is for the time being shown in the
records of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any other relevant Clearing System,
as the case may be, as the holder of a particular amount of such Certificates (in which regard
any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any
other relevant Clearing System, as the case may be, as to the amount of Certificates standing to
the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of
manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer, the Security Agents and the Calculation Agent as
the holder of such amount of such Certificates for all purposes other than with respect to the
payment of cash settlement amounts, remuneration amounts and/or interest with respect to
such Certificates for which purpose the registered holder (as shown in the register kept at the
principal office of the Registrar (the Register), of the relevant Global Registered Certificate
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(D)

shall be treated by the Issuer, the Security Agents and the Calculation Agent as the holder of
such amount of such Certificates in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant
Global Registered Certificate (and the expressions Securityholder and holder of Securities
and related expressions shall be construed accordingly).

In the case of definitive Registered Certificates, the Issuer shall cause to be kept at the
principal office of the Registrar, a Register on which shall be entered the names and addresses
of all Securityholders, the amount and type of the Certificates held by each Securityholder and
details of all transfers of the Certificates. Each person who is for the time being shown in the
Register as the holder of a particular amount of Certificates shall (except as otherwise required
by law) be treated as the absolute owner of such amount of Certificates for all purposes
(regardless of any notice of ownership, trust, or any interest in it, any writing on it, or its theft
or loss) and no person will be liable for so treating such person (and the expressions
Securityholder and holder of Securities and related expressions shall be construed
accordingly).

Transfers of Securities other than Registered Securities

For so long as the Securities are represented by Definitive Securities, title to the Securities will
pass by delivery.

For so long as the Securities are represented by a Global Security, all transactions (including
transfers of Securities) in the open market or otherwise must be effected through an account at
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, subject to and in accordance with the rules and
procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as the case may be).

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the
context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing
system approved by the Issuer and the Principal Security Agent from time to time and notified
to the Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices).

Any transfer or attempted transfer in or into the United States or to, or for the account or
benefit of, a United States person shall be null and void ab initio and shall vest no rights in the
purported transferee (the Disqualified Transferee) and the last preceding holder that was not
a Disqualified Transferee shall be restored to all rights as a Securityholder thereof retroactively
to the date of transfer of such interest by the relevant Securityholder.

For so long as the Securities are represented by Italian Dematerialised Securities, the
Securities are held in dematerialised form on behalf of the beneficial owners, until redemption
or cancellation thereof, by Monte Titoli for the account of the relevant Monte Titoli account
holders. Italian Dematerialised Securities will at all times be held in book entry form and title
to the Italian Dematerialised Securities will be evidenced by book entries pursuant to the
relevant provisions of Italian legislative decree no. 58/1998, as amended and integrated by
subsequent implementing provisions, and in accordance with CONSOB and Bank of Italy
Joint Regulation dated 13 August 2018, as amended and integrated by subsequent
implementing provisions. The Securityholders may not require physical delivery of the Italian
Dematerialised Securities. However, the Securityholders may ask the relevant intermediaries
for certification pursuant to Article 83-quinquies of Italian legislative decree no. 58/1998, as
amended and integrated by subsequent implementing provisions. Italian Dematerialised
Securities will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and procedures for the time
being of Monte Titoli. In particular, the transfer of the Italian Dematerialised Securities
operates by way of registration in the accounts opened with Monte Titoli by the intermediaries
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(E)

adhering to the clearing system. As a consequence, the subject who from time to time is the
owner of the account held with an intermediary adhering, directly or indirectly, to Monte
Titoli, in which the Italian Dematerialised Securities are credited, is considered as the
legitimate beneficial owner of the Italian Dematerialised Securities and is authorised to
exercise all rights related to them.

Transfers of Registered Securities

Global Registered Securities may be transferred only to a successor clearing organization.
Transfers of beneficial interests in the underlying Registered Certificates represented by a
Global Registered Security will be effected only through the book-entry system maintained by
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any other relevant Clearing System, as the case
may be, and may be effected by such clearing systems or by other participants and, if
appropriate, indirect participants in such clearing systems acting on behalf of beneficial
transferors and transferees of such interests. Title will pass upon registration of the transfer in
the books of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any other relevant Clearing
System, as the case may be.

Title to definitive Registered Certificates will pass upon the registration of transfers in
accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement. A definitive Registered Certificate
may be transferred by the transferor or a person duly authorised on behalf of the transferor
depositing at the specified office of the Registrar a duly completed transfer certificate (a
Transfer Certificate) in the form set out in the Agency Agreement (copies of which are
available from the Registrar) signed by or on behalf of the transferor and upon the Registrar
after due and careful enquiry being satisfied with the documents of title and the identity of the
person making the request and subject to the regulations set out under the Agency Agreement,
the Registrar should enter the name of the transferee in the Register for the definitive
Registered Certificates as the Securityholder of the Registered Certificate specified in the form
of transfer.

Securityholders will not be required to bear the costs and expenses of effecting any registration
of transfer as provided above, except for any costs or expenses of delivery other than by
regular uninsured mail and except that the Issuer may require the payment of a sum
determined by the Calculation Agent sufficient to cover any stamp duty, tax or other
governmental charge that may be imposed in relation to the registration or exchange in the
jurisdiction of the Issuer or in any other jurisdiction where the Registrar's specified office is
located.

Registered Certificates and interests therein may not be transferred at any time, directly or
indirectly, in or into the United States or to or for the benefit of a U.S. person, and any such
transfer shall not be recognised.

Status of the Securities

The Securities constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured obligations of
the Issuer and rank, unless provided otherwise by law, pari passu among themselves and (save
for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) equally with all other unsecured
obligations other than subordinated obligations, if any, of the Issuer from time to time
outstanding.

Certificates that are intended to be eligible for the purposes of the minimum requirement for
own funds and eligible liabilities ("MREL") are subject to certain restrictions which will
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increase in the future — following the full applicability of the relevant provisions arising from
the MREL Requirements.

In particular, in relation to Series of Certificates issued in order to satisfy the MREL
Requirements:

V.

the Securityholders unconditionally and irrevocably waive any right of set-off, netting,
counterclaim, abatement or other similar remedy which they might otherwise have
under the laws of any jurisdiction or otherwise in respect of such Certificates;

claims arising from such Certificates are neither secured, nor subject to a guarantee or
any other arrangement that enhances the seniority of the claims by the Issuer or by other
entities related to the Issuer;

to the extent that the Issuer intends to qualify Series of Certificates as eligible liabilities
in accordance with article 45 ¢ paragraph 2 lett. b) of the BRRD Il and 12c paragraph 2
lett. b) of the SRMR 11, the value of the claim arising from such Series of Certificates in
cases of the insolvency and of the resolution of the Issuer is fixed or increasing, and
does not exceed the initially paid-up amount of Certificates, under all relevant laws and
regulations amended from time to time, which are and will be applicable to the Issuer;

The Securityholders are not entitled to accelerate the payments under the Certificates,
other than in the case of the insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer, under all relevant
laws and regulations amended from time to time, which are and will be applicable to it.
For the avoidance of doubt, resolution proceeding(s) or moratoria imposed by a
resolution authority in respect of the Issuer shall not constitute an event of default for
the Certificates for any purpose and shall not entitle to accelerate the payments under
the Certificates.

for the avoidance of doubt, there is no negative pledge in respect of the Certificates.

3. Definitions

For the purposes of these Conditions, the following definitions will apply. Each of these definitions
may be set as "Applicable” or "Not applicable™ in the relevant Final Terms, as the case may be.

Accumulated Amount means, in relation to one or more Accumulated Valuation Dates, the amount in
the Settlement Currency to be paid to the Securityholders on the relevant Accumulated Payment Date
per each Minimum Exercise Amount pursuant to Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions).

Each Accumulated Amount, in relation to the relevant Accumulated Valuation Date, may be calculated

as follows:

- Accumulated Amount Type A

Accumulating Amount x n

Where:

n

means the total number of Accumulating Events occurred during the relevant

Accumulating Valuation Period.

or
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- Accumulated Amount Type B
Accumulating Amount x (n/ N)
Where:

"n" means the total number of Accumulating Events occurred during the relevant
Accumulating Valuation Period; and

"N" means the total number of days (Business Days or Exchange Business Days or calendar
days as specified in the applicable Final Terms) of the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period
as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.

If an Early Redemption Level is specified as applicable under the relevant Final Terms, and if so
specified in such Final Terms, the Accumulated Amount will be paid only upon occurrence of an Early
Redemption Event. In such case, the Accumulated Amount will be paid on the Accumulated Payment
Date coinciding with, or immediately after, the Early Payment Date in relation to which an Early
Redemption Event has occurred;

Accumulated Payment Date means one or more Business Days, specified in the applicable Final
Terms, on which the Issuer shall pay the Accumulated Amount to the Securityholders.

If the Early Redemption Event is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, and if so specified
in such Final Terms, the Accumulated Amount will be paid only upon occurrence of the Early
Redemption Event. In such case, the Accumulated Amount will be paid on the Accumulated Payment
Date coinciding with, or immediately after, the Early Payment Date in relation to which the Early
Redemption Event has occurred.

If an amount shall be paid on an Accumulated Payment Date, should the valuation date in which the
Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value for the purposes of the calculation of such amount
be postponed (by way of example and without limitation, for the occurrence of a Market Disruption
Event), the relevant Accumulated Payment Date may be postponed accordingly. The Accumulated
Payment Date shall not, in any case, be postponed beyond ten Business Days;

Accumulated Valuation Date means one or more Business Days, specified in the applicable Final
Terms, in which the Calculation Agent determines how many times the relevant Accumulating Event
has occurred during the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period and therefore it determines the amount
of the relevant Accumulated Amount.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies the Accumulating Autocallable Trigger as applicable, in the
Accumulated Valuation Date following the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period, the Calculation
Agent will determine also whether an Early Redemption Event has occurred;

Accumulating Amount means the amount in the Settlement Currency set out in the relevant Final
Terms in relation to the relevant Accumulated Valuation Date and to the relevant Accumulating
Valuation Period;

Accumulating Autocallable Trigger means the amount in the Settlement Currency set out in the
relevant Final Terms in relation to the relevant Accumulated Valuation Date. If on an Accumulated
Valuation Date the Accumulated Amount payable to Securityholders is lower than, equal to or higher
than (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) the relevant Accumulating Autocallable Trigger, such
event will be considered as an Early Redemption Event and, therefore, the Certificates are deemed to be
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early redeemed and the Securityholders are entitled to receive the payment of the relevant Early
Redemption Amount on the relevant Early Payment Date;

Accumulating Event means the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines that the Reference
Value or the Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), as
specified in the relevant Final Terms:

(M if the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has been
equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Accumulating Level on the relevant
Accumulating Valuation Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has
never been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to, higher than
or lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Accumulating Level on
the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period or during the relevant Accumulating Valuation
Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has fallen
within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Accumulating Level and the
relevant Down Range Accumulating Level (included or excluded in the range as specified
in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period or on any
Exchange Business Day of the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has
fallen at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has always
fallen within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified
in the applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range
Accumulating Level and the relevant Down Range Accumulating Level (included or
excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant
Accumulating Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant
Accumulating Valuation Period or during the relevant Accumulating Valuation Period.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Accumulating Event may be determined
in relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case
of Securities linked to a Basket, the Accumulating Event may be determined in relation to the Basket or
to at least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these
cases, the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Accumulating Level (or the Up Range
Accumulating Level and the Down Range Accumulating Level) of each Underlying or Basket
Constituent that will be considered for the purposes of the determination of the Accumulating Event.

Securityholders will be notified of the number of Accumulating Events occurred during the relevant
Accumulating Valuation Period through a notice published on the website of the Issuer
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Accumulating Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or
Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Accumulating
Event in relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Accumulating
Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:
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(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii)  a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Accumulating Event, at least one, any or
all the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Accumulating Level will
be specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Accumulating Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Accumulating Event has occurred. In the event of more
Accumulating Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Accumulating
Valuation Period, the Second Accumulating Valuation Period, or the n-th Accumulating
Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Accumulating Valuation Period or on
one Exchange Business Day of the Accumulating Valuation Period, the provisions set out within
Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Actual Exercise Date, in respect of an American Style Warrant or European Style Warrant, has the
meaning set out under Condition 19 (Exercise rights and procedures (only applicable to Warrants));

Adjusted Price, in relation to Share Securities, is equal to the greater of (i) O (zero) and (ii) the amount
calculated in accordance with the following formula:

AP; = Underlying; — SSD; + SDD;
Where:
"Underlyingi" is the Value of the Underlying on the Exchange Business Day “i”;

"SSDi" or "Sum of Synthetic Dividends" means, in respect of the Exchange Business Day “i”,
the sum of all the Synthetic Dividends for which the Synthetic Ex-Dividend Date falls in the
period commencing on, but excluding, the Dividend Period Start Date and ending on, and
including, the relevant day “i”. Any adjustment for corporate actions would be carried out before
any coupon payment. The adjustments would be carried out on any or all the Underlyings (if
basket), based on the nature of the corporate action;

"SDD;i" or "Sum of Detached Dividends" means, in respect of the Exchange Business Day “i”,
the sum (gross amounts) of all the actual cash or cash equivalent dividends (excluding
extraordinary dividends) for which the Ex-Dividend Date falls in the period commencing on, but
excluding, the Dividend Period Start Date and ending on, and including, the relevant day “i”.

ADR means an American Depositary Receipt which will be specified as the underlying asset or a
Basket Constituent, from time to time in the relevant Final Terms.

Save where specifically provided under the applicable Final Terms, all references in the Conditions or,
as applicable, to the "Shares" shall be deemed to be to the GDRs or ADRs, as applicable, and/or the
underlying shares, references to the issuer of the Share, as applicable, shall be deemed to be to the
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issuer of the GDRs or ADRs, as the case may be, and the issuer of the underlying shares, and references
to the "Exchange" shall be deemed to be to the exchange or quotation system on which the GDRs or
ADRs, as the case may be, are listed and the exchange or quotation system on which the underlying
shares are listed, and with such additional or alternative modifications as the Calculation Agent may
consider necessary or otherwise desirable provided that any such amendment is not materially
prejudicial to the holders of Securities;

Affiliate means in relation to any entity (the First Entity), any entity controlled, directly or indirectly,
by the First Entity, any entity that controls, directly or indirectly, the First Entity or any entity directly
or indirectly under common control with the First Entity. For these purposes control means ownership
of a majority of the voting power of an entity;

Air Bag Factor means the value, which will always be higher than 1, specified in the applicable Final
Terms or determined according to the method of calculation specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Annual Management Feel or AMF1 means, if applied by the Issuer in relation to Benchmark
Certificates, a fee charged to the Securityholders at the particular time "t" which, irrespective of the
performance of the Underlying, will accrue gradually and proportionally to the tenor of the Certificates
and will be determined according to the formula set out below.

The Calculation Agent will deduct the accrued fee from the Cash Settlement Amount pursuant to
Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions). If the Certificates are listed or admitted to trading, their price for
trading purposes will include the AMF1 gradually accrued on each Exchange Business Day.

In particular, the AMF1 will be determined on the basis of the AMF1 Percentage. The AMF1 will be
calculated as follows:

AMF1 Percentage
365.25

AMFlt: er(to.t0+1 t)(loo% -

)

.........

Where:

"x" means each calendar day from ty to t;

"to" means the Issue Date or any calendar day specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"t" can be any calendar day before the Valuation Date or the Valuation Date;

"AMF1 Percentage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

Annual Management Fee2 or AMF2 means, if applied by the Issuer in relation to Benchmark
Certificates, the amount that multiplied by the Initial Reference Value determines a fee charged to the
Securityholders at the particular time "t" which, irrespective of the performance of the Underlying, will
accrue gradually and proportionally to the tenor of the Certificates and that will be determined
according to the formula set out below.

The Calculation Agent will deduct the accrued fee from the Cash Settlement Amount pursuant to
Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions). If the Certificates are listed or admitted to trading, their price for
trading purposes will include the AMF2 gradually accrued on each Exchange Business Day.

In particular, the AMF2 will be determined on the basis of the AMF2 Percentage. The AMF2 will be
calculated as follows:
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360

AMF2, = z AMF?2 Percentage *

xE(tgto+1...t)
Where:

"X" means each calendar day from to to t;

"to" means the Issue Date or any calendar day specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"t" can be any calendar day before the Valuation Date or the Valuation Date;

"AMF2 Percentage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

Annual Margin or AM means, if applied by the Issuer in relation to Benchmark Certificates, the
amount that multiplied by the Initial Reference Value determines a margin added at the particular time
"t" which, irrespective of the performance of the Underlying, will accrue gradually and proportionally
to the tenor of the Certificates and will be determined according to the formula set out below.

The Calculation Agent will add the accrued margin to the Cash Settlement Amount pursuant to
Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions). If the Certificates are listed or admitted to trading, their price for
trading purposes will include the AM gradually accrued on each Exchange Business Day.

In particular, the AM will be determined based on the AM Percentage. The AM will be calculated as
follows:

1
AM; = Z AM Percentage * %
x€E(tg,to+1...t)

Where:

"x" means each calendar day from to to t;

"to" means the Issue Date or any calendar day specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"t" can be any calendar day before the Valuation Date or the Valuation Date;

"AM Percentage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms;
Annual Valuation Period means, in relation to the Internal Return Amount, one or more periods
composed of one or more Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value for the purposes of the
calculation of the Internal Return Amount. In the event of more Annual Valuation Periods, the relevant

Final Terms will indicate the First Annual Valuation Period, the Second Annual Valuation Period,
or the n-th Annual Valuation Period.

Annual Remuneration Payment Date means, in relation to the Internal Return Amount, one or more

Business Days specified in the applicable Final Terms on which the Issuer shall pay the Internal Return
Amount to the Securityholders.
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If an amount shall be paid on an Annual Remuneration Payment Date, should the valuation date in
which the Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value for the purposes of the calculation of such
amount be postponed (by way of example and without limitation, for the occurrence of a Market
Disruption Event), the relevant Annual Remuneration Payment Date may be postponed accordingly.
The Annual Remuneration Payment Date shall not, in any case, be postponed beyond ten Business
Days;

Barrier Event means the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines that the Reference Value
or the Final Reference Value or the Spread or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of
Multiperformance Certificates), as specified in the relevant Final Terms:

(i) if the relevant Barrier Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has been equal
to, higher than or lower than the relevant Barrier Level on the relevant Barrier Valuation
Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Barrier Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has never
been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to, higher than or
lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Barrier Level on the
relevant Barrier Valuation Period or during the relevant Barrier VValuation Period; and/or

(iii) if the relevant Barrier Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has fallen within
or out of a range between the relevant Upper Barrier Level and the relevant Lower Barrier
Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the
relevant Barrier Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Barrier
Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Barrier Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has fallen
at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has always fallen
within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Upper Barrier Level
and the relevant Lower Barrier Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in the
relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Barrier Valuation Period or on any Exchange
Business Day of the relevant Barrier Valuation Period or during the relevant Barrier
Valuation Period.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for more than one Barrier Valuation Period, the applicable Final
Terms will specify if the Barrier Event will occur in at least one, any or all the Barrier Valuation
Periods.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Barrier Event may be determined in
relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case of
Securities linked to a Basket, the Barrier Event may be determined in relation to the Basket or to at least
one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these cases, the
applicable Final Terms will also specify the Barrier Level (or the Upper Barrier Level and the Lower
Barrier Level) of each Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for the purposes of the
determination of the Barrier Event.

If the Barrier Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Barrier Event Determination Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
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Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Barrier Event has occurred. In the event of more Barrier
Event Determination Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Barrier Event
Determination Period, the Second Barrier Event Determination Period, or the n-th Barrier Event
Determination Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Barrier Event Determination Period or
on one Exchange Business Day of the Barrier Event Determination Period, the provisions set out within
Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Barrier Gap Event means, in the case of Gap Certificates and in relation to the Premium Gap Amount,
the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines that, during the Barrier Gap Observation
Period, the Gap Daily Performance, as calculated in accordance with the terms of the relevant Final
Terms, is equal to, higher than or lower than the Barrier Gap Level specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

If the Barrier Gap Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com.

In relation to the calculation of the Premium Gap Amount(s) payable to the Securityholders during the
life of the Gap Certificates, the investor should consider that after the occurrence of the Barrier Gap
Event:

0] the Premium Gap Amount will be determined on the basis of the actual number of days within
the relevant Premium Gap Observation Period and not on the basis of all the days of the relevant
Premium Determination Period; and

(i)  after the payment of the Premium Gap Amount that will be paid on the first Premium Payment
Date following the Barrier Gap Event Date on which a Barrier Gap Event has occurred, no
further Premium Gap Amount will be paid to the Securityholders;

Barrier Gap Event Date means, in the case of Gap Certificates, the Exchange Business Day on which
a Barrier Gap Event has occurred,;

Barrier Gap Leverage means, in the case of Gap Certificates, the value expressed as a percentage
indicated in the relevant Final Terms;

Barrier Gap Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or
Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Barrier Gap Event
in relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Barrier Gap Observation
Period.
Such value(s) may be set as:

(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or

(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or

(iii)  a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Barrier Gap Event, at least one, any or all
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the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Barrier Gap Level will be
specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent.

Barrier Gap Observation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days or the Specific Period indicated in the relevant Final Terms on which the Calculation
Agent determines if the relevant Barrier Gap Event has occurred. In the event of more Barrier Gap
Observation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Barrier Gap Observation
Period, the Second Barrier Gap Observation Period, or the n-th Barrier Gap Observation Period.

In relation to the Intraday Value, in the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on an
Exchange Business Day of the Barrier Gap Observation Period, the provisions set out within Condition
15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Barrier Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or Basket
Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Barrier Event in relation
to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Barrier Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:
(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii)  a predetermined value; or
(iv) apercentage of the Strike; or

(v)  apercentage of the highest or the lowest (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) Reference
Value registered during the Barrier Selection Period.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Barrier Event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Barrier Level will be specified
for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Barrier Selection Period means, when the Barrier Level is determined as specified at point (iv) of the
definition of "Barrier Level", one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business Days
or the Specific Period, as indicated in the relevant Final Terms, on which the Calculation Agent
determines the highest or the lowest Reference Value (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) of the
Underlying in order to determine the Barrier Level. In the event of more Barrier Selection Periods, the
relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Barrier Selection Period, the Second Barrier Selection
Period, or the n-th Barrier Selection Period.

Barrier Valuation Period means, in relation to Corridor Warrants, one or more periods composed of
one or more Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms,
in which the Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Barrier Event has occurred. In the event of
more Barrier Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Barrier Valuation
Period, the Second Barrier Valuation Period, or the n-th Barrier Valuation Period;

Base Premium Percentage means the value expressed as a percentage specified from time to time in
the relevant Final Terms;

Basket means a portfolio composed of two or more financial assets comprised in the same basket. A
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Basket may represent the Underlying of the Securities or it may constitute a Basket Constituent of
another Basket (the Underlying of the Securities), as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Basket Constituent means, in relation to each Series, each financial asset specified as such in the
relevant Final Terms;

Basket Constituent Weight means, in respect of each Basket Constituent, the value specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

Basket Value means the value of the Basket calculated by the Calculation Agent in order to determine
the Initial Reference Value, the Reference Value and Final Reference Value.

In relation to all the values determined as specified below, only the changes published by the Issuer
with a notice on its website www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com shall be taken into account.

In particular, at any time, the Basket Value is equal to the sum of the single Values of the Basket
Constituents at such time, divided by the single Values of the Basket Constituents at time "0", and
multiplied by the relevant Basket Constituent Weight of each Basket Constituent comprised in the same
Basket, in accordance with one of the following formulas:

ct ;
a) Basket, = }Llc—ﬁ x Wt
0

Where:
"Basket," is the Basket Value at time "t", as specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"t" means the date(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Ci" is the Value of the Basket Constituent "i" at time "t", as specified in the applicable Final
Terms or, if the relevant Final Terms provide for a Local CAP!:

y
1 . S
Ci = 5 xz Min [ C§ x Local CAP}; Cf]

r=1
Where:

"Local CAPL" is the percentage applied to the Basket Constituent "i" at time "r",
specified in the relevant Final Terms, for each Basket Constituent "i";

"CL" is the Value of the Basket Constituent "i" at time "r", as specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"y" is the number of Valuation Dates and/or the number of the dates of the relevant
valuation period, if applicable, specified as such in the relevant Final Terms;

"Ch" is the Value of the Basket Constituent "i" at time "0", which is the date(s) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"W is the Basket Constituent Weight of each Basket Constituent; and

"n" is the number of the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

87



b) Basket, = ¥, Min(Cap; ; g—g) x Wi

Where:
"Basket," is the Basket Value at time "t", as specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"t" means the date(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Capi" is the maximum performance of the Basket Constituent "i", specified in the applicable
Final Terms for each Basket Constituent;

"Ci" is the Value of the Basket Constituent "i", at time "t", as specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Ci" is the Value of the Basket Constituent "i* at time "0", which is the date(s) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"W is the Basket Constituent Weight of each Basket Constituent; and
"n" is the number of the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

In the case of Securities linked to a Basket of Baskets, the value of the Basket Constituent(s) will also
be determined according to the above formulas;

Best Of Feature means the determination method that may be specified as applicable in the relevant
Final Terms. If the Best Of Feature applies, the Calculation Agent will select the Best Of Underlying to
determine:

(i)  the relevant Remuneration Amount and/or the occurrence of the event that triggers such
Remuneration Amount; and/or

(i)  the Early Redemption Amount and/or the occurrence of the Early Redemption Event; and/or

(iii)  the Settlement Amount and/or the occurrence of any event(s) on which depends the calculation
of such Settlement Amount; and/or

(iv)  the occurrence of the Barrier Event or any other event or effect.

In addition, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Best Of Feature may apply in relation to any
or all the relevant valuation periods;

Best Of Underlying means, in the case of Best Of Feature, the Underlying with the first, second or
third (and so on, depending on the number of the underlying assets) best Performance of the Underlying
in respect of the Performance of the other Underlying(s), determined pursuant to the formula set out in
the applicable Final Terms. In the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will indicate if it will take into
account the Underlying with the first best Performance (in such case this will be named Best Of
Underlying), the second best Performance (in such case this will be named Second Best Of
Underlying) or the third best Performance (in such case this will be named Third Best Of
Underlying) or the n-th best Performance, determined pursuant to the formula set out in the applicable
Final Terms. Upon determination of the Best Of Underlying, the Issuer will inform the Securityholders
pursuant to Condition 9 (Notices);
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Bonus Observation Date means, in relation to Multiple Strike Certificates, each date specified in the
applicable Final Terms on which the Bonus; is determined for the purposes of the calculation of the
Cumulated Bonus Amount.

For the avoidance of doubt, any Bonus Observation Date may not occur before the Issue Date;

Bonus Payment Date means, in relation to Multiple Strike Certificates, one or more Business Days
specified in the applicable Final Terms on which the Issuer shall pay the Cumulated Bonus Amount to
the Securityholders.

If an amount shall be paid on a Bonus Payment Date, should the valuation date in which the Calculation
Agent determines the Reference Value for the purposes of the calculation of such amount be postponed
(by way of example and without limitation, for the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event), the
relevant Bonus Payment Date may be postponed accordingly. The Bonus Payment Date shall not, in
any case, be postponed beyond ten Business Days;

BRRD means Directive 2014/59/EU of the Parliament and of the Council of the European Union
establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms, as
amended or replaced from time to time;

Buffer Event means, in relation to Buffer Protection Certificates, the event occurring when the
Calculation Agent determines that, in the Buffer Valuation Period, the Performance Sum is lower than,
equal to or higher than the Buffer Percentage, as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Buffer Percentage means in relation to Buffer Protection Certificates, the value expressed as a
percentage specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Buffer Valuation Period means, in relation to Buffer Protection Certificates, the period composed of
one or more Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the relevant Final Terms, in
which the Calculation Agent determines if the Buffer Event has occurred. In the event of more Buffer
Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Buffer Valuation Period, the
Second Buffer Valuation Period, or the n-th Buffer Valuation Period,;

Business Day means

(1)  where the securities are represented by a Global Security or a Global Registered Security, a
day on which the T2 System is open and Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg are open for
business;

(2)  where the Securities are Italian Dematerialised Securities, a day on which the T2 System is
open and Monte Titoli is open for business.

In the event that one or more dates specified in the applicable Final Terms do not fall on a Business
Day, such dates shall shift to a Business Day in accordance with the Business Day Convention;

Business Day Convention means the convention specified in the relevant Final Terms;
Butterfly Level means, in relation to Reverse Butterfly Certificates, the value specified in the
applicable Final Terms. The Butterfly Level is represented by a percentage of the Initial Reference

Value or by a predetermined value;

Calculation Agent means Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. or such other calculation agent specified in the
applicable Final Terms;
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Calculation Entity means, in the case of Certificates on Interest Rates, the entity responsible for the
calculation and publication of the Interest Rate that will be indicated from time to time in the relevant
Final Terms;

Calendar Performance means, in the case of Calendar Certificates, the performance of each
Underlying or Basket Constituent determined by the Calculation Agent according to the following
formula:

Max {Calendar Floor Percentage; Min [Calendar Cap Percentage; (RVy - RVy) / RV, 1}
Where:

"RVy" means the Reference Value of the Underlying at time “y” specified in the relevant Final
terms;

"RV«" means the Reference Value of Underlying at time “x” specified in the relevant Final
terms;

"Calendar Cap Percentage” means the value expressed as a percentage specified from time
to time in the relevant Final Terms. The Calendar Cap Percentage will always be equal to or
higher than 0 per cent;

"Calendar Floor Percentage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified from time
to time in the relevant Final Terms. The Calendar Floor Percentage will always be equal to or
lower than O per cent;

Call Exercise Date means the Exchange Business Day on which the Certificates are exercised and
redeemed by the Issuer, following the exercise of the Call Option. If the Call Valuation Period is
applicable, the Call Exercise Date coincides with the last Exchange Business Day of the relevant Call
Valuation Period or with the Call Valuation Period, if it is composed by one Exchange Business Day. If
the Call Valuation Period is specified as ‘not applicable’, the Call Exercise Date is the date specified in
the applicable Final Terms;

Call Notice Period means the date(s) — indicated in the applicable Final Terms — by which the Issuer
shall notify, in accordance with Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures (only applicable to
Certificates)) below, the intention to exercise the Call Option in the relevant Call Exercise Date;

Call Option means, if the Call Option is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, the option
to redeem the Certificates which can be irrevocably exercised by the Issuer during the Call Notice
Period specified in the applicable Final Terms pursuant to Condition 21 (Exercise rights and
procedures (only applicable to Certificates)) below. Following the exercise of the Call Option, the
Certificates will be exercised and the Securityholders will be entitled to receive the Cash Settlement
Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Call Valuation Period means, in relation to the Call Option and if specified as applicable in the
relevant Final Terms, one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business Days or the
Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, on which the Calculation Agent determines
the Reference Value or, in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B Short
Constant Leverage Certificates, respectively, the Payout Value Long or the Payout Value Short. In the
event of more Call Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Call Valuation
Period, the Second Call Valuation Period, or the n-th Call VValuation Period.
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If the applicable payout formula of the Cash Settlement Amount includes the Final Reference Value, if
the Call Option is exercised by the Issuer, the Reference Value determined by the Calculation Agent in
the relevant Call Valuation Period will be considered as Final Reference Value.

If the applicable payout formula of the Cash Settlement Amount does not include the Final Reference
Value (and the Typology is different from Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B
Short Constant Leverage Certificates), the Call Valuation Period will be specified as ‘not applicable’ in
the relevant Final Terms.

The Call Valuation Period, if applicable, may only begin after the Call Notice Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on a Call Valuation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Call Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition 15(1)
(Market Disruption Event) will apply;

CAP means either the Cap Amount, the Cap Percentage, the Cap Barrier Amount, the Cap Level, the
Performance Cap, the Calendar Cap Percentage, the Early Cap Percentage, the Cap Consolidation
Amount, or the Cap Down Amount as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Cap Amount means the amount indicated as such in the relevant Final Terms;
Cap Barrier Amount means the amount indicated as such in the relevant Final Terms;

Cap Consolidation Amount means the amount that may be considered, if indicated in the relevant
Final Terms, for the purpose of the calculation of the Cash Settlement Amount of Max Consolidation
Long Cap Certificates;

Cap Down Amount means the amount that may be considered, if indicated in the relevant Final Terms,
for the purpose of the calculation of the Cash Settlement Amount of Twin Win Certificates when the
Final Reference Value is lower than the Initial Reference Value multiplied by the Strike Percentage;

Cap Level means one or more values specified in the relevant Final Terms, expressed as either (i) the
product between the Cap Percentage and the Initial Reference Value, or (ii) a value predetermined by
the Issuer, specified in the relevant Final Terms. If more values are provided, the applicable Final
Terms will also specify the relevant details;

Cap Percentage means the value expressed as a percentage indicated in the relevant Final Terms;

Cap Style 1 means in relation to a Cap Level and if the Restrike Feature is indicated as applicable in
the relevant Final Terms, the calculation method pursuant to which, if the Restrike Event has occurred,
the Cap Level will be determined in accordance with the Restrike Percentage;

Cap Style 2 means in relation to a Cap Level and if the Restrike Feature is indicated as applicable in
the relevant Final Terms, the calculation method pursuant to which, if the Restrike Event has occurred,
the Cap Level will not be taken into consideration for the purposes of the Cash Settlement Amount;

Cash Settled Securities means Securities that entitle their holders to receive from the Issuer on the
Settlement Date the Cash Settlement Amount, if it results in an amount higher than zero;

Cash Settlement Amount means, in relation to a Cash Settled Securities, the amount in the Settlement
Currency which the Securityholder is entitled to receive on the Settlement Date in relation to each
Security, as determined by the Calculation Agent pursuant to the provisions under the section
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"Settlement Amount™ of Condition 23 (Pay out provisions). The Cash Settlement Amount shall be
rounded to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Settlement Currency, half of any such sub-unit being
rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention. Securities exercised or
redeemed, as the case may be, at the same time by the same Securityholder will be aggregated for the
purpose of determining the aggregate Cash Settlement Amount payable;

Cash Settlement Amount Combo Feature means, in relation to Certificates linked to more
Underlyings or to a Basket, that the Calculation Agent will determine, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms, the Cash Settlement Amount as either (i) the arithmetic mean of the Cash Settlement
Amounts due in relation to each single Underlying or each single Basket Constituent or (ii) the
weighted average of the Cash Settlement Amounts due in relation to each single Underlying or each
single Basket Constituent or (iii) the sum of the Cash Settlement Amounts due in relation to each single
Underlying or each single Basket Constituent. If the Cash Settlement Amount Combo Feature applies,
the relevant Final Terms will specify for each single Underlying or each single Basket Constituent the
relevant payout formula among those set out in Condition 23 and all the relevant details for its
determination (e.g. Barrier Level, Multiplier, Initial Reference Value, Final Reference Value, etc.);

Clearing System shall mean Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or such other clearing system as
may be specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Click-on Effect means the feature that may be specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms if the
Worst Of Feature and the Early Redemption Event are applicable.

In such case, the Calculation Agent will determine, as specified below, the Underlying(s) that will be
considered for the purpose of the determination of the Worst of Underlying in relation to:

(i)  the relevant Remuneration Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms and/or the
occurrence of the event that triggers such Remuneration Amount; and/or

(if)  the Early Redemption Amount and/or the occurrence of the Early Redemption Event; and/or

(iii)  the Settlement Amount and/or the occurrence of any event(s) on which depends the calculation
of such Settlement Amount; and/or

(iv)  the occurrence of the Barrier Event or any other event or effect.

In relation to each Underlying, the Click-on Effect will occur if the Calculation Agent determines that,
on at least one Click-on Valuation Period, the Value of the Underlying has been equal to or higher than
the relevant Click-on Level, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

After the occurrence of the Click-on Effect in relation to one or more Underlyings, the Underlying(s)
that will be considered for the purpose of the determination of the Worst of Underlying, will be only the
one(s) for which the Click-on Effect has not been occurred in all the Click-on Valuation Periods.

If the Click-on Effect occurs for any Underlying, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice
published on the website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com.

If the Click-on Effect occurs for all the Underlyings, the Certificates will be early redeemed;
Click-on Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or Basket

Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Click-on Effect in relation
to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Click-on Valuation Period.
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Such value(s) may be set as:
(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii)  a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Click-on Effect, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Click-on Level will be
specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Click-on Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business
Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent
determines if the relevant Click-on Effect has occurred. In the event of more Click-on Valuation
Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Click-on Valuation Period, the Second
Click-on Valuation Period, or the n-th Click-on Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on a Click-on Valuation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Click-on Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition 15(1)
(Market Disruption Event) will apply.

For the avoidance of doubt, the beginning of any Click-on Valuation Period may not occur before the
Issue Date;

Cliquet Feature means the method for changing the Digital Level and the Participation Remuneration
Level on, respectively, any Digital Valuation Period and Participation Remuneration Event Valuation
Period, as specified by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms, pursuant to which the Digital Level and
the Participation Remuneration Level will be changed, either automatically or upon occurrence of the
condition(s) specified from time to time in the applicable Final Terms. Such method may indicate:

(i) in relation to each Cliquet Valuation Period, the relevant Reference Value or Spread or
Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), for the determination
of the applicable Digital Level or the applicable Participation Remuneration Level; and/or

(i)  different percentage(s) to be applied to the Initial Reference Value and/or Reference Value(s)
or Spread or Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates) for the
determination of the applicable Digital Level or the applicable Participation Remuneration
Level, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Moreover, in relation to each different Digital Level the Issuer will also specify the related applicable
Digital Amount.

The Securityholders will be informed of the update of the Digital Level and the Participation
Remuneration Level in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices);

Cliquet Valuation Period means, if the Cliquet Feature is applicable, one or more periods composed
of one or more Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final
Terms, in which the Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value or the Spread or the Cumulated
Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates). In the event of more Cliquet Valuation
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Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Cliquet Valuation Period, the Second
Cliguet Valuation Period, or the n-th Cliquet Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Cliquet Valuation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Cliquet Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition 15(1)
(Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Combined Amount means, in relation to Combined Amount Certificates, the amount equal to the
product of the Multiplier of the Underlying specified in the applicable Final Terms and the relevant
Final Reference Value, which may differ from the Underlying used to determine the occurrence of the
Barrier Event and/or from the Underlying used to the determine the Cash Settlement Amount;

Combined Securities means the type of Securities which is a combination of two or more of the
following types, as specified from time to time in the relevant Final Terms: Index Securities, Share
Securities, Exchange Rate Securities, Futures Contract Securities, Govies Securities, Fund Securities,
Interest Rate Securities and Commodity Securities;

Commodity means, in relation to each Series, either as single or as a Basket Constituent, the
commodity indicated as Underlying in the relevant Final Terms;

Commodity Securities means Securities that have as Underlying one or more specified Commodities
or one or more Baskets of Commodities;

Consolidation Effect means the feature that may be specified as applicable in relation to the Digital
Amount and the Participation Remuneration Amount if there are several Digital Valuation Periods or
several Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Periods.

The Consolidation Effect will occur if the Calculation Agent determines that the Reference Value or the
Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), as specified in
the relevant Final Terms:

0] is equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Consolidation Level on the relevant
Consolidation Valuation Period; and/or

(i)  has been, at least once during the relevant Consolidation Valuation Period, equal to, higher
than or lower than the relevant Consolidation Level; and/or

(iii)  has never been equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Consolidation Level during the
relevant Consolidation Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) has fallen at least once or has never fallen within or out of a range between the relevant Up
Range Consolidation Level and the relevant Down Range Consolidation Level (included or
excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on/during the relevant
Consolidation Valuation Period.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Consolidation Effect may be determined
in relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case
of Securities linked to a Basket, the Consolidation Effect may be determined in relation to the Basket or
to at least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these
cases, the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Consolidation Level (or the Up Range
Consolidation Level and the Down Range Consolidation Level) of each Underlying or Basket
Constituent that will be considered for the purposes of the determination of the Consolidation Effect.
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If the Consolidation Effect occurs, the Digital Event/Participation Remuneration Event will
automatically occur without further determinations for all the Digital Valuation Periods/Participation
Remuneration Event Valuation Periods following such Consolidation Valuation Period and, therefore,
the Securityholders will receive all the relevant Digital Amounts/Participation Remuneration Amounts
(if positive).

If the Consolidation Effect occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on
the website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Consolidation Floor Event means the event that may be specified as applicable in relation to Max
Long Certificates and Max Short Certificates, occurring if the Calculation Agent determines that the
Reference Value or the Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance
Certificates), as specified in the relevant Final Terms:

() if the relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has
been equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Consolidation Floor Level on the
relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days,
(1) has never been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to,
higher than or lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified
in the applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Consolidation
Floor Level on the relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation Period or during the relevant
Consolidation Floor Valuation Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has
fallen within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Consolidation Floor Level
and the relevant Down Range Consolidation Floor Level (included or excluded in the range
as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation
Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation
Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days,
(1) has fallen at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has
always fallen within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as
specified in the applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Up
Range Consolidation Floor Level and the relevant Down Range Consolidation Floor Level
(included or excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant
Consolidation Floor Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant
Consolidation Floor Valuation Period or during the relevant Consolidation Floor Valuation
Period.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for more than one Consolidation Floor Valuation Period, the
applicable Final Terms will specify if the Consolidation Floor Event will occur in at least one, any or all
the Consolidation Floor Valuation Periods.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Consolidation Floor Event may be
determined in relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms. In case of Securities linked to a Basket, the Consolidation Floor Event may be determined in
relation to the Basket or to at least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms. In these cases, the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Consolidation Floor Level
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(or the Up Range Consolidation Floor Level and the Down Range Consolidation Floor Level) of each
Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for the purposes of the determination of the
Consolidation Floor Event.

Upon the occurrence of the Consolidation Floor Event, the Cash Settlement Amount of the Max Long
Certificates and Max Short Certificates, will be determined in accordance with a calculation method
different from the calculation method applicable if the Consolidation Floor Event does not occur, as
detailed in Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions).

If the Consolidation Floor Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published
on the website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Consolidation Floor Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more
Underlyings or Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the
Consolidation Floor Event in relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant
Consolidation Floor Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:
(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii)  a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Consolidation Floor Event, at least one,
any or all the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Consolidation
Floor Level will be specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Consolidation Floor Level in relation to the occurrence of the
Consolidation Floor Event may be different to the Consolidation Floor Level set for the purposes of the
calculation of the Cash Settlement Amount (if so specified in the applicable Final Terms);

Consolidation Floor Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more
Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Consolidation Floor Event has occurred. In the event of
more Consolidation Floor Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First
Consolidation Floor Valuation Period, the Second Consolidation Floor Valuation Period, or the n-
th Consolidation Floor Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Consolidation Floor Valuation Period
or on one Exchange Business Day of the Consolidation Floor Valuation Period, the provisions set out
within Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Consolidation Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or
Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Consolidation
Effect in relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Consolidation
Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:
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(iv) a percentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(v)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(vi) apredetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Consolidation Effect, at least one, any or
all the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Consolidation Level will
be specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Consolidation Participation Factor means the value expressed as a percentage indicated in the
applicable Final Terms;

Consolidation Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Consolidation Effect has occurred. In the event of more
Consolidation Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Consolidation
Valuation Period, the Second Consolidation Valuation Period, or the n-th Consolidation Valuation
Period.

The applicable Final Terms may provide for different Underlyings in relation to each Consolidation
Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Consolidation Valuation Period or on
one Exchange Business Day of the Consolidation Valuation Period, the provisions set out within
Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply.

For the avoidance of doubt, the beginning of any Consolidation Valuation Period may not occur before
the Issue Date;

Constant Leverage Factor or K means, in relation to Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and
Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the fixed leverage factor which applies to the Underlying,
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Conversion Rate means, in relation to Dual Currency FX Certificates, the rate specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

Converted Certificates means, in relation to Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates and Constant
Leverage Certificates, if Reverse Split is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, the
amended Certificates after the application of the Reverse Split calculated by dividing the number of
Pre-Conversion Certificates by the Reverse Split Ratio;

Corridor Early Amount means, in relation to Corridor Warrants, the amount specified in the relevant
Final Terms to be paid to the Securityholder on the Corridor Early Payment Date per each Minimum
Exercise Amount if a Barrier Event has occurred. The Corridor Early Amount could be also equal to
zero;

Corridor Early Payment Date means, in relation to Corridor Warrants, the date specified in the

applicable Final Terms. In the event that the Corridor Early Amount is set equal to zero, the Corridor
Early Payment Date will be specified as not applicable in the relevant Final Terms;
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Coupon Determination Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Coupon Event has occurred. In the event of more Coupon
Determination Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Coupon Determination
Period, the Second Coupon Determination Period, or the n-th Coupon Determination Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Coupon Determination Period or on
one Exchange Business Day of the Coupon Determination Period, the provisions set out within
Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply.

For the avoidance of doubt, the beginning of any Coupon Determination Period may not occur before
the Issue Date;

Coupon Event means the event occurring when the Calculation Agent determines that, during the
relevant Coupon Determination Period, the Reference Value of one or more Underlying(s), or the
Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates) is equal to, higher
than or lower than the relevant Coupon Level, as specified in the relevant Final Terms.

The occurrence of the Coupon Event will determine the amount of the Digital Amounts, if applicable,
and/or of the Early Redemption Amounts, if applicable, payable during the life of the Certificates.

Therefore, if on the Coupon Valuation Date, the Calculation Agent determines that the Coupon Event
has occurred, the Digital Amounts and/or the Early Redemption Amounts will be determined on the
basis of the Coupon Premium 1. Conversely, if on the Coupon Valuation Date, the Calculation Agent
determines that the Coupon Event has not occurred, the Digital Amounts and/or the Early Redemption
Amounts will be determined on the basis of the Coupon Premium 2;

Coupon Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or Basket
Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Coupon Event in relation
to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Coupon Determination Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:
(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii) a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Coupon Event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Coupon Level will be specified
for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Coupon Premium 1 means the amount in the Settlement Currency set out in the relevant Final Terms
that, if the Coupon Event has occurred, will be used for the determination of the amount of the Digital
Amounts, if applicable, and/or of the Early Redemption Amounts, if applicable, payable during the life
of the Certificates;

Coupon Premium 2 means the amount in the Settlement Currency set out in the relevant Final Terms
that, if the Coupon Event has not occurred, will be used for the determination of the amount of the
Digital Amounts, if applicable, and/or of the Early Redemption Amounts, if applicable, payable during
the life of the Certificates;
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Coupon Valuation Date means the Exchange Business Day, specified in the applicable Final Terms,
on which the Calculation Agent determines if the Coupon Event has occurred during the Coupon
Determination Period and therefore if the Digital Amounts, if applicable, and/or of the Early
Redemption Amounts, if applicable, payable during the life of the Certificates will be determined on the
basis of the Coupon Premium 1 or on the basis of the Coupon Premium 2;

Cross Currency Rate or XCCY means, in relation to Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and
Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the cross currency rate specified in the applicable Final
Terms and available on the source specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Cumulated Bonus Amount means, in relation to Multiple Strike Certificates, the amount that will be
determined as specified under Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions);

Cumulated Performance means, in relation to the Multiperformance Long/Short Certificates and the
Multiperformance Max Long/Short Certificates, the sum of the performances of each Underlying
calculated as follows:

Final Reference Value;

e Initial Reference Value; -
i=

Where:
"Final Reference Valuei" means the Final Reference Value of Underlying "i"

"Initial Reference Valuei" means the Initial Reference Value of Underlying "i"

n" means the number of the Underlyings;

Darwin Feature means the determination method that may be specified as applicable in the relevant
Final Terms in relation to the occurrence of an event and/or the determination of an amount to be paid.

If the Darwin Feature applies, the applicable Final Terms will specify in relation to each valuation
period of each event and/or in relation to each amount to be paid (Remuneration Amount and/or the
Settlement Amount and/or the Early Redemption Amount), the Underlying value to be considered (i.e.
Best of Underlying, Worst of Underlying, Basket Value or as otherwise specified in the applicable Final
Terms).

In the same way, if the Darwin Feature applies, the applicable Final Terms will specify the
determination method of the Reference Value to be considered for the occurrence of the Barrier Event
(by way of example, Worst Of Underlying) and the determination method of the Initial Reference
Value and the Final Reference Value to be considered for the calculation of the Settlement Amount,
that can be different from the method used for the determination of the occurrence of the Barrier Event;

Day Count Fraction or DCF means, in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, Type B Long Constant
Leverage Certificates, Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates and to the calculation of Premium
Gap Amounts:

— inrelation to Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B Short Constant Leverage
Certificates, the actual number of calendar days between "t" (being any Exchange Business Day
from and including the Determination Date to and including the Valuation Date) and "t-1"
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(being the Exchange Business Day prior to "t"), divided by the number specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

— if"ACT/360" is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, the actual number of days
in the relevant Floating Amount Determination Period or Settlement Determination Period or
Premium Gap Observation Period, respectively, divided by 360;

— if "Actual/Actual” is specified as applicable, means:

(i) in relation to the calculation of the Premium Gap Amounts, the actual number of days in
the relevant Premium Gap Observation Period divided by the number of days comprised
in the relevant Premium Determination Period,;

(ii) in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, the actual number of days in the Floating Amount
Determination Period, or Settlement Determination Period divided by number of days
comprised in the relevant Floating Amount Determination Period, or Settlement
Determination Period;

— if "30/360" is specified as applicable, means the number of days in the Premium Gap
Observation Period or Floating Amount Determination Period, or Settlement Determination
Period, calculated as follows:

[360 x (Y —Y1)] + [30 x (My — Mq)] + (D2 — Dy)
360

Day Count Fraction =

Where:

"Y1" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Premium Gap
Observation Period, Floating Amount Determination Period or Settlement Determination
Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day
of the Premium Gap Observation Period, Floating Amount Determination Period or Settlement
Determination Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Premium Gap
Observation Period, Floating Amount Determination Period or Settlement Determination
Period falls;

"M_y" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Premium Gap Observation Period, Floating Amount Determination Period
or Settlement Determination Period falls;

"D1" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Premium Gap Observation Period,
Floating Amount Determination Period or Settlement Determination Period, unless such
number is 31, in which case D1 will be 30;

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included
in the Premium Gap Observation Period, Floating Amount Determination Period or Settlement
Determination Period, unless such number would be 31 and D; is greater than 29, in which
case D, will be 30;

Deliverable Asset means, in case of Physical Delivery Securities, the quantity of the Relevant Asset
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capable of being delivered, which constitutes part or all of the Entitlement, as determined in accordance
with the applicable Final Terms;

Delivery Date means, in the case of an offer of Securities and if applicable, the Business Day that may
be specified in the relevant Final Terms and on which the Securities are delivered to the Securityholder.
Delivery shall mean the relevant accounting evidence of such Securities in the securities depository
account or such other account of the relevant investor (as indicated by the investor in the relevant
subscription module) or of the relevant Manager;

Determination Date means one or more Exchange Business Days on which the Value of the
Underlying(s) is registered for the purpose of the calculation of the Initial Reference Value (pursuant to
the terms set out in the definition of Initial Reference Value), as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Digital Amount means, upon occurrence of the relevant Digital Event in relation to the relevant Digital
Valuation Period, the amount in the Settlement Currency to be paid to the Securityholder on the
relevant Digital Payment Date per each Minimum Exercise Amount pursuant to Condition 23 (Pay-out
provisions).

If the Multiple Level Option is applicable, the relevant Final Terms will specify the Digital Amount 1
and the Digital Amount 2, and so on, which will be respectively linked to the Digital Level 1, the
Digital Level 2 and so on. In this case, the holders of the Securities will be entitled to receive the
Digital Amount relating to the higher Digital Level reached by the Reference Value.

If the Cliquet Feature is applicable, in relation to each different Digital Level, the Issuer will also
specify the related applicable Digital Amount;

Digital Combo Feature means, in relation to Certificates linked to a Basket or to more Underlyings
that are not a Basket, the feature in relation to the calculation of a Digital Amount, pursuant to which
the Calculation Agent will determine if the relevant Digital Event has occurred (and eventually will
determine the Consolidation Level, the Memory Level, the Knock-out Level and the Knock-in Level) in
the Digital Valuation Period(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation to each Basket
Constituent or each Underlying. Therefore, the Digital Amount payable will be either, as specified in
the applicable Final Terms, (i) the arithmetic mean of the Digital Amounts due in relation to each single
Basket Constituent or each single Underlying for which the relevant Digital Event has occurred, or (ii)
the weighted average of the Digital Amounts due in relation to each single Basket Constituent or each
single Underlying for which the relevant Digital Event has occurred, or (iii) the sum of the Digital
Amounts due in relation to each single Basket Constituent or each single Underlying for which the
relevant Digital Event has occurred. If the Digital Combo Feature applies, the applicable Final Terms
will specify for each single Basket Constituent or each single Underlying the relevant Digital Level;

Digital Event means the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines that the Reference Value
or the Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), as
specified in the relevant Final Terms:

(i) if the relevant Digital Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has been equal
to, higher than or lower than the relevant Digital Level on the relevant Digital Valuation
Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Digital Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has never

been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to, higher than or
lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
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applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Digital Level on the
relevant Digital Valuation Period or during the relevant Digital VValuation Period; and/or

(iii) if the relevant Digital Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has fallen within
or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Digital Level and the relevant Down
Range Digital Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final
Terms) on the relevant Digital Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the
relevant Digital Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Digital Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has fallen
at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has always fallen
within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Digital
Level and the relevant Down Range Digital Level (included or excluded in the range as
specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Digital Valuation Period or on any
Exchange Business Day of the relevant Digital Valuation Period or during the relevant
Digital Valuation Period.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Digital Event may be determined in
relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case of
Securities linked to a Basket, the Digital Event may be determined in relation to the Basket or to at least
one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these cases, the
applicable Final Terms will also specify the Digital Level (or the Up Range Digital Level and the Down
Range Digital Level, or, if Multiple Level Option is applicable, the Digital Level 1, the Digital Level 2
and so on) of each Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for the purposes of the
determination of the Digital Event.

If a Digital Event occurs, the Securityholders are entitled to receive the payment of the relevant Digital
Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If the Digital Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Digital Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or Basket
Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Digital Event in relation to
the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Digital Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:

(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or

(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or

(iii)  a predetermined value.
The Digital Level may be identical for all the Digital VValuation Periods or it may differ for each Digital
Valuation Period, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. If there are more Digital Levels, the Issuer
will indicate in the relevant Final Terms: (i) the First Digital Level, the Second Digital Level and so on,
in relation to the relevant Digital Valuation Period, and/or, if Multiple Level Option is applicable, (ii)

the Digital Level 1, the Digital Level 2, and so on, in relation to the same Digital Valuation Period.

In the case of Cliquet Feature, the applicable Final Terms will specify the method for changing the
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Digital Level in relation to one or more Digital Valuation Periods.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Digital Event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Digital Level will be specified
for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Digital Payment Date means one or more Business Days specified in the applicable Final Terms on
which the Issuer shall pay the relevant Digital Amount to the Securityholders.

If an amount shall be paid on a Digital Payment Date (i.e. Digital Amount or Extra Consolidation
Digital Amount), should the valuation date in which the Calculation Agent determines the Reference
Value for the purposes of the calculation of such amount be postponed (by way of example and without
limitation, for the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event), the relevant Digital Payment Date may be
postponed accordingly. The Digital Payment Date shall not, in any case, be postponed beyond ten
Business Days;

Digital Percentage means, in relation to the Digital Certificates, the value expressed as a percentage
specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Digital Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business
Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent
determines if the relevant Digital Event has occurred. In the event of more Digital Valuation Periods,
the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Digital Valuation Period, the Second Digital
Valuation Period, or the n-th Digital Valuation Period.

The applicable Final Terms may provide for different Underlyings in relation to each Digital Valuation
Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Digital Valuation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Digital Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition 15(1)
(Market Disruption Event) will apply.

For the avoidance of doubt, the beginning of any Digital Valuation Period may not occur before the
Issue Date;

Disrupted Day means any Exchange Business Day on which a Market Disruption Event has occurred,;

Dividend Period Start Date means, in respect of a Share, the date specified as such in the relevant
Final Terms;

Dividend Publication means, in respect of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B
Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the source specified in the relevant Final Terms that may be,
without limitation, the website or other media or electronic page where the dividend related to the
Underlying is published;

Down Participation Factor means the value expressed as a percentage indicated in the applicable
Final Terms;

Down Range Level means one or more values that may be specified in the applicable Final Terms that
determines the occurrence of: (i) the Accumulating Event (the "Down Range Accumulating Level");
or (ii) the Consolidation Effect (the "Down Range Consolidation Level"); or (iii) the Consolidation
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Floor Event (the "Down Range Consolidation Floor Level"); or (iv) the Digital Event (the "Down
Range Digital Level"); or (v) the Knock-in Event (the "Down Range Knock-in Level"); or (vi) the
Knock-out Event (the "Down Range Knock-out Level"); or (vii) the Memory Effect (the "Down
Range Memory Level"); or (viii) the Participation Remuneration Event (the "Down Range
Participation Remuneration Level"); or (ix) the Early Redemption Event (the "Down Range Early
Redemption Level™); or (x) the Switch Event (the "Down Range Switch Level"); or (xi) the Multiple
Strike Event; (the "Down Range Multiple Strike Leveli"); or (xii) the Participation Rebate Event (the
"Down Range Participation Rebate Level™). The Down Range Level is represented by a percentage
of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value or as a value expressed as a percentage or
by a predetermined value. If there are more Underlyings, the applicable Final Terms will specify the
relevant Down Range Level for each Underlying;

Dropdown Protection Amount means, in relation to Short Dropdown Protection Certificates, the
amount (always higher than 0) specified from time to time in the relevant Final Terms;

Dropdown Protection Level means, in relation to Long Dropdown Protection Certificates, the value
(always higher than 0) specified from time to time in the relevant Final Terms. The Dropdown
Protection Level is represented by a percentage of the Initial Reference Value, or as a value expressed
as a percentage, or by a predetermined value;

Dynamic Protection Level means, in relation to Dynamic Protection Certificates, the value specified
from time to time in the relevant Final Terms. The Dynamic Protection Level is represented by a
percentage of the Initial Reference Value or by a predetermined value;

Dual Currency means the currency specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Early Partial Capital Payment Amount means the amount paid to the Securityholder for each
Minimum Exercise Amount on the relevant Early Partial Capital Payment Date;

Early Partial Capital Payment Date means one or more Business Days specified in the applicable
Final Terms on which the Issuer shall pay the relevant Early Partial Capital Payment Amount to the
Securityholder;

Early Participation Factor means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant Final
Terms;

Early Payment Date means one or more Business Days specified in the applicable Final Terms on
which the Issuer shall pay the Early Redemption Amount to the Securityholders.

If an amount shall be paid on an Early Payment Date, should the valuation date in which the
Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value for the purposes of the calculation of such amount
be postponed (by way of example and without limitation, for the occurrence of a Market Disruption
Event), the relevant Early Payment Date may be postponed accordingly. The Early Payment Date shall
not, in any case, be postponed beyond ten Business Days;

Early Redemption Amount means, upon occurrence of the Early Redemption Event in the relevant
Early Redemption Valuation Period, (i) in relation to Certificates, the amount in the Settlement
Currency to be paid to the Securityholder on the relevant Early Payment Date per each Minimum
Exercise Amount pursuant to Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions); (ii) in relation to Turbo Certificates,
an amount that will be equal to 0 (zero); (iii) in relation to Warrants (only applicable to Warrants to be
admitted to listing and/or trading without prior offer), an amount that will be equal to 0 (zero).

The Early Redemption Amount may be the amount specified in the applicable Final Terms or may be
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an amount determined on the basis of the performance of the Underlying specified in the applicable
Final Terms, in accordance with one of the calculation methods of the Early Redemption Amount
described in Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions).

If the Early Redemption Amount is an amount determined on the basis of the performance of the
Underlying specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Early Redemption Amount may be, as indicated
in the relevant Final Terms, "Long Early Redemption Amount" or "Long Cap Early Redemption
Amount” or "Short Early Redemption Amount" or "Short Cap Early Redemption Amount";

Early Redemption Event means the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines that the
Reference Value or the Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance
Certificates), as specified from time to time in the relevant Final Terms:

() if the relevant Early Redemption Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has
been equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Early Redemption Level on the
relevant Early Redemption Valuation Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Early Redemption Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1)
has never been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to, higher
than or lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Early Redemption Level
on the relevant Early Redemption Valuation Period or during the relevant Early
Redemption Valuation Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Early Redemption Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has
fallen within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Early Redemption Level and
the relevant Down Range Early Redemption Level (included or excluded in the range as
specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Early Redemption Valuation Period
or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Early Redemption Valuation Period,;
and/or

(iv) if the relevant Early Redemption Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1)
has fallen at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has
always fallen within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as
specified in the applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Up
Range Early Redemption Level and the relevant Down Range Early Redemption Level
(included or excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant
Early Redemption Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant
Early Redemption Valuation Period or during the relevant Early Redemption Valuation
Period.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Early Redemption Event may be
determined in relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms. In case of Securities linked to a Basket, the Early Redemption Event may be determined in
relation to the Basket or to at least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms. In these cases, the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Early Redemption Level
(or the Up Range Early Redemption Level and the Down Range Early Redemption Level) of each
Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for the purposes of the determination of the
Early Redemption Event.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for one or more Accumulating Autocallable Trigger, an Early
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Redemption Event occurs if, on the Accumulated Valuation Date, the Calculation Agent determines
that the relevant Accumulated Amount payable to the Securityholders is lower than, equal to or higher
than, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Accumulating Autocallable Trigger.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for the Tarn Amount, an Early Redemption Event occurs if, on a
Participation Performance Period, the Calculation Agent determines that the Remuneration Sum
exceeds the Tarn Amount.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for the Magnet Feature, an Early Redemption Event occurs if the
Magnet Worst Of Performance is equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Magnet Performance,
as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If the Early Redemption Event occurs, the Securities are deemed to be early redeemed on either (i) the
last Exchange Business Day of the Early Redemption Valuation Period on which the Early Redemption
Event has occurred, or (ii) if the Intraday Value is applicable and in any case in relation to Turbo
Certificates, the Exchange Business Day on which the Early Redemption Event occurred. In such case,
the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the website of the Issuer
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Early Redemption Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings
or Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Early
Redemption Event in relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Early
Redemption Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:
(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii) a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Early Redemption Event, at least one, any
or all the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Early Redemption
Level will be specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent.

In relation to Turbo Certificates, the Early Redemption Level is equal to the Strike Price;

Early Redemption Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Early Redemption Event has occurred. In the event of
more Early Redemption Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Early
Redemption Valuation Period, the Second Early Redemption Valuation Period, or the n-th Early
Redemption Valuation Period.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for one or more Accumulating Autocallable Trigger, the
Calculation Agent will determine if the relevant Early Redemption Event has occurred on the relevant
Accumulated Valuation Date specified in the applicable Final Terms (i.e. the Early Redemption
Valuation Period will coincide with the Accumulated Valuation Date).

If the applicable Final Terms provide for the Tarn Amount, the Calculation Agent will determine if the
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relevant Early Redemption Event has occurred on the relevant Participation Performance Period
specified in the applicable Final Terms (i.e. the Early Redemption Valuation Period will coincide with
the Participation Performance Period).

If the applicable Final Terms provide for the Click-on Effect, in relation to the first Early Redemption
Valuation Period, all the Underlyings will be considered for the purpose of the determination of the
Worst Of Underlying.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Early Redemption Valuation Period or
on one Exchange Business Day of the Early Redemption Valuation Period, the provisions set out within
Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply.

For the avoidance of doubt, the beginning of any Early Redemption Valuation Period may not occur
before the Issue Date;

Electronic Page means, in respect of an Underlying or a Basket Constituent, the electronic page or
source specified for such Underlying or Basket Constituent in the applicable Final Terms, or either (i)
any successor electronic page or source or information vendor or provider that has been designated by
the sponsor of the original electronic page or source; or (ii) if such sponsor has not officially designated
a successor electronic page or source or information vendor or provider, the successor electronic page
or source or information vendor or provider designated by the relevant information vendor or provider
(if different from such sponsor) or any alternative electronic page or source designated by the
Calculation Agent, provided that, if, in the case of (i) and (ii), the Calculation Agent determines that it
is not necessary or appropriate for the Electronic Page to be any such successor electronic page or
source or information vendor or provider, then the Electronic Page may be either the originally
designated electronic page or source or such other electronic page or source as selected by the
Calculation Agent. Where more than one Electronic Page is specified in respect of an Underlying or a
Basket Constituent, then the provisions of the preceding sentence shall be construed accordingly and (i)
if there is any discrepancy between any relevant price or level displayed on the relevant Electronic
Pages for any Exchange Business Day, the relevant price or level selected by the Calculation Agent
shall be used for such Exchange Business Day; and (ii) if any relevant price or level is not published on
all of such Electronic Pages but is published on one or more of such Electronic Pages, the Calculation
Agent shall use such published price or level for the purpose of determining any calculation or
determination in respect of the Certificates and no Market Disruption Event shall be deemed to have
occurred in respect of the failure to publish on the other Electronic Page(s);

Entitlement means, in relation to Physical Delivery Securities (only applicable in case of Share
Securities and Govies Securities), (i) the Deliverable Asset and, if any, (ii) the Residual Amount, which
a Securityholder is entitled to receive on the Settlement Date, as provided in Condition 19 (Exercise
rights and procedures (only applicable to Warrants)) and in Condition 21 (Exercise rights and
procedures (only applicable to Certificates)). The Entitlement will be equal to the value specified in the
applicable Final Terms or will be determined by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the method
of calculation specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Ex-Dividend Date means, in respect of a Share, the date on which such Share has commenced trading
ex — dividend on the Exchange of such Share specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Exchange means each reference exchange or quotation system, on which the Underlying, the Reference
Underlying or related components are principally listed and traded, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms, any successor to such exchange or quotation system or any substitute exchange or quotation
system to which trading in the securities/commodities comprising such Underlying or Reference
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Underlying has temporarily relocated (provided that the Calculation Agent has determined that there is
comparable liquidity relative to the securities or commaodities comprising such Underlying or Reference
Underlying on such temporary substitute exchange or quotation system as on the original Exchange);

Exchange Business Day means, in relation to:

(A)

(B)

©)

(D)

(E)

©)

(H)

Share Securities, Commodity Securities, Exchange Rate Securities:

any day (i) which is considered an exchange business day by the Reference Source, provided
that on that day such Reference Source is open for trading, except for the days on which
trading sessions close earlier than the regular closing hours and (ii) on which the Reference
Source is open for trading during the regular trading hours;

Index Securities:

the day on which (i) the Index Sponsor determines and publishes the Index level and/or (ii) the
Exchange is open for trading during the regular trading hours;

Futures Contract Securities:

any day on which the Futures Contract is regularly listed on the Reference Source. If on such a
day a Market Disruption Event occurs, such day will not be considered as Exchange Business
Day;

Fund Securities:

(i) in the case of unlisted Funds: any day on which the Net Asset Value of each Fund is (or
would have been if a Market Disruption Event had not occurred) determined and/or
published by the Management Company or the Fund Manager; and

(ii) in the case of listed Funds: any day on which the price relating to each Fund is (or would
have been if a Market Disruption Event had not occurred) regularly determined and
published by the relevant Reference Source;

Interest Rate Securities:

any day on which the Interest Rate is determined and/or published by the relevant Calculation
Entity;

Govies Securities:

any day (i) which is considered an exchange business day by the Reference Source, provided
that on that day such Reference Source is open for trading, except for the days on which
trading sessions close earlier than the regular closing hours and (ii) on which the Reference
Source is open for trading during the regular trading hours; and, only in the case of Govies
Securities linked to the Yield of Government Bond, (iii) on which the information source
specified in the applicable Final Terms publishes the value of such yield(s);

if the Underlyings are Baskets:

the day which is an Exchange Business Day for all the relevant Basket Constituents or, in case
of Baskets of Baskets, the day which is an Exchange Business Day for all the relevant
financial assets composing each of the Baskets representing the Baskets Constituent;
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In the event that one or more dates specified in the applicable Final Terms do not fall on an Exchange
Business Day, such dates shall shift to an Exchange Business Day in accordance with the convention
specified in the relevant Final Terms (the Exchange Business Day Convention), provided however
that, if such new Exchange Business Day is already a date relevant for the fixing of the Value of the
Underlying, the date originally specified shall shift again to an Exchange Business Day which is not a
date relevant for the fixing of the Value of the Underlying.

In the case of a Basket, or in the case of Best Of Feature and Worst Of Feature, if one or more dates
specified in the applicable Final Terms do not fall on an Exchange Business Day for one or more
Basket Constituents or for one or more Underlyings such dates will be postponed to (i) the immediately
following or previous day (as specified in the relevant Final Terms from time to time) which is an
Exchange Business Day for all the Basket Constituents or for all the Underlyings or (ii) (a) for each
Basket Constituent or for each Underlying in relation to which such date is not an Exchange Business
Day, the immediately following or previous day (as specified in the relevant Final Terms from time to
time) which is an Exchange Business Day and (b) for all the Basket Constituents or for all the
Underlyings in relation to which such date is an Exchange Business Day, the date originally scheduled;

Exchange Rate means either:

() in case of Exchange Rate Securities, the exchange rate between currencies
constituting the Underlying (as single or as a Basket Constituent) of the Securities if
specified in the relevant Final Terms; or

(i) in relation to Non Quanto Securities in general with reference to the relevant
Underlying, the exchange rate on a given date between the Underlying Reference
Currency and the Settlement Currency (expressed as a number of units or portion of
the Underlying Reference Currency necessary to purchase a unit in the Settlement
Currency), determined by the Calculation Agent for the purpose of the determination
of the Cash Settlement Amount or Early Redemption Amounts or Remuneration
Amounts or Corridor Early Amounts or Early Partial Capital Payment and the
relevant events. The Calculation Agent will determine the Exchange Rate by making
reference to the exchange rate (fixing) between the Underlying Reference Currency
and the Settlement Currency determined by the information source specified in the
applicable Final Terms or, if the exchange rate is not published or announced at the
relevant time on such information source, either (i) the successor or alternative
information source or (ii) the determination method to be carried out by the
Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion, in each case as specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

Exchange Rate Securities means Securities that have as Underlying one or more specified Exchange
Rates or one or more Baskets of Exchange Rates;

Exchange Rate Weights means in relation to Currency Certificates the weight for each exchange rate
Underlying expressed as a percentage, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Exercise Business Day means, in respect of Warrants:
(a) in the case of Cash Settled Securities, a day that is a Business Day;

(b) in the case of Physical Delivery Securities, a day that is a Business Day and an Exchange Business
Day;
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Exercise Date means the Business Day on which the Securities are exercised, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms. In the case of Physical Delivery Securities, the Exercise Date will be a day
which is both a Business Day and an Exchange Business Day;

Exercise Price means, in relation to Call Covered Warrants and Put Covered Warrants the amount or
the value specified as such in the applicable Final Terms or determined in the Exchange Business
Day(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Extra Consolidation Digital Amount means, in relation to one or more Extra Consolidation Digital
Valuation Periods, the amount(s) in the Settlement Currency to be paid to the Securityholders on the
relevant Digital Payment Date (or the other date specified in the relevant Final Terms) per each
Minimum Exercise Amount, if an Extra Consolidation Digital Event has occurred:;

Extra Consolidation Digital Event means, in relation to an Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation
Period, the event occurring if:

(a) prior to the relevant Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation Period, a Consolidation Effect has
occurred; and

(b) the Calculation Agent determines that in the relevant Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation
Period, the Reference Value or the Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of
Multiperformance Certificates) is lower than, equal to or higher than the relevant Extra
Consolidation Digital Level or, in relation to Securities with more than one Underlying, the
Reference Value of each Underlying has been on at least one Extra Consolidation Digital
Valuation Period, equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Extra Consolidation Digital
Level, as indicated in the relevant Final Terms.

In that case the Securityholders are entitled to receive the payment of the relevant Extra Consolidation
Digital Amount specified in the relevant Final Terms in connection to such Extra Consolidation Digital
Valuation Period.

If the Extra Consolidation Digital Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice
published on the website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Extra Consolidation Digital Feature means, if the Consolidation Effect is specified as applicable, the
feature pursuant to which the Extra Consolidation Digital Amount potentially payable in case of Extra
Consolidation Digital Event, after the occurrence of a Consolidation Effect, will be eventually due and
payable to the Securityholders;

Extra Consolidation Digital Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more
Underlyings or Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the
Extra Consolidation Digital Event in relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the
relevant Extra Consolidation Digital VValuation Period.
Such value(s) may be set as:

(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or

(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or

(iii)  a predetermined value.

110


http://www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com/

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Extra Consolidation Digital Event, at least
one, any or all the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Extra
Consolidation Digital Level will be specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more
Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Extra Consolidation Digital Event has occurred. In the
event of more Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the
First Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation Period, the Second Extra Consolidation Digital
Valuation Period, or the n-th Extra Consolidation Digital VValuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation
Period or on one Exchange Business Day of the Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation Period, the
provisions set out within Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply.

For the avoidance of doubt, the beginning of any Extra Consolidation Digital Valuation Period may not
occur before the Issue Date;

Final Gearing means, in relation to Dynamic Protection Certificates, the percentage equal to the
Gearing multiplied by the number of Gearing Events occurred during the life of the Certificates;

Final Leverage means, in relation to Dropdown Protection Certificates, the value determined according
to one of the following formulas:

(i) Incase of Long Dropdown Protection Certificates:

Final Leverage = Initial Leverage — (Adjust Factor x Negative Performance)
(i) In case of Short Dropdown Protection Certificates:

Final Leverage = Initial Leverage — (Adjust Factor x Positive Performance)
Where:

"Initial Leverage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Adjust Factor" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Negative Performance™ means the performance of the Underlying, determined according to the
following formula and always represented by a positive value:

Max [0; 1 — (Final Reference Value / Initial Reference Value)]

"Positive Performance" means the performance of the Underlying, determined according to the
following formula:

Max [0; (Final Reference Value / Initial Reference Value) — 1]

Final Notional Amount means, in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, the amount specified as such in
the applicable Final Terms;
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Final Reference Value or FRV means the value or the values calculated by the Calculation Agent
pursuant to the following provisions, in accordance with the relevant Final Terms.

In relation to each Underlying, or Basket, or Basket Constituent and the related Final Reference Value
determined as specified below, only the changes published by the Issuer with a notice on its website
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com shall be taken into account.

If the Underlying is one or more financial asset(s) (and not a Basket):

(A)

(B)

©)

(D)

(E)

the Value of the Underlying (or, in case of more than one Underlying, the Value of any or
all Underlying(s) as specified in the applicable Final Terms) on the Valuation Date or on
the Specific Period, determined by the Calculation Agent, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms; or

the arithmetic mean or a percentage of such arithmetic mean of the Values of the
Underlying (or, in case of more than one Underlying, the arithmetic mean or a percentage
of such arithmetic mean of the Values of each Underlying or of the Underlying(s)
specified in the applicable Final Terms) on the Valuation Dates or on the Specific
Periods, ascertained by the Calculation Agent, respectively, on the last Valuation Date or
on the last of such Specific Periods, as specified in the relevant Final Terms, and
determined pursuant to the following formula:

X
1
FRV = Final Arithmetic Percentage X (; X Z Underlying;)
j=1

Where:

"Final Arithmetic Percentage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in
the applicable Final Terms (if not specified, the Final Arithmetic Percentage will be equal
to 100%);

X" is the number of Valuation Dates or Specific Periods specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms;

"Underlying;" is the Value of the Underlying as determined on the Valuation Date "j" or
on the Specific Period "j", as specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

the minimum or maximum Value as specified in the applicable Final Terms (or, in case
of more than one Underlying, the maximum or minimum Value of the Underlying(s)
specified in the applicable Final Terms) recorded in relation to the Underlying during one
or more Final Reference Value Determination Period(s) ascertained by the Calculation
Agent on the Valuation Date(s) or on the Specific Period(s), as specified in the applicable
Final Terms; or

in case of Exchange Rate Securities and if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, the
Final Reference Value may be equal to the quotient of (a) 1 (as numerator) and (b) the
Value calculated pursuant to (A), (B) or (C) above (as denominator); or

when the Underlying is represented by a Futures Contract and if the Futures Contract N-
th Near-by Feature and Rolling are specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms,
the Value of the Futures Contract N-th Near-by on the Valuation Date (only applicable
when the Valuation Date is set as a single date); or
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(F)

in case of Share Securities and if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, either:
(i) the Adjusted Price on the Valuation Date or on the Specific Period; or

(ii) the arithmetic mean of the Adjusted Price on the Valuation Dates or on the Specific
Periods, ascertained by the Calculation Agent, respectively, on the last Valuation
Date or on the last of such Specific Periods, specified in the relevant Final Terms,
and determined pursuant to the following formula:

X
1
FRV == x ZAPj
X
=1

Where:

"x" is the number of Valuation Dates or Specific Periods specified as such in the
relevant Final Terms;

"AP;" is the Adjusted Price of the Underlying(s) as determined on the Valuation
Date "j" or on the Specific Period "j", as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If the Underlying is a Basket:

(A)

(B)

©)

D)

the Basket Value on the Valuation Date or on the Specific Period, as ascertained by the
Calculation Agent, as specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

the arithmetic mean of the Basket Values on the Valuation Dates or on the Specific
Periods indicated in the applicable Final Terms, as ascertained by the Calculation Agent,
and determined pursuant to the following formula:

X

1
FRV = ; X z Basketj
j=1

Where:

"x" is the number of Valuation Dates or Specific Periods specified as such in the relevant
Final Terms; and

"Basketj" is the Basket Value calculated on the Valuation Date "j" or on the Specific
Period "j", as specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

the minimum or maximum Basket Value (as specified in the applicable Final Terms)
recorded in relation to the Basket during one or more Final Reference Value
Determination Period(s), ascertained by the Calculation Agent on the Valuation Date or
on the Specific Period, as set out in the relevant Final Terms; or

the Value of one or more or each Basket Constituent (as specified in the applicable Final
Terms) on the Valuation Date or on the Specific Period.

If the Call Option/Put Option is exercised by the lIssuer/the Securityholder, the Reference Value
determined by the Calculation Agent in the related Call Valuation Period/Put Valuation Period will be
considered as Final Reference Value, if applicable.
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For the avoidance of doubt, the Final Reference Value may also be set as 'Not applicable' in the
relevant Final Terms;

Final Reference Value Determination Period means one or more periods composed of one or more
Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Floating Amount(s) means, in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, the amount(s) in the Settlement
Currency to be paid, if positive, to the Securityholder on the Floating Amount Payment Date per each
Minimum Exercise Amount pursuant to Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions).

Floating Amount Determination Date means, in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, each date
specified in the applicable Final Terms on which the relevant Floating Amount is determined in relation
to the relevant Floating Amount Determination Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Floating Amount Determination Date,
the provisions set out within Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Floating Amount Determination Period means, in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, one or more
periods specified in the applicable Final Terms related to each Floating Amount. In the event of more
Floating Amount Determination Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Floating
Amount Determination Period, the Second Floating Amount Determination Period, or the n-th
Floating Amount Determination Period;

Floating Amount Payment Date means, in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, one or more Business
Days specified in the applicable Final Terms on which the Issuer shall pay the Floating Amount to the
Securityholders.

If an amount shall be paid on a Floating Amount Payment Date, should the valuation date in which the
Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value for the purposes of the calculation of such amount
be postponed (by way of example and without limitation, for the occurrence of a Market Disruption
Event), the relevant Floating Amount Payment Date may be postponed accordingly. The Floating
Amount Payment Date shall not, in any case, be postponed beyond ten Business Days;

Floor Percentage means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms.
The Floor Percentage will always be equal to or higher than 0 per cent.;

Fund means, in respect of each Series, the fund specified in the relevant Final Terms as Underlying.
The Fund may be either unlisted or listed (e.g. Exchange Traded Funds - ETF) and will be either a
UCITS fund within the meaning of Directive 2009/65/EC or an investment fund authorised by the
Central Bank of Ireland or by the competent Authority of another State deemed equivalent by Euronext
Dublin. In case of Fund Securities that are intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to
any retail investor, the Fund may not be exclusively reserved for qualified investors and prohibited to
retail investors;

Fund Manager means the Management Company (as defined below), the director, the manager or
other entity which is responsible for publishing the Net Asset Value on behalf of the Management
Company, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Fund Securities means Securities that have as Underlying one or more specified Funds or one or more
Baskets of Funds. Under this Base Prospectus, Fund Securities whose Underlying is one or more Funds
investing in cryptocurrencies or other digital assets have an Issue Price at least equal to EUR 100,000
(or, in case of an Issue Currency different from Euro, nearly equivalent to EUR 100,000) and are not
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intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise
made available to any retail investor;

Futures Contract means either as single or as a Basket Constituent, the future contract specified as
Underlying in the relevant Final Terms. In the case of Futures Contract Securities, the lifetime of such
instruments will reflect the lifetime of the related underlying futures. However, if the Futures Contract
N-th Near-by Feature is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, the Issuer will be entitled to
determine the Initial Reference Value and/or, if the feature Rolling is also specified as applicable in the
relevant Final Terms, the Reference Value in relation to any valuation period during the lifetime of the
Certificates and/or the Final Reference Value on the basis of a Futures Contract N-th Near-by. In such
case, the applicable Final Terms will specify the relevant N-th Near-by Initial Date and/or only the
relevant Rollover Date(s);

Futures Contract N-th Near-by means, if the Futures Contract N-th Near-by Feature is specified as
applicable, the n-th futures contract that has the same features of the Futures Contract indicated as
Underlying.

The relevant Final Terms will specify:

() the ordinal number of the Futures Contract N-th Near-by to be used for the determination of
the Initial Reference Value and/or the Reference Value and/or the Final Reference Value; and

(i) if the Initial Reference Value of the Underlying will be determined on the basis of a Futures
Contract N-th Near-by. In such case, the Futures Contract N-th Near-by will be the n-th futures
contract that has an expiration date which is the closest (but beyond) to the Determination
Date; and/or

(iii) if Rolling is also specified as applicable. In such case, the Reference Value and/or the Final
Reference Value will be determined on the basis of the Futures Contract N-th Near-by that will
be the n-th futures contract with an expiration date which is the closest (but beyond) to any
valuation period/date during the lifetime of the Certificates and/or to the Valuation Date.

When the Futures Contract N-th Near-by replaces the Futures Contract, the applicable Final Terms will
specify the relevant N-th Near-by Initial Date and/or the relevant Rollover Date(s) only. On the N-th
Near-by Initial Date and/or the Rollover Dates, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice
published on the website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Futures Contract N-th Near-by Feature means, if specified as applicable and when the Underlying is
represented by a Futures Contract, the feature pursuant to which the Calculation Agent will be entitled
to determine, as specified in the applicable Final Terms:

(i) if the Initial Reference Value will be determined on the basis of a Futures Contract N-th Near-
by; and/or

(i) if Rolling is also specified as applicable. In such case, the Reference Value in relation to any
valuation period during the lifetime of the Certificates and/or the Final Reference Value will be

determined on the basis of a Futures Contract N-th Near-by;

Futures Contract Securities means Securities that have as Underlying one or more specified Futures
Contracts or one or more Baskets of Futures Contracts;
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Gap Daily Performance means, in the case of Gap Certificates, the daily performance of the relevant
Underlying as determined by the Calculation Agent on each day of the Barrier Gap Observation Period,
as follows:

RV,
RV_4

Gap Daily Performance, =

Where:
"RV¢" means the Reference Value determined on the Exchange Business Day "t";
"RV:-1" means the Reference Value determined on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";

GDR means a Global Depositary Receipt which will be specified as the underlying asset or a Basket
Constituent, from time to time in the relevant Final Terms.

Save where specifically provided under the applicable Final Terms, all references in the Conditions or,
as applicable, to the "Shares" shall be deemed to be to the GDRs or ADRs, as applicable, and/or the
underlying shares, references to the issuer of the Share, as applicable, shall be deemed to be to the
issuer of the GDRs or ADRs, as the case may be, and the issuer of the underlying shares, and references
to the "Exchange" shall be deemed to be to the exchange or quotation system on which the GDRs or
ADRs, as the case may be, are listed and the exchange or quotation system on which the underlying
shares are listed, and with such additional or alternative modifications as the Calculation Agent may
consider necessary or otherwise desirable provided that any such amendment is not materially
prejudicial to the holders of Securities;

Gearing means, in relation to Dynamic Protection Certificates, the value expressed as a percentage
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Gearing Event means the event occurring when the Reference Value is lower than, equal to or higher
than, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Gearing Level;

Gearing Factor means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Gearing Level means, in relation to Dynamic Protection Certificates, one or more values specified in
the applicable Final Terms as a percentage of the Initial Reference Value or by a predetermined value;

Global Performance means, in relation to the Global Performance Certificates, the sum or the
average/mean, as specified in the relevant Final Terms, of the performances of the relevant Underlying
as determined, in respect of any Performance Observation Date, by the Calculation Agent as follows:

RV; — (RVx Global Strike Percentage,)
RV;

n
Z Max [Local Floor Percentage,; < ) x Participation Factor]
t=1

Or, if the relevant Final Terms provide a Cap Level:

RV, — (RVx GlobalStrike Percentage,)
RV,

n
Z Min {CAPt; Max[Local Floor Percentage; ; <

t=1

> x Partecipation Factort]}

Where:

"n" means the number of the Performance Observation Dates;
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"RV+t" means the Reference Value calculated on the Performance Observation Date "t" specified in
the relevant Final Terms;

"RVs" means the Reference Value calculated on the Performance Observation Date "s" specified in
the relevant Final Terms;

"Participation Factor:" means the Participation Factor corresponding to the relevant Participation
Observation Date "t" specified in the relevant Final Terms;

"CAP¢" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant Final Terms in relation
to the relevant Participation Observation Date "t";

"Global Strike Percentaget" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant
Final Terms in relation to the relevant Participation Observation Date "t"; and

"Local Floor Percentaget" means the value expressed as a percentage, specified in the relevant
Final Terms, in relation to the relevant Participation Observation Date "t". Such percentage may
also be negative;

Government Bond means, either as single or as a Basket Constituent, a bond issued by a national
government of an OECD member country or by an international public organisation established by (or
mainly represented by) OECD member countries, listed on a liquid regulated market (for the purposes
of Directive 2014/65/EU as amended) or multilateral trading facility, that may constitute the
Underlying of Govies Securities from time to time and as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Govies Securities means Securities that have as Underlying one or more specified Government Bonds
or one or more Baskets of Government Bonds or the Yield of Government Bond or the yield of one or
more Baskets of Government Bonds. For avoidance of any doubt, in case of Physical Delivery
Securities, only Government Bonds that are (i) settled through the Clearing System(s) and (ii) listed on
stock exchanges that are regulated markets, can be physically settled. In such case, in relation to govies
listed on stock exchanges in EU countries, regulated markets are those markets which fall within the
definition of Art. 4(1) 21 of Directive 2014/65/EU, in relation to govies listed on stock exchanges in
non-EU countries, regulated markets are those markets regulated by a local financial regulator or
monetary authority or institute, in accordance with the law applicable under the relevant jurisdiction;

In-The-Money means:

(@ in the case of a Warrant which is a Cash Settled Security, the Cash Settlement Amount in
respect of such Warrant is greater than zero; and

(b) inthe case of a Warrant which is a Physical Delivery Security, the value of the Entitlement on
the Actual Exercise Date for such Warrant is greater than the Premium as determined by the
Calculation Agent;

Index means, either as single or as a Basket Constituent, the Italian or foreign indices constituting the
Underlying from time to time and as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Index Leverage Factor means, in relation to Type A Constant Leverage Certificates, the fixed
leverage factor which applies to the Reference Underlying, specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Index Securities means Securities that have as Underlying one or more specified Indexes or one or
more Baskets of Indexes, provided that any of such Indexes will not be composed by the Issuer or by
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any legal entity belonging to the same group or by a legal entity or a natural person acting in association
with, or on behalf of, the Issuer. Under this Base Prospectus, Index Securities whose Underlying is one
or more Indices composed by cryptocurrencies or other digital assets have an Issue Price at least equal
to EUR 100,000 (or, in case of an Issue Currency different from Euro, nearly equivalent to EUR
100,000) and are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor;

Index Sponsor means, in relation to an Index, the corporation or other entity that (a) is responsible for
setting and reviewing the rules and procedures and the methods of calculation and adjustments, if any,
related to such Index and (b) announces (directly or through an agent) the level of such Index on a
regular basis during each Exchange Business Day, which as of the Issue Date is the index sponsor
specified for such Index in the applicable Final Terms.

Indicative Price means, in relation to Warrants, the price of the Warrants as admitted to
listing/negotiations specified in the applicable Final Terms and determined on the basis of the market
parameters registered on a date around the Issue Date specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Initial Gearing means, in relation to Dynamic Protection Certificates, the value expressed as a
percentage specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Initial Percentage means the value or the values expressed as a percentage indicated in the relevant
Final Terms;

Initial Reference Value or IRV means, as specified in the relevant Final Terms:

I the predetermined value or values (or, in case of more than one Underlying, the predetermined
value or values of the Underlying(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms) indicated in the
applicable Final Terms; or

Il.  without prejudice to the adjustments set out in the Terms and Conditions, the value or values
calculated by the Calculation Agent pursuant to the following provisions, in accordance with
the relevant Final Terms.

In relation to each Underlying, or Basket, or Basket Constituent and the related Initial Reference Value
determined as specified below, only the changes published by the Issuer with a notice on its website
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com shall be taken into account.

If the Underlying is one or more financial asset(s) (and not a Basket):

(A)  the Value of the Underlying (or, in case of more than one Underlying, the Value of any
or all Underlying(s) as specified in the applicable Final Terms) on the Determination
Date or on the Specific Period, determined by the Calculation Agent, as specified in
the applicable Final Terms; or

(B)  the arithmetic mean or a percentage of such arithmetic mean of the Values of the
Underlying (or, in case of more than one Underlying, the arithmetic mean or a
percentage of such arithmetic mean of the Values of each Underlying or of the
Underlying(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms) on the Determination Dates or
on the Specific Periods, ascertained by the Calculation Agent, respectively, on the last
Determination Date or on the last of such Specific Periods, as specified in the relevant
Final Terms, and determined pursuant to the following formula:
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(©)

(D)

(E)

(F

0]

X
1
IRV = Initial Arithmetic Percentage X (; X Z Underlying,)
t=1

Where:

"Initial Arithmetic Percentage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified
in the applicable Final Terms (if not specified, the Initial Arithmetic Percentage will be
equal to 100%);

"x" is the number of Determination Dates or Specific Periods specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms;

"Underlying:" is the Value of the Underlying as determined on the Determination Date
"t" or on the Specific Period "t", as specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

the minimum or maximum Value as specified in the applicable Final Terms (or, in
case of more than one Underlying, the maximum or minimum Value of the
Underlying(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms) recorded in relation to the
Underlying during one or more Initial Reference Value Determination Period(s)
ascertained by the Calculation Agent on the Determination Date(s) or on the Specific
Period(s), as specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

in case of Exchange Rate Securities and if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, the
Initial Reference Value may be equal to the quotient of () 1 (as humerator) and (b) the
Value calculated pursuant to (A), (B) or (C) above (as denominator); or

when the Underlying is represented by a Futures Contract and the Futures Contract N-
th Near-by Feature is specified as applicable, if in the relevant Final Terms is specified
that the Initial Reference Value will be determined on the basis of the Futures Contract
N-th Near-by, the Value of such Futures Contract N-th Near-by on the Determination
Date (only applicable when the Determination Date is set as a single date); or

in case of Share Securities and if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, either:

the Adjusted Price on the Determination Date or on the Specific Period; or

(i) the arithmetic mean of the Adjusted Price on the Determination Dates or on the

Specific Periods, ascertained by the Calculation Agent, respectively, on the last
Determination Date or on the last of such Specific Periods, specified in the relevant
Final Terms, and determined pursuant to the following formula:

X
1
IRV = —X Z AP,
X
t=1

Where:

"x" is the number of Determination Dates or Specific Periods specified as such in
the relevant Final Terms;

"APt" is the Adjusted Price of the Underlying(s) as determined on the Determination
Date "t" or on the Specific Period "t" as specified in the applicable Final Terms.
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If the Underlying is a Basket:

(A)  the Basket Value on the Determination Date or on the Specific Period, as ascertained
by the Calculation Agent as specified in the applicable Final Terms. If so specified in
the applicable Final Terms, the Basket Value on the Determination Date or on the
Specific Period indicated in the applicable Final Terms may be equal to 1;

(B) the arithmetic mean of the Basket Values on the Determination Dates or on the
Specific Periods indicated in the applicable Final Terms, as ascertained by the
Calculation Agent, and determined pursuant to the following formula:

X
1
IRV = o X z Basket;

t=1
Where:

"x" is the number of Determination Dates or Specific Periods specified as such in the
relevant Final Terms;

"Basket:" is the Basket Value as calculated on the Determination Date "t" or on the
Specific Period "t" as specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

(© the amount corresponding to the minimum or maximum Basket Value (as specified in
the applicable Final Terms) recorded in relation to the Basket during one or more
Initial Reference Value Determination Period(s), ascertained by the Calculation Agent
(pursuant to the terms specified in the foregoing definition of "Basket Value™) on the
Determination Date or on the Specific Period, as set out in the relevant Final Terms; or

(D)  the Value of one or more or each Basket Constituent (as specified in the applicable
Final Terms) on the Determination Date or on the Specific Period.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Initial Reference Value may also be set as 'Not applicable' in the
relevant Final Terms. The Initial Reference Value will always be 'Not applicable’ in relation to Discount
Certificates;

Initial Reference Value Determination Period means the period composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days or the Specific Period, as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Interest Cap means, in relation to the Interest Rate Warrants, and for the purposes of the calculation of
the Floating Amount and the Cash Settlement Amount, the rate specified as such in the applicable Final

Terms;

Interest Rate means, either as single or as a Basket Constituent, the interest rate representing the
Underlying from time to time and as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Interest Rate Securities means Securities that have as Underlying one or more specified Interest Rates
or one or more Baskets of Interest Rates;

Internal Return Amount (which can be IRA Compound or IRA Simple) means the amount linked
to the performance of the Underlying as indicated in the relevant Final Terms (if applicable);
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Internal Return Amount (IRA) Cap means the value expressed as a percentage indicated in the
relevant Final Terms in relation to the Internal Return Amount (if applicable);

Intraday Reset Event means, in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B
Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines at any
time during an Exchange Business Day "t" that:

1) Incase of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates on Index:

(i) For the first Intraday Reset Event (i=1),

"ULse " means Intraday Value at the moment 6 (being the moment in which the Intraday Reset
Event Observation Period starts);

"ULigg,_," = UL¢_q;
"TV" means the Trigger Value specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(if) After the occurrence of the first Intraday Reset Event and the relative Intraday Reset Event
Observation Period (i >1),

"ULse " means Intraday Value at the moment 6 (being the moment in which the Intraday Reset
Event Observation Period starts);

"ULjgg,_," = minyefg o+)[ULty |
Where:
"UL," means the Intraday Value at a time v;
"v" means an instant of time within the period [0, 0%];

"[6, 6*]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period,;

"TV" means the Trigger Value specified in the applicable Final Terms.

2) Incase of Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates on Share:

(i) For the first Intraday Reset Event (i=1),

ULt <1—TV — (1_TaJCAFt)‘Dl.'ULL

ULIRE;_, ULIREi_l
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Where:

"ULe " means Intraday Value at the moment 6 (being the moment in which the Intraday Reset
Event Observation Period starts);

"ULigg,_," = UL;_q;
"TV" means the Trigger Value specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"TaxAF+" means the Tax Adjustment Factor on Exchange Business Day "t";

"TaxAFo" means the Tax Adjustment Factor on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Divt" means any ordinary gross cash dividend distributed in relation to the relevant Share on the

Exchange Business Day "t". The Div; will be available from time to time on the Dividend
Publication specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(i) After the occurrence of the first Intraday Reset Event and the relative Intraday Reset Event
Observation Period (i >1),

"ULse " means Intraday Value at the moment 6 (being the moment in which the Intraday Reset
Event Observation Period starts);

"ULjgg,_," = minyefg o+)[ULty |
Where:
"ULt," means the Intraday Value at a time v;
"v" means an instant of time within the period [8,8%];

"[#, 6"]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;

"TV" means the Trigger Value specified in the applicable Final Terms.

3) In case of Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates on Index:

(i) For the first Intraday Reset Event (i=1),

"ULse " means Intraday Value at the moment 6 (being the moment in which the Intraday Reset
Event Observation Period starts);
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"ULigg;_," = UL¢;
"TV" means the Trigger Value specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(if) After the occurrence of the first Intraday Reset Event and the relative Intraday Reset Event
Observation Period (i >1),

"ULe " means Intraday Value at the moment 6 (being the moment in which the Intraday Reset
Event Observation Period starts);

"ULgg,_," = max,e[p,+][ULt, ]
Where:
"UL," means the Intraday Value at a time v;
"v" means an instant of time within the period [0, 0%];

"[6, 61" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;

"TV" means the Trigger Value specified in the applicable Final Terms.

4)  In case of Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates on Share:

(i) For the first Intraday Reset Event (i=1),

UL Div
— 8 S 14TV — L
ULIRE;_, Lire;_,
Where:

"ULse " means Intraday Value at the moment 6 (being the moment in which the Intraday Reset
Event Observation Period starts);

"ULgg;_," = UL¢q;
"TV" means the Trigger Value specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Divt" means any ordinary gross cash dividend distributed in relation to the relevant Share on the
Exchange Business Day "t". The Div; will be available from time to time on the Dividend
Publication specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(if) After the occurrence of the first Intraday Reset Event and the relative Intraday Reset Event
Observation Period (i >1),
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Where:

"ULe " means Intraday Value at the moment 6 (being the moment in which the Intraday Reset
Event Observation Period starts);

"ULjgg,_," = max,c[o,0+)[ULey]
Where:
"ULt," means the Intraday Value at a time v;
"y" means an instant of time within the period [8,8%];

"[8, 6"]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;

"TV" means the Trigger Value specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Intraday Reset Event Observation Period means, in relation to Type B Long Constant Leverage
Certificates and Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the period starting from (and including)
the moment 6 and ending on (and including) the moment 6%, which falls 10 minutes after 8 or at the end
of the relevant Exchange Business Day, in case there are less than 10 minutes between 6 and the end of
such Exchange Business Day.

In case 0 coincides with the end of the Exchange Business Day, PAVL: or PAVS; will coincides with
the last calculated PAVL grgi or PAVSgei.

During an Intraday Reset Event Observation Period only one Intraday Reset Event can occur;

Intraday Value means, if specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms and in order to calculate
the Reference Value, the official level published by the Index Sponsor, the official traded price, quoted
on the relevant Exchange, the Exchange Rate value quoted on the relevant over-the-counter or
quotation-based market indicated in the relevant Final Terms, the official Interest Rate value, the Net
Asset Value of such Underlying or Basket Constituent (without limitation, as the case may be and as
specified in the applicable Final Terms) continuously observed on such day by the Calculation Agent
on the applicable Electronic Page, subject as provided in Condition 15(2) (Adjustment Events relating
to the Underlying and correction provisions in relation to the Securities);

Irish Listing Agent means BNP Paribas, Luxembourg Branch, acting as listing agent in Ireland,;
Issue Currency means the currency specified from time to time in the applicable Final Terms;

Issue Date means the Business Day on which the Securities are issued. Such a date is specified from
time to time in the relevant Final Terms. For the avoidance of doubt, the beginning of any valuation
period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent may determine the
occurrence of any event that triggers the payment of a Remuneration Amount, any Early Redemption
Event and any other event on which depends the calculation of the Settlement Amount, may not occur
before the Issue Date;

Issue Price means the price of issue of the Certificates indicated in the relevant Final Terms. In relation

to Discount Certificates, the Issue Price indicated in the relevant Final Terms will always be set as a
discounted price compared to the value of the relevant Underlying;

124



Issuer means Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. with registered office at Piazza San Carlo, 156 - 10121 Turin,
Italy;

Italian Bail-in Power means any write-down, conversion, transfer, modification, or suspension power
existing from time to time under, and exercised in compliance with, any laws, regulations, rules or
requirements in effect in the Republic of Italy, relating to (i) the transposition of the BRRD (in
including, but not limited to, Legislative Decrees No. 180/2015 and 181/2015) as amended from time to
time; and (ii) the instruments, rules and standards created thereunder, pursuant to which any obligation
of a regulated entity (or other affiliate of such regulated entity) can be reduced, cancelled, modified, or
converted into shares, other securities, or other obligations of such regulated entity or any other person
(or suspended for a temporary period);

Italian Resolution Authority means the Bank of Italy or other governmental authority in Italy (or
other country in which the Issuer is then domiciled) or in the European Union having primary
responsibility for the prudential oversight and supervision of the Issuer acting in its capacity as
resolution authority within the meaning of Article 2(18) of the BRRD;

Italian Traded Securities means Securities in respect of which the applicable Final Terms state that an
application will be made to admit such Securities to trading on an Italian multilateral trading facility
and the expression Italian Traded Warrants and Italian Traded Certificates shall be construed
accordingly;

Knock-in Event means the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines that the Reference
Value or the Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), as
specified in the relevant Final Terms:

(i) if the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has been equal
to, higher than or lower than the relevant Knock-in Level on the relevant Knock-in
Valuation Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has
never been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to, higher than
or lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Knock-in Level on the
relevant Knock-in Valuation Period or during the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period;
and/or

(iii) if the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has fallen
within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Knock-in Level and the relevant
Down Range Knock-in Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in the relevant
Final Terms) on the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day
of the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has
fallen at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has always
fallen within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified
in the applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range
Knock-in Level and the relevant Down Range Knock-in Level (included or excluded in the
range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period
or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period or during the
relevant Knock-in Valuation Period.
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If the applicable Final Terms provide for more than one Knock-in Valuation Period, the applicable
Final Terms will specify if the Knock-in Event will occur in at least one, any or all the Knock-in
Valuation Periods.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Knock-in Event may be determined in
relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case of
Securities linked to a Basket, the Knock-in Event may be determined in relation to the Basket or to at
least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these cases,
the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Knock-in Level (or the Up Range Knock-in Level and
the Down Range Knock-in Level) of each Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for
the purposes of the determination of the Knock-in Event.

If the Knock-in Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Knock-in Feature means, if specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms and in respect of the
calculation of any Remuneration Amount, the feature pursuant to which the relevant Remuneration
Amount becomes payable to the Securityholders after the occurrence of a Knock-in Event. In particular,
if Knock-in Event occurs during a Knock-in Valuation Period, the Securityholder will benefit from the
payment of the Remuneration Amount(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms, which may be either
the Remuneration Amount related to the valuation period on which the Knock-in Event has occurred
and/or the Remuneration Amount(s) related to the valuation period(s) following the Knock-in Valuation
Period in which the Knock-in Event has occurred,;

Knock-in Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or
Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Knock-in Event in
relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Knock-in Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:
(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii)  a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Knock-in Event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Knock-in Level will be
specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Knock-in Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business
Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent
determines if the relevant Knock-in Event has occurred. In the event of more Knock-in Valuation
Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Knock-in Valuation Period, the Second
Knock-in Valuation Period, or the n-th Knock-in Valuation Period.

The applicable Final Terms may provide for different Underlyings in relation to each Knock-in
Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Knock-in Valuation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Knock-in Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition
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15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Knock-out Event means the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines that the Reference
Value or the Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), as
specified in the relevant Final Terms:

() if the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has been
equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Knock-out Level on the relevant Knock-out
Valuation Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has
never been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to, higher than
or lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Knock-out Level on the
relevant Knock-out Valuation Period or during the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period;
and/or

(i) if the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has fallen
within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Knock-out Level and the relevant
Down Range Knock-out Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in the
relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period or on any Exchange
Business Day of the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has
fallen at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has always
fallen within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified
in the applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range
Knock-out Level and the relevant Down Range Knock-out Level (included or excluded in
the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Knock-out Valuation
Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period or
during the relevant Knock-out Valuation Period.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for more than one Knock-out Valuation Period, the applicable
Final Terms will specify if the Knock-out Event will occur in at least one, any or all the Knock-out
Valuation Periods.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Knock-out Event may be determined in
relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case of
Securities linked to a Basket, the Knock-out Event may be determined in relation to the Basket or to at
least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these cases,
the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Knock-out Level (or the Up Range Knock-out Level
and the Down Range Knock-out Level) of each Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be
considered for the purposes of the determination of the Knock-out Event.

If the Knock-out Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Knock-out Feature means, if specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms and in respect of the
calculation of any Remuneration Amount, the feature pursuant to which the Remuneration Amount
potentially payable after the occurrence of a Knock-out Event will cease to be due and payable to the
Securityholders. In particular, if the Knock-out Event occurs during a Knock-out Valuation Period, the
Securityholder will not benefit from the payment of the Remuneration Amount(s) specified in the
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applicable Final Terms, which may be either the Remuneration Amount related to the valuation period
on which the Knock-out Event has occurred and/or the Remuneration Amount(s) related to the
valuation period(s) following the Knock-out Valuation Period in which the Knock-out Event has
occurred;

Knock-out Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or
Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Knock-out Event
in relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Knock- out Valuation
Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:

(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or

(i) avalue expressed as a percentage; or

(iii)  a predetermined value.
In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Knock-out Event, at least one, any or all

the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Knock-out Level will be
specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Knock-out Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business
Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent
determines if the relevant Knock-out Event has occurred. In the event of more Knock-out Valuation
Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Knock-out Valuation Period, the Second
Knock-out Valuation Period, or the n-th Knock-out Valuation Period.

The applicable Final Terms may provide for different Underlyings in relation to each Knock-out
Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Knock-out Valuation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Knock-out Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition
15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Listing Agent means the Irish Listing Agent and/or any other listing agent specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms;

Long Strategy means the financial strategy which gives to the investor the possibility to benefit from
the positive (increasing) performance of the Underlying(s) in relation to the amount(s) or occurrence of

event(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Lower Barrier Level means the value specified in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the
occurrence of the Barrier Event. Such value may be set as:

(i) apercentage of the Initial Reference Value specified in the applicable Final Terms; or
(if) a predetermined value;

Lower One Star Trigger Level means the value specified in the applicable Final Terms that triggers
the occurrence of the One Star Event. Such value may be set as:
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(i) apercentage of the Initial Reference Value specified in the applicable Final Terms; or
(if) a predetermined value;
Magnet Feature means the feature that may be specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms.

If the Magnet Feature is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, the Certificates will be
early redeemed on the Early Redemption Valuation Period in which the related Magnet Worst Of
Performance (Magnet Worst Of Performance;) is equal to, higher than or lower than (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) the relevant Magnet Performance.

The Magnet Feature may only occur if there is an Early Redemption Valuation Period preceding the
Early Redemption Valuation Period in which the Magnet Feature applies.

Magnet Performance means, in relation to the Magnet Feature, the value expressed as a percentage
determined by the Calculation Agent on an Early Redemption Valuation Period, as follows:

Magnet Performance = Max(Magnet Floor; Magnet Worst Of Performance;_; )
Where:

"Magnet Floor" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Magnet Worst Of Performancei1" means the performance of the Worst Of Underlying in the
Early Redemption Valuation Period "i-1" calculated on the basis of the following formula:

RVi_4
IRV

Where:

"RVi1" means the Reference Value on the Early Redemption Valuation Period "i-1" specified in
the relevant Final Terms;

"IRV" means the Initial Reference Value of the relevant Worst of Underlying;
Management Company is the entity responsible for the management of the Fund;

Market Disruption means any event occurring on a Relevant Exchange Business Day that is deemed
to be a Market Disruption pursuant to Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event);

Market Value means, in the case of a Market Disruption Event or Adjustment Event that as a
consequence of which the Issuer redeems early the Securities, an amount at the market value, as
determined by the Calculation Agent acting in good faith pursuant to reasonable market practice and
aiming to neutralise the effects which the Market Disruption Event or Adjustment Event cause to the
Certificates;

Margin means the value expressed as percentage, which may also be equal to zero, specified in the
relevant Final Terms;
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Maximum Exercise Number means the maximum number of Warrants that may be exercised by the
Securityholder, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Maximum Level means, in relation to each Series, the value of the Underlying, specified in the
applicable Final Terms and determined by the Calculation Agent, upon which the Issuer can opt to not
carry out the issue of the Certificates and the relevant offer shall be deemed consequently cancelled
pursuant to the applicable Final Terms;

Memory Effect means the feature that may be specified as applicable in relation to the Digital Amount
and the Participation Remuneration Amount if there are several Digital Valuation Periods or several
Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Periods.

The Memory Effect will occur if the Calculation Agent determines that the Reference Value or the
Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), as specified in
the relevant Final Terms:

(i)  is equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Memory Level on the relevant Memory
Valuation Period; and/or

(if)  has been, at least once during the relevant Memory Valuation Period, equal to, higher than or
lower than the relevant Memory Level; and/or

(iii)  has never been equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Memory Level during the
relevant Memory Period; and/or

(iv) has fallen at least once or has never fallen within or out of a range between the relevant Up
Range Memory Level and the relevant Down Range Memory Level (included or excluded in
the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on/during the relevant Memory Valuation
Period.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Memory Effect may be determined in
relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case of
Securities linked to a Basket, the Memory Effect may be determined in relation to the Basket or to at
least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these cases,
the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Memory Level (or the Up Range Memory Level and
the Down Range Memory Level) of each Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for
the purposes of the determination of the Memory Effect.

If the Memory Effect occurs, the Securityholder will receive, as specified in the applicable Final Terms,
the Digital Amount(s)/Participation Remuneration Amount(s) which is/are not due because of the non-
occurrence of the relevant Digital Event/Participation Remuneration Amount Event or the non-
occurrence of the Memory Effect in a previous Memory Valuation Period.

If the Memory Effect occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Memory Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or Basket
Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Memory Effect in relation
to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Memory Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:

(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
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(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii)  a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Memory Effect, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Memory Level will be specified
for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Memory Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business
Days, or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent
determines if the relevant Memory Effect has occurred. In the event of more Memory Valuation
Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Memory Valuation Period, the Second
Memory Valuation Period, or the n-th Memory Valuation Period.

The applicable Final Terms may provide for different Underlyings in relation to each Memory
Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Memory Valuation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Memory Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition 15(1)
(Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Minimum Exercise Amount means the minimum amount of Securities which can be exercised and is
set out in the relevant Final Terms, in respect of each issue;

Minimum Level means, in the case of Fund Securities, the interest rate swap value as determined on
the Determination Date, whose term coincides with the lifetime of the Certificates. The Minimum Level
upon which, if reached, the Calculation Agent determines the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event,
as specified in the applicable Final Terms and as determined by the Calculation Agent;

Minimum Trading Amount means the amount of Securities specified as such in the relevant Final
Terms, in relation to each Series admitted to trading;

MREL Disqualification Event means, in relation to the Certificates that qualify as MREL eligible
liabilities in the applicable Final Terms, the event occurring if, at any time, by reason of the
introduction of, or a change in, the MREL Requirements, which was not reasonably foreseeable by the
Issuer at the Issue Date, all or part of the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of such Certificates is
or will be excluded fully or partially from the eligible liabilities available to meet the MREL
Requirements provided that:

(i) the exclusion of a Series of such Certificates from the MREL Requirements due to the
remaining maturity of such Certificates being less than any period prescribed thereunder,
does not constitute a MREL Disqualification Event;

(if) the exclusion of all or some of a Series of Certificates from the MREL Requirements due to
there being insufficient headroom for such Certificates within a prescribed exception to the
otherwise applicable general requirements for eligible liabilities (to the extent applicable to
Intesa Sanpaolo and/or the Group) does not constitute a MREL Disqualification Event; and

(iii) the exclusion of all or some of a Series of such Certificates from the MREL Requirements as
a result of such Certificates being purchased by or on behalf of Intesa Sanpaolo or as a result
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of a purchase which is funded directly or indirectly by Intesa Sanpaolo, does not constitute a
MREL Disqualification Event;

MREL Requirements means the laws, regulations, requirements, guidelines, rules, standards and
policies relating to minimum requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities applicable to Intesa
Sanpaolo and/or the Group, from time to time (including any applicable transitional or grandfathering
provisions), including, without limitation to the generality of the foregoing, any delegated or
implementing acts (such as regulatory technical standards) adopted by the European Commission and
any regulations, requirements, guidelines, rules, standards and policies relating to minimum
requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities adopted by the Republic of Italy, a Relevant
Authority or the European Banking Authority from time to time (whether or not such requirements,
guidelines or policies are applied generally or specifically to Intesa Sanpaolo and/or the Group), as any
of the preceding laws, regulations, requirements, guidelines, rules, standards, policies or interpretations
may be amended, supplemented, superseded or replaced from time to time;

Multiple Amounti means, in relation to Multiple Strike Certificates, the amount that will be determined
as specified under Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions);

Multiple Level Option means, if so specified by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms and if several
Digital Levels have been provided in relation to the same Digital Valuation Period, the determination
method of the Digital Level pursuant to which the relevant Final Terms will indicate the Digital
Amount 1 and the Digital Amount 2, and so on, which will be respectively linked to the Digital Level 1,
the Digital Level 2 and so on. In the event of more Digital Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms
will indicate the Digital Level 1, the Digital Level 2 and so on in relation to each Digital Valuation
Period. In this case, the holders of the Securities will be entitled to receive the Digital Amount relating
to the higher Digital Level reached by the Reference Value;

Multiple Participation Factori means each percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms in
relation to each Multiple Strike Event;;

Multiple Strike Eventi means, in relation to Multiple Strike Certificates, the event occurring if the
Calculation Agent determines that the Reference Value, as specified from time to time in the relevant
Final Terms:

0] is equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Multiple Strike Level; on the relevant
Multiple Strike Valuation Period; and/or

(i)  has been, at least once during the relevant Multiple Strike Valuation Period, equal to, higher
than or lower than the relevant Multiple Strike Level;; and/or

(iii)  has never been equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Multiple Strike Level; during
the relevant Multiple Strike Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) has fallen at least once or has never fallen within or out of a range between the relevant Up
Range Multiple Strike Level; and the relevant Down Range Multiple Strike Level; (included or
excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on/during the relevant Multiple
Strike Valuation Period.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Multiple Strike Event; may be determined
in relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case
of Securities linked to a Basket, the Multiple Strike Event; may be determined in relation to the Basket
or to at least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these
cases, the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Multiple Strike Level; (or the Up Range Multiple
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Strike Level; and the Down Range Multiple Strike Level;) of each Underlying or Basket Constituent
that will be considered for the purposes of the determination of the Multiple Strike Event;.

If a Multiple Strike Event; occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Multiple Strike Level; means each value that may be specified in the applicable Final Terms that
triggers the occurrence of each Multiple Strike Event;, provided that a Multiple Strike Event; may only
occur once in respect of each Multiple Strike Level;.

The Multiple Strike Level; is represented by a percentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or the
Reference Value or as a value expressed as a percentage or by a predetermined value, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms in relation to the relevant Multiple Strike Valuation Period.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Multiple Strike Level; will be
specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Multiple Strike Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days, or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Multiple Strike Event; has occurred. In the event of more
Multiple Strike Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Multiple Strike
Valuation Period, the Second Multiple Strike Valuation Period, or the n-th Multiple Strike
Valuation Period.

The applicable Final Terms may provide for different Underlyings in relation to each Multiple Strike
Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Multiple Strike Valuation Period or on
one Exchange Business Day of the Multiple Strike Valuation Period, the provisions set out within
Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Multiplier means the amount of Underlying which is related to a single Certificate or Covered
Warrant, specified as a predetermined value in the applicable Final Terms or determined according to
the method of calculation specified in the applicable Final Terms. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Multiplier may also be equal to 1;

NAV means the net asset value for each share or unit of the Fund as calculated and published by the
Fund Manager;

Net Profit Feature means the calculation method, if specified as applicable in the relevant Final
Terms, for the determination of the relevant Participation Remuneration Amount, pursuant to which the
Remuneration Sum will be deducted from the relevant Participation Remuneration Amount, provided
that the resulting amount cannot be lower than zero;

Non Quanto Securities means, in relation to Cash Settled Securities when the Underlying Reference
Currency differs from the Settlement Currency, that the Quanto Option does not apply;

Notional Amount means, in relation to Warrants, the amount specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms;
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Notional Amount: means, in relation to the Interest Rate Warrants, the amount specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms in relation to each Floating Amount Determination Period;

N-th Near-by Initial Date means, when the Futures Contract N-th Near-by Feature is specified as
applicable in the relevant Final Terms and the Initial Reference Value will be determined on the basis
of the Futures Contract N-th Near-by, the date specified in the applicable Final Terms on which the
Futures Contract N-th Near-by will replace the Futures Contract indicated as Underlying of the
Securities.

When the Futures Contract N-th Near-by replaces the Futures Contract on the N-th Near-by Initial
Date, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the website of the Issuer
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Offer Period means the period indicated by the Issuer for the subscription in relation to the Series, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

One Star Determination Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days or the Specific Period, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, on which the
Calculation Agent determines if the One Star Event has occurred. In the event of more One Star
Determination Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First One Star Determination
Period, the Second One Star Determination Period, or the n-th One Star Determination Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on any One Star Determination Period or on
one Exchange Business Day of any One Star Determination Period, the provisions set out within
Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

One Star Event means, in relation to One Star Certificates, the event occurring when the Calculation
Agent determines that, with reference to the Worst Of Underlying (or, in case of Basket, the Basket
Constituent with the worst Performance) or the Best Of Underlying (or, in case of Basket, the Basket
Constituent with the best Performance) the Reference Value, as specified in the relevant Final Terms:

(i) if the relevant One Star Determination Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has been
equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant One Star Trigger Level on the relevant One
Star Determination Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant One Star Determination Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has
never been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to, higher than
or lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant One Star Trigger Level
on the relevant One Star Determination Period or during the relevant One Star
Determination Period; and/or

(iii) if the relevant One Star Determination Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has fallen
within or out of a range between the relevant Upper One Star Trigger Level and the
relevant Lower One Star Trigger Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in
the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant One Star Determination Period or on any
Exchange Business Day of the relevant One Star Determination Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant One Star Determination Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has
fallen at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has always
fallen within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified
in the applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Upper One

134


http://www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com/

Star Trigger Level and the relevant Lower One Star Trigger Level (included or excluded in
the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant One Star Determination
Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant One Star Determination Period or
during the relevant One Star Determination Period.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for more than one One Star Determination Period, the applicable
Final Terms will specify if the One Star Event will occur in at least one, any or all the One Star
Determination Periods.

If the One Star Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

One Star Percentage means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant Final Terms;

One Star Selection Period means, when the One Star Trigger Level is determined as specified at point
(iv) of the definition of "One Star Trigger Level", one or more periods composed of one or more
Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the relevant Final Terms, on which the
Calculation Agent determines the highest or the lowest Reference Value (as specified in the applicable
Final Terms) of each Underlying (or, in case of Basket, of each Basket Constituent) in order to
determine the One Star Trigger Level. In the event of more One Star Selection Periods, the relevant
Final Terms will indicate the First One Star Selection Period, the Second One Star Selection
Period, or the n-th One Star Selection Period;

One Star Trigger Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings
or Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the One Star Event.
Such value may be set as:

(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value; or
(if)  apredetermined value; or
(iii)  a percentage of the Strike; or

(iv) apercentage of the highest or the lowest (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) Reference
Value registered during the One Star Selection Period.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant One Star Event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the One Star Trigger Level will be
specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Open End Feature means, if specified in the applicable Final Terms, the feature applicable to the
Benchmark Certificates, Constant Leverage Certificates and Turbo Certificates pursuant to which the
securities have no term and therefore the Exercise Date is not applicable. In this case, the Certificates
can be early redeemed upon exercise of the Call Option by the Issuer or, if applicable, the exercise of
the Put Option by the Securityholders pursuant to Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures (only
applicable to Certificates));

Outstanding Amount means, if an Early Partial Capital Payment Amount is provided in the relevant
Final Terms, on the relevant Outstanding Amount Determination Date, the Issue Price less the sum of
any Early Partial Capital Payment Amounts paid up to and including such relevant Outstanding
Amount Determination Date.
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Outstanding Amount Determination Date(s) means the date(s) specified in the applicable Final
Terms in which the Calculation Agent determines the Outstanding Amount;

Participation Combo Feature means, in relation to Certificates linked to a Basket or to more
Underlyings that are not a Basket, the feature in relation to the calculation of a Participation
Remuneration Amount, pursuant to which the Calculation Agent will determine the Participation
Remuneration Amount payable in relation to the Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period
specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation to each single Basket Constituent or each single
Underlying. Therefore, the Participation Remuneration Amount payable will be either, as specified in
the applicable Final Terms, (i) the arithmetic mean of the Participation Remuneration Amounts due in
relation to each single Basket Constituent or each single Underlying, or (ii) the weighted average of the
Participation Remuneration Amounts due in relation to each single Basket Constituent or each single
Underlying, or (iii) the sum of the Participation Remuneration Amounts due in relation to each single
Basket Constituent or each single Underlying. In this case, for each single Basket Constituent or each
single Underlying the applicable Final Terms will specify, if applicable, (1) the relevant CAP, and/or
(2) the Floor Percentage, and/or (3) the Participation Factor, and/or (4) the Strike Remuneration
Percentage, and/or (5) the Base Premium Percentage and/or (6) the Participation Remuneration Amount
Gearing;

Participation Factor means the value expressed as a percentage indicated in the applicable Final
Terms;

Participation Performance Period means, if applicable in relation to the relevant Participation
Remuneration Amount, one or more periods specified in the applicable Final Terms, starting from the
Participation Valuation Date(s)j and ending on the Participation Valuation Date(s)t, during which the
performance of the relevant Underlying is determined for the purposes of the calculation of the relevant
Participation Remuneration Amount. In the event of more Participation Performance Periods, the
relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Participation Performance Period, the Second
Participation Performance Period, or the n-th Participation Performance Period;

Participation Rebate Amount means, if a Participation Rebate Event has occurred, an amount in the
Settlement Currency specified by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms for each Series;

Participation Rebate Event means the event occurring when the Calculation Agent determines that the
Reference Value, or the Spread or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of Multiperformance
Certificates), as specified in the relevant Final Terms:

0] if the relevant Participation Rebate Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has
been equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Participation Rebate Level on the
relevant Participation Rebate Valuation Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Participation Rebate Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days,
(1) has never been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to,
higher than or lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified
in the applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Participation
Rebate Level on the relevant Participation Rebate Valuation Period or during the relevant
Participation Rebate Valuation Period; and/or

(iii) if the relevant Participation Rebate Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has
fallen within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Participation Rebate Level
and the relevant Down Range Participation Rebate Level (included or excluded in the
range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Participation Rebate
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Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Participation Rebate
Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Participation Rebate Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days,
(1) has fallen at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has
always fallen within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as
specified in the applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Up
Range Participation Rebate Level and the relevant Down Range Participation Rebate Level
(included or excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant
Participation Rebate Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant
Participation Rebate Valuation Period or during the relevant Participation Rebate Valuation
Period.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Participation Rebate Event may be
determined in relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms. In case of Securities linked to a Basket, the Participation Rebate Event may be determined in
relation to the Basket or to at least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms. In these cases, the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Participation Rebate Level
(or the Up Range Participation Rebate Level and the Down Range Participation Rebate Level) of each
Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for the purposes of the determination of the
Participation Rebate Event.

If the Participation Rebate occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Participation Rebate Feature means, in relation to the calculation of the Participation Rebate Amount,
the feature pursuant to which the Participation Remuneration Amount potentially payable after the
occurrence of a Participation Rebate Event will cease to be due and payable to the Securityholders. In
particular, if Participation Rebate Event occurs during a Participation Rebate Valuation Period, the
Securityholder will receive the specified Participation Rebate Amount on the relevant payment date
following the Participation Rebate Valuation Period in which the Participation Rebate Event has
occurred;

Participation Rebate Level means the value specified in the relevant Final Terms in relation to each
Participation Rebate Valuation Period. For the purposes of the Participation Rebate Event, the
Participation Rebate Level is determined by the Calculation Agent pursuant to the relevant Final Terms.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Participation Rebate Event, at least one,
any or all the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Participation
Rebate Level will be specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Participation Rebate Valuation Period means, in relation to the Participation Rebate Level, one or
more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in
the applicable Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Participation
Rebate Event has occurred. In the event of more Participation Rebate Valuation Periods, the relevant
Final Terms will indicate the First Participation Rebate Valuation Period, the Second Participation
Rebate Valuation Period, or the n-th Participation Rebate Valuation Period.

137


http://www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com/

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Participation Rebate Valuation Period
or on one Exchange Business Day of the Participation Rebate Valuation Period, the provisions set out
within Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Participation Remuneration Amount means the amount in the Settlement Currency to be paid to the
Securityholder, if positive, on the relevant Participation Remuneration Payment Date per each
Minimum Exercise Amount pursuant to Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions).

The Participation Remuneration Amount may be, as indicated in the relevant Final Terms, "Long
Participation Remuneration Amount Form A" and/or "Long Participation Remuneration Amount
Form B" and/or "Long Participation Remuneration Amount Form C" and/or "Short Participation
Remuneration Amount" and/or "Spread Participation Remuneration Amount”.

In case of more than one Participation Remuneration Amount, the relevant Final Terms will specify the
Participation Remuneration Amount 1, the Participation Remuneration Amount 2, and so on. For the
avoidance of doubt, the relevant Final Terms may provide for more than one Participation
Remuneration Amount also in relation to the same Participation Remuneration Event and/or in relation
to the same Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period (if applicable) and/or in relation to the
same Participation Performance Period and/or in the same Participation Valuation Date and/or in
relation to the same Participation Remuneration Payment Date;

Participation Remuneration Amount Gearing means the value specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

Participation Remuneration Event means the event occurring if the Calculation Agent determines
that the Reference Value or the Spread, or the Cumulated Performance (in the case of
Multiperformance Certificates), as specified in the relevant Final Terms:

(i) if the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period is of one Exchange
Business Day, has been equal to, higher than or lower than the relevant Participation
Remuneration Level on the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period;
and/or

(i) if the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period is of more Exchange
Business Days, (1) has never been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always
been equal to, higher than or lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business
Days (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant
Participation Remuneration Level on the relevant Participation Remuneration Event
Valuation Period or during the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation
Period; and/or

(iii) if the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period is of one Exchange
Business Day, has fallen within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range
Participation Remuneration Level and the relevant Down Range Participation
Remuneration Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in the relevant Final
Terms) on the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period or on any
Exchange Business Day of the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation
Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period is of more Exchange
Business Days, (1) has fallen at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or
out of or (3) has always fallen within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange
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Business Days (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between
the relevant Up Range Participation Remuneration Level and the relevant Down Range
Participation Remuneration Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in the
relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period
or on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Participation Remuneration Event
Valuation Period or during the relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation
Period.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Participation Remuneration Event may be
determined in relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms. In case of Securities linked to a Basket, the Participation Remuneration Event may be
determined in relation to the Basket or to at least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in
the applicable Final Terms. In these cases, the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Participation
Remuneration Level (or the Up Range Participation Remuneration Level and the Down Range
Participation Remuneration Level) of each Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for
the purposes of the determination of the Participation Remuneration Event.

If a Participation Remuneration Event occurs, the Securityholders are entitled to receive the payment of
the relevant Participation Remuneration Amount, if positive.

In the case of Certificates with Best Of Feature or Worst Of Feature, the Issuer will specify in the
relevant Final Terms the occurrence of the Participation Remuneration Event in relation to one or more
Underlyings and the applicable Final Terms will specify the Participation Remuneration Level for each
Underlying. In particular, for the purposes of determining the occurrence of a Participation
Remuneration Event, the applicable Final Terms will specify the number of Underlyings in relation to
which the Participation Remuneration Event has to occur.

If the Participation Remuneration Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice
published on the website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or
more Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in
which the Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Participation Remuneration Event has occurred.
In the event of more Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will
indicate the First Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period, the Second Participation
Remuneration Event Valuation Period, or the n-th Participation Remuneration Event Valuation
Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Participation Remuneration Event
Valuation Period or on one Exchange Business Day of the Participation Remuneration Event Valuation
Period, the provisions set out within Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;
Participation Remuneration Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more
Underlyings or Basket Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the
Participation Remuneration Event in relation to the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the
relevant Participation Remuneration Event Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:

(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
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(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii)  a predetermined value.

In the case of Cliquet Feature, the applicable Final Terms will specify the method for changing the
Participation Remuneration Level in relation to one or more Participation Remuneration Event
Valuation Periods.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Participation Remuneration Event, at least
one, any or all the Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Participation
Remuneration Level will be specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Participation Remuneration Payment Date means one or more Business Days specified in the
applicable Final Terms on which the Issuer shall pay the Participation Remuneration Amount to the
Securityholders.

If an amount shall be paid on a Participation Remuneration Payment Date and the payment of such
amount depends upon the occurrence of a specific event, should the valuation date in which the
Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value for the purposes of the calculation of such amount
be postponed (by way of example and without limitation, for the occurrence of a Market Disruption
Event), the relevant Participation Remuneration Payment Date may be postponed accordingly. The
Participation Remuneration Payment Date shall not, in any case, be postponed beyond ten Business
Days;

Participation Valuation Date(s) means, in relation to the relevant Participation Remuneration
Amount, each Exchange Business Day or Exchange Business Days or the Specific Period specified in
the applicable Final Terms in which the Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value for the
purposes of the calculation of the Participation Remuneration Amount. In particular, for each
Participation Remuneration Amount, the "RV;" (as defined under the formulas of the Participation
Remuneration Amount in Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions)) will be determined on the "Participation
Valuation Date(s);" (if applicable) and the "RV:" (as defined under the formulas of the Participation
Remuneration Amount in Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions)) will be determined on the "Participation
Valuation Date(s):".

In the event that the "RV;" coincides with the Initial Reference Value and such value is indicated in the
relevant Final Terms as a predetermined value or values, the Participation Valuation Date;j will coincide
with the Issue Date;

Path Dependency Effect means a calculation method of the Digital Amount, described in Condition 23
(Pay-out provisions), according to which the Digital Amount may increase in relation to each Digital
Valuation Period;

Path Dependency Amount means the amount specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation to the
Path Dependency Effect;

Payout Value Long or PAVL means, in relation to Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates, the
Value of the Underlying calculated at the end of each Exchange Business Day "t" (as defined below) as
follows:

1) Incase of an Index as Underlying:
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If an Intraday Reset Event has not occurred:
PAVL, = PAVL,_, - (PerfB, + CostComp,)

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and including
the Valuation Date;

"PAVL:" means the Payout Value Long on Exchange Business Day "t";
"PAVL:1" means the Payout Value Long on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"PAVLo" means the Initial Reference Value;

"PerfBt" means the performance boost on Exchange Business Day "t" calculated as follows:

PerfB —[1+K (UL‘ 1)]
erfB; = UL

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and
including the Valuation Date;

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"ULt" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t";

"ULt1" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"ULo" means the Initial Reference Value;
"CostCompt" means the cost component on Exchange Business Day "t" calculated as follows:
CostComp; = — (K —1) - [RR ;—;1 + SC; + min(0; XCCY;_,)] - DCF

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and
including the Valuation Date;

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"RRt1" means the Reference Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"SC+" means the Spread Cost on Exchange Business Day "t";
"SCo" means the Spread Cost on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"XCCY+1" means the Cross Currency Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
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"DCF" means the Day Count Fraction;

If an Intraday Reset Event has occurred:

UL
PAVL, = max {0; PAVLp, - [1 +K- < - 1)]}
ULIREi

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and including
the Valuation Date;

"PAVL:" means the Payout Value Long on Exchange Business Day "t";

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"ULt" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t";
"PAVLIrei" means:
(i) For the first Intraday Reset Event occurred (i = 1):
PAVL;gg, = PAVL,_, - (PerfBigg, + CostCompgg,)
Where:
"PAVL,_;" means the Payout Value Long on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"PerfBirei" means the performance boost calculated as follows:

ULjgg,
PerfBigg, = [1 +K- (ﬂ - 1)]

Ly
Where:

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"ULt1" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"ULrei" means the Reference Value calculated as follows:
ULigg, = minve[6,6+][ULt,v]

Where:

"ULty" means the Intraday Value on time "v";

"V means an instant of time within the period [0, 67 ];

"[#, 6°]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;

"CostCompirei" means the cost component calculated as follows:
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CostCompigg; = — (K — 1) - [RR (_4 + SC; + min(0; XCCY;_1)] - DCF
Where:

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"RRt1" means the Reference Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date
to and including the Valuation Date;

"SC+" means the Spread Cost on Exchange Business Day "t";

"SCo" means the Spread Cost on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"XCCY1" means the Cross Currency Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"DCF" means the Day Count Fraction;
(ii) For any Intraday Reset Event occurred after the first one (i > 1):
PAVLjgg, = PAVL g, * PerfBigg,
Where:

"PerfBirei" means the performance boost calculated as follows:

PerfB 14K Ulirg;_ 1
erfBirg, Uling,. .

Where:

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"ULrei" means the Reference Value calculated as follows:
ULigg; = minve[6,6+][ULt,v]

Where:

"ULty" means the Intraday Value on time "v";

"V means an instant of time within the period [8, 6]

"[#, 6°]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;

2) In case of a Share as Underlying:

If an Intraday Reset Event has not occurred:
PAVL, = PAVL,_, - (PerfB; + CostComp,)
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Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and including
the Valuation Date;

"PAVL:" means the Payout Value Long on Exchange Business Day "t";
"PAVL:1" means the Payout Value Long on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"PAVLo" means the Initial Reference Value;

"PerfBt" means the performance boost on Exchange Business Day "t" calculated as follows:

UL + (1 — TaxAF;) - Div,
Perth={1+K-[ e+ ( ) t—1]}

ULi—q
Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and
including the Valuation Date;

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"ULt" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t*;
"ULt1" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"ULo" means the Initial Reference Value;

"TaxAF¢" means Tax Adjustment Factor on Exchange Business Day "t";

"TaxAFo" means the Tax Adjustment Factor on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms;

"Divt" means any ordinary gross cash dividend distributed in relation to the relevant Share on
the Exchange Business Day "t". The Div; will be available from time to time on the Dividend
Publication specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"CostCompt" means the cost component on Exchange Business Day "t" calculated as follows:
CostComp; = — (K — 1) - [RR ;_1 + SC; + min(0; XCCY;_,)] - DCF

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and
including the Valuation Date;

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"RR¢t1" means the Reference Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
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"SC+" means the Spread Cost on Exchange Business Day "t";
"SCo" means the Spread Cost on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"XCCY+1" means the Cross Currency Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"DCF" means the Day Count Fraction;

If an Intraday Reset Event has occurred:

PAVL, = max {0; PAVLpg, - [1 +K- < L 1)]}

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and including
the Valuation Date;

"PAVL:" means the Payout Value Long on Exchange Business Day "t";

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"ULt" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t*;
"PAVLirei" means:
(i) For the first Intraday Reset Event occurred (i = 1):
PAVLjgg, = PAVL,_, - (PerfBgg, + CostCompigg,)
Where:
"PAVL,_;" means the Payout Value Long on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"PerfBirei" means the performance boost calculated as follows:

ULjgg, +(1 — TaxAF,) - Div
PerfBIREi = [1 + K ( IRE; ( t) t 1)]

ULi4
Where:

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"ULt1" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"TaxAF¢" means Tax Adjustment Factor on Exchange Business Day "t";

"TaxAFo" means the Tax Adjustment Factor on the Issue Date, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"Divt" means any ordinary gross cash dividend distributed in relation to the
relevant Share on the Exchange Business Day "t". The Div; will be available from
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time to time on the Dividend Publication specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"ULrei" means the Reference Value calculated as follows:
ULjgg;, = minve[6,6+][ULt,v]

Where:

"ULtyv" means the Intraday Value on time "v";

"V means an instant of time within the period [0, 6]

"[#, 6°]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;
"CostCompirei" means the cost component calculated as follows:
CostCompigg; = — (K — 1) - [RR;_; + SC; + min(0; XCCY,_,)] - DCF

Where:

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"RRt1" means the Reference Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date
to and including the Valuation Date;

"SCt" means the Spread Cost on Exchange Business Day "t";

"SCo" means the Spread Cost on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"XCCY1" means the Cross Currency Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"DCF" means the Day Count Fraction;
(ii) For any Intraday Reset Event occurred after the first one (i > 1):
PAVLygg, = PAVLgg, - PerfBge,
Where:

"PerfBirei" means the performance boost calculated as follows:

PerfBips, = |1+ K- [ —nti — 1
erfBirg, [ <ULIREi_1

Where:

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;
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"ULirei" means the Reference Value calculated as follows:
ULjgg;, = minve[6,6+][ULt,v]
Where:
"ULty" means the Intraday Value on time "v";
"V means an instant of time within the period [0, 6]
"[#, 8°]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;

Payout Value Short or PAVS means, in relation to Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the
Value of the Underlying calculated at the end of each Exchange Business Day "t" (as defined below) as
follows:

1) Incase of an Index as Underlying:

If an Intraday Reset Event has not occurred:

PAVS, = PAVS;_; - (PerfB; + CostComp,)
Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and including
the Valuation Date;

"PAVSt" means the Payout Value Short on Exchange Business Day "t";
"PAVSt1" means the Payout Value Short on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"PAVSo" means the Initial Reference Value;

"PerfBt" means the performance boost on Exchange Business Day "t" calculated as follows:

P B—[l K (ULt 1)]
erfB, = UL

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and
including the Valuation Date;

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"UL+" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t";
"ULt1" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"ULo" means the Initial Reference Value;

"CostCompt" means the cost component on Exchange Business Day "t" calculated as follows:
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CostCompy = +(K + 1) - [RR ;_; + min(0; XCCY;_,)] - DCF — K - RpR, - DCF
Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and
including the Valuation Date;

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"RR¢1" means the Reference Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"XCCY+1" means the Cross Currency Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"RpRt" means the Repo Rate on Exchange Business Day "t";

"RpRo" means the Repo Rate on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"DCF" means the Day Count Fraction;

If an Intraday Reset Event has occurred:

UL,
PAVS, = max{0; PAVSg, - |1 - K - -1

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and including
the Valuation Date;

"PAVSt" means the Payout Value Short on Exchange Business Day "t";

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"UL¢" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t";
"PAVSirei" means:
(i) For the first Intraday Reset Event occurred (i = 1):
PAVSgg, = PAVS,_, - (PerfBgg, + CostCompygg,)
Where:
"PAVS,_;" means the Payout Value Short on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"PerfBirei" means the performance boost calculated as follows:

PerfB ,=1—K-(—’—1)]
erfBigg; [ UL,

Where:
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"K " means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"ULt1" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"ULirei" means the Reference Value calculated as follows:
ULjgg;, = maxve[@,@"’][ULt,v]

Where:

"ULtyv" means the Intraday Value on time "v";

"V means an instant of time within the period [6,87];

"[#, 6"]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;
"CostCompirei" means the cost component calculated as follows:
CostCompigg; = + (K + 1) - [RR (_; + min(0; XCCY;_,)] - DCF — K - RpR, - DCF

Where:

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"RRt1" means the Reference Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date
to and including the Valuation Date;

"XCCY+1" means the Cross Currency Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"RpRt" means the Repo Rate on Exchange Business Day "t";

"RpRo" means the Repo Rate on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"DCF" means the Day Count Fraction;
(ii) For any Intraday Reset Event occurred after the first one (i > 1):
PAVS g, = PAVS g, , * PerfBigg,
Where:

"PerfBirei" is calculated as follows:

ULrE,
PeTfBIREi = [1 —K- <i_ 1)]

Where:
"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
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specified in the applicable Final Terms;
"ULirei" means the Reference Value calculated as follows:
ULjgg;, = maxve[@,@"’][ULt,v]

Where:

"ULtyv" means the Intraday Value on time "v";

"V means an instant of time within the period [0, 6]

"[#, 6°]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;

2) In case of a Share as Underlying:

If an Intraday Reset Event has not occurred:

PAVS, = PAVS;_; - (PerfB; + CostComp,)
Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and including
the Valuation Date;

"PAVSt" means the Payout Value Short on Exchange Business Day "t";
"PAVSt1" means the Payout Value Short on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"PAVSo" means the Initial Reference Value;

"PerfBt" means the performance boost on Exchange Business Day "t" calculated as follows:

UL, + Div,

perfB =1~ K- (=== ~1)]
t-1

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and
including the Valuation Date;

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"UL+" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t";

"ULt1" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"ULo" means the Initial Reference Value;

"Divt" means any ordinary gross cash dividend distributed in relation to the relevant Share on

the Exchange Business Day "t". The Div; will be available from time to time on the Dividend
Publication specified in the applicable Final Terms;
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"CostCompt" means the cost component on Exchange Business Day "t" calculated as follows:
CostCompy = +(K + 1) RR;_, - DCF — K - RpR; - DCF
Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and
including the Valuation Date;

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"RRt1" means the Reference Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";
"RpR:" means the Repo Rate on Exchange Business Day "t";
"RpRo" means the Repo Rate on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"DCF" means the Day Count Fraction;

If an Intraday Reset Event has occurred:
UL,
PAVS, = max{0; PAVSgg, - [1 —K - -1

Where:

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date to and including
the Valuation Date;

"PAVSt" means the Payout Value Short on Exchange Business Day "t";

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than Q) specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

"UL+" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t";
"PAVSirei" means:
(i) For the first Intraday Reset Event occurred (i = 1):
PAVS g, = PAVS,_, - (PerfBgs, + CostCompygg,)
Where:
"PAVS,_;" means the Payout Value Short on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"PerfBirei" means the performance boost calculated as follows:

ULIREi +Dlvt 1)]

PerfBire, = [1 - ( UL,

Where:
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"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"ULt1" means the Reference Value on the Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"Divt" means any ordinary gross cash dividend distributed in relation to the
relevant Share on the Exchange Business Day "t". The Div will be available from
time to time on the Dividend Publication specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"ULrei" means the Reference Value calculated as follows:
ULigg; = maxve[G,G*][ULt,v]
Where:
"ULtyv" means the Intraday Value on time "v";
"V means an instant of time within the period [8, 6]
"[6, 6T means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;
"CostCompirei" is calculated as follows:
CostComprgi = +(K + 1) - RR;_, - DCF — K - RpR; - DCF
Where:

"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"RR¢t1" means the Reference Rate on Exchange Business Day "t-1";

"t" means any Exchange Business Day from and including the Determination Date
to and including the Valuation Date;

"RpRt" means the Repo Rate on Exchange Business Day "t";

"RpRo" means the Repo Rate on the Issue Date, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"DCF" means the Day Count Fraction;
(ii) For any Intraday Reset Event occurred after the first one (i > 1):
PAVSigp; = PAVS pg,_, - PerfBgg,
Where:

"PerfBirei" is calculated as follows:

PerfBigg, = |1 — K - [ —25i _ 1
erfBirg, [ <ULIREi_1

Where:
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"K" means the Constant Leverage Factor (which will always be higher than 0)
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"ULrei" means the Reference Value calculated as follows:
ULjgg;, = maxve[@,@"’][ULt,v]
Where:
"ULtyv" means the Intraday Value on time "v";
"V means an instant of time within the period [0, 6]
"[#, 6"]" means the Intraday Reset Event Observation Period;
Performance Cap means the value specified in the relevant Final Terms;
Performance Floor means the value specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Performance Observation Date(s) means, in relation to Buffer Protection Certificates and Global
Performance Certificates, the Exchange Business Day(s) set out in the relevant Final Terms, on which
the Calculation Agent determines the performance of the relevant Underlying, for the purposes of the
calculation of the Performance Sum and the Global Performance, as the case may be;

Performance means the performance of an Underlying or a Basket Constituent determined by the
Calculation Agent according to one of the following formulas:

(i) on the Valuation Date:

(@) Incase of Long Strategy: Performance = % -
or
In case of Short Strategy: Performance = 1 — %

or

(b) In case of Long Strategy: Performance = P x (‘= — 1)

IRV
or
FRV
In case of Short Strategy: Performance = P x (1 — E)
Where:

"P" means the Performance Participation Factor;

(i) during the life of the Certificates:

(@) Incase of Long Strategy: Performance = %} -1
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In case of Short Strategy: Performance =1 — %

or

(b) In case of Long Strategy: Performance = P x (% -1

In case of Short Strategy: Performance = P x (1 — %)

Where:
"P" means the Performance Participation Factor;

In each case, the relevant Final Terms may provide for the application of a Performance Cap and/or a
Performance Floor.

If Spread is applicable, the performance of the two Underlyings for the purposes of the calculation of
the Spread will be indicated, respectively, as "Performance of the Underlying A" and "Performance
of the Underlying B";

Performance Participation Factor means, in relation to the determination of the Performance of the
Underlying, the multiplier factor specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Performance Sum means, in relation to the Buffer Protection Certificates, the sum of the performances

percentages of the relevant Underlying as determined, in respect of any Performance Observation Date,
by the Calculation Agent as follows:

(i) Incase of Long Strategy: Y7, (RVt 1)

IRV

(i) In case of Short Strategy: Y™, (1 RVt)

T IRV

Where:
"n" means the number of the Performance Observation Dates; and
"RV¢" means the Reference Value calculated on the Performance Observation Date "t".

In each case, the relevant Final Terms may provide for the application of a Performance Sum Cap
and/or a Performance Floor.

Performance Sum Cap means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant Final
Terms;

Performance Sum Floor means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant Final
Terms;

Physical Delivery Securities means Share Securities or Govies Securities that entitle their holders to
receive from the Issuer, on the Settlement Date, the Entitlement;

Plus Amount means, if applicable, one or more amounts indicated in the relevant Final Terms, to be
paid to the Securityholder for each Minimum Exercise Amount on the relevant Plus Payment Date;
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Plus Payment Date means one or more Business Days, indicated in the relevant Final Terms, on which
the Issuer shall pay the Plus Amount to the Securityholders;

Pre-Conversion Certificates means, in relation to Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates and
Constant Leverage Certificates, if Reverse Split is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms,
the Certificates before the application of the Reverse Split;

Predetermined Loss Amount means the amount specified in the applicable Final Terms, or
determined according to the following formula, if provided in the relevant Final Terms:

(Final Reference Value/Initial Reference Value — 1) x Issue Price

For the avoidance of doubt, the Final Reference Value and the Initial Reference Value are referred to
the Underlying specified in the applicable Final Terms, which may differ from the Underlying used to
determine the occurrence of the Barrier Event and/or from the Underlying used to the determine the
Cash Settlement Amount;

Predetermined Loss Percentage means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant
Final Terms;

Premium means the price of issue of the Warrants specified from time to time in applicable Final
Terms as an amount and/or as a percentage of the Notional Amount;

Premium Determination Method(s) means, in the case of Gap Certificates, the Floating Premium,
the Fixed Premium and the Difference in Rates, pursuant to Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions) and
specified by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms in relation to each Premium Determination Method;

Premium Determination Period means, in relation to Gap Certificates and the Premium Gap Amount,
one or more periods specified in the applicable Final Terms during which the relevant Premium Gap
Amount is determined. In the event of more Premium Determination Periods, the relevant Final Terms
will indicate the First Premium Determination Period, the Second Premium Determination Period,
or the n-th Premium Determination Period;

Premium Gap Amount(s) means, in relation to one or more Premium Determination Period(s), the
amount(s) in the Settlement Currency to be paid to the Securityholder on the Premium Gap Payment
Date per each Minimum Exercise Amount, calculated pursuant to Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions);

Premium Gap Observation Period(s) means, in relation to Gap Certificates and the Premium Gap
Amount:

a) If a Barrier Gap Event has not occurred, the actual number of days comprised in the relevant
Premium Determination Period;

b) If a Barrier Gap Event has occurred, the actual number of days comprised in the relevant
Premium Determination Period from the initial day (included or excluded as specified in the
relevant Final Terms) of such Premium Determination Period to the Barrier Gap Event Date
(included or excluded as specified in the relevant Final Terms);

Premium Gap Payment Date means one or more Business Days specified in the applicable Final
Terms on which the Issuer shall pay the Premium Gap Amount to the Securityholders.

If an amount shall be paid on a Premium Gap Payment Date, should the valuation date in which the
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Calculation Agent determines the Reference Value for the purposes of the calculation of such amount
be postponed (by way of example and without limitation, for the occurrence of a Market Disruption
Event), the relevant Premium Gap Payment Date may be postponed accordingly. The Premium Gap
Payment Date shall not, in any case, be postponed beyond ten Business Days;

Premium Margin means, in the case of Gap Certificates, a value expressed as basis points specified by
the Issuer in the applicable Final Terms (the Premium Margin may be equal to zero if the Issuer decides
not to apply it for the calculation of the relevant Premium Gap Amount);

Premium Percentage means, in the case of Gap Certificates, the value expressed as a percentage
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Protection Amount means the amount specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Protection Level means the value or the values specified in the relevant Final Terms that may be set as:
(i) a percentage of the Initial Reference Value; or
(ii) avalue expressed as a percentage; or

(iii) a predetermined value specified in the applicable Final Terms.

In the case of Best Of Feature or Worst Of Feature, the Issuer will indicate in the relevant Final Terms
the Protection Level for each Underlying;

Protection Percentage means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant Final
Terms;

Purchase Price means, in relation to Digital Certificates, the price at which the Digital Certificates may
be subscribed by the investor in an exempt offer, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms. The
Purchase Price will be lower than the Issue Price;

Put Exercise Date means the Exchange Business Day on which the Certificates are redeemed,
following the exercise of the Put Option. If the Put Valuation Period is applicable, the Put Exercise
Date coincides with the last Exchange Business Day of the relevant Put Valuation Period or with the
Put Valuation Period, if it is composed by one Exchange Business Day. If the Put Valuation Period is
specified as ‘not applicable’, the Put Exercise Date is the date specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Put Notice Period means the date(s) — indicated in the applicable Final Terms — by which the
Securityholder shall notify, in accordance with Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures (only
applicable to Certificates)) below, the intention to exercise the Put Option in the relevant Put Exercise
Date;

Put Option means, if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, the option to request the redemption of
the Certificates which can be irrevocably exercised by the Securityholders during the Put Notice Period
specified in the applicable Final Terms pursuant to Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures (only
applicable to Certificates)) below. Following the exercise of the Put Option, the Certificates indicated
by the Securityholders will be redeemed and such Securityholders will be entitled to receive the Cash
Settlement Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms and the relevant Put Option Amount, if
applicable;

Put Option Amount means one or more amounts specified in the applicable Final Terms that
Securityholders are entitled to receive following the exercise of the Put Option, in addition to the Cash
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Settlement Amount;

Put Option Exercise Notice means the notice drawn up and to be sent by the Securityholder pursuant
to Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures (only applicable to Certificates)) below and pursuant
to the applicable Final Terms;

Put Valuation Period means, in relation to the Put Option and if specified as applicable in the relevant
Final Terms, one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business Days or the Specific
Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, on which the Calculation Agent determines the
Reference Value. In the event of more Put Valuation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the
First Put VValuation Period, the Second Put Valuation Period, or the n-th Put VValuation Period.

If the applicable payout formula of the Cash Settlement Amount includes the Final Reference Value, if
the Put Option is exercised by the Securityholder, the Reference Value determined by the Calculation
Agent in the relevant Put Valuation Period will be considered as Final Reference Value.

The Put Valuation Period, if applicable, may only begin after the Put Notice Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on a Put Valuation Period or on one Exchange
Business Day of the Put Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition 15(1) (Market
Disruption Event) will apply;

Qualifying Certificates means securities issued directly or indirectly by the Issuer that:

0] (A) contain terms which at such time result in such securities being eligible to count towards
fulfilment of the Issuer's and/or the Group's (as applicable) minimum requirements for Own
Funds and eligible liabilities under the then applicable MREL Requirements; (B) include a
ranking at least equal to that of the Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities; (C) have the
same redemption rights as the Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities; (D) preserve any
existing rights under the Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities to any due but unpaid
amounts which has not been paid in respect of the period from (and including) the payment
date immediately preceding the date of substitution or variation; (F) are assigned (or maintain)
the same or higher solicited credit ratings as were assigned to the Certificates immediately
prior to such variation or substitution, unless any downgrade is solely attributable to the
effectiveness and enforceability of Condition 17 (Acknowledgment of the Italian Bail-in
Power); and (G) other than in respect of the effectiveness and enforceability of Condition 17
(Acknowledgment of the Italian Bail-in Power), have terms not materially less favourable to a
holder of the Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities, certified by the Issuer acting
reasonably following consultation with an investment bank or financial adviser of international
standing which is independent of the Group, than the terms of the Certificates that qualify as
eligible liabilities; and

(i) are listed on a recognized stock exchange if the Certificates were listed immediately prior to
such variation or substitution.

Quanto Option means, if specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, that the Underlying
Reference Currency is, for the purpose of the determination of the Cash Settlement Amount or Early
Redemption Amounts or Remuneration Amounts or Corridor Early Amounts or Early Partial Capital
Payment and the relevant events, in any case conventionally denominated in the Settlement Currency
and the Exchange Rate is not applicable and, therefore, the effects of the Exchange Rate on such
amount(s) are neutralised;
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Quanto Securities means, in relation to Cash Settled Securities when the Underlying Reference
Currency differs from the Settlement Currency, that the Quanto Option applies;

Rainbow Feature means, in relation to the Certificates linked to a Basket, the determination method in
relation to the value of that Basket, provided by the Issuer in the relevant Final Terms. Unlike the
securities linked to one or more Underlyings, the Issuer will indicate in the applicable Final Terms: (i)
the financial activities which represent the Basket Constituents, (ii) the relative weighting within the
Basket without any preliminary reference to specific financial activities and (iii) the objective criteria
pursuant to which the weight will be allocated by the Calculation Agent (by way of example, in a
Basket constituted by three financial activities, the Basket would be weighted as follows: 50% for the
Basket Constituent with the best performance; 30% for the Basket Constituent with the worst
performance; and 20% for a Basket Constituent with the second best performance). For each
determination (during the life of the Certificates and at the exercise date), the Calculation Agent will
weigh the relevant Basket Constituents on the basis of the performance registered on such
determination date and pursuant to the formula set out in the applicable Final Terms. The allocation of
the weights within a Basket may result differently on each determination date and depending on the
performance of the Basket Constituents.

Once the Calculation Agent has carried out the weighting of the Basket on the relevant determination
date, the Calculation Agent will calculate the total amount of the Basket pursuant to the methods
applied on the instruments normally linked to the Basket.

Such feature shall not apply to Spread Certificates and Multiperformance Certificates;

Record Date means the Business Day that may be specified in the relevant Final Terms, which is the
last day on which the ownership of the Securities is verified in relation to the right to receive the
payment of the relevant Remuneration Amount;

Reduced Initial Listing Price means the price, which may be indicated in the applicable Final Terms,
that will be used in order to determine the initial trading price of the Securities. The Reduced Initial
Listing Price may be different from the initial trading price of the Securities and will be lower than the
Issue Price. The Reduced Initial Listing Price will be applicable only in relation to Securities to be
admitted to listing and/or trading without prior offer;

Reference Rate or RR means, in relation to Premium Gap Amount, Interest Rate Warrants, Floating
Amount, Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B Short Constant Leverage
Certificates, the interest rate that will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Final
Terms. In the case of Difference in Rates, the applicable Final Terms will specify the Reference Rate 1
and the Reference Rate 2;

Reference Source means, in relation to the Underlying, each information provider, electronic page,
exchange or quotation system in which the Underlying values are available, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms, any successor to such information provider, electronic pages, exchange or
quotation system or any substitute exchange or quotation system to which trading in the Underlying has
temporarily relocated (provided that the Calculation Agent has determined that there is comparable
liquidity relative to the contracts relating to such Underlying on such temporary substitute exchange or
quotation system as on the original Reference Source);

Reference Underlying means, in relation to the Underlying of Type A Constant Leverage Certificates,
the relevant asset (by way of example a stock index, a share, a commodity or its related future contract)
to which the index sponsor applies the Index Leverage Factor in order to calculate the Value of the
Underlying, as specified in the relevant Final Terms.
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In the event of significant and adverse changes in the performance of the Reference Underlying, an
intra-day recalculation mechanism (intra-day reset) is provided by the index sponsor to prevent that the
value of the Underlying will become negative due to the Index Leverage Factor. Specifically, when the
performance of the Reference Underlying is lower (in case of Underlying with long leverage) or higher
(in case of Underlying with short leverage) than the Trigger Value, the Underlying index sponsor sets a
new base value for the calculation of the daily performance of the Reference Underlying and,
consequently, will result in an adjustment of the value of the Underlying;

Reference Value or RV means the value determined by the Calculation Agent during the relevant
valuation period, as specified in the relevant Final Terms.

In the case of a Basket, the Reference Value of the Basket will be determined as specified in the
previous definition of "Basket Value".

Without prejudice to the definitions of the Final Reference Value and Initial Reference Value set out
above, in relation to any valuation period during the lifetime of the Certificates, the occurrence of the
relevant event may be determined pursuant to the following provisions, as specified from time to time
in the relevant Final Terms.

In relation to each Underlying, or Basket, or Basket Constituent and the related Reference Value
determined as specified below, only the changes published by the Issuer with a notice on its website
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com shall be taken into account.

If the Underlying is one or more financial asset(s) (and not a Basket):

(A) the Value of the Underlying (or, in case of more than one Underlying, the Value of any or
all Underlying(s) as specified in the applicable Final Terms) on the relevant valuation
period, as determined by the Calculation Agent; or

(B) the arithmetic mean or a percentage of such arithmetic mean of the Values of the
Underlying (or, in case of more than one Underlying, the arithmetic mean or a percentage
of such arithmetic mean of the Values of each Underlying or of the Underlying(s)
specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant valuation period, ascertained by the
Calculation Agent on the last Exchange Business Day or on the last Specific Period of
such valuation period, as specified in the relevant Final Terms, and determined pursuant
to the following formula:

X
1
RV = Arithmetic Percentage X (; X Z Underlying,)
z=1

Where:

"Arithmetic Percentage” means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the
applicable Final Terms (if not specified, the Arithmetic Percentage will be equal to
100%);

"x" is the number of the dates of such valuation period, specified as such in the relevant
Final Terms; and

"Underlying;" is the Value of the Underlying as determined on the Exchange Business
Day "z" or on the Specific Period "z" of such valuation period, as specified in the

applicable Final Terms; or
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©)

(D)

(E)

(F)

the minimum or the maximum Value as specified in the applicable Final Terms (or, in
case of more than one Underlying, the maximum or minimum Value of the Underlying(s)
specified in the applicable Final Terms) recorded in relation to the Underlying during one
or more valuation period(s) ascertained by the Calculation Agent on the Exchange
Business Day or on the Specific Period, as specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

in case of Exchange Rate Securities and if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, the
Reference Value may be equal to the quotient of (a) 1 (as numerator) and (b) the amount
calculated pursuant to (A), (B) or (C) above (as denominator); or

when the Underlying is represented by a Futures Contract and if the Futures Contract N-
th Near-by Feature and Rolling are specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms,
the Value of the Futures Contract N-th Near-by on the relevant valuation period (only
applicable when such valuation period is set as a single date); or

in case of Share Securities and if so specified in the relevant Final Terms, either

(i) the Adjusted Price on the relevant valuation period or

(ii) the arithmetic mean of the Adjusted Price on the relevant valuation period,
ascertained by the Calculation Agent on the Exchange Business Day or on the Specific

Period, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, and determined pursuant to the
following formula:

X
1
RV == x ZAPZ
X
z=1

Where:

"x" is the number of valuation period specified as such in the relevant Final Terms;

"AP;" is the Adjusted Price of the Underlying(s) as determined on the Exchange Business
Day "z" or on the Specific Period "z" of such valuation period, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

If the Underlying is a Basket:

(A)

(B)

the Basket Value on the relevant valuation period, as ascertained by the Calculation
Agent;

the arithmetic mean of the Basket Values on the Exchange Business Days or on the

Specific Periods of the relevant valuation period as ascertained by the Calculation
Agent, determined pursuant to the following formula:

X
1
RV = —X Z Basket,
x z=1

Where:

"x" is the number of the Exchanges Business Days or the Specific Period(s) of the
relevant valuation period, specified as such in the relevant Final Terms;
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"Basket;" is the Basket Value as calculated on the Exchange Business Day "z" or on
the Specific Period "z" as specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

© the minimum or the maximum Basket Value (as specified in the applicable Final
Terms) recorded in relation to the Basket during one or more valuation period(s),
ascertained by the Calculation Agent on the Exchange Business Day or the Specific
Period of the relevant valuation period, as set out in the relevant Final Terms; or

(D) the Value of one or more or each Basket Constituent (as specified in the applicable
Final Terms) on the relevant valuation period.

If the Call Option/Put Option is exercised by the issuer/the Securityholder, the Reference Value
determined by the Calculation Agent in the related Call Valuation Period/Put Valuation Period will be
considered as Final Reference Value, if applicable;

Registrar means BNP Paribas, Luxembourg Branch, as registrar in respect of any Registered
Securities;

Register means in the case of Registered Securities, the register kept at the principal office of the
Registrar;

Related Exchange means any regulated or non-regulated market where the options, futures or repo
contracts on an Underlying or a Reference Underlying are traded, as determined by the Calculation
Agent;

Relevant Exchange Business Day means any Exchange Business Day which is relevant to fix the
Value of the Underlying(s);

Relevant Asset means, in relation to Physical Delivery Securities, the Share or the Govies specified in
the applicable Final Terms constituting the Deliverable Asset;

Relevant Authority means the European Central Bank, the Bank of Italy, or any successor authority
having responsibility for the prudential supervision of the Issuer or the Group within the framework of
the Single Supervisory Mechanism set out under Council Regulation (EU) No. 1024/2013 and in
accordance with the applicable MREL Requirements and/or, as the context may require, the Italian
resolution authority, the Single Resolution Board established pursuant to Regulation (EU) No.
806/2014, and/or any other authority in Italy or in the European Union entitled to exercise or participate
in the exercise of the Italian Bail-in Power or having primary responsibility for the prudential oversight
and supervision of Intesa Sanpaolo from time to time;

Relevant Regulations means any requirements contained in the regulations, rules, guidelines and
policies of the competent authority or the Relevant Authority, or of the European Parliament and
Council then in effect in the Republic of Italy, relating to capital adequacy and applicable to the Issuer
and/or the Group from time to time (including any applicable transitional provisions), (including, but
not limited to, as at the Issue Date of the relevant Series of Certificates, the rules contained in, or
implementing, CRD IV, CRR, the BRRD and the SRMR, delegated or implementing acts adopted by
the European Commission and guidelines issued by the European Banking Authority);

Remuneration Amount means either the Accumulated Amount, the Cumulated Bonus Amount, the
Digital Amount, the Extra Consolidation Digital Amount, the Internal Return Amount, the Participation
Rebate Amount, the Participation Remuneration Amount, the Plus Amount, and/or the Premium Gap
Amount, as the case may be;
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Remuneration Sum means, in relation to the Participation Remuneration Amounts, (i) if the Net Profit
Feature is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, the sum, in respect of any Valuation Date,
of the Remuneration Amounts specified in the relevant Final Terms, if already paid, on the payment
dates specified in the relevant Final Terms, or (ii) if the Tarn Feature is specified as applicable in the
relevant Final Terms, the sum in respect of any Valuation Date, of the Remuneration Amounts specified
in the relevant Final Terms, if already paid, on the payment dates specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Renouncement Notice means, if specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, the notice to be
sent by the Securityholders, prior to the Renouncement Notice Cut-off Time (if applicable), to renounce
any automatic exercise of Securities pursuant to Condition 19 (Exercise rights and procedures (only
applicable to Warrants)) and Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures (only applicable to
Certificates));

Renouncement Notice Cut-off Time means, if a Renouncement Notice is specified as applicable in the
relevant Final Terms, the time limit for sending the Renouncement Notice by the Securityholders
pursuant to Condition 19 (Exercise rights and procedures (only applicable to Warrants)) and Condition
21 (Exercise rights and procedures (only applicable to Certificates));

Repo Rate or RpR means, in relation to Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B
Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the repo rate determined by the Calculation Agent based on the
prevailing market quotes within the same Exchange Business Day and published on the website of the
Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Residual Amount means, in relation to Physical Delivery Securities, the cash amount which will be
paid on the Settlement Date if the result of the formula specified in the applicable Final Terms for
calculating the Entitlement is not a integer number. The Residual Amount will be determined by the
Calculation Agent on the basis of the decimal part of such number, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

Restrike Event means, in relation to the Restrike Feature, the event occurring when the Calculation
Agent determines that the Reference Value of one or more Underlyings, as specified in the relevant
Final Terms (1) is equal to, higher than or lower than, or (2) has been at least once equal to, higher than
or lower than, or (3) has never been equal to, higher than or lower than, or (4) has always been equal to,
higher than or lower than, the relevant Restrike Level on the relevant Restrike Observation Period or on
any Exchange Business Day (specified in the applicable Final Terms) of the relevant Restrike
Observation Valuation Period.

If the applicable Final Terms provide for more than one Restrike Observation Period, the applicable
Final Terms will specify if the Restrike Event will occur in at least one, any or all the Restrike
Observation Periods.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Restrike Event may be determined in
relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case of
Securities linked to a Basket, the Restrike Event may be determined in relation to the Basket or to at
least one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these cases,
the applicable Final Terms will also specify the Restrike Level of each Underlying or Basket
Constituent that will be considered for the purposes of the determination of the Restrike Event.

Upon occurrence of a Restrike Event, the Initial Reference Value and all the value and levels dependant

from the Initial Reference Value (such as the Barrier Level, the Cap Level, the Multiplier and so forth)
will be consequently amended.

162


http://www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com/

If the Restrike Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Restrike Feature means, in relation to Max Long/Short Certificates, as better specified in Condition 23
(Pay-out provisions), the calculation method pursuant to which, on the occurrence of a Restrike Event,
the Initial Reference Value will be automatically set at a percentage of the Initial Reference Value
which is equal to the Restrike Percentage, as indicated from time to time in the relevant Final Terms.
All the values and levels dependant from the Initial Reference Value (such as the Barrier Level, the Cap
Level, the Multiplier and so forth) will be consequently amended;

Restrike Level means in relation to the relevant Underlying, the value determined as a percentage of
the Initial Reference Value specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation to the relevant Restrike
Observation Period.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Restrike Event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Restrike Level will be specified
for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Restrike Observation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange
Business Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the
Calculation Agent determines if the relevant Restrike Event has occurred. In the event of more Restrike
Observation Periods, the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Restrike Observation Period, the
Second Restrike Observation Period, or the n-th Restrike Observation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Restrike Observation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Restrike Observation Period, the provisions set out within Condition
15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Restrike Percentage means, in relation to the Restrike Feature, the value expressed as a percentage
specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Reverse Split means, in relation to Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates and Constant Leverage
Certificates, if specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, the mechanism by which the Issuer
may, at its option, consolidate such Certificates and replace the Securities representing such Certificates
before the Reverse Split occurred (the Pre-Conversion Certificates) with Securities representing the
Certificates after the Reverse Split (Converted Certificates), as better specified in Condition 24
(Reverse Split of Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates and Constant Leverage Certificates). In
such event, the Issuer may give the Reverse Split Trigger Notice to Securityholders within a number of
days equal to the Reverse Split Notice Period informing them of its intention to effect a Reverse Split
with respect to the relevant Turbo Certificates, the Benchmark Certificates or Constant Leverage
Certificates (as the case may be). If required, the Issuer will also pay to the Securityholders a Reverse
Split Cash Settlement Amount to reflect the economic effect of reducing the number of such
outstanding Certificates of the relevant Series;

Reverse Split Cash Settlement Amount means, in respect of each Securityholder, the amount
determined as the product of the Reverse Split Cash Settlement Price and the Reverse Split Number
applicable to such Securityholder;

Reverse Split Cash Settlement Price means, in relation to Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates
and Constant Leverage Certificates, the “prezzo di riferimento” of such Certificates as calculated by
Borsa Italiana in accordance with SeDeX Rules;
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Reverse Split Effective Date is the date specified as such in the applicable Reverse Split Trigger
Notice;

Reverse Split Notice Period is the number of days specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Reverse Split Number means, in respect of each Securityholder, the number of the Unconverted
Certificates;

Reverse Split Ratio means, in relation to Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates and Constant
Leverage Certificates, the ratio by which the Certificates will be replaced by the Converted Certificates
as specified in the applicable Reverse Split Trigger Notice;

Reverse Split Settlement Date is the number of days or Business Days specified in the applicable
Reverse Split Trigger Notice following the Reverse Split Effective Date;

Reverse Split Trigger Notice means, in respect of Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates and
Constant Leverage Certificates, the notice which shall include the description of the operational
mechanisms to be performed in relation to the Reverse Split;

Rolling means the feature that may be specified as applicable in relation to Futures Contract Securities
when the Futures Contract N-th Near-by Feature is specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms,
pursuant to which the Issuer will be entitled to determine the Reference Value in relation to any
valuation period during the lifetime of the Certificates and the Final Reference Value on the basis of a
Futures Contract N-th Near-by. In particular, if Rolling is specified as applicable in the relevant Final
Terms, when the Futures Contract N-th Near-by replaces the Futures Contract on the Rollover Date, the
Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the website of the Issuer
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Rollover Date(s) means the Exchange Business Day specified in the applicable Final Terms on which
the Futures Contract N-th Near-by will replace the Futures Contract indicated as the Underlying of the
Securities in the applicable Final Terms;

Series means the Securities that will be issued, from time to time, pursuant to this Base Prospectus as
identified by the relevant ISIN Code;

Settlement Amount means either the Cash Settlement Amount (when settlement shall be by way of
cash payment) or the Physical Delivery (when settlement shall be by way of physical delivery);

Settlement Characteristic means one of the characteristics that may apply to the formulas of the
determination of the Settlement Amount set out under Condition 23 (pay-out provisions) (including,
without limitation, Initial Percentage, Participation Factor, Barrier Event, Barrier Gap Event, Buffer
Event, Protection Level, Short Protection, CAP, Cap Level, Cap Amount, Cap Barrier Amount,
Predetermined Loss Percentage, Air Bag Factor, Sigma Amount, Gearing Factor, Cap Consolidation
Amount, Strike Percentage, Annual Management Feel, Annual Management Fee2, Annual Margin,
Variable Management Fee, Protection Percentage, Spread Protection, Protection Amount, Step Up
Amount);

Settlement Currency means the currency specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Settlement Date means, unless specified otherwise in the applicable Final Terms, the fifth Business
Day next following the last occurring Valuation Date or Call Exercise Date or Put Exercise Date:
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(@ in relation to Cash Settled Securities, the fifth Business Day following the last occurring
Valuation Date or Call Exercise Date or Put Exercise Date;

(b) in relation to Physical Delivery Securities, the date specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms.

If on a Valuation Date or on a Call Exercise Date or on a Put Exercise Date a Market Disruption Event
occurs, the Settlement Date will be postponed accordingly. The Settlement Date shall not, in any case,
be postponed beyond the tenth Business Day following the last Valuation Date or Call Exercise Date or
Put Exercise Date.

Settlement Determination Date means, in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, each date specified in the
applicable Final Terms during which the Cash Settlement Amount is determined in relation to the
Settlement Determination Period.

The above applies provided that in the opinion of the Calculation Agent a Market Disruption Event in a
Settlement Determination Date has not occurred. In this case, the Exchange Business Day coinciding
with the Settlement Determination Date is intended to be postponed to the first following Exchange
Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event is no longer in place. In any case, such Exchange
Business Day of the Settlement Determination Period may not be postponed beyond the eighth
Exchange Business Day following the Exercise Date;

Settlement Determination Period means, in relation to Interest Rate Warrants, the period specified in
the applicable Final Terms related to the Cash Settlement Amount;

Settlement Event means, in relation to the Digital Certificates, the event occurring when the
Calculation Agent determines that the Final Reference Value is equal to, or higher than, the Settlement
Level, as specified in the relevant Final Terms.

In the case of Digital Certificates with Best Of Feature or Worst Of Feature, the Issuer will specify in
the relevant Final Terms the occurrence of the Settlement Event in relation to one or more Underlyings
and the applicable Final Terms may specify the Settlement Level for each Underlying.

The determination by the Calculation Agent on the occurrence of the Settlement Event will be promptly
notified to the Securityholders through a notice published on the website of the Issuer
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Settlement Level means, in relation to the Digital Certificates, the value specified in the applicable
Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Settlement Event. Such value will be set as a percentage
of the Initial Reference Value, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Settlement Level will be
specified for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Share means, in relation to each Series, either as single underlying or as a Basket Constituent, the share
listed in Italy on the markets managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., or listed on European or foreign stock
exchanges, which will be specified as the underlying asset or a Basket Constituent, from time to time in
the relevant Final Terms. The relevant underlying share (as single underlying or as Basket Constituent)
(i) will not be issued by the Issuer nor by an entity belonging to the group of the Issuer, and (ii) may not
be converted or exchanged into shares or other transferable securities equivalent to shares issued by the
Issuer or by an entity belonging to the group of the Issuer;
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Share Securities means Securities that have as Underlying one or more specified Shares or one or
more Baskets of Shares or one or more Global depository receipts (GDRs) or American depository
receipts (ADRs) or one or more baskets of GDRs and/or ADRs. In case of Physical Delivery, the
Underlying will not be a Share issued by the Issuer nor by an entity belonging to the Group.
Furthermore, in case of Physical Delivery Securities, only shares listed on stock exchanges that are
regulated markets can be physically settled to retail investors. In such case, in relation to shares listed
on stock exchanges in EU countries, regulated markets are those markets which fall within the
definition of Art. 4(1) 21 of Directive 2014/65/EU, in relation to shares listed on stock exchanges in
non-EU countries, regulated markets are those markets regulated by a local financial regulator or
monetary authority or institute, in accordance with the law applicable under the relevant jurisdiction;

Short Protection means the amount specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Short Strategy means the financial strategy which gives to the investor the possibility to benefit from
the negative (decreasing) performance of the Underlying(s) in relation to the amount(s) or occurrence
of event(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Sigma Amount means the amount in the Settlement Currency specified by the Issuer in Final Terms
for each Series;

Specific Period means, in case of Securities linked to one or more Indexes based on inflation, the
month or the year (or any other period of time consecutive or not consecutive) specified in the
applicable Final Terms or, in case of Securities linked to any other type of Underlying, the month or the
year (or any other period of time) made of Exchange Business Days, specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

Sponsor means, in relation to each Series, the entity responsible for the calculation and/or the
management and/or the issue of the relevant Underlying, as specified from time to time in the relevant

Final Terms;

Spread means the difference calculated pursuant to one or more of the formulas below, as specified in
the applicable Final Terms:

0] Spread = Performance of the Underlying A — Performance of the Underlying B
In this case the Spread will be equal to the difference between the Performance of the
Underlying A and the Performance of the Underlying B, each of them determined according to
one of the formulas set out in the definition of "Performance", specified in the applicable Final
Terms;
and/or

(i)  Spread = Initial Reference Valuea — Initial Reference Values
In this case the Spread will be equal to the difference between the Initial Reference Value of
the Underlying A (Initial Reference Valuea) and the Initial Reference Value of the Underlying
B (Initial Reference Valueg);
and/or

(iii) ~ Spread = Reference Valuea — Reference Valueg

In this case the Spread will be equal to the difference between the Reference Value of the
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Underlying A (Reference Valuea) and the Reference Value of the Underlying B (Reference
Valueg);

and/or
Spread = Final Reference Valuea — Final Reference Valueg

In this case the Spread will be equal to the difference between the Final Reference Value of the
Underlying A (Final Reference Valuea) and the Final Reference Value of the Underlying B
(Final Reference Valueg);

and/or

Spread = Max[Floor Percentagea; Min(Performance of the Underlying A; Cap Percentagea)]
— Max[Floor Percentages; Min(Performance of the Underlying B; Cap Percentages)]

In this case the Spread will be equal to the difference between (1) the higher between (A) the
Floor Percentagea and (B) the lower between (i) the Performance of the Underlying A and (ii)
the Cap Percentagea and (2) the higher between (A) the Floor Percentageg and (B) the lower
between (i) the Performance of the Underlying B and (ii) the Cap Percentageg;

and/or
in relation to Interest Rate Securities only:

Spread = Max[Floor Percentagea; Min(Initial Reference Valuea; Cap Percentagea)] —
Max[Floor Percentagegs; Min(Initial Reference Valueg; Cap Percentages)]

In this case the Spread will be equal to the difference between (1) the higher between (A) the
Floor Percentagea and (B) the lower between (i) the Initial Reference Value of the Underlying
Aor (ii) the Cap Percentageaand (2) the higher between (A) the Floor Percentageg and (B) the
lower between (i) the Initial Reference Value of the Underlying B or (ii) the Cap Percentages;

and/or

Spread = Max[Floor Percentagea; Min(Reference Valuea; Cap Percentagea)] — Max[Floor
Percentages; Min(Reference Valueg; Cap Percentageg)]

In this case the Spread will be equal to the difference between (1) the higher between (A) the
Floor Percentagea and (B) the lower between (i) the Reference Value of the Underlying A or
(ii) the Cap Percentagea and (2) the higher between (A) the Floor Percentages and (B) the
lower between (i) the Reference Value of the Underlying B or (ii) the Cap Percentages;

and/or

Spread = Max[Floor Percentagea; Min(Final Reference Valuea; Cap Percentagea)] —
Max[Floor Percentagegs; Min(Final Reference Valueg; Cap Percentages)]

In this case the Spread will be equal to the difference between (1) the higher between (A) the
Floor Percentagea and (B) the lower between (i) the Final Reference Value of the Underlying
Aor (ii) the Cap Percentageaand (2) the higher between (A) the Floor Percentages and (B) the
lower between (i) the Final Reference Value of the Underlying B or (ii) the Cap Percentages;
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Spread Cost or SC means, in relation to Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates and Type B
Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Spread Protection means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Step Up Amount means, in relation to Dynamic Protection Certificates, the amount specified in the
relevant Final Terms;

Strike means the value which will be determined by the Calculation Agent on the Strike Observation
Period;

Strike Level means the level specified in the applicable Final Terms in relation to the calculation of the
Cash Settlement Amount of the Dual Currency FX Certificates;

Strike Percentage means, in relation to Warrants, Call Certificates, Standard Certificates (if
applicable) and Twin Win Certificates, the value expressed as a percentage (which may also be equal to
zero) specified in the relevant Final Terms, which will be considered for the purposes of the calculation
of the Cash Settlement Amount;

Strike Price means, in relation to Short Benchmark Certificates, Type A Short Constant Leverage
Certificates and Turbo Certificates, the amount or the value specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms. In case of Turbo Certificates with Open End Feature, if the Call Option/Put Option is exercised
by the Issuer/the Securityholder, the Strike Price is the SP; as defined below;

SPt means, in relation to Turbo Certificates with Open End Feature, the Strike Price which, in respect
of a calendar day (day:), is an amount calculated as follows:

SP; = SPy1 x (1 + Restrike Costr1) 7 — Dividend Adjustment Amount
Where:

"Dividend Adjustment Amount" means, in respect of an Ex-Dividend Date, an amount
determined by the Calculation Agent equal to (i) the sum of the gross cash dividends and/or
other cash distributions payable in respect of the relevant Underlying (or in the case of an
Index, in respect of each share comprising such Index) related to such Ex-Dividend Date
multiplied by (ii) the Dividend Percentage;

"Dividend Percentage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms, provided that the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner, may increase or decrease such percentage to reflect any
imposition of or adjustment to, any taxes which are deducted or withheld at source by or on
behalf of any applicable authority having the power to tax in respect of cash dividends and/or
other cash distributions payable in respect of the relevant Underlying (or in the case of an
Index, in respect of each share comprising such Index). If the Dividend Percentage is adjusted
as provided herein, the adjusted Dividend Percentage, will be notified to Securityholders
through a notice published on the website of the Issuer
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com as soon as reasonably practicable following
such adjustment;

"Ex-Dividend Date" means, with respect to a Share or share comprising an Index, the date on
which such Share or share comprising an Index becomes "ex-dividend" as determined by the
Calculation Agent;
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"Restrike Cost:" means, if applicable, in respect of a calendar day (day:), the value expressed
as a percentage determined and published daily by the Issuer so as not to exceed the
percentage indicated in the applicable Final Terms;

"Restrike Costt.1" means the Restrike Cost;applicable on day:.1; and
"SPt1" means Strike Price applicable on day:.1.

For purpose to calculate the Cash Settlement Amount, if the Call Option/Put Option is exercised by the
Issuer/the Securityholder, t is equal to the Call Exercise Date/Put Exercise Date;

Strike Remuneration Percentage means the value expressed as a percentage, which may also be equal
to zero, specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Strike Observation Period means one or more periods specified in the relevant Final Terms for the
purposes of the determination of the Strike. In the event of more Strike Observation Periods, the
relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Strike Observation Period, the Second Strike
Observation Period, or the n-th Strike Observation Period;

Successor Sponsor means, in relation to each Underlying, a third party that may be responsible for the
calculation and/or the management and/or the issuance of the Underlying in the place of the Sponsor;

Switch Event means, in relation to Switch Certificates, the event occurring when the Calculation Agent
determines that the Reference Value, the Final Reference Value or the Spread or the Cumulated
Performance (in the case of Multiperformance Certificates), as specified in the relevant Final Terms:

(i) if the relevant Switch Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has been equal
to, higher than or lower than the relevant Switch Level on the relevant Switch Valuation
Period; and/or

(i) if the relevant Switch Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has never
been equal to, higher than or lower than or (2) has always been equal to, higher than or
lower or (3) has been for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) equal to higher or lower than the relevant Switch Level on the
relevant Switch Valuation Period or during the relevant Switch Valuation Period; and/or

(iii) if the relevant Switch Event Valuation Period is of one Exchange Business Day, has fallen
within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Switch Level and the relevant
Down Range Switch Level (included or excluded in the range as specified in the relevant
Final Terms) on the relevant Switch Valuation Period or on any Exchange Business Day of
the relevant Switch Valuation Period; and/or

(iv) if the relevant Switch Valuation Period is of more Exchange Business Days, (1) has fallen
at least once within or out of or (2) has never fallen within or out of or (3) has always fallen
within or out or (4) has fallen for a number of Exchange Business Days (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) within or out of a range between the relevant Up Range Switch
Level and the relevant Down Range Switch Level (included or excluded in the range as
specified in the relevant Final Terms) on the relevant Switch Valuation Period or on any
Exchange Business Day of the relevant Switch Valuation Period or during the relevant
Switch Event Valuation Period.
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If the applicable Final Terms provide for more than one Switch Valuation Period, the applicable Final
Terms will specify if the Switch Event will occur in at least one, any or all the Switch Valuation
Periods.

In case of Securities linked to more than one Underlying, the Switch Event may be determined in
relation to at least one, any or all the Underlyings, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In case of
Securities linked to a Basket, the Switch Event may be determined in relation to the Basket or to at least
one, any or all the Basket Constituents, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In these cases, the
applicable Final Terms will also specify the Switch Level (or the Up Range Switch Level and the Down
Range Switch Level) of each Underlying or Basket Constituent that will be considered for the purposes
of the determination of the Switch Event.

If the Switch Event occurs, the Securityholders will be notified through a notice published on the
website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Switch Level means one or more values that may be specified for one or more Underlyings or Basket
Constituents in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the occurrence of the Switch Event in relation to
the relevant Underlying or Basket Constituent in the relevant Switch Valuation Period.

Such value(s) may be set as:
(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value and/or of the Reference Value; or
(i)  avalue expressed as a percentage; or
(iii)  a predetermined value.

In case of more than one Underlying or in case of a Basket, the applicable Final Terms will also specify
whether, for the purpose of the determination of the relevant Switch Event, at least one, any or all the
Underlyings or Basket Constituents will be considered. In this case, the Switch Level will be specified
for each Underlying or Basket Constituent;

Switch Valuation Period means one or more periods composed of one or more Exchange Business
Days or the Specific Period, as indicated in the applicable Final Terms, in which the Calculation Agent
determines if the relevant Switch Event has occurred. In the event of more Switch Valuation Periods,
the relevant Final Terms will indicate the First Switch Valuation Period, the Second Switch
Valuation Period, or the n-th Switch Valuation Period.

In the event that a Market Disruption Event has occurred on the Switch Valuation Period or on one
Exchange Business Day of the Switch Valuation Period, the provisions set out within Condition 15(1)
(Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Synthetic Dividends means, in respect of a Share and a Synthetic Ex-Dividend Date, the amount or
amounts specified as such for such Share in the relevant Final Terms, or, if no such amount is specified
for such Share, zero;

Synthetic Ex-Dividend Date means each date specified as such in the relevant Final Terms;

T2 means the real time gross settlement system operated by the Eurosystem (previously known as
TARGET?2 System) or any successor or replacement for that system;

Tarn Feature means, if specified as applicable in the relevant Final Terms, in relation to the
calculation of the Participation Remuneration Amount, the feature pursuant to which the Participation
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Remuneration Amount potentially payable will cease to be due and payable to the Securityholders if the
Remuneration Sum exceeds the Tarn Amount and the Certificates will be early redeemed;

Tarn Amount means the amount in the Settlement Currency set out in the relevant Final Terms. If in
respect of any Participation Valuation Date, the Remuneration Sum exceeds the Tarn Amount, such
event will be considered as an Early Redemption Event and, therefore, the Certificates are deemed to be
early redeemed and the Securityholders are entitled to receive the payment of the relevant Early
Redemption Amount on the relevant Early Payment Date;

Tax Adjustment Factor or TaxAF means, in relation to Type B Long Constant Leverage Certificates
and Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates, the percentage determined by the Calculation Agent
as an estimate of the possible withholding tax costs applicable in relation to the Underlying and
published on the website of the Issuer www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com;

Termination Event means the occurrence of an event pursuant to Condition 5 (lllegality and force
majeure) or a Hedging Disruption pursuant to Condition 6 (Hedging Disruption);

Trigger Value means, in relation to Constant Leverage Certificates, the value expressed as a
percentage specified in the relevant Final Terms;

Typology means the type of Securities that will be issued in respect of each Series, as specified in the
relevant Final Terms. In particular, the Securities may be:

- Standard Long Certificates / Standard Short Certificates,
- Max Long Certificates / Max Consolidation Long Certificates / Max Short Certificates;

- Type A Spread Certificates / Type B Spread Certificates / Type C Spread Certificates / Type D Spread
Certificates;

- Twin Win Long Certificates / Twin Win Short Certificates;

- Long Benchmark Certificates / Short Benchmark Certificates;

- Long Turbo Certificates / Short Turbo Certificates;

- Long Outperformance Certificates / Short Outperformance Certificates;

- Buffer Protection Certificates;

- Global Performance Certificates;

- Long Dropdown Protection Certificates / Short Dropdown Protection Certificates;
- Long Dynamic Protection Certificates / Short Dynamic Protection Certificates;

- Currency Certificates;

- Multiperformance Long Certificates / Multiperformance Max Long Certificates / Multiperformance
Short Certificates / Multiperformance Max Short Certificates;

- Long Dual Currency FX Certificates / Short Dual Currency FX Certificates;
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- Gap Long Certificates / Gap Short Certificates;
- Calendar Certificates;

- One Star Certificates;

- Switch Certificates;

- Call Certificates;

- Digital Certificates;

- Discount Certificates;

- Combined Amount Certificates;

- Long Outperformance Combined Certificates;
- Reverse Butterfly Certificates;

- Multiple Strike Certificates;

- Type A Long Constant Leverage Certificates / Type A Short Constant Leverage Certificates / Type B
Long Constant Leverage Certificates / Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates;

- Call Warrants;

- Call Covered Warrants;

- Call Spread Warrants;

- Put Warrants;

- Put Covered Warrants;

- Put Spread Warrants;

- Interest Rate Warrants;

- Corridor Warrants;

Unconverted Certificates means, in relation to Turbo Certificates, Benchmark Certificates and
Constant Leverage Certificates, if Reverse Split is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms,
the Certificates held by any Securityholder that cannot be replaced by Converted Certificates, once that
the aggregate number of Certificates held by the relevant Securityholder have been divided by the

Reverse Split Ratio;

Underlying means, for each Series:

(i in the case of Securities linked to one or more financial asset(s), the Share, the
GDRs/ADRs, the Index, the Commodity, the Futures Contract, the Exchange Rate, the
Government Bond, the Yield of Government Bond, the Interest Rate and the Fund, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms;
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(i) if Spread is applicable, two or more financial assets selected from the following
Underlyings: Shares, GDRs/ADRs, Indexes, Commodities, Futures Contracts,
Government Bonds, Yields of Government Bonds, Exchange Rates, Interest Rates, Funds
and Baskets, and indicated respectively as Underlying A and Underlying B in the
relevant Final Terms; in this case, the relevant Initial Reference Value, Final Reference
Value, Multiplier, Initial Percentage, Cap Percentage, Floor Percentage and Performance
of the Underlying, will be indicated as, respectively, the Initial Reference Valuea (IRVa)
and Initial Reference Values (IRVs), the Reference Valuea (RVa) and Reference
Values (RVs), the Final Reference Valuea (FRVa) and Final Reference Values
(FRVe), the Multipliera and Multipliers, the Initial Percentagea and Initial
Percentages, Cap Percentagea and Cap Percentages, Floor Percentagea and Floor
Percentages and the Performance of the Underlying A and Performance of the
Underlying B;

(i) in the case of Certificates linked to a Basket, a Basket composed of two or more financial
assets listed at point (i) above or composed by two or more baskets composed of two or
more financial assets listed at point (i) above (each a Basket Constituent, as defined above
and indicated from time to time in the relevant Final Terms);

Underlying Reference Currency means for each Series, the currency of the Underlying(s) as indicated
in the applicable Final Terms. In the case of Quanto Securities, the Underlying Reference Currency will
be expressed in the Settlement Currency and, therefore, the effects of the Exchange Rate on the Cash
Settlement Amount or Early Redemption Amounts or Remuneration Amounts or Corridor Early
Amounts or Early Partial Capital Payment to be paid in relation to the Securities are neutralised;

Up Participation Factor means the value expressed as a percentage specified as such in the applicable
Final Terms;

Up Range Level means one or more values that may be specified in the applicable Final Terms that
determines the occurrence of: (i) the Accumulating Event (the "Up Range Accumulating Level™); or
(ii) the Consolidation Effect (the "Up Range Consolidation Level™); or (iii) the Consolidation Floor
Event (the "Up Range Consolidation Floor Level"); or (iv) the Digital Event (the "Up Range Digital
Level"); or (v) the Knock-in Event (the "Up Range Knock-in Level"); or (vi) the Knock-out Event (the
"Up Range Knock-out Level"); or (vii) the Memory Effect (the "Up Range Memory Level™); or (viii)
the Participation Remuneration Event (the "Up Range Participation Remuneration Level™); or (ix)
the Early Redemption Event (the "Up Range Early Redemption Level™); or (x) the Switch Event (the
"Up Range Switch Level"); or (xi) the Multiple Strike Event; (the "Up Range Multiple Strike
Level;"); or (xii) the Participation Rebate Event (the "Up Range Participation Rebate Level™). The
Up Range Level is represented by a percentage of the Initial Reference Value or as a value expressed as
a percentage or by a predetermined value. If there are more Underlyings, the applicable Final Terms
will specify the relevant Up Range Level for each Underlying;

Upper Barrier Level means the value specified in the applicable Final Terms that triggers the
occurrence of the Barrier Event. Such value may be set as:

(i) a percentage of the Initial Reference Value; or
(ii) a predetermined value.

Upper One Star Trigger Level means the value specified in the applicable Final Terms that triggers
the occurrence of the One Star Event. Such value may be set as:
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(i)  apercentage of the Initial Reference Value; or
(if)  a predetermined value.

Valuation Date means one or more Exchange Business Days on which the Value of the Underlying(s)
is registered for the purpose of the calculation of:

(i) the Final Reference Value (pursuant to the terms specified below in the definition of Final
Reference Value), and/or

(i)  the Payout Value Long or Payout Value Short, in case of Type B Long Constant Leverage
Certificates and Type B Short Constant Leverage Certificates, and/or

(iii) the Cash Settlement Amount,
as specified in the relevant Final Terms from time to time.

If, on a Valuation Date, a Market Disruption Event (as defined below) occurs, the provisions set out
within Condition 15(1) (Market Disruption Event) will apply;

Value means:
0] the level, price, amount or such other value (e.g. Intraday Value) of the Underlying; or

(i)  a percentage (specified in the applicable Final Terms) of such level, price, amount or other
value; or

(iii)  the level, price, amount or other value plus an amount or a number (specified in the applicable
Final Terms),

used for the purposes of the determination of the Reference Value, Initial Reference Value or Final
Reference Value, as the case may be. Furthermore, the Value can be determined according to the
method of calculation specified in the applicable Final Terms;

Variable Management Fee or VMF means, if applied by the Issuer in relation to Benchmark
Certificates and Constant Leverage Certificates, a fee charged to the Securityholders at the particular
time "t" determined on the basis of the AMF Percentage and of the VMF Percentagey.

The Calculation Agent will deduct the VMF accrued from the Cash Settlement Amount pursuant to
Condition 23 (Pay-out provisions).

The VMF will be calculated as follows:

AMF Percentage VMF Percentagex)
365.25 365.25

WWF=] ety to+1,....,6)(100% —

Where:
"X" means each calendar day from t, to t;

"t" can be any calendar day before the Valuation Date or the Valuation Date;

"AMF Percentage" means the value expressed as a percentage specified in the applicable Final
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Terms;

"VMF Percentagex" means the percentage identified from time to time by the Calculation Agent
within a range specified in the applicable Final Terms, considering that:

- atx =ty (i.e. at the Issue Date), the VMF Percentage is equal to 0;

- atx =t (i.e. the first calendar day following the Issue Date) the VMF Percentageu is equal to
the percentage indicated in the applicable Final Terms;

- thereafter, the VMF Percentagex remains constant on each calendar day "x" until new
communication. It shall be determined by the Calculation Agent so as to not exceed the
percentage indicated in the applicable Final Terms. The Calculation Agent may update the
VMF Percentagey at its reasonable discretion, within the range indicated in the applicable
Final Terms, considering the prevailing market conditions. The variations of the VMF
Percentagey will be notified to the relevant exchange where the Certificates are listed/traded
and published on the website of the Issuer.

It remains understood that the minimum value of the range will be a value equal to or higher than 0;

Worst Of Feature means the determination method that may be specified as applicable in the relevant
Final Terms. If the Worst Of Feature applies, the Calculation Agent will select the Worst Of
Underlying to determine:

(i)  the relevant Remuneration Amount and/or the occurrence of the event that triggers such
Remuneration Amount; and/or

(i)  the Early Redemption Amount and/or the occurrence of the Early Redemption Event; and/or

(iii)  the Settlement Amount and/or the occurrence of any event(s) on which depends the calculation
of such Settlement Amount; and/or

(iv) the occurrence of the Barrier Event or any other event or effect.

In addition, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Worst Of Feature may apply in relation to
any or all the relevant valuation periods;

Worst Of Underlying means, in the case of Worst Of Feature, the Underlying with the first, second or
third (and so on, depending on the number of the Underlyings) worst Performance of the Underlying in
respect of the Performance of the other Underlying(s), determined pursuant to the formula set out in the
applicable Final Terms. In the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will indicate whether it will take into
account the Underlying with the first worst Performance (in such case, this will be named Worst Of
Underlying), the second worst Performance (in such case, this will be named Second Worst Of
Underlying) or the third worst Performance (in such case, a this will be named Third Worst Of
Underlying) or the n-th worst Performance, determined pursuant to the formula set out in the
applicable Final Terms. Upon determination of the Worst Of Underlying, the Issuer will inform the
Securityholders pursuant to Condition 9 (Notices);

Yield of Government Bond means, either as single or as a Basket Constituent, the yield (of a
Government Bond) that may constitute the Underlying of Govies Securities, published from time to
time by the relevant information source specified in the applicable Final Terms or, if such yield is not
published or announced at the relevant time on such information source, either (i) the successor or
alternative information source or (ii) the determination method to be carried out by the Calculation
Agent in its sole and absolute discretion, in each case as specified in the applicable Final Terms.
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Physical Delivery provisions

Settlement of the Securities will be by cash payment (Cash Settled Securities) or, only in relation to
Share Securities and Govies Securities, physical delivery (Physical Delivery Securities).

The method of settlement will be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

In relation to Certificates only, the applicable Final Terms may also specify that such Certificates are
either cash settled of physically settled depending upon the occurrence or not of one of the following
events (specified in the applicable Final Terms):

Barrier Event;

Barrier Gap Event;

Buffer Event;
Consolidation Floor Event;
One Star Event;

Restrike Event;

Settlement Event;

Switch Event.

Settlement of Italian Dematerialised Securities shall be by way of cash payment only.

In relation to Physical Delivery Securities, the following provisions apply:

(A)

Settlement Disruption

If, following the exercise of Physical Delivery Securities, in the opinion of the Calculation
Agent, delivery of the Deliverable Asset constituting part or all of the Entitlement using the
method of delivery specified in the applicable Final Terms is not practicable by reason of a
Settlement Disruption Event (as defined below) having occurred and continuing on any
Settlement Date, then such Settlement Date for such Securities shall be postponed to the first
following Settlement Business Day in respect of which there is no such Settlement Disruption
Event, provided that the Issuer may elect in its sole discretion to satisfy its obligations in
respect of the relevant Security by delivering the Deliverable Asset constituting part or all of
the Entitlement using such other commercially reasonable manner as it may select and in such
event the Settlement Date shall be such day as the Issuer deems appropriate in connection with
delivery of the Deliverable Asset constituting part or all of the Entitlement in such other
commercially reasonable manner. For the avoidance of doubt, where a Settlement Disruption
Event affects some but not all of the Deliverable Asset comprising the Entitlement, the
Settlement Date for the Deliverable Asset not affected by the Settlement Disruption Event will
be the originally designated Settlement Date. For so long as delivery of the Deliverable Asset
constituting part or all of the Entitlement is not practicable by reason of a Settlement
Disruption Event, then in lieu of physical settlement and notwithstanding any other provision
hereof, the Issuer may elect in its sole discretion to satisfy and discharge its obligations in
respect of the relevant Security by payment to the relevant Securityholder of the Settlement
Disruption Amount (as defined below) on the third Business Day following the date that notice
of such election is given to the Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices).
Payment of the Settlement Disruption Amount will be made in such manner as shall be
notified to the Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices). The Calculation
Agent shall give notice as soon as practicable to the Securityholders in accordance with
Condition 9 (Notices) that a Settlement Disruption Event has occurred provided that any
failure to give, or non-receipt of, such notice will not affect the validity of any such Settlement
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(B)

Disruption Event. No Securityholder shall be entitled to any payment in respect of the relevant
Security in the event of any delay in the delivery of the Deliverable Asset constituting part or
all of the Entitlement due to the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event and no liability in
respect thereof shall attach to the Issuer.

For the purposes hereof:

Settlement Disruption Amount in respect of any relevant Security shall be the fair market
value of such Security (taking into account, where the Settlement Disruption Event affected
some but not all of the Deliverable Asset comprising the Entitlement and such non-affected
Deliverable Asset have been duly delivered as provided above, the value of such Deliverable
Asset), less the cost to the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates or agents of unwinding any
underlying related hedging arrangements (including any cost of funding in respect of such
hedging arrangements), all as determined by the Issuer in its sole and absolute discretion; and

Settlement Disruption Event means, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, an event
beyond the control of the Issuer as a result of which the Issuer cannot make delivery of the
Deliverable Asset using the method specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity

If "Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity" is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms
and, following the exercise of Physical Delivery Securities, in the opinion of the Calculation
Agent, it is impossible or impracticable to deliver, when due, some or all of the Deliverable
Asset (the Affected Deliverable Asset) comprising the Entitlement, where such failure to
deliver is due to illiquidity in the market for the Deliverable Asset (a Failure to Deliver due
to Hlliquidity), then:

@) subject as provided elsewhere in these Conditions as amended by the applicable Final
Terms, any Deliverable Asset which are not Affected Deliverable Asset, will be
delivered on the originally designated Settlement Date; and

(b) in respect of any Affected Deliverable Asset, in lieu of physical settlement and
notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the Issuer may elect in its sole discretion
to satisfy its obligations in respect of the relevant Security by payment to the relevant
Securityholder of the Failure to Deliver Settlement Price (as defined below) on the
fifth Business Day following the date that notice of such election is given to the
Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices). Payment of the Failure to
Deliver Settlement Price will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the
Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices). The Calculation Agent
shall give notice as soon as practicable to the Securityholders in accordance with
Condition 9 (Notices) that the provisions of this Condition 4(B) apply.

For the purposes hereof:

Failure to Deliver Settlement Price means, in respect of any relevant Security, the
fair market value of such Security (taking into account, the Deliverable Asset
comprising the Entitlement which have been duly delivered as provided above), less
the cost to the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related
hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Issuer in its sole and absolute
discretion.
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(D)

(E)

(F)

Issuer's Option to Vary Settlement

If the applicable Final Terms indicates that the Issuer has an option to vary settlement in
respect of the Securities, upon a valid exercise of Securities in accordance with these
Conditions, the Issuer may, at its sole and unfettered discretion, in respect of each such
Security, elect not to pay the relevant Securityholders the Cash Settlement Amount or not to
deliver or procure delivery of the Entitlement to the relevant Securityholders, as the case may
be, but, in lieu thereof to deliver or procure delivery of the Entitlement or make payment of the
Cash Settlement Amount on the Settlement Date to the relevant Securityholders, as the case
may be. Notification of such election will be given to Securityholders no later than 10.00 a.m.
(Luxembourg time) on the second Business Day following (a) the Actual Exercise Date for
Warrants or (b) the Exercise Date for Certificates in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices)
and/or, at the option of the Issuer, if applicable, in accordance with the contact details for a
Securityholder specified in its Exercise Notice (in the case of a Warrant) or Physical Delivery
Confirmation Notice (in the case of Certificates and if applicable pursuant to the relevant Final
Terms).

Intervening Period

For such period of time after the Settlement Date as any person other than the relevant
Securityholder shall continue to be the legal owner of such securities (the Intervening
Period), neither the Issuer nor any other person shall (i) be under any obligation to deliver or
procure delivery to the relevant Securityholder or any subsequent beneficial owner of such
securities or any other person any letter, certificate, notice, circular or any other document or
payment whatsoever received by that person in its capacity as the holder of such securities or
(ii) be under any obligation to exercise or procure exercise of any or all rights (including
voting rights) attaching to such securities during the Intervening Period.

General

None of the Issuer, the Security Agents and the Calculation Agent shall have any
responsibility for any errors or omissions in the calculation of any Cash Settlement Amount or
of any Entitlement.

The purchase of Securities does not confer on any holder of such Securities any rights
(whether in respect of voting, distributions or otherwise) attaching to any Deliverable Asset.

In case of Share Securities, the Issuer shall be under no obligation to register or procure the
registration of any Securityholder or any other person as the registered holder in respect of any
shares comprised in any Deliverable Asset in the register of shareholders of the company that
issued the relevant Share.

Italian Dematerialised Securities

This Condition 4 (Physical Delivery provisions) shall not apply to Italian Dematerialised
Securities, which shall be settled by way of cash settlement only.

Illegality and force majeure

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the Securities or that any
arrangements made to hedge the Issuer's obligations under the Securities have, become (i)
illegal in whole or in part for any reason, or (ii) by reason of a force majeure event (such as an
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act of God, fire, flood, severe weather conditions, or a labour dispute or shortage) or an act of
state occurring after the Trade Date, impossible or impracticable, the Issuer may consider such
event as a Termination Event in respect of the Securities and, therefore, will cancel the
Securities by giving notice to Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices).

Should any one or more of the provisions contained in these Conditions be or become invalid,
the validity of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected thereby.

If the Issuer cancels the Securities pursuant to an illegality then the Issuer will, if and to the
extent permitted by applicable law, pay an amount to each Securityholder in respect of each
Security held by such holder, which amount shall be equal to the fair market value of the
Securities, as the case may be (the bid-value in case of Italian Traded Securities),
notwithstanding such illegality, less the cost to the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates or agents
of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements (including any cost of funding in
respect of such hedging arrangements), plus, in the case of Warrants and if already paid by or
on behalf of a Securityholder, the Premium, all as determined by the Calculation Agent in its
sole and absolute discretion (such costs shall not be applicable in case of Italian Traded
Securities). Payment will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Securityholders in
accordance with Condition 9 (Notices).

If the Issuer cancels the Securities by reason of a force majeure event or an act of state, then
the Issuer will, if and to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay an amount to each
Securityholder in respect of each Security held by such holder, which amount shall be equal to
the fair market value of a Security, as the case may be (the bid-value in case of Italian Traded
Securities), taking into account the applicable force majeure event or act of state, as the case
may be, less the cost to the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates or agents of unwinding any
underlying related hedging arrangements (including any cost of funding in respect of such
hedging arrangements) plus, in the case of Warrants and if already paid by or on behalf of a
Securityholder, the Premium, all as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion (such costs shall not be applicable in case of Italian Traded Securities).
Payment will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Securityholders in accordance
with Condition 9 (Notices).

In relation to Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities under the MREL Requirements, the
early exercise of such Certificates is subject to compliance with the then applicable MREL
Requirements (including, without limitation, having obtained the prior permission of the
Relevant Authority, if required, as specified in Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures
(only applicable to Certificates)) below).

Hedging Disruption

In respect of the Securities linked to one or more Underlyings, the Issuer or one of its affiliates
may be unable, after using commercially reasonable efforts, to either (a) acquire, establish, re-
establish, substitute, maintain, unwind or dispose of any transaction(s) or asset(s) it deems
necessary to hedge the equity price risk (or any other relevant price risk including, but not
limited to, the currency risk) of entering into and performing its obligations with respect to the
Securities; or (b) freely realize, recover, receive, repatriate, remit or transfer the proceeds of
hedge positions as the case may be between accounts within the jurisdiction of the hedge
position (the Affected Jurisdiction) or from accounts within the Affected Jurisdiction to
accounts outside of the Affected Jurisdiction.
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(A)

In case of the occurrence of a Hedging Disruption relating to an Underlying (the Affected
Underlying) the Calculation Agent may:

Q) consider such event as a Termination Event. In that case where a Termination Event
occurs, the Issuer shall terminate its obligations under the Securities and shall pay or
cause to be paid an amount on the basis of the fair market value of the Securities (the
bid-value in case of Italian Traded Securities);

(i) replace the Affected Underlying by a new underlying which is representative of the
same economic or geographic sector.

In relation to Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities under the MREL Requirements, the
early exercise of such Certificates is subject to compliance with the then applicable MREL
Requirements (including, without limitation, having obtained the prior permission of the
Relevant Authority, if required, as specified in Condition 21 (Exercise rights and procedures
(only applicable to Certificates)) below).

Purchases and Cancellation

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase Securities at any price in the open
market or by tender or private treaty. Any Securities so purchased may be held or resold or
surrendered for cancellation.

In relation to Certificates which qualify as eligible liabilities under the MREL Requirements,
the Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time repurchase Securities in compliance with the
then applicable MREL Requirements (including, without limitation, having obtained the prior
permission of the Relevant Authority, if required, as specified in Condition 21 (Exercise rights
and procedures (only applicable to Certificates)) below).

Agents, Determinations, Meetings of Securityholders and Modifications

Security Agents and Registrar

The specified offices of the Security Agents and Registrar are as set out at the end of these
Conditions.

The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Security
Agent and to appoint further or additional Security Agents, provided that no termination of
appointment of the Principal Security Agent shall become effective until a replacement
Principal Security Agent shall have been appointed and provided that, so long as any of the
Securities are listed on any stock exchange or admitted to trading or listing by any other
relevant authority, there shall be a Security Agent having a specified office in each location
required by the rules and regulations of the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority
and, for so long as there are any Registered Securities outstanding, there will at all times be a
Registrar. Notice of any termination of appointment and of any changes in the specified office
of any Security Agent or Registrar will be given to Securityholders in accordance with
Condition 9 (Notices) provided that any failure to give, or non-receipt of, such notice will not
affect the validity of any such termination or changes. In acting under the Agency Agreement,
each Security Agent and the Registrar acts solely as agent of the Issuer and does not assume
any obligation or duty to, or any relationship of agency or trust for or with, the Securityholders
and any Security Agent’s determinations and calculations in respect of the Securities shall

180



(B)

(©)

(D)

(save in the case of manifest error) be final, conclusive and binding on the Issuer and the
Securityholders.

The Agency Agreement may be amended by the parties thereto, but without the consent of the
Securityholders, for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or of curing, correcting or
supplementing any defective provision contained therein or in any manner which the parties
may mutually deem necessary or desirable and which shall not be materially prejudicial to the
interests of the Securityholders.

Calculation Agent

In relation to each issue of Securities, the Calculation Agent (whether it be the Issuer or
another entity) acts solely as agent of the Issuer and does not assume any obligation or duty to,
or any relationship of agency or trust for or with, the Securityholders. All calculations and
determinations made in respect of the Securities by the Calculation Agent shall be made in
good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner and shall (save in the case of manifest
error) be final, conclusive and binding on the Issuer and the Securityholders.

The Calculation Agent may, with the consent of the Issuer, delegate any of its obligations and
functions to a third party as it deems appropriate.

Determinations by the Issuer

Any determination made by the Issuer pursuant to these Conditions shall be made in good faith
and in a commercially reasonable manner and shall (save in the case of manifest error) be
final, conclusive and binding on the Issuer and the Securityholders.

Meetings of Securityholders and Modifications

(i) The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of the
Securityholders to consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning
by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of the Securities or any of the provisions
of the Agency Agreement. Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer. The
provisions for convening meetings of the Securityholders contained in the Agency
Agreement, shall apply, mutatis mutandis, also to the Italian Dematerialised Securities.
The quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution is two or more
persons holding or representing a clear majority of the Securities for the time being
outstanding or at any adjourned meeting two or more persons being or representing
Securityholders whatever the number or Securities so held or represented, except that at
any meeting the business of which includes the modification of certain provisions of the
Securities (including modifying the date of exercise of the Securities, reducing or
cancelling the Cash Settlement Amount in respect of the Securities or altering the
currency of payment of the Securities other than pursuant to Condition 16 (Adjustments
for European Monetary Union)), the quorum shall be two or more persons holding or
representing not less than two-thirds of the Securities for the time being outstanding or at
any adjourned such meeting one or more persons holding or representing not less than
one-third of the Securities for the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution
passed at any meeting of the Securityholders shall be binding on all the Securityholders,
whether or not they are present at the meeting save in the case of American Style
Warrants, for those Warrants remaining outstanding but for which an Exercise Notice
shall have been submitted prior to the date of the meeting.
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(ii)

In respect of Italian Dematerialised Securities, for the purposes of (i) ascertaining the
right to attend and vote at any meeting of the Securityholders and (ii) the determination
of how many Italian Dematerialised Securities are outstanding for the purposes of this
Condition, those Italian Dematerialised Securities which are beneficially held by, or on
behalf of, the Issuer and not cancelled shall (unless and until ceasing to be so held) be
deemed not to be outstanding provided, for the avoidance of doubt, that this shall not
prejudice any rights of the Issuer and its respective legal and financial advisers to attend
and speak at any such meeting.

The Principal Security Agent and the Issuer may agree, without the consent of the
Securityholders to:

€)] any modification (except as mentioned above) of the Securities or the Agency
Agreement which is not prejudicial to the interests of the Securityholders; or

(b) any modification of the Securities or the Agency Agreement which is of a
formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest error or
proven error or to comply with mandatory provisions of law.

Any such modification shall be binding on the Securityholders and any such
modification shall be notified to the Securityholders in accordance with
Condition 9 (Notices) as soon as practicable thereafter.

This Condition 8(D)(ii) applies to Certificates qualified as eligible liabilities under the
MREL Requirements at the time of the issuance. If at any time a MREL Disqualification
Event occurs and/or in order to ensure the effectiveness and enforceability of Condition
17 (Acknowledgment of the Italian Bail-in Power), then the Issuer may, subject to giving
any notice required to be given to, and receiving any consent required from, the Relevant
Authority (without any requirement for the consent or approval of the holders of the such
Certificates of that Series) and having given not less than 30 (thirty) nor more than 60
(sixty) days' notice to the Principal Security Agent and the Securityholders of the
Certificates of that Series, which notice shall be irrevocable, at any time either substitute
all (but not some only) of such Certificates, or vary the terms of such Certificates so that
they remain or, as appropriate, become Qualifying Certificates (as defined above),
provided that such variation or substitution does not itself give rise to any right of the
Issuer to redeem the varied or substituted securities.

For the avoidance of doubt, no consent of the Securityholders shall be required for a
substitution or variation (as applicable) of such Certificates in accordance with this
Condition 8(D)(ii).

Notices

All notices to Securityholders shall be valid if (i) until such time as any Definitive Securities
or Registered Securities in definitive form are issued, the notice is delivered to Euroclear
and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, for communication by them to the Securityholders; (ii) if
and so long as the Securities are listed on the Official List of Euronext Dublin and admitted to
trading on the regulated market of Euronext Dublin, the notice is published in accordance with
the rules and regulations of Euronext Dublin (which shall include publication on the relevant
website (www.euronext.com)); (iii) if and so long as the Securities are admitted to trading on
stock exchanges other than Euronext Dublin, the notices are duly published in a manner which
complies with the rules of any such other stock exchange (or any other relevant authority) on
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(A)

(B)

(©)

11.

12.

(A)

which the Securities are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to
trading; (iv) in the case of Registered Securities in definitive form if sent by first class mail to
the holders (or the first named of joint holders) at their respective addresses recorded in the
Register; and (v) if and so long as the Securities are Italian Dematerialised Securities, as long
as the Securities are held through Monte Titoli, the notice shall be deemed to have been duly
given if given through the systems of Monte Titoli. If Definitive Securities are issued, notices
to Securityholders will be deemed validly given if published in a leading English language
daily newspaper of general circulation in London. It is expected that such publication will be
made in the Financial Times. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date
of delivery to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg or the date of publication, as the
case may be, or, if published more than once, on the date of the first publication.

Expenses and Taxation

A holder of Securities must pay all taxes, duties and/or expenses, including any applicable
depository charges, transaction or exercise charges, sale commissions, stamp duty, stamp duty
reserve tax, issue, registration, securities transfer and/or other taxes or duties arising from the
exercise and settlement of such Securities pursuant to the terms of such Securities and/or the
delivery or transfer of the Entitlement, as applicable (Expenses) relating to such Securities.

The Issuer shall not be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay any tax, duty, withholding or
other payment which may arise as a result of the ownership, transfer, exercise or enforcement
of any Security by any person and all payments made by the Issuer shall be made subject to
any such tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may be required to be made, paid,
withheld or deducted.

A holder of Securities must provide the Issuer with sufficient information and all reasonable
assistance necessary (for, and pay all costs associated with), compliance by the Issuer with
Section 1471(b) of the Code or otherwise imposed pursuant to Section 1471 through 1474 of
the Code or any fiscal or regulatory legislation, rules or practices adopted pursuant to any
intergovernmental agreement entered into in connection with the implementation of such
Sections of the Code. If the Issuer or any other relevant withholding agent determines that a
withholding pursuant to FATCA or U.S. dividend equivalent tax legislations under Section
871(m) is required, neither the Issuer nor any withholding agent will be required to pay any
additional amounts with respect to amounts so withheld.

Further Issues

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of Securityholders to create
and issue further Securities so as to be consolidated with and form a single series with the
outstanding Securities.

Substitution of the Issuer

Substitution of Issuer

Unless otherwise indicated in the relevant Final Terms, the Issuer (or any previously
substituted company from time to time) shall, without the consent of the Securityholders, be
entitled at any time to substitute for the Issuer any other company (the Substitute) as principal
debtor in respect of all obligations arising from or in connection with the Securities provided
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that (i) all action, conditions and things required to be taken, fulfilled and done (including the
obtaining of any necessary consents) to ensure that the Securities represent valid, legally
binding and enforceable obligations of the Substitute have been taken, fulfilled and done and
are in full force and effect; (ii) the Substitute shall have assumed all obligations arising from or
in connection with the Securities and shall have become a party to the Agency Agreement,
with any consequential amendments; (iii) the obligations of the Substitute in respect of the
Securities shall be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Issuer; (iv) each stock
exchange or listing authority on which the Securities are listed shall have confirmed that
following the proposed substitution of the Substitute the Securities would continue to be listed
on such stock exchange; and (v) the Issuer shall have given at least 30 days”’ prior notice of the
date of such substitution to the Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices); and
(vi) in relation to Certificates which qualify as eligible liabilities under the MREL
Requirements, if required by the Relevant Regulations, the Issuer has obtained the prior
permission of the Relevant Authority.

Modification of Conditions as a result of Substitution of Issuer

After any substitution or change of branch pursuant to Condition 12(A) (Substitution of
Issuer), the Conditions will be modified in all consequential respects including, but not limited
to, replacement of references to the Republic of Italy in the Conditions where applicable, by
references to the country of incorporation, domicile and/or residence for tax purposes of the
Substitute or the new branch, as the case may be. Such modifications shall be notified to
Securityholders in accordance with Condition 9 (Notices).

Governing Law and Jurisdiction

The Securities and the Agency Agreement (and any non-contractual obligations arising out of
or in connection with the Securities and the Agency Agreement) are governed by and shall be
construed in accordance with English law. Notwithstanding this, (i) in respect of Italian
Dematerialised Securities, the registration and transfer of the Italian Dematerialised Securities
in Monte Titoli will be governed by, and will be construed in accordance with, Italian law,
and, (ii) in respect of the loss absorption provisions described in Condition 17
(Acknowledgement of Italian Bail-in Power) and any non-contractual obligations arising out of
or in connection with such provisions will be governed by, and will be construed in
accordance with, Italian law.

In relation to any legal action or proceedings arising out of or in connection with the Securities
(including any legal action or proceedings relating to any non-contractual obligations arising
out of or in connection with the Securities and the Agency Agreement) (Proceedings), the
Issuer irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of England and
hereby waives any objection to Proceedings in such courts whether on the ground of venue or
on the ground that the Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum. These
submissions are for the benefit of each of the Securityholders and shall not limit the right of
any of them to take Proceedings in any other court of competent jurisdiction nor shall the
taking of Proceedings in one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any
other jurisdiction (whether concurrently or not).

The Issuer hereby appoints Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A., London Branch which is presently at 90
Queen Street, London EC4AN 1SA, as its agent for service of process and undertakes that, in
the event of Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A., London Branch ceasing so to act, it will appoint another
person as its agent for service of process in England in respect of any Proceedings. Nothing
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14.

15.

15(1)

herein shall affect the right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.

Prescription

Claims against the Issuer, if any, for payment of principal, interest and/or remuneration in
respect of the Certificates shall become void unless made within 60 months from the Exercise
Date and no claims shall be made after such date.

Market Disruption Events and Adjustment Events

Market Disruption Event

If the Calculation Agent determines that the Intraday Value cannot be determined at any time
on a Relevant Exchange Business Day, by reason of the occurrence of an event giving rise to a
Market Disruption Event (as described in the following sub-conditions), then the value at such
time on such period shall be disregarded for the purposes of determining the Intraday Value of
the Underlying(s).

15(1)(A) Market Disruption Event in relation to Index Securities

Definitions

"Index Constituent™" means any security or other asset constituting an Index; and

"Related Exchange" means, in relation to an Index, any regulated or non-regulated market
where the options, futures or repo contracts on such Index are traded, as determined by the
Calculation Agent.

Market Disruption Events occurring on a Relevant Exchange Business Day other than
the Determination Date and occurring at any time during the one hour period that ends
at the time of the relevant determination and/or valuation made by the Calculation Agent
on the Relevant Exchange Business Day

For the purposes of this 15(1)(A), Market Disruption Events means:

(i) any suspension of, or relevant limitation imposed on (a) any transaction on the
relevant Exchange or (b) trading of a concrete amount of Index Constituents traded
on the relevant Exchanges;

(i) any suspension of, or relevant limitation imposed on, trading of futures or options
contracts relating to the Index on a Related Exchange;

(iii) any event (as determined by the Calculation Agent) that disrupts or impairs the ability
of market participants in general to affect transactions (a) in relation to or to obtaining
market values for, the Index on the relevant Exchange, or (b) in or obtaining market
values for, options contracts or futures contracts on or relating to such Index on any
relevant Related Exchange;

(iv) the opening on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Exchange or any Related

Exchange(s) prior to its scheduled opening time unless such earlier opening time is
announced by such Exchange(s) or Related Exchange(s) at least one hour prior to the
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earlier of (a) the actual opening time for the regular trading session on such
Exchange(s) or Related Exchange(s) on such Exchange Business Day and (b) the
submission deadline (if applicable) for orders to be entered into with the Exchange or
Related Exchange system for execution on such Exchange Business Day; and

(v) the closure on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Exchange or any Related
Exchange(s) prior to its Scheduled Closing Time unless such earlier closing time is
announced by such Exchange(s) or Related Exchange(s) at least one hour prior to the
earlier of (a) the actual closing time for the regular trading session on such
Exchange(s) or Related Exchange(s) on such Exchange Business Day and (b) the
submission deadline (if applicable) for orders to be entered into with the Exchange or
Related Exchange system for execution on such Exchange Business Day.

If the Calculation Agent determines that a Market Disruption Event has occurred pursuant to
(), (i), (iii), (iv) and (v) above, then the Exchange Business Day on which the Market
Disruption Event occurred is postponed to the next following Exchange Business Day on
which the Market Disruption Event ceases.

The Exchange Business Day may be postponed for up to eight Exchange Business Days from
the Exchange Business Day originally expected.

If the valuation/determination has been carried out in more than one Exchange Business Day
and the disruption occurred in connection with just one of such days, the postponement will be
carried out also in connection with the remaining Exchange Business Days.

In case of Securities relating to a Basket of Indices, if the Market Disruption Event has
occurred but it is not continuing anymore for all Basket Constituent(s) before the eighth
Exchange Business Day from the Exchange Business Day originally expected, in order to
determine the official level of the Index the Calculation Agent will have the faculty to
determine the official level of each Basket Constituent(s):

@) on the relevant date on which the Market Disruption Event has ceased to occur for
each single Basket Constituent, or

(b) on the date on which the Market Disruption Event has ceased to occur for all Basket
Constituents.

If, on the eighth Exchange Business Day from the Exchange Business Day originally expected,
the Market Disruption Event is continuing, the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner, will determine

(i) in the case of Securities relating to a single Index, the official level of the Index as of
the Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event occurred on that
eighth Exchange Business Day (in accordance with the formula for and method of
calculating the Index last in effect prior to the occurrence of the Market Disruption
Event), or

(i) in the case of Securities relating to a Basket of Indices:

@) for the Basket Constituent(s) for which a Market Disruption Event has not
occurred (if any), then the Calculation Agent will have the faculty to
determine the official level of such Basket Constituent(s) on the Exchange
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Business Day originally expected, or on that eighth Exchange Business Day
from the Exchange Business Day originally expected;

(b) for the Basket Constituent(s) for which a Market Disruption Event has
occurred, but it is not continuing on the eighth Exchange Business Day from
the Exchange Business Day originally expected, the Calculation Agent will
have the faculty to determine the official level of such Basket Constituent(s)
on the date on which the Market Disruption Event has ceased to occur, or on
that eighth Exchange Business Day from the Exchange Business Day
originally expected; or

(©) for the Basket Constituent(s) for which a Market Disruption Event has
occurred and it is continuing on the eighth Exchange Business Day from the
Exchange Business Day originally expected, the Calculation Agent will have
the faculty to determine the official level of each Basket Constituent on that
eighth Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event
occurred,

in all cases in accordance with the fair market value of the Index affected by
the Market Disruption Event, using the formula for and the method of
calculating each Index last in effect prior to the occurrence of the Market
Disruption Event.

Alternatively, if on the eighth Exchange Business Day from the Exchange Business Day
originally expected the Market Disruption Event is continuing, the Issuer may redeem the
Securities early by paying an amount calculated on the basis of the market value of the
Securities, as determined by the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner and taking into account (1) the last available Value of the Index, (2) any
amounts to which the Securityholders would have been entitled to receive prior to the
occurrence of the Market Disruption Event and (3) the probability of the payment for any
amounts which the Securityholders may be entitled to receive until the maturity of the
Securities.

In relation to Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities under the MREL Requirements,
such early exercise of such Certificates is subject to compliance with the then applicable
MREL Requirements (including, without limitation, having obtained the prior permission of
the Relevant Authority, if required, as specified in Condition 21 (Exercise rights and
procedures (only applicable to Certificates)).

**k%k
Market Disruption Events occurring on a Determination Date
For the purposes of this 15(1)(A), Market Disruption Events occurring on a Determination
Date means the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event pursuant to (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v)

above in 15(1)(A) on a Determination Date.

In such case:

(i) if the Determination Date is in advance of the Issue Date, Determination Date shall
mean the first Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event ceases
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immediately following the Determination Date originally expected. However, where
a Market Disruption Event is continuing on all the Exchange Business Days
following the Determination Date originally expected until the Issue Date (excluded),
the Issuer reserves the right for any reason to cancel the issuance of the Securities,
and the offer pursuant to the relevant Final Terms shall be deemed cancelled;

(i) if the Determination Date is after or on the Issue Date, Determination Date shall mean
the first Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event ceases
immediately following the Determination Date originally expected.

If the Market Disruption Event is also continuing on the Determination Date, the
Calculation Agent, acting in good faith, will determine: (i) in the case of Securities
relating to a single Index, the official closing level of the Index for the purposes of
determining the Initial Reference Value or (ii) in the case of Securities relating to a
Basket of Indices, the official closing level of the Basket Constituent, for the purposes
of determining the Initial Reference Value of the Basket, in either case (x) on the
basis of the Market Value of the Index affected by the Market Disruption determined
using the quoted prices from the period before the Disrupted Day and taking into
consideration the impact of the Market Disruption Event on the value of such index
or (y) pursuant to the reasonable market practice.

If the determination has been carried out in more than one Exchange Business Day
and the disruption occurred in connection with just one of such days, the
postponement will be carried out also in connection with the remaining Exchange
Business Days; and

(i) if, on a Determination Date before the Issue Date, the Calculation Agent determines
that the index level is equal to or greater than the Maximum Level set out in the
relevant Final Terms, then the Issuer reserves the right for any reason to cancel the
issuance of the Securities, and the offer pursuant to the relevant Final Terms shall be
deemed cancelled.

Securityholders will be notified of the occurrence of any events pursuant to (i), (ii) and (iii), by
way of a notice published on the Issuer's website
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com.

15(1)(B) Market Disruption Event in relation to Share Securities
Definitions
"Related Exchange" means, in relation to a Share, any regulated or non-regulated market
where the options, futures or repo contracts on such Share are traded, as determined by the
Calculation Agent.
Market Disruption Events occurring on a Relevant Exchange Business Day other than
the Determination Date and occurring at any time during the one hour period that ends
at the time of the relevant determination and/or valuation made by the Calculation Agent
on the Relevant Exchange Business Day

For the purposes of this 15(1)(B), Market Disruption Events means:

(i) any suspension of, or relevant limitation (as determined by the Calculation Agent)
imposed on (a) any transaction on the relevant Reference Source or (b) trading of the
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Share traded on the relevant Reference Source;

(i) any suspension of or relevant limitation imposed on trading of futures or options
contracts relating to a Share on a Related Exchange;

(iii) any event that disrupts or impairs (as determined by the Calculation Agent) the ability
of market participants in general (a) to affect transactions in relation to or to obtaining
market values for the Share on the relevant Reference Source or (ii) to affect
transactions in or obtaining market values for options contracts or futures contracts on
or relating to such Share on any relevant Related Exchange;

(iv) the opening on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Reference Source or any
Related Exchange(s) prior to its scheduled opening time unless such earlier opening
time is announced by such Reference Source(s) or Related Exchange(s) at least one
hour prior to the earlier of (a) the actual opening time for the regular trading session
on such Reference Source(s) or Related Exchange(s) on such Exchange Business Day
and (b) the submission deadline (if applicable) for orders to be entered into with the
Reference Source or Related Exchange system for execution on such Exchange
Business Day; and

v) the closure on any Exchange Business Day of the relevant Reference Source or any
Related Exchange(s) prior to its Scheduled Closing Time unless such earlier closing
time is announced by such Reference Source(s) or Related Exchange(s) at least one
hour prior to the earlier of (a) the actual closing time for the regular trading session
on such Reference Source(s) or Related Exchange(s) on such Exchange Business Day
and (b) the submission deadline (if applicable) for orders to be entered into with the
Reference Source or Related Exchange system for execution on such Exchange
Business Day.

If the Calculation Agent determines that a Market Disruption Event has occurred pursuant to
15(1)(B) (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) above, then the Exchange Business Day on which the
Market Disruption Event occurred is postponed to the next following Exchange Business Day
on which the Market Disruption Event ceases.

The Exchange Business Day may be postponed for up to eight Exchange Business Days from
the Exchange Business Day originally expected.

If the valuation/determination has been carried out in more than one Exchange Business Day
and the disruption occurred in connection with just one of such days, the postponement will be
carried out also in connection with the remaining Exchange Business Days.

In case of Securities relating to a Basket of Shares, if the Market Disruption Event has
occurred but it is not continuing anymore for all Basket Constituent(s) before the eighth
Exchange Business Day from the Exchange Business Day originally expected, in order to
determine the official level of the Basket of Shares the Calculation Agent will have the faculty
to determine the official level of each Basket Constituent(s):

@) on the relevant date on which the Market Disruption Event has ceased to occur for
each single Basket Constituent, or

(b) on the date on which the Market Disruption Event has ceased to occur for all Basket
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Constituents.

If, on the eighth Exchange Business Day from the Exchange Business Day originally expected,
the Market Disruption Event is continuing, the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner, will determine:

Q) in the case of Securities relating to a single Share, the value for the Share as of the
Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event occurred on that
eighth Exchange Business Day, or

(i) in the case of Securities relating to a Basket of Shares:

@) for the Basket Constituent(s) for which a Market Disruption Event has not
occurred (if any), then the Calculation Agent will have the faculty to
determine the official level of such Basket Constituent(s) on the Exchange
Business Day originally expected, or on that eighth Exchange Business Day
from the Exchange Business Day originally expected;

(b) for the Basket Constituent(s) for which a Market Disruption Event has
occurred, but it is not continuing on the eighth Exchange Business Day from
the Exchange Business Day originally expected, the Calculation Agent will
have the faculty to determine the official level of such Basket Constituent(s)
on the date on which the Market Disruption Event has ceased to occur, or on
that eighth Exchange Business Day from the Exchange Business Day
originally expected; or

(c) for the Basket Constituent(s) for which a Market Disruption Event has
occurred and it is continuing on the eighth Exchange Business Day from the
Exchange Business Day originally expected, the Calculation Agent will have
the faculty to determine the official level of each Basket Constituent on that
eighth Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event
occurred.

Alternatively, if on the eighth Exchange Business Day from the Exchange Business Day
originally expected the Market Disruption Event is continuing, the Issuer may redeem the
Securities early by paying an amount calculated on the basis of the market value of the
Securities, as determined by the Calculation Agent, acting in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner and taking into account (1) the last available Value of the Share, (2) any
amounts to which the Securityholders would have been entitled to receive prior to the
occurrence of the Market Disruption Event and (3) the probability of the payment for any
amounts which the Securityholders may be entitled to receive until the maturity of the
Securities.

In relation to Certificates that qualify as eligible liabilities under the MREL Requirements,
such early exercise of such Certificates is subject to compliance with the then applicable
MREL Requirements (including, without limitation, having obtained the prior permission of
the Relevant Authority, if required, as specified in Condition 21 (Exercise rights and
procedures (only applicable to Certificates)).

*k*k
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Market Disruption Events occurring on a Determination Date

For the purposes of this 15(1)(B), Market Disruption Events occurring on a Determination
Date means the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event pursuant to (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v)
above in 15(1)(B) on a Determination Date.

In such case:

() if the Determination Date is in advance of the Issue Date, Determination Date shall
mean the first Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event ceases
immediately following the Determination Date originally expected. However, where
a Market Disruption Event is continuing on all the Exchange Business Days
following the Determination Date originally expected until the Issue Date (excluded),
the Issuer reserves the right for any reason to cancel the issuance of the Securities,
and the offer pursuant to the relevant Final Terms shall be deemed cancelled;

(i) if the Determination Date is after or on the Issue Date, Determination Date shall mean
the first Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event ceases
immediately following the Determination Date originally expected.

If, on the Determination Date the Market Disruption Event is also continuing, the
Calculation Agent, acting in good faith, will determine: (i) in the case of Securities
relating to a single Share, the official closing price of the Share for the purposes of
determining the Initial Reference Value or (ii) in the case of Securities relating to a
Basket of Shares, the official closing price of the Basket Constituent, for the purposes
of determining the Initial Reference Value of the Basket, in either case (x) on the
basis of the Market Value of the Share affected by the Market Disruption determined
using the quoted prices from the period before the Disrupted Day and taking into
consideration the impact of the Market Disruption Event on the value of such Share,
or (y) pursuant to the reasonable market practice.

If the determination has been carried out in more than one Exchange Business Day
and the disruption occurred in connection with just one of such days, the
postponement will be carried out also in connection with the remaining Exchange
Business Days; and

(iii) if, on a Determination Date before the Issue Date, the Calculation Agent determines
that the Share level is equal to or greater than the Maximum Level set out in the
relevant Final Terms, then the Issuer reserves the right for any reason to cancel the
issuance of the Securities, and the offer pursuant to the relevant Final Terms shall be
deemed cancelled.

Securityholders will be notified of the occurrence of any event pursuant to (i), (ii) and (iii) of
this 15(1)(B), by way of a notice published on the Issuer's website
www.prodottiequotazioni.intesasanpaolo.com.

15(1)(C) Market Disruption Event in relation to Commodity Securities

Definitions

"Commodity Reference Dealers Price' means the price for the Reference Value determined
by the Calculation Agent on the basis of four quotations provided by Reference Dealers on the
Relevant Time for a unit of the relevant Commodity. If four quotations are provided, the price
for that Reference Value will be the arithmetic mean of the price for that Commaodity provided
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by each Reference Dealer, without regard to the prices having the highest and lowest value; if
exactly three quotations are provided, the Commodity Reference Dealers Price will be the
price provided by the relevant Reference Dealer that remains after disregarding the prices
having the highest value or the lowest value. For this purpose, if more than one quotation has
the same highest value or lowest value, then one of such quotations shall be disregarded. If
fewer than three quotations are provided, it will be deemed that the price for that Relevant
Time cannot be determined.

"Fallback Reference Value" means the Reference Value calculated following a Market
Disruption Event;

"Other Exchange" means, with respect to a Commodity, each exchange, trading system or
quotation system other than the Reference Source on which such Commodity is listed, traded
or quoted;

"Reference Dealers" means in the event that the Reference Value shall be determined as a
Commodity Reference Dealers Price, four leading leaders in the relevant market, other than
the Reference Source, selected by the Calculation Agent;

"Reference Price” means an amount equal to the official price of the relevant Commodity
resulting from the listing made by the Reference Source on the Exchange Business Day which
is used by the Calculation Agent to determine the Reference Value;

"Related Exchange" means, in relation to a Commodity, any regulated or non-regulated
market where the options, futures or repo contracts on such Commodity are traded, as
determined by the Calculation Agent;

"Relevant Time" means, with respect to any Commodity, the relevant time by reference to
which the Calculation Agent determines the price or value of such Commodity for the
purposes of determining the Reference Value; and

"Relevant Country" means, each of:

(i) any country (or any political or regulatory authority thereof) in which a Reference
Currency or the Settlement Currency is the legal tender or currency; and

(i) any country (or any political or regulatory authority thereof) with which a Commodity,
or the Reference Source, has a material connection and, in determining what is material
the Calculation Agent may, without limitation, refer to such factor(s) as it may deem
appropriate,

all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

Capitalised terms which are not defined in this 15(1)(C) shall have the same meaning as of
Condition 3 (Definitions).

Market Disruption Events occurring on a Relevant Exchange Business Day other than
the Determination Date and occurring at any time during the one hour period that ends
at the time of the relevant determination and/or valuation made by the Calculation Agent
on the Relevant Exchange Business Day

For the purposes of this 15(1)(C), Market Disruption Events means the following events
determining the impossibility for the Calculation Agent to calculate during the Relevant Time
the Reference Value:

(i) the occurrence or existence on any Relevant Exchange Business Day at the
Relevant Time for such commodity or at any time during the one hour
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(i)

period that ends at the Relevant Time for such Commodity:

(A)

(B)

©

(D)

of any suspension of or limitation imposed on all trading (whether
by reason of movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the
relevant Reference Source or any Related Exchange or otherwise):

a) in all contracts on a Reference Source; or

b) in options contracts or futures contracts on a Related
Exchange relating to a Commaodity; or

C) in connection with the closure on any Exchange Business
Day of the Reference Source or any Related Exchange
prior to its Scheduled Closing Time unless such earlier
closing time is announced by such Reference Source or
such Related Exchange, as the case may be, at least one
hour prior to (a) the actual closing time for the regular
trading session on such Reference Source or such Related
Exchange on such Exchange Business Day or, if earlier,
(b) the submission deadline (if applicable) for orders to be
entered into the Reference Source or such Related
Exchange system for execution at the Relevant Time on
such Exchange Business Day. A "Scheduled Closing
Time" is the scheduled weekday closing time of the
relevant Reference Source or Related Exchange, without
regard to after hours or any other trading outside of the
regular trading session hours; or,

of any event that disrupts or impairs (as determined by the
Calculation Agent) the ability of market participants in general to
affect transactions in relation to or to obtaining market values for
the relevant Commodity on the relevant Reference Source, or to
affect transactions in or obtain market values for options contracts
or futures contracts on the Related Exchange relating to such
Commodity; or

of a failure of the Reference Source to announce or publish the
Reference Price (or the information necessary for determining the
Reference Price), or the temporary or permanent discontinuance or
unavailability of the Reference Price, or if the Commodity
Reference Dealers Price is applicable, the failure to obtain at least
three quotations from the relevant Reference Dealers, or if the
Reference Value determined on the basis of Reference Price
materially differs from the Reference Value determined on the basis
of the Commodity Reference Dealers Price; or

of a material change in the formula for, or the method of, calculating
the Reference Price by the Reference Source; or

the imposition of, change in or removal of an excise, severance, sales, use,
value-added, transfer, stamp. documentary, (other than a tax on, or measured
by reference to overall gross or net income) by any government or taxation
authority after the Issue Date, if the direct effect of such imposition, change
or removal is to raise or lower the price or value of the Commodity on the
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day that would otherwise be a Relevant Time from what it would have been
without that impaosition, change or removal.

(iii) any government or supervisory authority (a) imposes any controls or
announces its intention to impose any controls or (b) (i) implements or
announces its intention to implement or (ii) changes or announces its
intention to change the interpretation or administration of any laws or
regulations, in each case which the Calculation Agent determines is likely to
affect the Issuer's ability to acquire, hold, transfer or realise such Commodity
or otherwise to affect transactions in relation to such Commaodity.

If the Calculation Agent determines in good faith that a Market Disruption Event has occurred
or exists pursuant to 15(1)(C) (i), (ii) and (iii) above during the Relevant Time on a day that is
an Exchange Business Day, then a Disruption Fallback (as defined below) method may apply.

The Fallback Reference Value will be determined on the basis of the first applicable
Disruption Fallback (applied in accordance with its terms), according to the order below, being
each of the following method listed under (i), (ii) (iii) and (iv), a "Disruption Fallback" with
the meaning as follows:

(i) the Calculation Agent determines the Fallback Reference Value based on the price
for that Relevant Time provided by a suitable market recognised dealer not subject
to a Market Disruption Event;

(ii) the Calculation Agent, promptly upon becoming aware of the Market Disruption
Event, determines in good faith the Fallback Reference Value (or a method for
determining the Fallback Reference Value), and, if the Calculation Agent is not
able to determine the Fallback Reference Value before the fifth Business Day
following the date on which that Market Disruption Event occurred or existed, the
next applicable Disruption Fallback shall apply;

(iii) the Fallback Reference Value is determined on the basis of the Commodity
Reference Dealers Price;

(iv) the Issuer terminates its obligations under the relevant Commodity Security and
the Calculation Agent shall determine the relevant termination amount.

*k%k

Market Disruption Events occurring on a Determination Date

For the purposes of this 15(1)(C), Market Disruption Events occurring on a Determination
Date means the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event pursuant to (i), (ii) and (iii) above in
15(1)(C) on a Determination Date.

In such case:

(i if the Determination Date is in advance of the Issue Date, Determination Date shall
mean the first Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event ceases
immediately following the Determination Date originally expected. However, where
a Market Disruption Event is continuing on all the Exchange Business Days
following the Determination Date originally expected until the Issue Date (excluded),
the Issuer reserves the right for any reason to cancel the issuance of the Securities,
and the offer pursuant to the relevant Final Terms shall be deemed cancelled;

(i) if the Determination Date is after or on the Issue Date, Determination Date shall mean
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the first Exchange Business Day on which the Market Disruption Event ceases
immediately following the Determination Date originally expected.

If the Market Disruption Event is also continuing on the Determination Date, the
Calculation Agent, acting in good faith, will determine: (i) in the case of Securities
relating to a single Commodity, the Reference Value of the Commodity for the
purposes of determining the Initial Reference Value, or (ii) in the case of Securities
relating to a Basket of Commodities, the Reference Value of the Basket Constituent,
for the purposes of determining the Initial Reference Value of the Basket, in either
case (x) on the basis of the Market Value of the Commodity affected by the Market
Disruption determined using the quoted prices from the period before the Disrupted
Day and taking into consideration the impact of the Market Disruption Event on the
value of such Commadity, or (y) pursuant to the reasonable market practice.

If the determination has been carried out in more than one Exchange Business Day
and the disruption occurred in connection with just one of such days, the
postponement will be carried out also in connection with the remaining Exchange
Business Days; and

(iii) if, on a Determination Date before the Issue Date, the Calculation